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2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
19,569,072 21,052,309 22,608,452 24,877,491 27,205,047
(337,762,183) (363,362,853) (390,221,882) (429,385,495) (469,559,111)
9,718,650 10,719,538 11,940,322 13,360,342 15,170,442
(167,743,899) (185,019,226) (206,089,958) (230,599,503) (261,841,829)
5,368,250 6,147,584 6,514,383 7,095,770 8,134,487
(92,655,995) (106,107,300) (112,438,251) (122,472,990) (140,401,246)
569,948 187,502 343,961 421,390 389,475
(9.837,302)  (3.236,285)  (5.936,767)  (7,273,191)  (6,722,339)
3,339,890 3,999,200 4,664,852 5,391,677 6,198,743
(57,646,501)  (69,026,192) (80,515,346) (93,060,345) (106,990,304)
440,562 385,252 389,410 419,913 413,416
(7,604,100)  (6,649,450)  (6,721,217)  (7,247,698)  (7,135,560)
400,275 404,300 479,143 540,578 618,009
(6,908,747)  (6,978,218)  (8,270,008)  (9,330,376) (10,666,835)
9,318,375 10,315,238 11,461,179 12,819,764 14,552,433
(160,835,153) (178,041,008) (197,819,950) (221,269,127) (251,174,994)
5,333,535 6,152,743 6,885,075 7,422,930 7,822,659
(92,056,814) (106,196,344) (118,836,395) (128,119,772) (135,019,094)
2,811,653 2,896,619 2,805,107 2,699,895 2,437,275
(48,529,131)  (49,995,644)  (48,416,147) (46,600,188) (42,067,367)
1,203,614 635,514 661,741 758,925 981,133
(20,774,378)  (10,968,972)  (11,421,650) (13,099,046) (16,934,356)
323,051 540,386 371,001 708,551 816,206
(5,575,860)  (9,327,062)  (6,403,477) (12,229,590) (14,087,716)
18,247,481 19,622,912 20,933,665 22,923,630 24,994,301
(314,951,522) (338,691,461) (361,315,058) (395,661,854) (431,401,635)
15,321,667 16,545,889 17,602,056 18,849,155 20,372,901
(264,451,972) (285,582,044) (303,811,487) (325,336,415) (351,636,271)
5,836,373 6,612,673 6,807,956 7,196,002 7,618,591
(100,735,798) (114,134,736) (117,505,321) (124,202,995) (131,496,881)
8,914,120 9,405,347 10,076,833 10,904,731 11,926,040
(153,857,711) (162,336,289) (173,926,138) (188,215,657) (205,843,450)
571,174 527,869 514,244 517,440 562,741
(9,858,463)  (9,111,019)  (8,875,851)  (8,931,014)  (9,712,910)
1,458,065 1,254,791 1,449,863 1,829,272 1,785,176
(25,166,202)  (21,657,693) (25,024,635) (31,573,235) (30,812,138)
205,832 319,789 157,101 53,197 109,195
(3,552,660)  (5,519,558)  (2,711,563) (918,180)  (1,884,706)
388,215 475,017 780,673 1,108,212 1,371,845
(6,700,591)  (8,198,793)  (13,474,416) (19,127,739) (23,678,045)
1,318,193 1,426,415 1,670,294 1,948,355 2,204,789
(22,752,011)  (24,619,923) (28,829,274) (33,628,607) (38,054,658)
™ 1,546,500 1,731,946 2,073,343 2,498,311 2,817,924
(26,692,590)  (29,893,388) (35,785,900) (43,120,848) (48,637,368)
Tierl(CET1)
@) 1,231,030 1,339,953 1,583,927 1,740,584 1,875,372
(21,247,578)  (23,127,589)  (27,338,580) (30,042,480) (32,368,921)
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Tierl &) 79,904 79,906 79,906 199,894 319,884
(1,379,143)  (1,379,178)  (1,379,178)  (3,450,170)  (5,521,198)
Tier2 ® 235,566 312,087 409,510 557,833 622,668
(4,065,869)  (5,386,622)  (7,068,143)  (9,628,198)  (10,747,250)
&) 11,856,530 12,605,577 13,712,894 15,485,352 16,989,668
(204,643,708) (217,572,259) (236,684,550) (267,277,176) (293,241,670)
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
510,128 542,898 602,557 629,350 659,332
(8,804,809)  (9,370,419) (10,400,134) (10,862,581) (11,380,070)
404,938 449,905 488,159 500,870 545,079
(6,989,230)  (7,765,360)  (8,425,624)  (8,645,016)  (9,408,064)
84,101 64,928 67,742 72,927 74,545
(1,451,583)  (1,120,657)  (1,169,227)  (1,258,720)  (1,286,647)
197,049 205,268 213,963 224,096 229,897
(3,401,066)  (3,542,926)  (3,693,001)  (3,867,897)  (3,968,022)
N/A N/A 136,647 138,605 164,699
(N/A) (\/A)  (2,358,527)  (2,392,322)  (2,842,705)
86,446 98,166 N/A N/A N/A
(1,492,058)  (1,694,345) (N/A) (N/A) (N/A)
226,624 239,478 251,674 266,576 265,050
(3,911,530)  (4,133,390)  (4,343,893)  (4,601,102)  (4,574,763)
184,060 193,133 202,631 212,924 216,400
(3,176,876)  (3,333,476)  (3,497,411)  (3,675,068)  (3,735,064)
183,941 192,962 202,783 212,098 215,925
(3,174,822)  (3,330,524)  (3,500,035)  (3,660,811)  (3,726,866)
715,973 633,417 105,927 358,396 (60,936)
(12,357,694)  (10,932,777)  (1,828,300)  (6,185,915) ((1,051,755))
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2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
@ 0.99 0.95 0.93 0.90 0.83
® 15.14 14.57 13.66 12.43 11.35
(O] 2.29 2.32 2.38 2.23 2.20
® 2.14 2.20 2.25 2.09 2.04
® ® 1.55 1.53 1.48 1.38 1.27
16.49 11.96 11.24 11.59 11.31
Q) 34.59 32.96 31.27 30.49 29.23
1
1 ® 0.55 0.58 0.59 0.59 0.59
(9.49) (10.01) (10.18) (10.18) (10.18)
1 ® 0.55 0.58 0.59 0.59 0.59
(9.49) (10.01) (10.18) (10.18) (10.18)
1
2.20 1.95 0.30 1.02 0.17)
(37.97) (33.66) (5.18) (17.61) ((2.93)
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
® 2.37 1.81 1.59 1.40 1.57
® 173.40 208.37 252.18 288.75 260.64
(10 4.12 3.77 4.02 4.06 4.08
Tierl(CET1) O 10.38 10.63 11.55 11.24 11.04
Tierl &) 11.06 11.26 12.13 12.53 12.92
) 13.04 13.74 15.12 16.13 16.59
O 60.59 59.88 60.65 62.25 62.45
6.75 6.79 7.41 7.85 8.13
1
1 an 3.81 4.15 4.54 5.00 5.39
(65.76) (71.63) (78.36) (86.30) (93.03)
(€))
@
(3) CSRC 9 - 1
2010 33 1
O]
®
6) CBIRC
(7) CAS CAS
®
®
(10)
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11)
(12)
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
® 25 46.74 50.95 55.17 57.74 59.15
25 82.24 106.74 101.77 112.07 122.98
@ 10 6.98 7.26 5.53 4.68 4.07
10
® 16.58 18.27 15.25 13.83 12.58
@ 3.00 2.13 1.72 1.54 3.19
24.86 18.70 16.93 15.90 30.55
89.23 71.48 61.48 47.10 83.79
9.55 6.94 8.91 8.82 20.46
(1) CBIRC
@
®) 10
(4) CBIRC
2020 1 2 3 4
186,915 152,859 159,437 160,121
(3,226,153) (2,638,346) (2,751,883) (2,763,688)
64,187 44,647 56,501 50,590
(1,107,868) (770,607) (975,207) (873,183)
262,567 (586,513) 34,141 228,869
(4,531,906) ((10,123,214)) (589,274) (3,950,279)
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1951 1979 2
2009 1
2010 7
1
IT
2020
27,205,047 15,170,442 20,372,901
16.59 2020 216,400
2020 3 4
37 396 3,372 19,073
51 22,938 13
3 11 5 16
2014 7
2020 500 35
1,000 Tierl 3
A A-1
Al P-1
A F1+
39

2020 12 31 MOF 40.03 35.29
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2020 12 31
/
CA 588,790,000 100.00
ABC
4,113,392,450 100.00
9,500,000,000 100.00
UK 100,000,002 100.00
1,750,000,001 51.67
19,600,000 51.02
“) 31,000,000 50.00
29,400,000 51.02
40,000,000 51.00
210,000,000 51.00
@ 150,000,000 51.00
® 2,949,916,475 51.00
20,000,000 100.00
7,556,038,271 100.00
10,000,000,000 100.00
12,000,000,000 100.00
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50
51
51
1,381 2016
917
3,761
51

2020 12 31

2020 12 31

41

19
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/
53,342,800,000
W 50.00
@ 1,110,854,000 9.00
® 6,343,200,000 15.61
® 3,885,500,000 25.30
@ 6,000,000,000 15.67
(1) 2015 5 28 CFA XAF
La Banque Sino-Congolaise pour I1"Afrique BSCA.
BSCA. 50
BSCA.
(2 2020 12 23 2015
®
20
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2020 459,000 7,184
732 8,669
2020 1.07
2020 12 31
11,777 2.6
63,525 13.8
50,590 11.0
65,572 14.3
94,187 20.5
44,311 9.7
119,637 26.1
732 0.2
8,669 1.9
459,000 100.0
2020 12 31
549 0.1
31,547 6.9
242,595 52.9
149,551 32.6
34,758 7.6
459,000 100.0
2020 12 31
120,227 26.2
16,418 3.6
20,306 4.4
16,900 3.7
136,897 29.8
413 0.1
8,056 1.8
82,974 18.1
26,747 5.8
30,062 6.5
459,000 100.0
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2020 12 31
30 87,274 19.0
31 40 96,947 21.1
41 50 140,716 30.7
51 134,063 29.2
459,000 100.0

2020 12 31
250,849 54.7
208,151 45.3
459,000 100.0
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2020 23 0
31 16
12 19

E

PBOC 1,080
33.64
38.6 1.36
0.18
465
80 109 131.6
5.6

@

2020

1CAAP
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CBIRC

2 5 12
12
5

2019 12 31 2020 12 31
(@) (@)
5,898,736 44.3 6,978,616 46.1
2,131,098 16.0 2,292,233 15.1
1,856,415 13.9 1,689,444 11.2
3,442,501 25.8 4,175,828 27.6
13,328,750 100.0 15,136,121 100.0
31,592 - 34,321 —
13,360,342 — 15,170,442 —
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2019 12 31 2020 12 31
(@) (@)
90 71,118 0.5 78,228 0.5
91 360 49,650 0.4 60,793 0.4
361 3 47,787 0.4 43,749 0.3
3 14,438 0.1 12,663 0.1
182,993 1.4 195,433 1.3
10 ()
A 114,824 0.76
B 38,433 0.25
c 33,628 0.22
D 28,433 0.19
E 27,801 0.18
F 27,214 0.18
G 23,479 0.16
H 21,717 0.14
I 19,585 0.13
J 19,326 0.13
354,440 2.34
2020 12 31 4.07
10 12.58
©

2020 CBIRC
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5
2019 12 31 2020 12 31
(@) (@)
12,843,139 96.36 14,594,673 96.42
298,401 2.24 304,335 2.01
187,210 1.40 237,113 1.57
66,462 0.50 62,873 0.42
103,763 0.78 152,627 1.01
16,985 0.12 21,613 0.14
13,328,750 100.00 15,136,121 100.00
31,592 - 34,321 -
13,360,342 — 15,170,442 —
2020 12 31 49,903 237,113
0.17 1.57
5,934 304,335 2.01
0.23 2020
2019 12 31 2020 12 31
148,695 79.4 2.10 192,551 81.2 2.37
81,488 43.5 3.70 93,614 39.5 3.79
67,207 35.9 1.37 98,937 41.7 1.75
21 - - - - -
31,699 16.9 0.59 38,300 16.2 0.62
12,386 6.6 0.30 17,655 7.5 0.38
7,465 4.0 1.57 8,430 3.6 1.55
1,746 0.9 1.04 3,647 1.5 2.04
4,281 2.3 1.62 3,231 1.4 0.85
5,785 3.1 1.80 5,308 2.2 1.22
36 - 4.92 29 - 4.26
6,795 3.7 1.62 6,262 2.6 1.51
187,210 100.0 1.40 237,113 100.0 1.57
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2019 12 31 2020 12 31
60,529 40.7 5.06 67,523 35.1 5.08
5,725 3.8 0.67 9,641 5.0 1.04
10,038 6.8 1.45 14,209 7.4 1.81
12,630 8.5 0.77 22,000 11.4 1.18
30,541 20.5 9.83 34,978 18.2 8.55
659 0.4 0.13 1,916 1.0 0.31
2,543 1.7 1.13 2,807 1.5 1.31
4,697 3.2 2.34 6,225 3.2 3.25
15,150 10.2 1.46 26,040 13.5 2.07
87 0.1 0.05 55 - 0.02
84 0.1 0.30 679 0.3 1.75
6,012 4.0 2.92 6,478 3.4 2.34
148,695 100.0 2.10 192,551 100.0 2.37

2019 12 31 2020 12 31
6 - - 1,369 0.6 0.39
29,228 15.6 0.98 30,533 12.9 0.88
16,805 9.0 0.79 18,451 7.8 0.75
46,883 25.1 2.34 65,405 27.6 2.95
35,969 19.2 1.81 46,009 19.4 2.00
8,987 4.8 1.79 9,294 3.9 1.68
42,537 22.7 1.43 59,790 25.2 1.78
6,795 3.6 1.62 6,262 2.6 1.51
187,210 100.0 1.40 237,113 100.0 1.57
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)
2020
1 2 3
12
2020 1 1 364,045 57,720 131,350 553,115
1
1 2 (11,676) 11,676 - -
2 3 - (31,112) 31,112 -
2 1 4,310 (4,310) - -
3 2 - 3,398 (3,398) -
153,540 — - 153,540
(4,195) 35,145 81,888 112,838
(95,061) (11,815) (32,036) (138,912)
_ - (49,375) (49,375)
2020 12 31 410,963 60,702 159,541 631,206
@ 3 17
@
@
2020
VaR
VaR 1 250

99
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2019 2020
75 89 116 57 59 88 164 52
! 90 120 287 56 28 165 213 28
9 15 25 5 62 75 120 9
VaR 115 146 291 92 87 232 362 87

o

VaR

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

20201251+ SELS | BhE OVaRD L

¥350

—_ Waldtk
¥300 — AlyzS

— &l
¥250
¥
¥150 v
¥100

p= P

¥50 S

¥0
020418 2020H2A 2020838 NI0ME4H 20004E5H  20206H 20208TR 20204ER

2020
VaR

VaR

55/497

MEEIR NEIR AR0E11 A 2020H12A

VaR



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

OooooOodd
2020
LPR
2020 12 31 1
1,368 1,120,784
1 3 1 1
1 3 12 5 5
2019 12 31 (3,981,518) 341,810 2,517,556 (1,122,152) 814,042 1,986,997 73,547
2020 12 31 (6,360,968) 818,643 4,421,541 (1,120,784) 194,579 2,914,986 (35,419)
() 44.3
2019 12 31 2020 12 31
100 (25,867) (42,579)  (37,556) (67,941)
100 25,867 42,579 37,556 67,941
12
2020 12 31 100
37,556 67,941
2020
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2020 4,513 6.92 2020
5,330 8,872
2019 12 31 2020 12 31
50,482 7,236 35,270 5,405
(25,767) (3.694) 22,625 3,467
) 44.3
2019 12 31 2020 12 31
+5 1,346 1,450
-5 (1,346) (1,450)
+5 (832) 771
-5 832 (771)
5

O

1,450

57/497



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

2020

2020
59.15 122.98 2020 4
6.7 116.3 2020
18,996.1 15,134.8
125.5
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1 3 1
1 3 12 5 5
2019 12 31 26,042 (11,689,668) 567,445  (690,128) 36,494 3,066,681 8,144,318 2,291,250 1,752,434
2020 12 31 26,848 (12,801,017) 579,070  (627,463) 215,455 2,442,985 9,706,251 2,411,233 1,953,362
) 44.2
CBIRC 100
2017
2020 4 6.7
116.3 92
1 2

2020 4
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1 HQLA | 5,497,305
2 12,953,345 1,204,271
3 1,821,228 91,059
4 11,132,117 1,113,212
5 7,847,013 3,169,115
6 2,654,612 649,113
7 5,142,224 2,469,825
8 50,177 50,177
9 3,715
10 3,214,116 1,068,596
11 891,419 891,419
12 59 59
13 2,322,638 177,118
14 149,142 149,142
15 1,418,813 61,944
16 5,656,783
17 318,281 318,281
18 1,134,744 561,846
19 965,965 965,965
20 2,418,990 1,846,092
21 | HQLA 4,426,515
22 3,810,691
23 116.3
CBIRC 100
2
2020 3 1.4 123.3
18,830.6 15,273.7
2020 4 2.2 125.5
18,996.1 15,134.8
3 2020 4
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2020 3
6 6 12 1
ASF
1 2,121,262 _ _ 299,910 | 2,421,173
2 2,121,262 _ _ 269,910 | 2,391,173
3 _ _ _ 30,000 30,000
4 6,687,384 | 6,164,882 134 116 | 11,663,216
5 1,918,807 _ _ _ | 1,822,867
6 4,768,577 | 6,164,882 134 116 | 9,840,349
7 5,255,256 | 4,065,901 448,835 474,489 | 4,516,227
8 2,523,354 _ _ — | 1,261,677
9 2,731,902 | 4,065,901 448,835 474,489 | 3,254,550
10 _ _ _ _ —
11 6 | 1,751,727 174,032 186,101 229,967
12 [ NSFR 43,150 _
13
6 | 1,751,727 174,032 142,951 229,967
14 [AsF 18,830,583
RSF
15 |NSFR
HQLA 873,215
16
1,582 315,587 191,171 _ 254,170
17 3,712 | 3,132,082 | 2,357,885 | 10,299,218 | 1,168,235
1 HQLA
18
_ _ _ 152,922 152,922
1 HQLA
19
1,470 964, 659 228,477 49,048 308, 206
20
PSE 62 | 2,013,341 | 1,988,387 | 5,400,280 | 6,571,874
21
35 4 90,183 29,310 162,310 159,654
22 _ 98,505 99,002 | 4,344,507 | 3,791,571
23
35 _ 3 3 87 64
” HQLA
2,180 55,577 42,019 343,461 343,662
25 _ _ _ _ _
26 163,217 716,371 821,350 | 1,150,848 | 2,776,455

27
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28 ccp
7,368 6,263

29 | NSFR 20,180 _
30 NSFR

@ 11,170 11,170
31 163,217 716,371 821,350 | 1,103,300 | 2,759,022
2 4.192.875 201,654
33 |RSF 15.273.729
34 123.3
1 NSFR

30 26
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2020 4
6 6 12 1
ASF

1 2,172,962 — — 299,918 | 2,472,880
2 2,172,962 — — 269,918 | 2,442,880
3 — — — 30,000 30,000
4 6,748,529 | 6,081,041 152 124 | 11,644,491
5 1,952,326 — — - | 1,854,710
6 4,796,203 | 6,081,041 152 124 | 9,789,781
7 5,298,707 | 3,939,668 683,285 482,479 | 4,657,972
8 2,607,640 - - — | 1,303,820
9 2,691,067 | 3,939,668 683,285 482,479 | 3,354,152
10 _ _ _ _ _
11 71 | 1,534,426 148,720 205,710 220,754
12 NSFR 59,317 _

13
71 | 1,534,426 148,720 146,393 220,754
14 |ASF 18,996,097

RSF
NSFR

15 HQLA 960,172

16
3,450 162,861 257,460 _ 211,885
17 7,806 | 3,470,783 | 2,219,483 | 10,455,524 | 11,320,925

1 HQLA

18

_ 2,282 240 121,757 122,219
1 HQLA

19
5,708 | 1,189,843 210,613 46,405 331,044

20
PSE 100 | 2,127,909 | 1,863,244 | 5,532,025 | 6,674,903

21
35 11 73,106 56,527 149,903 157,170
22 _ 100,105 101,104 | 4,455,731 | 3,887,964

23
35 _ 2 2 84 62

” HQLA

1,998 50,644 44,282 299,606 304,795
25 _ _ _ _ _
26 174,626 597,859 732,189 | 1,000,096 | 2,476,544

27
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28 ccp
7,368 6,263

29 | NSFR 40,621 -
30 NSFR

1

M 13,510 13,510
3 174,626 597,859 732,189 952,107 | 2,456,771
32 3,462,037 165,298
33 |RsF 15,134,823
34 125.5
1 NSFR

30 26
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ooooooo
2020
@
2020
44
@
Q)
2020
659,332
4.8 29.23 1.26

216,400 3,476 1.6 )
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2019 2020
500,870 545,079 44,209 8.8
72,927 74,545 1,618 2.2
55,553 39,708 (15,845) -28.5
629,350 659,332 29,982 4.8
224,096 229,897 5,801 2.6
138,605 164,699 26,094 18.8
118 204 86 72.9
266,531 264,532 (1,999) -0.8
45 518 473 1,051.1
266,576 265,050 (1,526) -0.6
53,652 48,650 (5,002) -9.3
212,924 216,400 3,476 1.6
212,098 215,925 3,827 1.8
826 475 (351) -42.5

2020 82.67 2020
545,079 44,209
54,389 10,180
2.20 2.04
(L)LPR
@
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2019 2020
12,859,092 579,464 4.51 14,419,902 631,753 4.38
® 6,373,176 232,571 3.65 6,812,831 238,995 3.51
5,988,985 220,739 3.69 6,428,590 227,963 3.55
® 384,191 11,832 3.08 384,241 11,032 2.87
2,286,277 35,024 1.53 2,234,121 34,271 1.53
® 941,437 26,081 2.77 1,363,938 25,913 1.90
22,459,982 873,140 3.89 24,830,792 930,932 3.75
® (534,803) (619,089)
® 1,163,630 1,651,501
23,088,809 25,863,204
17,615,216 279,737 1.59 18,611,986 284,552 1.53
G 1,734,711 44,994 2.59 2,039,180 45,131 2.21
® 1,386,484 47,539 3.43 1,876,373 56,170 2.99
20,736,411 372,270 1.80 22,527,539 385,853 1.71
® 1,095,540 1,152,232
21,831,951 23,679,771
500,870 545,079
2.09 2.04
2.23 2.20
(€))
0) MOF
(©)
O]
®
®
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68,381 (16,092) 52,289
15,423 (8,999) 6,424
(800) 47 (753)
8,027 (8,195) (168)
91,031 (33,239) 57,792
15,239 (10,424) 4,815
6,738 (6,601) 137
14,665 (6,034) 8,631
36,642 (23,059) 13,583
54,389 (10,180) 44,209
2020 930,932 57,792
2,370,810
52,289 9.0 631,753
19,545 6.2 332,975
38,521 16.0 279,369
6
2,604 22.1 9,201
59
3,173 23.7 10,208
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2019 2020
6,990,291 313,430 4.48 7,806,885 332,975 4.27
2,245,236 96,055 4.28 2,472,008 95,512 3.86
4,745,055 217,375 4.58 5,334,877 237,463 4.45
380,995 11,805 3.10 366,195 9,201 2.51
5,054,758 240,848 4.76 5,799,734 279,369 4.82
433,048 13,381 3.09 447,088 10,208 2.28
12,859,092 579,464 4.51 14,419,902 631,753 4.38
2 2020
6,424 238,995
753 34,271
168 25,913
87
13,583 385,853
1,791,128
4,815 284,552
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2019 2020
2,370,806 63,971 2.70 2,414,982 60,775 2.52
4,724,887 38,121 0.81 4,969,048 43,014 0.87
7,095,693 102,002 1.44 7,384,030 103,789 1.41
4,985,641 133,277 2.67 5,642,490 156,281 2.77
5,533,882 44,368 0.80 5,585,466 24,482 0.44
10,519,523 177,645 1.69 11,227,956 180,763 1.61
17,615,216 279,737 1.59 18,611,986 284,552 1.53
137 45,131
8,631 56,170
PBOC
2020 1,618 2.2
74,545
10.5
6.3
13.7
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2019 2020
11,443 11,129 (314) -2.7
10,109 11,174 1,065 10.5
19,801 21,043 1,242 6.3
15,486 14,702 (784) 5.1
25,209 26,169 960 3.8
1,895 1,875 (20) 1.1
3,899 4,435 536 13.7
474 639 165 34.8
88,316 91,166 2,850 3.2
15,389 16,621 1,232 8.0
72,927 74,545 1,618 2.2
2020 39,708 15,845
2,662
13,105
2019 2020
19,067 16,405
/ 5,793 (7,312)
- 1
30,693 30,614
55,553 39,708
2020 5,801 229,897
1.26 29.23
2019 2020
124,267 123,345 (922) 0.7)
48,246 49,452 1,206 2.5
23,349 27,873 4,524 19.4
18,711 19,551 840 4.5
5,688 5,813 125 2.2
3,835 3,863 28 0.7
224,096 229,897 5,801 2.6

721497
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2020 164,699
7,155 138,988
2020 5,002 9.3 48,650
18.36
2019 2020
271,113 43.1 260,853 39.6
240,579 38.2 277,603 42.1
79,102 12.6 77,179 11.7
38,556 6.1 43,697 6.6
629,350 100.0 659,332 100.0
2020
53,412 8.5 37,034 5.6
117,085 18.6 128,436 19.5
90,032 14.3 97,061 14.7
86,083 13.7 90,921 13.8
90,460 14.4 98,993 15.0
129,343 20.6 139,762 21.2
21,319 3.4 22,928 3.5
41,616 6.5 44,197 6.7
629,350 100.0 659,332 100.0
39
2019 2020
236,739 37.6 261,794 39.7
392,611 62.4 397,538 60.3
629,350 100.0 659,332 100.0
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(®)
2020 12 31 2,327,556 9.4 27,205,047
1,732,669 13.5
399,729 5.4 262,620 9.7
222,208 29.3
107,655 15.2
2019 12 31 2020 12 31
13,360,342 15,170,442 -
540,578 - 618,009 -
12,819,764 51.5 14,552,433 53.5
7,422,930 29.8 7,822,659 28.8
2,699,895 10.9 2,437,275 9.0
758,925 3.1 981,133 3.6
708,551 2.8 816,206 3.0
467,426 1.9 595,341 2.1
24,877,491 100.0 27,205,047 100.0
2020 12 31 15,170,442 1,810,100
13.5
2019 12 31 2020 12 31
12,908,837 96.8 14,722,705 97.3
7,095,770 53.2 8,134,487 53.7
421,390 3.2 389,475 2.6
5,391,677 40.4 6,198,743 41.0
419,913 3.2 413,416 2.7
13,328,750 100.0 15,136,121 100.0
31,592 - 34,321 -
13,360,342 - 15,170,442 -
2019 12 31 2020 12 31
2,203,081 31.0 2,471,235 30.4
4,892,689 69.0 5,663,252 69.6
7,095,770 100.0 8,134,487 100.0
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2019 12 31 2020 12 31
1,196,978 16.9 1,329,190 16.3
852,697 12.0 924,078 11.4
1 693,376 9.8 786,673 9.7
1,642,017 23.1 1,860,488 22.9
310,828 4.4 408,879 5.0
511,348 7.2 611,925 7.5
225,010 3.2 213,961 2.6
201,044 2.8 191,659 2.3
1,037,898 14.6 1,259,179 15.5
191,141 2.7 232,833 2.9
17
27,612 0.4 38,716 0.5
@ 205,821 2.9 276,906 3.4
7,095,770 100.0 8,134,487 100.0
(€D
2020 378,533
31,605
(@)
2020 12 31 5 (¢H) )
©) “) ®)
5 75.8
0.6
2020 12 31 807,066 15.0
12.0
43.6
14.4
35.2 E
2019 12 31 2020 12 31
4,162,431 77.2 4,662,119 75.2
168,036 3.1 178,559 2.9
264,305 4.9 379,554 6.1
474,205 8.8 542,563 8.8
321,968 6.0 435,267 7.0
732 - 681 -
5,391,677 100.0 6,198,743 100.0
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2019 12 31 2020 12 31

319,025 2.4 350,729 2.3

2,996,889 22.4 3,480,092 23.0

2,136,152 16.0 2,470,677 16.3

2,000,981 15.0 2,214,679 14.6

1,982,054 14.9 2,300,770 15.2

503,266 3.8 551,938 3.7

2,970,470 22.3 3,353,820 22.2

419,913 3.2 413,416 2.7

13,328,750 100.0 15,136,121 100.0

31,592 - 34,321 -

13,360,342 - 15,170,442 -

2020 12 31 7,822,659 399,729

5.4 476,663

2019 12 31 2020 12 31

6,597,379 90.3 7,074,042 91.9

384,243 5.3 384,239 5.0

100,619 1.4 106,276 1.4

) 227,369 3.0 132,155 1.7

7,309,610 100.0 7,696,712 100.0

113,320 - 125,947 -

7,422,930 - 7,822,659 -

@

2019 12 31 2020 12 31

3,531,300 53.5 4,253,736 60.2

1,388,164 21.0 1,427,871 20.2

1,100,892 16.7 873,119 12.3

216,576 3.3 220,866 3.1

360,447 5.5 298,450 4.2

6,597,379 100.0 7,074,042 100.0
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2019 12 31 2020 12 31
3 434,169 6.6 298,062 4.2
3 12 1,066,476 16.2 937,124 13.2
1 5 3,134,611 47.5 3,156,436 447
5 1,962,123 29.7 2,682,420 37.9
6,597,379 100.0 7,074,042 100.0

2019 12 31 2020 12 31
6,267,575 95.0 6,756,711 95.5
272,831 4.1 264,207 3.7
56,973 0.9 53,124 0.8
6,597,379 100.0 7,074,042 100.0

2019 12 31 2020 12 31
801,361 10.9 583,069 7.6
4,851,607 66.4 5,574,008 72.4
1,656,642 22.7 1,539,635 20.0
7,309,610 100.0 7,696,712 100.0
113,320 - 125,947 -
7,422,930 - 7,822,659 -

2020 12 31
2,300,990 1,427,871
873,119
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2020 12 31 10
(©)
2017 32,631 3.85 2027 1 6 -
2017 28,334 4.39 2027 9 8 -
2019 27,492 3.28 2024 2 11 -
2017 26,304 3.83 2024 1 6 -
2017 23,621 4.11 2027 3 20 -
2019 21,679 3.86 2029 5 20 -
2019 21,450 3.74 2029 7 12 -
2020 21,065 3.23 2030 3 23 -
2017 19,307 4.13 2022 4 21 -
2019 18,877 3.75 2029 1 25 -
@
2020 12 31 2,070,671 9.0 24,994,301
1,523,746 8.1
44,096 2.4
55,998 105.3
263,633 23.8
2019 12 31 2020 12 31
18,849,155 82.2 20,372,901 81.5
1,829,272 8.0 1,785,176 7.1
53,197 0.2 109,195 0.4
1,108,212 4.8 1,371,845 5.5
1,083,794 4.8 1,355,184 5.5
22,923,630 100.0 24,994,301 100.0
2020 12 31 1,523,746 8.1
20,372,901 0.7 59.3
2.1 55.2

781497
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2019 12 31 2020 12 31
18,522,430 99.5 20,002,156 99.5
7,196,002 38.7 7,618,591 37.9
2,231,297 12.0 2,390,431 11.9
4,964,705 26.7 5,228,160 26.0
10,904,731 58.6 11,926,040 59.3
5,216,113 28.0 6,054,657 30.1
5,688,618 30.6 5,871,383 29.2
) 421,697 2.2 457,525 2.3
95,743 0.5 105,216 0.5
18,618,173 100.0 20,107,372 100.0
230,982 - 265,529 -
18,849,155 - 20,372,901 -
@
2019 12 31 2020 12 31
366,670 2.0 146,231 0.7
4,237,795 22.7 4,802,096 23.9
2,590,965 13.9 2,818,551 14.0
3,193,377 17.2 3,493,789 17.4
3,122,629 16.8 3,394,921 16.9
893,920 4.8 1,004,778 5.0
4,117,074 22.1 4,341,790 21.6
95,743 0.5 105,216 0.5
18,618,173 100.0 20,107,372 100.0
230,982 - 265,529 -
18,849,155 - 20,372,901 -
2019 12 31 2020 12 31
11,248,552 60.4 11,908,631 59.2
3 1,955,120 10.5 1,755,619 8.7
3 12 2,596,781 13.9 2,875,558 14.3
1 5 2,805,116 15.1 3,555,435 17.7
5 12,604 0.1 12,129 0.1
18,618,173 100.0 20,107,372 100.0
230,982 - 265,529 -
18,849,155 - 20,372,901 -
2020 12 31 256,885 13.1
2,210,746 1 0.39 5.39
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2019 12 31 2020 12 31
349,983 17.9 349,983 15.8
199,886 10.2 319,875 14.5
173,556 8.9 173,556 9
29,684 1.5 25,987 1.2
174,910 9.0 196,071 .8
277,016 14.2 311,449 14.1
741,101 37.9 828,240 37.4
2,219 0.1 372) -
5,506 0.3 5,957 0.3
1,953,861 100.0 2,210,746 100.0

2019 12 31 2020 12 31
1,056,796 43.8 1,617,278 51.0
339,829 14.1 429,841 13.6
216,229 9.0 264,646 8.4
151,040 6.3 162,356 1
646,134 26.8 695,183 21.9
2,410,028 100.0 3,169,304 100.0
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305.7 110.6
2,031,413 404,861
2020 74.9
48.6 77
945.6 875.5
5
8.3596

81/497



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

oOoOooodn
E-
2020
3.6917 15.9
2020
502.9 680.8 12.6
10.6
31
172 i
16
32 10
30
1
2020 48.8215
5.3524
6 6
2020 9,923
15.6
30
521.8
1.5
ME&A
M&A
ABCP
M&A
2020 10

ABS 24

82/497



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

oOoOooodn
(®)
2020
2020
0.86
4.53
1.76
0.21
25
1
10
E E ABC
2020 4,662,119
499,688
6

100

2020
379,554 115,249

83/497



2020

1,098

2020

©

2020

62,310,120

11,926,040

25.48

2020
2.1

141

18 292
64,069,418
1,759,298

84/497

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

1,021,309

2020

0.13

1,696



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

85/497

OooooOodd
2020 12 31 7,822,659 399,729
5.4
2020
COVID-19
@
2020
2020 12
2,027,727 1,077,913
949,814
2020 1,077,913
72,313 6.7
230,523 1,005,600
93.3 711,597
1,062,954 98.6 938,386
14,959 1.4 3,733
2019 12 31 2020 12 31
54 302,836 36 1,155,477 88 77,514 1,308,486 2 72,313
861 1,717,197 852 18,188,935 1,281 896,168 17,359,005 403 1,005,600
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2020 2
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(226,412) - (247,205) -
4,326,397 49.7 5,058,100 52.5
O 3,622,774 41.6 3,739,471 38.8
750,439 8.7 840,801 8.7
8,699,610 100.0 9,638,372 100.0
7,960,558 98.5 8,754,484 97.9
124,762 1.5 187,969 2.1
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2019 2020
205,982 230,691 24,709 12.0
116,959 121,062 4,103 3.5
(€H) 115,125 122,135 7,010 6.1
204,148 231,764 27,616 13.5
27,867 29,303 1,436 5.2
4,724 727 (3,997) -84.6
236,739 261,794 25,055 10.6
90,654 91,401 747 0.8
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86 27 (59) -68.6
97,771 118,090 20,319 20.8
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2019 2020
4.74 4.63
1.51 1.46
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Tierl 2,013,406 2,073,819 2,143,136 2,195,256
28,863,234 28,933,349 29,601,836 29,572,540
6.98 7.17 7.24 7.42

1 27,205,047
2 (95,745)
3 -
4 38,017
5 1,036
6 2,433,205
7 (9,020)
8 29,572,540
1

26,231,159
2 Tierl (9,020)
3

26,222,139
4 54,841
5 45,791
6 -
7 (869)
8
9 191
10 -
11 99,954
12 816,206
13 -
14 1,036
15 -
16 817,242
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349,983,033,873
800,000,000
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1.00 319,244,210,777
1.00 30,738,823,096
349,983,033,873
2
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100 800,000,000
800,000,000
Tierl CBIRC
100 .
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2009 1 15 260,000,000,000 | 260,000,000,000 | 260,000,000,000 | 260,000,000,000
2010 4 21 10,000,000,000 | 270,000,000,000 | 10,000,000,000 | 270,000,000,000
2010 7 15 22,235,294,000 | 292,235,294,000 | 22,235,294,000 | 292,235,294,000
2010 7 16 25,411,765,000 | 317,647,059,000 | 25,411,765,000 | 317,647,059,000
2010 8 5 3,811,764,000 321,458,823,000 | 3,811,764,000 | 321,458,823,000
2010 8 13 3,335,294,000 324,794,117,000 | 3,335,294,000 | 324,794,117,000
2018 7 2 25,188,916,873 | 349,983,033,873 | 25,188,916,873 | 349,983,033,873
2020 12 31 349,983,033,873 349,983,033,873
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2014 10 31

2014 11 13 400,000,000 400,000,000 40,000,000,000 | 40,000,000,000

2015 3 6 400,000,000 800,000,000 40,000,000,000 | 80,000,000,000

2015 3 18 ’ ’ ’ ’ ’ ’ ’ ’ ’ ’

2020 12 31 800,000,000 80,000,000,000
Tierl
22,168 441,542 463,710 2021 2

28 21,999

417,706 439,705
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1 140,087 ,446,351 40.03
MOF 3 123,515,185,240 35.29
- 30,557,749,002 8.73
SSF 11 23,520,968,297 6.72
- - 005L- - 2,721,874,500 0.78
CT001 Hu
- - 005L - 2,553,591,884 0.73
- FH002 Hu
- 2,518,891,687 0.72
28 1,842,751,186 0.53
- 1,413,691,613 0.40
- 1,259,445,843 0.36
2020 12 31
- - 005L-CT001 Hu
- - - 005L - FHO02 Hu
- - 005L-
CT001 Hu - - - 005L - FHO02 Hu
5,275,466,384 1.51
3,778,337,530 1.08
MOF CSRC
Cai Zi[2019] 49 MOF  SSF
13,723,909,471
Guo Fa[2017] 49 SSF
3
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2019 12 31 2020 12 31
[0) [0)
) )
® 25,188,916,873 7.20 - - - 25,188,916,873 7.20
1. ® 19,959,672,543 5.70 - - - 19,959,672,543 5.70
2. ® 5,037,783,373 1.44 - - - 5,037,783,373 1.44
3'(3) 191,460,957 0.05 - - - 191,460,957 0.05
324,794,117,000 92.80 - - - 324,794,117,000  92.80
1.
294,055,293,904 84.02 - - - 294,055,293,904  84.02
2.
® 30,738,823,096 8.78 - - - 30,738,823,096 8.78
349,983,033,873  100.00 - - - 349,983,033,873 100.00
@
@
©) MOF
CSRC
5 - 2007
) 3
2021 7 2 5,229,244,330 19,959,672,543 330,023,361,330
2023 7 2 19,959,672,543 - 349,983,033,873 MOF

112/497




EDINETOOOO

O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

oOoOooodn

No.
1 10,082,342,569 2023 7 2 5
2 MOF 9,877,329,974 2023 7 2 5
3 2,518,891,687 2021 7 2 36
4 1,259,445,843 2021 7 2 36
5 755,667,506 2021 7 2 36
6 503,778,337 2021 7 2 36
7 191,460,957 2021 7 2 36

10

2020 12 31 463,710
22,168 441,542
2021 2 28 439,705
21,999 417,706
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- 40.03 |140,087,446,351| 10,082,342,569

MOF - 35.29 |123,515,185,240| 9,877,329,974
-3,332,144 8.73 | 30,557,749,002 -
SSF - 6.72 | 23,520,968,297 -
- o05L +167,599,401 | 0.78 | 2,721,874,500 -
CT001 Hu
)  005L +14,279,857 0.73 | 2,553,591,884 -
- FHO02 Hu
- 0.72 | 2,518,891,687 | 2,518,891,687
- 0.53 | 1,842,751,186 -
+17,848,058 0.40 | 1,413,691,613 -
- 0.36 | 1,259,445,843 | 1,259,445,843
1
2020 12 31
2
3 - - - 005L-CT001 Hu
- - - 005L - FH002 Hu
- - - 005L-CT001 Hu
- - - 005L - FH002 Hu 5,275,466,384
1.51
3,778,337,530 1.08
4 MNoOF CSRC
Cai Zi[2019] 49 MOF SSF
13,723,909,471
Guo Fa[2017] 49 SSF 3
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130,005,103,782
MOF 113,637,855,266
30,557,749,002
SSF 23,520,968,297
- 005L-CTO01 Hu 2,721,874,500
- 005L - FHOO2 Hu 2,553,591,884
1,842,751,186
1,413,691,613
1,255,434,700
746,268,000
1 2020 12 31
2 2020 12 31
3 — - -
005L-CT001 Hu - - - 005L - FHOO2 Hu
10
4
2020 12 31 MOF SSF 5

115/497



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

ooooooo
MOF
1949 10 MOF 1
2020 12 31 MOF 123,515,185,240 35.29
828,209
2003 12 16 1
911000007109329615
2020
2019 2019 12 31
5,291,816,056.2 577,744,529.9 4,714,071,526.3
2019 532,636,980.6 2019
52,256,808.3
2020 12 31 140,087,446,351
40.03
2020 12 31
No.
1 34.68
2 34.71
3 40.03
4 64.02
5 57.11
6 63.16
7 53.95
8 73.63
9 71.56
10 31.34
11 100.00
12 69.07
13 20.05
14 40.11
15 30.76
16 13.3
17 14.54
(€))
@

2015 11 5
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140,087,446,351 43.88 40.03
1,255,434,700 0.39 0.36
133,312,244,066
MOF @ ® .76 %8-08
< 23,520,968, 297 7.37 6.72
267,883,000 0.87 0.08
3,143,120,000
A 10.23 0.90
3,023,217,000
A 9.84 0.86
2,528,604,097 8.23 0.72
2,475,577,852 8.05 0.71
1,833,602,445
: 5.97 0.52
6,454,000 0.02 0.00
1,545,179,000
5 5.03 0.44
1,545,179,000
5 5.03 0.44
1,545,179,000
5 5.03 0.44
1,543,690,000 5.02 0.44
1,489,000
, 0.00 0.00

118/497



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

119/497

OooooOodd
(1) 2020 12 31
336
@ 9,797,058,826  SSF 2010 4 21
2010 5 5  MOF MOF
(3) 2020 12 31 MOF 123,515,185, 240
38.69 35.29
O
3,023,217,000 71,270,000 48,633,000
3,143,120,000
®)
1,836,607,204
®)
1,545,179,000
©)
1,489,000 0.0048
2014 ! 400 2014 400 Tierl
360001 130 a1 100 |5.32 1 o8 40
2015 ! 400 2015 400 Tierl
360009 2 |5 6 100 |4.84 3 27 40
o
@ 2 1 2019 11 5 5.32 2 2
2020 3 11 4.84
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1 29 ©
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1
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+7,000,000 67,000,000 16.75
- 49,000,000 12.25
- 35,000,000 8.75
- 30,000,000 7.50
- 30,000,000 7.50
- 30,000,000 7.50
- 15,000,000 3.75
+13,600,000 13,600,000 3.40
-7,449,160 12,550,840 3.14
- 12,000,000 3.00
(€D)
10
&) 2 2017
A
(O] 1 1 400
(5) 1 1 10
10
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2 (360009) 10
2 34
2021 2 28 2
33
@
® @ ®
- 50,000,000 12.50
- 50,000,000 12.50
- 25,000,000 6.25
25,000,000 25,000,000 6.25
- 20,000,000 5.00
- 20,000,000 5.00
- 20,000,000 5.00
- 20,000,000 5.00
- 20,000,000 5.00
- 15,700,000 3.93
€Y
- - - 005L-CT001 Hu - - -005L-
FHO02 Hu
10
(@) 2017 2
©)
) 2 2 400
®) 2 2 10
10
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2020 2020
2(360009) 3 11 3 10 5.50 5.50 2,200
2020 2020
1(360001) 11 5 1 4 5.32 5.32 2,128
2021 2021
2(360009) 3 11 3 10 4.84 4.84 1,936
MOF 37
IFRS 9 IAS 32 1
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30
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2019 2020 7 9
10 1.819 63,662
2020 349,983,033,873 10 1.851 64,782
2020
2021 6 16
2021 6 11 2021 6 16
183 17 1712-1716
2021 6 10 16 30
2021 6 17 2021 7 8
3
2017 2018 2019
57,911 60,862 63,662
@ 30.0 30.0 30.0
@
1993 045
2011 348
10
2008 897
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12 31

2020 2019
631,753 579,464
342,697 326,409
279,855 241,250
9,201 11,805
187,067 172,710
51,928 59,861
34,271 35,024
8,824 13,585
9,984 8,047
7,105 3,549
930,932 873,140
(284,552) (279,737)
(37,588) (33,728)
(35,746) (31,375)
(20,424) (16,164)
(6,114) (9,441)
(1,429) (1,825)
(385,853) (372,270)

545,079 500,870
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/(

12 31
2020 2019
26,169 25,209
21,043 19,801
[0 14,702 15,486
11,174 10,109
11,129 11,443
4,435 3,899
1,875 1,895
639 474
91,166 88,316
[0 (10,760) (8,847)
(3,182) (3,992)
(1,483) (1,770)
(1,196) (780)
(16,621) (15,389)
74,545 72,927
2020
12 31
2020 2019
4,178 11,095
@) 4,784 4,304
3,211 (571)
(3,103) (1,421)
7,335 5,660
16,405 19,067
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2020 2019

(
92) 201
4,120 5,073
0) (11,271)
750 471
(748) 36
(71) 12
(7,312) 5,793
12 31

2020 2019
26,151 22,938
(95) 2,804
784 824
1,172 1,017
950 863
1,652 2,247
30,614 30,693
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12 31
2020 2019
Q) 123,345 124,267
) 49,452 48,246
27,873 23,349
19,551 18,711
3) 5,813 5,688
3,863 3,835
229,897 224,096
12 31
2020 2019
80,854 79,255
8,933 8,524
4,713 5,450
4,398 4,902
205 407
110 141
3,613 3,534
10,595 10,044
108,708 106,807
14,632 17,399
5 61
123,345 124,267
9 (2019 157
21 )
6

1% 5% 7%

2%

204/497



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

2020 12 31
xiii
() 619 77 73 769
(ii) 619 77 73 769
(iii) 557 74 72 703
410 - - - 410
380 - - - 380
380 - - - 380
370 - - - 370
360 - - - 360
(iv)
619 77 73 769
50 50
50 50
50 50
280 280
310 310
300 300
(v)
557 74 72 703
557 74 72 703
(vi) 325 50 42 417
974 135 73 1,182
(vii) 81 11 7 99

(viii) 511 66 66 643

(ix)
)
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(xi)
(xii) 244 32 15 291
2,940 5,663 147 638 9,988
) 2021 1 7
(ii) 2020 1 14
(iii) 2020 10 12
(iv) 2020 6 29
) 2020 11 27
(vi) 2020 10 12
(vii) 2020 11 3
(viii) 2020 11 30
(ix) 2020 6 29
X 2020 6 18
xi 2020 6 29
xii 2020 3 24
xiii
2020 12 31
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xviii
821 93 80 994
i) 738 85 92 915
390 390
367 367
367 367
(ii) 145 145
(iii) 146 146
(iv)
(v)
821 93 80 994
50 50
50 50
(vi) 12 12
280 280
310 310
300 300
(vii) 205 21 24 250
(viii) 62 7 7 76
(ix) 677 75 123 875
(x) 554 65 62 681
1,946 147 79 2,172
(xi) 1,946 142 77 2,165
(xii) 677 86 74 837
(xiii) 431 52 49 532
(xiv)
(xv) 271 271
(xv) 252 252
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11 81

2,981 8,939 875

758 13,553

2019 4 1
2019 7 30
2019 7 29
2019 5 21
2019 7 29
2019 10 9
2019 10 25
2019 12 23
2019 4 29
2019 5 10
2020 3 24
2019 11 28
2019 5 10

2020 1 14

2019 6 28

2019 1 9

2019 8 30
2019 10 9
2019 1 2

5
2019 12 31

2019 10 14

12 31

2020

2019

15 13
12 14

28 28
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12 31

2020 2019
4,500,001 5,000,000 3
5,000,001 5,500,000
5,500,001 6,000,000
6,000,001 6,500,000 1 1
6,500,001 7,000,000
7,000,001 7,500,000

7,500,001 8,000,000 1 1
2020 12 31 2019 12 31 5
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
5
( 622 )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
7
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
) 12 31
2020 2019
138,988 131,833
6,796 301
5,070 985
10,575 3,990
1,419 30
864 514
936 409
51 543

164,699 138,605
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58,220 62,674

664 824

(26) 215

58,858 63,713
22 ) (10,208) (10,061)

48,650 53,652

25%
(
2020 2019 12 31
) 12 31
2020 2019

265,050 266,576

(25%) 66,263 66,644

@) (36,294) (31,575)

20,061 18,684

(1,300)
(80) (101)
48,650 53,652

210/497




10
(
2019
2018
(1) 2019
2020 6 29
GAAP
2019
2020
(2) 2018
2019 5 30
GAAP
2018
(3) 2020
2020 1 10
2020 7 3
2019
2019 11
2019 8 30

2019 (

1 0.1819 63,662

2018 (

1 0.1739 60,862

2019 12 31

2020 3 11

2020 11 5

2019 3 11

2019 11 5
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12 31
2020 2019
63,662
60,862
63,662 60,862
4,328 4,600
5,202
(
)
(
)
5.5% 2,200
5.32% 2,128
5.5% 2,200
6% 2,400
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(4) 2020
2020 8 17
2019
4.39% 3,732 2020 8 20
2020 9 2 2019
4.2% 1,470 2020 9 7
(5) 2020 12 31 1 0.1851 64,782
11.
1
12 31
2020 2019
( ) 215,925 212,098
( ) (9,530) (4,600)
( ) 206,395 207,498
( ) 349,983 349,983
1 ( ) 0.59 0.59
2015 2014 2 V.33
2020 2019 4
V.33
2020 1 4,328 2020
5,202
2019 12 31 4,600
2020
2019 12 31 1
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1
PBOC
[2020]1 1%
220 1 6 05
2020 12 31 2020 3 25
[2020]39 2020 5 6
[2020]58
9.0% (2019 12 31 9.5%)
12 31 11.50%)
50(2019 12 31
PBOC
2 PBOC
3
0%
0
20% 0
13
( )
« )
2020 12 31
14,098 2019 12 31 14,670
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12 31
2020 2019
76,281 92,928
) 2,126,330 2,018,692
) 40,494 393,607
©) 193,142 193,631
2,436,247 2,698,858
1,028 1,037
2,437,275 2,699,895
2020 1 6 0.5
2020
2020
PBOC
11.0%(2019
11.0 2019 12 31 115
59%)
PBOC
2020 10 10
2020 10 12
12 31
2020 2019
391,366 185,905
13,511 14,292
27,826 34,493
432,703 234,690
3,387 2,118
(1,905) (1,066)
434,185 235,742
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12 31
2020 2019
148,136 162,772
219,887 252,498
179,927 106,047
547,950 521,317
1,750 3,289
(2,752) (1,423)
546,948 523,183
2020 12 31 2019
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) 2020 12 31
/
2,411,639 54,466 (57,312)
70,259 3721 (444)
58,187 (57,756)
352,044 1,009 (4,357)
155,555 2,741 (3.169)
61,937 (65,282)
) 2019 12 31
/
2,751,623 23,588 (19,835)
108,691 540 (547)
24,128 (20,382)
225,976 340 (1,676)
95,328 476 (7,490)
24,944 (29,548)
CBRC ( ) (2013 1 1 )
2019 1 1
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
) 12 31
2020 2019
74,562 79,547
11,905 10,939
86,467 90,486
) 2020 12 31

63,256 18 (2,860)
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2019 12 31
/
76,388 24 (1,195)
/
12 31
2020 2019
(1,996) (1,881)
1,915 1,568
3 1
1 5 5
757 1,747 9,914 39,239 11,599 63,256
358 2,834 7,480 50,927 14,789 76,388
2020 12 31
63,801 - - -
4,595 - 167 -
68,396 - 167 -
2019 12 31
73,117 - - -
5,552 - (51) -
78,669 - (51) _
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1
24
12 31
2020 2019
761,081 681,801
56,801 27,958
817,882 700,849
866 308
(2,542) (1,606)
816,206 708,551
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17
171
( ) 12 31
2020 2019
) 13,974,384 12,279,377
2 577,997 540,387
?) 52
14,552,433 12,819,764
(@]
8,339,235 7,381,532
6,218,837 5,406,831
14,558,072 12,788,363
34,321 31,592
(618,009) (540,578)
13,974,384 12,279,377
]
188,522 118,997
389,475 421,390
577,997 540,387
(3)

52
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2020 12 31
1 2 3()
12
13,995,576 325,383 237,113 14,558,072
(397,768) (60,700) (159,541) (618,009)
13,597,808 264,683 77,572 13,940,063
577,972 25 577,997
(13,195) @ (13,197)
2019 12 31
1 2 3(i)
12
12,280,857 320,316 187,190 12,788,363
(351,550) (57,693) (131,335) (540,578)
11,929,307 262,623 55,855 12,247,785
540,068 299 20 540,387
(12,495) @7 (15) (12,537)
4.1
3 43,840
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2 3 12
( 2020 12 31
1 2 3
12
@ i
2020 1 1 249,600 53,391 110,480 213,471
1 2 (9,141) 9,141
2 3 (24,807) 24,807
2 1 3,555 (3,555)
3 2 2,875 (2,875)
98,077 98,077
(4,839) 23,209 63,387 81,847
(54,703) (6,645) (23,566) (84,914)
(36,599) (36,599)
2020 12 31 282,549 53,699 135,634 471,882
( 2020 12 31
1 2 3
12
(iii) iv
2020 1 1 114,445 4,329 20,870 139,644
1 2 (2,535) 2,535
2 3 (6,305) 6,305
2 1 755 (755)
3 2 523 (523)
55,463 55,463
644 11,846 18,501 30,991
(40,358) (5,170) (8,470) (53,998)
(12,776) (12,776)
2020 12 31 128,414 7,003 23,907 150,324
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2019 12 31
1 2 3
12
Vi
191,146 63,973 128,611 383,730
(6,261) 6,261
(19,356) 19,356
5,948 (5,948)
3,390 (3,390)
72,673 72,673
25,292 16,147 40,776 82,215
(39,198) (11,076) (35,664) (85,938)
(39,209) (39,209)
249,600 53,391 110,480 413471
2019 12 31
1 2 3
12
(vii) viii
78,018 4,491 20,373 102,882
(1,530) 1,530
(5,190) 5,190
973 (973)
482 (482)
50,904 50,904
12,311 5,129 13,406 30,846
(26,231) (1,140) (5,428) (32,799)
(12,189) (12,189)
114,445 4,329 20,870 139,644
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(i) 2020

(i) 2020

31

2020

(i) 2020

(iv) 2020

2020

(v) 2019

(vi) 2019

2019

2019

(vii) 2019

(viii) 2019

2019

20

2019

1
2
2
3
3
2
2
3
3
1
11
2
2
3
1
2019 1 1
2
1 1
2
3
3
2019 12 31

13
2019 12 31
2019 12 31 28%
15
2019 12 31 24%
2019 12 31 21%
2019 1 1 13
2019 12 31
16
1
2019
70 2
2019
3
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2020 12
2020
1
2020
2020
1
2019 12 31
2019
3
1
2019 12 31
2
1 2
2 3
2019 2
2
2019 1 1
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18
12 3
( 2020 2019
18.1 583,069 801,361
18.2 5,684,220 4,946,741
18.3 1,555,370 1,674,828
7,822,659 7,422,930
18.1
12 31
( 2020 2019
(@) 223,960 240,281
2 260,240 216,052
?) 98,869 345,028
583,069 801,361
4,613 3,695
(i) 390,444 481,884
188,012 315,782
583,069 801,361
0]
&) 12 31
2020 2019
7,904 10,371
49,764 45,231
79,243 102,650
45,614 43,207
182,525 201,459
21,959 29,132
4,944 2,354
14,532 7,336
223,960 240,281
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2 (ii) 12 31
2020 2019
25,372 19,434
106,820 72,334
1,816 5,724
134,008 97,492
97,401 95,183
28,831 23,377
260,240 216,052
1
( )
3 (iii) 12 31
2020 2019
9,440 17,137
18,071 19,790
32,456 147,389
3,899 27,334
63,866 211,650
28,207
27,935 104,184
7,068 987

98,869 345,028

(iii)
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12 3
2020 2019
3,545,856 2,755,256
1,311,556 1,278,027
204,310 302,220
129,738 124,558
5,191,460 4,460,061
(i) 290,801 290,891
(i) 93,348 93,352
(iii) 14,413 16,791
5,600,112 4,861,095
110,212 95,134
(16,104) (9,488)
5,684,220 4,946,741
19,630 17,851
(iv) 5,304,920 4,567,976
359,670 360,914
5,684,220 4,946,741
MOF 2020 1 1
1998 MOF 93,300
2008 12 1 2.25%
41(2) )
2020 12 31
1 2 3
12
5,607,187 2,064 1,073 5,700,324
(14,850) (190) (1,064) (16,104)
5,682,337 1,874 9 5,684,220
2019 12 31
1 2 3
12
4,953,832 1,196 1,201 4,956,229
(8,409) (32) (1,047) (9,488)

4,945,423 1,164 154 4,946,741
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@ (i)
( ) 2020 12 31
1 2 3
12
2020 1 1 8,409 32 1,047 9,488
1 2 (33) 33
4321 4321
3,295 126 144 3,565
(1L,142) @ (1,143)
(127) (127)
2020 12 31 14,850 190 1,064 16,104
( ) 2019 12 31
1 2 3
12
2019 1 1 6,601 236 2,260 9,187
2 (29) 29
3 (382) 382
1,832 1,832
1,534 3 4 1,541
(1,237) (236) (1,599) (3072)
2019 12 31 8,409 32 1,047 9,488
(i) 2020 12 31
18.3
( ) 2020 12 31
/
6D 1,537,987 1,551,439 13,452 (10,074)
0} 2,784 3,931 1,147
1,540,771 1,555,370 14,509 (10,074)
( ) 2019 12 31
/
16)) 1,650,974 1,671,746 20,772 (6,897)
@ 2,050 3,082 1,032

1,653,024 1,674,828 21,804 (6,897)
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N
(a)
( ) 12 31
2020 2019
702,202 744,035
242,345 247,527
453,176 478,172
119,079 165,270
1,516,802 1,635,004
0] 18,902 18,556
1,535,704 1,653,560
15,735 18,186
1,551,439 1,671,746
102,413 107,477
1,399,150 1,499,316
49,876 64,953
1,551,439 1,671,746
@)
41 2
(b)
( ) 2020 12 31
1 2 3
12
1,545,343 6,030 66 1,551,439
(9,536) (432) (106) (10,074)
( ) 2019 12 31
1 2 3
12
1,671,525 221 1,671,746
(6,874) (23) (6,897)
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2020 1 1

2020 12 31

2019 1 1

2019 12 31

(i) 2020 12 31

)
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(i)
2020 12 31
1 2 3
12
6,874 23 6,897
(211 211
4,055 4,055
1,029 221 <) 1,340
(2.211) ) (2218
9,536 432 106 10,074
2019 12 31
1 2 3
12
5,720 552 55 6,327
26 (26)
2,129 2,129
186 23 209
(1,187) (526) (55) (1,768)
6,874 23 6,897
12 31
2020 2019
3,811 2,878
120 204
3,931 3,082
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19
(1
2020 12 31
/ (%0 (%)
1988 11 1 588,790,000 100.00 100.00
ABC 2009 11 11 4,113,392,449 100.00 100.00
2010 9 29 9,500,000,000 100.00 100.00
(UK) 2011 11 29 100,000,000 100.00 100.00
2008 3 18 1,750,000,001 51.67 51.67
2008 8 12 19,600,000 51.02 51.02
(i) 2008 8 12 31,000,000 50.00 66.67
2010 5 25 29,400,000 51.02 51.02
2010 3 30 40,000,000 51.00 51.00
2012 4 20 210,000,000 51.00 51.00
(i) 2012 5 24 150,000,000 51.00 51.00
(i) 2005 12 19 2,949,916,475 51.00 51.00
( ) 2014 11 26 20,000,000 100.00 100.00
( ) 2014 12 23 7,556,038,271 100.00 100.00
2017 8 1 10,000,000,000 100.00 100.00 /
2019 7 25 12,000,000,000 100.00 100.00
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2020 2019
() 3 2
(i) 2020 5 24 5,000
51.00
(iii) 2012 12 31 51
2012 12 31 1,381 2016
3,761 017 2,844
51
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
(2
41
20
(1
/ (%) (%)
(i) 2015 53,342,800,000 50.00 50.00
6 ( (i) 2015 0 1,110,854,000 9.00 20.00
)
(i) 2018 6,343,200,000 15.61 20.00
(i) 2019 3,885,500,000 25.30 20.00
(
)
') (i) 2020 6,000,000,000 15.67 14.29
(
)
( 2015 5 28
50
( 6 ( )y 2015 2020 12 23

(iii
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! (%) (%)
2018 i3 1,000 69.00 28.57
(

( 2018 i3 500 74.00 33.33

) 2018 I 1,200 4171 40.00

2018 I 1,500 66.67 50.00

2018 ] 400 50.00 40.00

(
2018 I 2,000 50.00 50.00
(

) 2018 i3 2,520 30.16 28.57

2018 I 2,000 50.00 50.00

(
)

2019 i3 2,000 50.00 50.00

2019 i3 1,800 66.67 50.00

( 2019 i 400 70.00 50.00

2019 i 3,500 20.00 20.00

2019 i3 1,000 50.00 50.00

2019 i3 1,601 49.97 33.33

2020 I 5,000 80.00 50.00
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2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020
2020

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019
2019

12 31

12 31
11

12 31

12 31
11

2020 12

31
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193,465 67,116 13,364 4321 278,266
4918 7,060 1,519 5,484 18,981
933 1,289 223 (2,445)
(13,522 (9,347) (385) (11 (23,265)
185,794 66,118 14,721 7,349 273,982
(73,609) (48,465) (3.393) (125,467)
(6,762) (6.015) (634) (13.411)
7,895 8,198 309 16,402
(72,476) (46,282) (3.718) (122,476)
(265) (16) (34 (315)
(49 (49
3 7 2 12
(262) 9 (47) (34 (352)
113,056 19,827 10,956 7,315 151,154
119,501 18,635 9,971 4,287 152,484
186,443 65,804 11,097 7,986 271,330
3,825 6,712 2,828 2,060 15,425
5,097 226 1 (5,324)

(1,900) (5,626) (562) (402) (8,489)
193,465 67,116 13,364 4,321 278,266
(67,584) (47,735) (3,258) (118,577)

(6,613) (5,919) (545) (13,077)

588 5,189 410 6,187
(73,600) (48,465) (3,393) (125,467)
(271) (21) @) (8) (301)
(26) (26)

6 5 1 12

(265) (16) (34) (315)
119,501 18,635 9,071 4,287 152,484
118,588 18,048 7,838 7,978 152,452
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2020

2018

2019

12

12

12

12

31

31

31

31

I
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12 31
2020 2019

133,355 120,952

(334) (520)

133,021 120,432

114,140 9,175 533 7,640 (11,302 246 120,432

7,804 1,251 (145) 2835  (L797) 210 10,208

2,381 2381

121,944 10,426 388 10525 (10,718) 456 133,021

103,435 8,865 720 6471  (6,579) 242 113154

10,705 310 (187) 1,169  (1,940) 4 10061

(2,783) (2,783)

114,140 9175 533 7640 (11,302 246 120,432
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I
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
/ / / /
( ) C ) )
487,775 121,944 456,559 114,140
58,107 14,527 23,426 5,856
41,705 10,426 36,700 9,175
42,100 10,525 30,558 7,640
1,551 388 2,133 533
1,827 456 1,019 255
633,065 158,266 550,395 137,599
(100,981) (25,245) (68,635) (17,158)
(35) 9
(100,981) (25,245) (68,670) (17,167)
532,084 133,021 481,725 120,432
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23
( ) 12 31
2020 2019
(@) 97,619 77,028
%) 19,340 19,889
(3) 10,196 10,805
4,154 3,229
3,070 3,183
2,529 2,730
2,233 1,792
1,192 1,173
716 594
655 564
9,588 9,943
151,292 130,930
(6]
IFRS 15 —
2020 12 31 584 (2019 12
31 1554 ) 412 (2019 12 31 859 )
2020 12 31 99,869 (2019 12 31 78,9% )
2,422 (2019 12 31 2661 )
(2 2020 12 31
(3 2020 12 31 2020 12 31 12
3,993 2019 12 31 12 3,700 7,361 2019
12 31 3,700
24
2020 12 31 PBOC 6,744
2019 12 31 5,965
25
( ) 12 31
2020 2019
114,693 100,894
1,229,313 1,339,628
2,006 3,242
42,691 55,438
1,388,703 1,499,202
5,813 4,707
1,394,516 1,503,909
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26
( ) 12 31
2020 2019
222377 148,603
167,291 175,124
389,668 323,727
992 1,636
390,660 325,363
27
( ) 12 31
2020 2019
13,725 14,147
13,725 14,147
(@) 9,540 6,681
3,505
4,452 5,901
100
14,092 16,087
27,817 30,234
@
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
28
( ) 12 31
2020 2019
107,844 50,895
1,325 1,970
109,169 52,865
26 332
109,195 53,197

42
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29
12 31
( ) 2020 2019
5,236,566 4,973,481
5,872,736 5,689,617
2,477,710 2,306,667
6,062,167 5,223,243
@) 299,962 250,847
158,231 174,318
20,107,372 18,618,173
265,529 230,982
20,372,901 18,849,155
1
12 31
( ) 2020 2019
73,606 68,694
100,822 75,808
48718 49,904
39,309 17,571
37,507 38,870
299,962 250,847
(2) 2020 12 31 27
2020
12 31 2019 12 31
2020 12 31 20,031,232
2019 12 31 18,396,387
341,669 (2019 12 31 452,768 )
30
12 31
( ) 2020 2019
@) 430,703 348,686
%) 252,569 268,599
©) 679,261 482,345
1,362,533 1,099,630
9,312 8,582
1,371,845 1,108,212
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
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15
15
10
10
10
10
10
15

g1 01 O W W W W w w

T
o o

4.99%

)
Tier2
Tier2
Tier2
Tier2
Tier2
Tier2
Tier2
2015 10 5
2011 6 5.3%
2021 6 6
2021 6 7
2012 12
2022 12 19
2022 12 20
2017 10 Tier2
16
2022 10 17 4.45%
CBIRC Tier2
2018 4 Tier2
4 26
2023 4 27 4.45%
CBIRC Tier2
2019 3 Tier2
3 18
2024 3 19 4.28%
CBIRC Tier2

1

5.3%

1

4.45% 1

Tier2

4.45%
CBIRC

Tier2

4.28%
CBIRC

Tier2

238/497
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12 31
2020 2019
0] 3,488
(ii) 50,000 50,000
(iii) 50,000 50,000
(iv) 40,000 40,000
(v) 40,000 40,000
(vi) 50,000 50,000
(vii) 40,000 40,000
(viii) 40,000
(ix) 10,000 10,000
(x) 20,000 20,000
(xi) 42,643 31,163
(xii) 20,000
(xiii) 2,720 3,000
(xiv) 1,650
(xv) 3,870 2,890
(xvi) 4,000
(xvii) 2410 3,000
(xviii) 2,000 1,880
(xix) 6,000
(xx) 500
(xxi) 3,500 3,500
(xxii) 1,500
430,793 348,921
(90) (235)
430,703 348,686
2020 10 20
15
15
4.99%
10
2022 10
Tier2
1 10
2023
Tier2
1 10
2024
Tier2
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vii 2019 4 Tier2 4.30% 1 10
CBIRC 2024
4 10
2024 4 11 4.30% Tier2 Tier2
CBIRC Tier2
(viij) 2020 4 Tier2 3.10% 1 10
CBIRC 2025
5 5
2025 5 6 3.10% Tier2 Tier2
CBIRC Tier2
ix 2019 3 Tier2 4.53% 1 15
CBIRC 2029
3 18
2029 3 19 4.53% Tier2 Tier2
CBIRC Tier2
x 2019 4 Tier2 4.63% 1 15
CBIRC 2029
4 10
2029 4 11 4.63% Tier2 Tier2
CBIRC Tier2
Xi)
( ) 2020 12 31
(%)
2022 10 1.00 4,208
2021 6 2025 10 1.00-3.88 18,871
2021 9 2023 11 3 LIBOR+0.68 0.85 19,564
42,643
( ) 2019 12 31
(%)
2020 8 2.18-2.52 470
2020 9 2021 9 2.50-3.88 9,069
2020 2 2023 11 3 LIBOR+0.68 0.85 21,624
31,163
xij) 2020 4 1.99% 1 3
Xiif) 2019 6 3.68% 1
3
(xiv) 2020 11 3.90% 1 3
XVv) 2019 9 3.30% 1 3
(xvi) 2020 3 2.68% 1 3
(xvii) ABC 2018 8
4.70% 1 3
XViii) 2019 9 3.40% 1 5
(xix) 2020 3 2.75% 1 5
(xx) ( ) 2020 6 3.80% 1
5
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XXi) 2018 3
5.55% 1 10 2023 3 4
2023 3 5
6.55Y%
(xxif) 2020 3
3.60% 1 10 2025 3 25
2025 3 26
4.60%
22020 12 31
1 7 -0.02%  3.66% 2019 12 31
1 7 -0. 23%
3.66%
3
2020 12
31 3 1
0.00%  2.14% 2019 12 31 3 1 -0.22%
2.85%
2020 12 31
1 1 1.58%  3.35% 2019 12 31 1 1
2.7%  3.24%
31
( ) 12 31
2020 2019
168,852 105,682
89,651 73,588
@) 56,811 50,471
54,340 59,286
2 42,100 30,558
10,235 8,541
9,824 10,280
5,168 4,579
MOF 711 561
86,898 71,410
524,500 414,956
1
( ) 12 31
2020 2019
() 47,380 43,130
() 7,880 5,208
() 1,551 2,133

56,811 50,471
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2020
11 12 31
@ 31,289 81,087 (77,366) 35,010
) 184 8,933 (9,009) 108
) 332 4713 (4,660) 385
311 4,398 (4,342) 367
13 205 (209) 9
8 110 (109) 9
7,049 3,613 (2,623) 8,039
4,276 10,612 (11,050) 3,838
43,130 108,958 (104,708) 47,380
2019
11 12 31
@) 29,499 79,255 (77,465) 31,289
@ 186 8,524 (8,526) 184
@ 255 5,450 (5,373) 332
235 4,902 (4,826) 311
13 407 (407) 13
7 141 (140) 8
6,206 3,534 (2,691) 7,049
3,552 10,044 (9,320) 4,276
39,608 106,807 (103,375) 43,130
2020
11 12 31
452 8,110 (7,943) 619
34 249 (243) 40
4,722 6,367 (3,868) 7,221
5,208 14,726 (12,054) 7,880
2019
11 12 31
518 10,825 (10,891) 452
31 349 (346) 34
2,155 6,225 (3,659) 4,722

2,704 17,399 (14,895) 5,208

241/497



2
(
(
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2020 12 31
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2020
11 12 31
2,133 5 (587) 1,551
2019
1 1 12 31

2,883 61 (811) 2,133

12 31

2020 2019

2.90% 2.80%
8.00% 8.00%
8.00% 8.00%
60 60
55 55

12 31

2020 2019
() 35,756 25,213
5,560 4,490
784 855
42,100 30,558
2020 12 31
1 2 3
12
22,836 2,032 345 25,213
(682) 682
(348) 348
3 €)]

18,613 18,613
720 6 401 1,127
(8,134) (708) (355) (9.197)
33,356 1,661 739 35,756

2421497



2019 1 1

@
2019 12 31

a 2020

@) A

(2) 2020 12 31
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2019

2019 12 31

2019 12 31
1 2 3
12
17,797 2,006 720 20,523
(1,072) 1,072
(319) 319
13 (13)
14,751 14,751
(116) (76) 26 (166)
(8,537) (638) (720) (9,895)
22,836 2,032 345 25,213
2020 2019
2020 12 31
( )
319,244 319,244
30,739 30,739
349,983 349,983
2019 12 31
( )
319,244 319,244
30,739 30,739
349,983 349,983
H
2018 6 25,189
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33
( ) ( ) ( )
5
0,
6% 100 400 40,000
1
5
5
0,
5-5% 100 400 40,000
@)
5
2019
5
4.39% 100 850 85,000
i 5
2
2019
5
4.20% 100 350 35,000
i 5
@
2020
5
3.48% 100 850 85,000
i 5
2
2020
5
4.50% 100 350 35,000
i 5
2
) 800 1 100
2014 11 400 2020 12 31 (
) 39,944 5 6%
1 5 5 2.29%
2019 11 1 5
2019 11 5 3.03% 2.29%

5.32% 1

2441497



2015 3 400

) 39,955

1 5

2020 3 6

2020 3 11

4.84% 1
CBRC

A
243 2018 6
1 2
CBIRC Tierl
2020 12 31
(2019 12 31 :79,899 )
2
120,000

2019 8 16

1 2019 8 20

2
4.39%

2019 9 3

2 2019 9 5

2

4.20%

245/497

2020 12 31

2.60%

[2012]56

1 2
25,189

1 243

85,000

35,000
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(
5 5.5%

2.24%

2.24%

Tier2

2.46

79,899

2019

100

100



2020

2020 5 8
1

3.48%

2020 8 20

2

4.50%

CBIRC

2020 12 31
239,976

2010

120,000
85,000
2020 5 12
2 5 1
35,000
2020 8 24
2 5 1
5
CBIRC
Tierl

(2019 12 31 :119,987

2018

246/497
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100
5
100
5
Tierl



2019

2020

2018

2019

12

12

12

12

31

31

31

31

GAAP
2021 3 30
10% 21,040

25%

2019

2471497
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2020
39,875 (10,192) 29,684
(4,238) 1,188 (3,050)
(750) 188 (562)
(114) 29 (85)
34,773 (8,786) 25,987
2019
24,996 (6,004) 18,992
14,921 (4,196) 10,725
(425) 107 (318)
383 (98) 285
39,875 (10,191) 29,684
10%
50%
2020
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37
MOF [2012] 20 2012 7 1
1.5%
2020 12 31 34,433
2019 37,826 2019 12 31
34,211 2019 37,626 2020 6 22
2021 3 30 39,217
2021
38
3
( ) 12 31
2020 2019
76,281 92,928
51,802 401,632
76,904 105,571
207,568 150,495
762,598 703,955

1,175,153 1,454,581
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( )
2020 12 31
295,937 146,586 104,665 90,675 100,397 146,982 2471 23,219 930,932
(62,901) (81,914) (40,592) (61,183) (50,040) (57,814) (a7,574) (13,835) (385,853)
( Y (236,844) 56,373 26,000 56,045 43,004 40,319 16,672 (1,659)
(3808) 121,045 90,073 85,537 93,451 129,487 21,569 7725 545,079
32,182 14,579 11,403 9,492 8,660 12,101 2,148 601 91,166
(4,023) (2,620) (2,476) (1,975) (2,281) (2,529 (549) (168) (16,621)
28,159 11,959 8,927 7,517 6,379 9,572 1,599 433
74545
/ 10,463 359 (151) (156) (110 897 (76) 5,179
) 16,405
/ 4,058 (5,648) (2,280) (2,462) (1,034) (1,550) (7,312
(223) 1,827
1 1
(1,839) 721 492 485 307 1,356 59 29,033 30,614
37,034 128,436 97,061 90,921 98,003 139,762 22,908 44,197 650,332
(15,628) (33,097) (24,797) (28,845) (33,345) (47,362) (13,395) (33,428) (229,897)
(15,181) (26,704) (17,796) (26,626) (31,237) (37,932 (6,398) (2,825) (164,699)
@ 1 12 3 (130) (38) (51) (204)
6,224 68,636 54,468 35,462 34,414 54,338 3,097 7,893 264,532
518
4 514
6,228 68,636 54,468 35,462 4414 54,338 3,097 8,407 265,050
(48,650)
216,400
1,570 3,170 2,572 3,360 3,075 4,150 1,202 452 19,551
2,438 2,942 2,937 2,537 3673 4,607 1,658 1,930 272
2020 12 31
5056432 5698994 3443268 4676597 3917314 5231,854 1,175,767 1,207,010 (4,235544) 27,071,692
210 8,655 8,865
133,355
27,205,047
6} 12,523 31,128 18,944 28,896 27,810 42,014 11,127 27,410 199,852

(3726/048) (5,748,167) (3.442287) (4710246) (3940522) (5264,694) (1,186,993) (1,156214) 4,235544 (24,939,627)
(54,674)
(24,994,301)

32,779 970,556 558,971 496,243 422,731 523,658 77,342 87,024 3,169,304

@
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( )
2019 12 31
288,232 131,213 93,283 85,043 89,614 133,281 21,701 30,773 873,140
(55547)  (78563)  (38991)  (56914)  (48692)  (55322)  (16407)  (21,834) (372,270)
( )
(220,171) 50,152 25,699 50,389 41,859 39,850 14,201 (1,979)
12,514 102,802 79,991 78,518 82,781 117,809 19,495 6,960 500,870
27,767 14,687 11,335 9,855 9,128 12,559 2,302 683 88,316
(3477) (2,644) (2,297) (2,045) (1,940) (2,352) (a7 (163) (15,389)
24,290 12,043 9,038 7,810 7,188 10,207 1,831 520 72,927
i) 10,446 87 27 a4 (15) 10 (147) 8,615 19,067
/
6,137 40 13 (932) (54) (23) 612 5,793
25 2,113 963 643 560 1,340 140 24,909 30,693
53,412 117,085 90,032 86,083 90,460 129,343 21,319 41,616 629,350
(15107)  (32,858)  (24373)  (29007)  (32,881)  (47.267)  (13679)  (28,924) (224,096)
(2442)  (29378)  (23434)  (28367)  (17,636)  (28,116) (6,650) (2,582) (138,605)
(69) 14 76 11 1 (107) (78) 34 (118)
35,794 54,863 42,301 28,720 39,944 53,853 912 10,144 266,531
10 35 45
35,804 54,863 42,301 28,720 39,044 53,853 912 10,179 266,576
(53,652)
212,924
1,324 3,078 2,542 3,037 3,029 4,075 1,185 a1 18,711
1,867 1,763 1,375 1,684 2,397 4,001 834 2,786 16,847
2019 12 31
6,353,747 5027,205 3080472 4298291 3562994 4,854,865 1041973 1,187,050 (4,650,058) 24,756,539
207 6,465 6,672
120,952
24,877,491
) 11,502 32,067 19,404 29,526 28,042 42,169 11,477 24,704 198,981
(4,411,873) (5,050,147) (3,089,422) (4,326,587) (3,570,710) (4,873,329) (1,052,150) (1,139,664) 4,650,058 (22,863,824)
(59,806)
(22,923,630)
40,267 641,332 400516 441,065 340,859 396,394 72,520 77,075 2,410,028
2

251/497



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

252/497



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

( )
2020 12 31
354,333 279,727 290,119 6,753 930,932
(120,316) (194,092) (68,422) (3.024) (385,853)
( )
(12,647) 168,042 (155,395)
221,370 253,678 66,302 3,729 545,079
55,436 33,274 496 1,960 91,166
(10,044 (6,490) ® (82 (16,621)
45,392 26,784 291 1,878 74,545
8,920 7,485 16,405
/ (7,284) (4,180) 1,440 2,712 (7,312
1 1
1,375 1,321 25 27,893 30,614
260,853 277,603 77,179 43,607 659,332
(71,055) (101,669) (24,700) (32,473) (229,897)
(112,122) (37,359) (13,706) (1,512) (164,699)
(156) 4 (52 (204)
77,520 138,579 38,773 9,660 264,532
518 518
77,520 138,579 38,773 10,178 265,050
(48,650)
216,400
4,397 11,209 3,544 401 19,551
4,076 12,708 4,401 1,447 2,122
2020 12 31
8,618,358 6,372,074 11,586,282 494,978 27,071,692
8,865 8,865
133,355
27,205,047
(8,590,691) (12,926,172) (3,129,836) (292,928) (24,939,627)
(54,674)
(24,994,301)
2,146,637 1,022,667 3,160,304
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( )
2019 12 31
340,663 241,427 285,030 6,020 873,140
(113,527) (187,247) (68,698) (2,798) (372,270)
( )i
(3,271) 159,577 (156,306)
223,865 213,757 60,026 3,222 500,870
52,097 33,415 152 1,752 88,316
(7,638) (7,695) @ (54) (15,389)
45,359 25,720 150 1,608 72,927
11,570 7,497 19,067
/ 424 (445) 4,438 1,376 5,793
1,465 1,547 2,018 24,763 30,693
271,113 240,579 79,102 38,556 629,350
(74,423) (97,310) (24,792) (27,571) (224,096)
(86,174) (49,699) (1,407) (1,325) (138,605)
(131) 53 (@ (36) (118)
110,385 93,623 52,899 9,624 266,531
45 45
110,385 93,623 52,899 9,669 266,576
(53,652)
212,924
4,340 10,641 3,361 369 18,711
2,884 8,389 2,037 2,637 16,847
2019 12 31
7,710,290 5,826,866 10,771,924 447,459 24,756,539
6,672 6,672
120,952
24,877,491
(8,021,219) (11,885,863) (2,707,432) (249,310) (22,863,824)
(59,806)
(22,923,630)
1,565,535 844,493 2,410,028
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2020 12 31
230,601 700,241 930,932
(121,062) (264,791) (385,853)

I 122,135 (122,135)
231,764 313315 545,079
35,742 55,424 91,166
(6.439) (10,182) (16,621)
29,303 45242 74,545
221 16,184 16,405
(4,001) (3311) (7,312)
1 1
4,507 26,107 30,614
261,794 397,538 659,332
(91,401) (138,496) (229,897)
(52,276) (112,423) (164,699)
(27) (277) (209)
118,090 146,442 264,532
518 518
118,090 146,960 265,050
(48,650)
216,400
7,567 11,984 19,551
6,990 15,732 2,722

2020 12 31

9638372 17,570,020 (136,700) 27,071,692
8,865 8,865

133,355

27,205,047

(8942,453) (16,133,874 136,700  (24,939,627)
(54,674)

(24,994,301)

970,680 2,198,624 3,169,304
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2019 12 31
205,982 667,158 873,140
(116,959) (255,311) (372,270)

I 115,125 (115,125)
204,148 296,722 500,870
34,022 54,294 88,316
(6,155) (9,234) (15,389)
27,867 45,060 72,927
632 18,435 19,067
(5) 5,798 5,793
4,007 26,596 30,693
236,739 392,611 629,350
(90,654) (133,442) (224,096)
(48,228) (90,377) (138,605)
(86) (32) (118)
97,771 168,760 266,531
45 45
97,771 168,805 266,576
(53,652)
212,924
7,533 11,178 18,711
4,790 12,057 16,847

2019 12 31

8699610 16,171,807 (114,878) 24,756,539
6,672 6,672

120,952

24,877,491

(8,085,320)  (14,893,382) 114,878  (22,863,824)
(59,806)

(22,923,630)

729,244 1,680,784 2,410,028

257/497



40
1 MOF
2020 12 31
MOF
( )
MOF
MOF
MOF
MOF
( )
MOF
( )
MOF
MOF

MOF

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
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35.29% 2019 12 31 35.29%
MOF
12 31
2020 2019
(%) (%)
754,668 9.65% 643,568 8.67%
316,656 4.05% 307,723 4.15%
1,004 0.77%
711 0.14% 520 0.13%
8,385 0.04% 7,772 0.04%
(MOF ) 4 4
41 0.01%
12 31
2020 2019
(%) (%)
30,376 3.26% 30,195 3.46%
(100) 0.03% (253) 0.07%
1,294 1.42% 1,552 1.76%
95 0.58% 162 0.85%
12 31
2020 2019
% %
0.00-9.00 0.13 9.00
0.00-2.81 0.00 341

42

258/497
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2020 12 31 40.03% 2019 12 31 40.03%

) 12 31
2020 2019
(%) (%)
3951 0.03% 22,024 0.17%
67,509 0.86% 68,455 0.92%
5,447 0.03% 1,862 0.01%
) 12 31
2020 2019
(%) (%)
2,844 0.31% 2,314 0.27%
(148) 0.04% (270) 0.07%
29 0.18% 65 0.34%
) 12 31
2020 2019
% %
355392 3.92-4.35
2.15-5.15 2.84-5.15

1.73-2.25 1.38-2.25

259/497



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

( ) 12 3
2020 2019
(%) (%)

89,726 20.67% 63,637 26.99%
100,125 18.31% 61,520 11.76%
17,137 27.67% 4,360 17.48%
27,349 3.35% 94,067 13.28%
64,047 0.44% 53,117 0.41%
731,695 9.35% 768,800 10.36%
92,890 6.66% 157,640 10.48%
147,049 37.64% 94,756 29.12%
11,259 17.25% 5,518 18.67%
48,444 44.36% 1,309 2.46%
3,921 0.02% 1,438 0.01%
2,000 0.63% 2,000 1.00%
3,000 0.15% 5,002 0.29%

3

2019 9 25 3.92%

2020 12 30 2019 12 31
6.95%
( ) o 3
2020 2019
(%) %)

33,966 4.16% 25,854 3.65%

51,827 0.25% 55,815 0.30%
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12 31
2020 2019
(%) (%)
158 0.02% 177 0.02%
(2,026) 0.53% (1,810) 0.49%
12 31
2020 2019
% %
0.63-3.35 0.87-5.05

261/497
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12 31
2020 2019
(%) (%)
87,643 16.02% 88,805 16.97%
1,786 0.22%
6,230 0.08% 2,709 0.04%
24 0.02% 21 0.02%
18,657 1.34% 10,895 0.72%
1,624 0.01% 950 0.01%
18,657 0.14% 10,895 0.25%
8,482 3.21% 12,557 5.81%
331 0.02%
12 31
2020 2019
%) (%)
1,568 0.17% 792 0.09%
107 0.65%
1,807 1.98% 1,506 1.71%
9 0.03% 1
(373) 0.10% (253) 0.07%
(909) 5.47% (268) 1.74%
(297) 0.09% (143) 0.06%
12 31
2020 2019
% %
0.04-4.10 0.53-3.60
1.44-2.96 1.00-4.70
2.50-4.70 3.30-4.70
4.60-4.60
0.00-4.13 0.01-3.10

0.30-3.15 0.30-3.85
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6
( ) 12 31
2020 2019
(%) (%)
1
12 31
2020 2019
% %
2.00-2.44
7
2020 12 31
7 2019 12 31 : 9,536
( ) 12 31
2020 2019
9.99 13.55
2020 12 31
2019 12 31 2019
2019
9.97 2020 9 28 13.55

2019
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(8)
2020
2020 12 31 1,286.73
2019 12 31 74854
2020 12 31 CBIRC
3,064 (2019 12 31 13,071 ) 2019
12 31 1410
9
( ) 12 31
2020 2019
(%) (%)
4,326 0.02% 3,196 0.02%
( ) 12 31
2020 2019
(%) (%)
(185) 0.05% (157) 0.04%
2 3
2020 2019
% %

0.00 5.00 0.00 5.00

264/497
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12 31
2020 2019

(%) (%)
89,726 20.67 63,637 26.99
100,125 18.31 61,520 11.76
17,137 27.67 4,360 17.48
61,315 7.51 119,921 16.92
67,998 0.47 75,141 0.59
1,870,528 2391 1,788,546 24.09
1,004 0.77
92,890 6.66 157,640 10.48
147,049 37.64 94,756 29.12
11,259 17.25 5,518 18.67
48,444 44.36 1,309 2.46
69,580 0.34 66,887 0.35
715 0.14 565 0.14
2,000 0.63 2,000 1.00
3,000 0.15 5,002 0.29

12 31
2020 2019

(%) (%)
33,379 359 32,686 3.74
(2,274) 0.59 (2,333) 0.63
124 0.76 227 1.19
1,294 142 1,552 1.76

265/497



4],

1)

2020 12 31
464,477

)

WMPs

WMPs

2020 12 31
1,960,701
1,727,350

115,810

WMPs

2020 12 31
WMPs

2019 12 31

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

2019 12 31

oOoOooodn
/
241,504 2019 12 31
WMPs
WMPs WMPs
WMPs 2,170,621 2019 12 31
WMPs 1,949,722 2019
2020 12 31 WMPs
2019 4,971 632 2019 574
WMPs
2020
23,423 6.25 2019
143,545 2019 12 31 : 116,900
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
2020 12 31 2019

WMPs WMPs
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OoOoOoOoOodno
2020 12 31 440,726 (2019 12 31 478,339
) 2020
830 (2019 797 )
2020 12 31
92,193 2019 12 31 73,521
42.
2020 12 31
5,560 2019 12 31 : 4,490
31
2016 9 28 2016 11 4
2016 12 31 2016 12 31
2
2
2020 12 31
( ) 12 31
2020 2019
2,507 2,606

2020 12 31 2019 12 31
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CBIRC

53,197

31

28

863,190

EDINETOOOO

O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

OooooOodd
12 31
2020 2019
207,288 149,602
1,409,990 907,194
1,617,278 1,056,796
429,841 339,829
695,183 646,134
264,646 216,229
162,356 151,040
3,169,304 2,410,028
(2013 1 1 )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
12 31
2020 2019
1,240,078 1,063,652
12 31
2020 2019
114,573 55,738
1,327 1,978
115,900 57,716
2020 12 31
109,195 (2019 12 31
12
43
2020 12 31 1,026,931 2019 12

268/497



16
2019 12 31
MOF
2020 12 31
2019 12 31 75,795
MOF
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
43
8.7
2020 12 31
(2019 12 31 67,016
:11,855
55,161 2019 12 31
6,564

:55,161

2020 12 31
(2019 12 31
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6,923

14,130

EDINETOOOO
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ooooood
2020 12 31
67,622
5
69,291
2019 12 31



2020 12 31

31
(2019 12 31

17,150

42
2,955

27,837

2020 12 31
2019 12 31

2019 :32,414

112,368

270/497
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8.7

2020 12
4,050



2020

49,375
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2020
(2019

51,398
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12

PD LGD EAD
IFRS 9

PD LGD EAD

12
12
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3
6
2020 12 31
5
30
IFRS 9
90
GDP CPI
PD LGD
PD LGD
2020 2021
8.80 11.12 6.48
12

10%
5%
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2020
3
3 DCF
DCF
) 12 31
2020 2019

2,360,994 2,606,967
434,185 235,742
546,948 523,183
61,937 24,944
816,206 708,551

0] 14,552,433 12,819,764

469,308 693,758

(ii) 5,684,220 4,946,741
(iii) 1,551,439 1,671,746
101,562 80,858

26,579,232 24,312,254

(iv) 3,133,548 2,384,815

29,712,780 26,697,069

274/497
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2020 12 31
2
1 3
12
8,439,076 21,073 8,460,149
258,288 258,288
198,795 198,795
8,439,076 478,156 8,017,232
(269,354) (189,331) (458,685)
8,169,722 288,825 8,458,547
2020 12 31
2
1 3
12
6,134,472 6,134,472
46,047 46,047
38,318 38,318
6,134,472 84,365 6,218,837
(128,414) (30,910) (159,324)
6,006,058 53,455 6,059,513
2019 12 31
2
1 3
12
7,483,007 22,214 7,505,221
261,208 261,208
155,490 155,490
7,483,007 438,912 7,921,919
(237,105) (163,829) (400,934)

7,245,902 275,083 7,520,985

2751497
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( ) 2019 12 31
2
1 3
12
5,337,918 5,337,918
37,193 37,193
31,720 31,720
5,337,918 68,913 5,406,831
(114,445) (25,199) (139,644)
5,223,473 43,714 5,267,187
(i)
( ) 2020 12 31
2
1 3
12
5,697,187 5,697,187
2,064 2,064
1,073 1,073
5,697,187 3137 5,700,324
(14,850) (1,254) (16,104)
5,682,337 1,883 5,684,220
( ) 2019 12 31
2
1 3
12
4,953,832 4,953,832
1,196 1,196
1,201 1,201
4,953,832 2,397 4,956,229
(8,409) (1,079) (9,488)

4,945,423 1,318 4,946,741

276/497



(iii)
( )
( )
(iv)

(v) 2020 12 31

(Vi)
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O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
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2020 12 31
2
1 3
12
1,545,343 1,545,343
6,030 6,030
66 66
1,545,343 6,096 1,551,439
2019 12 31
2
1 3
12
1,671,525 1,671,525
221 221
1,671,525 221 1,671,746

2019 12 31

2771497
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12 31
2020 2019
(%) (%)
350,679 39 318,970 4.0
1,996,025 24 1,710,643 216
1,139,535 12.8 960,384 12.1
1,302,504 14.6 1,198,828 15.2
1,302,925 14.6 1,125,021 14.2
2,088,255 234 1,886,512 238
344,039 39 316,802 4.0
393,322 44 404,759 5.1
8,917,284 100.0 7,921,919 100.0
50 55

1,484,067 239 1,286,246 2338
1,331,142 214 1,175,768 217
912,175 14.7 802,153 14.8
997,845 16.0 857,033 16.0
1,265,565 20.4 1,083,958 20.0
207,899 33 186,464 34
20,094 0.3 15,154 0.3
6,218,837 100.0 5,406,831 100.0

15,136,121 13,328,750

278/497
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12 3
2020 2019
(%) (%)
1,915,191 215 1,689,787 21.3
1,450,816 16.3 1,291,327 16.3
1,261,700 141 1,047,843 13.2
976,377 11.0 900,036 114
798,017 89 704,973 8.9
621,772 7.0 517,448 6.5
469,831 53 386,064 4.9
556,342 6.2 623,570 7.9
222,858 25 233,961 29
206,502 23 212,201 2.7
437,878 49 314,709 4.0
8,917,284 100.0 7,921,919 100.0
4,662,632 75.0 4,163,293 77.0
380,305 6.1 264,980 4.9
196,859 32 181,234 33
542,563 8.7 474,205 8.8
436,478 7.0 323,119 6.0
6,218,837 100.0 5,406,831 100.0
15,136,121 13,328,750
2020 12 31
1
1 5 5
1,537,763 958,928 1,679,137 4,175,828
619,901 428,989 640,554 1,689,444
1,062,045 521,244 5,395,327 6,978,616
623,848 101,553 1,566,832 2,292,233

3,843,557 2,010,714 9,281,850 15,136,121

2019 12 31
1
1 5 5
1,273,415 765,757 1,403,329 3,442,501
692,480 430,558 733,377 1,856,415
861,640 418,293 4,618,803 5,898,736
657,142 102,480 1,371,476 2,131,098

3,484,677 1,717,088 8,126,985 13,328,750

2791497
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) 2020 12 31
31 o1 361
30 % 360 3 3

5,678 4,645 12,114 2,675 3,526 28,638
10,136 2,800 11,336 9,287 2,020 35,669
32,138 20,145 33,540 26,513 6,636 118,972
2,042 554 3,803 5,274 481 12,154
49,994 28,234 60,793 43,749 12,663 195,433

) 2019 12 31

31 91 361
30 90 360 3 3
5,326 3,416 7,957 4,206 1,287 22,192
13,441 3,554 13,259 10,899 3,090 44,243
28,893 14,514 25,747 25,865 8,396 103,415
1,733 241 2,687 6,817 1,665 13,143
49,393 21,725 49,650 47,787 14,438 182,993
1
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
17
12
6
2020 12 30

71,466 2019 12 31 57,266

280/497
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2020 1,649
2019 2,123
7
181 2 23
1
182 183
2
( ) 2020 12 31
4,288,607 4,288,607
1,590,893 1,590,893
658,182 2,580 660,762
(ii) 247,717 4,796 66 252,579
94,125 94,125
MOF 316,656 316,656
31,500 528 9 32,037
7,227,680 7,904 75 7,235,659
( ) 2019 12 31
3,540,555 3,540,555
1,562,706 1,562,706
784,479 784,479
(ii) 294,375 221 294,596
94,127 94,127
MOF 307,723 307,723
32,983 1,164 154 34,301
6,616,948 1,164 375 6,618,487
2020 12 31 2019 12 31 2020 12 31
2019 12 31
ii 2020 12 31 341 2019 12 31 15,834
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O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

2020 12 31
3
1 1 12 1
5 5

116,773 11,869 432 12,653 2,291,658 2,431,275
86,976 17,494 57,867 258,811 13,037 434,185
7 209,386 155,901 151,016 20,328 1,300 546,948
9,931 14,614 34,987 2375 30 61,937
3,689 755,438 3315 23764 816,206
20,062 543,904 812,515 3,000,584 2858842 7,307,436 14,552,433
5 11,416 40,928 61,053 138,374 107,775 100,89 122,622 583,069
5 48,499 100,327 471,210 2721956 2,342,223 5,684,220
39,377 44,870 352,924 723,392 390,876 3931 1,555,370
3,070 91,657 1,220 798 1,821 125 87 2,784 101,562
26,848 306,82 1,678,136 1,285,582 4,455,144 6456830 10,142,848 2,420,995 26,773,205
(30) (57,653) (44,542) (634,135) (801) (737,161)
(930,759) (81,439) (126,179) (38,640) (217,499) (1,394,516)
(187,137) (104,911) (88,924) (2:391) (7.297) (390,660)
(13,725) (9,540) (200) (230) 4222 (27.817)
(8.719) (11,101) (39,995) (4,411 (1,056) (65,282)
(84,786) (6,920) (16,977) (512) (109,195)
(11,921,912) (554,505) (1,256,439) (2.955,410) (3,672,501) (12,134) (20,372,901)
(113,725) (360,635) (456,191) (88196)  (353,098) (1,371,845)
(241,413) (1,562) (2318) (9317) (27.304) (63012) (55540) (350,466)
(13,107,839) (1,099,066) (1,913,045) (4,239,689) (4013845)  (436,597) (9762) (24,819,843
26848 (12,801,017) 579,070 (627,463) 215,455 2042985 9,706,251 2,411,233 1,053,362

282/497
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2019 12 31
3
1 1 12 1
3 5 5
486,535 9,125 6,831 14,476 2,182,928 2,699,895
90,556 33,022 20,772 90,234 1,158 235,742
14 207,602 155,974 135,902 22,298 1,393 523,183
2,703 4,508 17,107 572 54 24,944
3872 681,579 22,323 7 708,551
18,973 558,669 623,929 2,673,237 2572187 6,372,769 12,819,764
10,066 39,013 148,812 264,557 104,287 123,340 111,286 801,361
57,686 118,976 473,032 2623065 1,673,982 4,946,741
57,974 93,069 409,965 805,881 304,857 3,082 1,674,828
3,183 70,044 1,371 1,449 2,028 221 1 2,561 80,858
26,042 657,201 1,648,744 1,196,643 4,081,315 6120669  84763% 2,299,857 24,515,867
(30) (14,626) (36) (593,394) (450) (608,536)
(904,887) (82,729) (228,049) (194,638) (93,346) (260) (1,503,909)
(129,237) (112,198) (72,581) (4,058) (7,289) (325,363)
(14,147) (6,681) (3,505) (5,901) (30,234)
(6,161) (8,296) (12,793) (1,799) (499) (29,548)
(22,800) (18,671) (11,726) (53,197)
(11,268,019) (675,622) (1,336,503) (2,658,324) (2,898,060) (12,627) (18,849,155)
(66,682) (181,008) (493,388) (56452)  (310,682) (1,108,212)
(159,786) (76,761) (2,010) (4472) (8,823) (721) (2,706) (255,279)
(12,346,869) (1,081,299) (1,886,771) (4,044,821) (3062,988)  (332,078) (8607)  (22,763433)
26,042 (11,689,668) 567,445 (690,128) 36,494 3066681 8144318 2,291,250 1,752,434
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2020 12 31
3
1 1 12 1
3 5 5

116,773 11,869 432 12,653 2,201,658 2,437,275
86,976 17515 58,080 263,326 14,419 440,316
17 211,242 158,751 154,809 30,258 1,308 556,385
3,689 758,771 33,440 23,928 819,828
82,234 615,804 949,240 3,506,570 4,669,491 11,070,548 20,983,977
5 11,416 41,369 62,29 147,124 134,878 124,902 126,481 648,471
a3 63,769 128,789 595,532 3187505 2,887,451 6,863,489
1,424 49,589 384,001 798,307 42817 2784 1,719,012
91,657 1,220 798 1,821 125 87 2,784 98,492
86,388 306,822 1,763,073 1,445,305 5,179,854 8834983 14527113 2423707 34,567,245
(30) (57,653) (44,848) (647,586) (790) (750,907)
(930,759) (81,706) (126,901) (@2,211) (235,630) (1,417,207)
(187.271) (105,240) (89,826) (3444) (7,850) (393,631)
(13,725) (9,543 (100) (230) (4222 (27,820)
(87,891) (6.929) (17.032) (516) (112,368)
(11,922,145) (555,122) (1,261,386) (2,998,626) (3,939,672 (14,692) (20,691,643)
(113,895) (364,802) (478.222) (163736) (398,939 (1,519,684)
(241,477) (1,562) (2:321) (9.369) (27,800) (63212) (5,540) (350,980)
(13,107,836) (1,094,643) (1,912,517) (4,282,971) (4371,818)  (484,693) (9762)  (25.264,240)
86388  (12,801,014) 668,430 (467.212) 896,883 4463165 14042420 2,413,945 9,303,005
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2019 12 31
3
1 1 12 1
3 5 5
486,535 9,125 6,831 14,476 2,182,928 2,699,895
90,556 33,047 20,884 91,763 1,158 237,408
14 208,566 157,415 136,766 22,413 1,451 526,625
3,872 683,342 22,448 789 710,451
88,886 631,291 747,818 3213978 4254361 9,636,082 18,572,416
10,066 39,068 150,739 273,575 127,220 140,773 116,474 857,915
71,325 142,840 586,483 301452 1977753 5,792,923
60,246 98,418 443,923 881,095 339,239 2,050 1,824,971
70,044 1,371 1,449 2,028 221 1 2,561 77,675
92,772 657,201 1,737,381 1,348,842 4,763,781 8300990 12095299 2,304,013 31,300,279
(30) (14,655) (54) (606,271) (450) (621,460)
(904,885) (82,724) (229,529) (199,427) (97,725) (260) (1,514,550)
(129,391) (112,804) (72,530) (5,506) (8,194) (328,425)
(14,147) (6,691) (3,540) (5,901) (30,279)
(22,813) (18,722) (11,878) (53,413)
(11,268,210) (677,446) (1,341,855) (2,694,078) (3,107,445) (15,256) (19,104,290)
(67,271) (186,093) (516,177) (115060)  (365,107) (1,249,708)
(159,672) (76,762) (2,014) (4,530) (9,363) (944) (2,706) (255,991)
(12,346,944) (1,077,753) (1,891,071) (4,108,431) (3335549)  (389,761) (8607)  (23158,116)
92,772 (11,689,743) 659,628 (542,229) 655,350 4965441 11,705538  2,295406 8,142,163
2020 12 31
3
1 12 1
1 3 5 5
(18) (120) (39) (2,203) (1,018) (3,398)
2019 12 31
3
12 1
1 5 5
) 9 (852) (427) (1,275)

285/497



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

2020 12 31
3
1 12 1
3 5 5
529,178 530,154 1,540,225 51,085 2,650,642
(527,974) (526854)  (1,545,117) (50,938) (2,650,883)
1,204 3,300 (4,892) 147 (241)
2019 12 31
3
1 12 1
3 5 5
500,415 449,528 1,849,384 53,790 40 2,862,157
(512,826) (453,343) (1,845,114) (54,222) (54) (2,865,559)
(3,411) (3,815) 4,270 (432) (14) (3,402)
2020 12 31
1
1 5 5
277,152 387,315 952,811 1,617,278
429,841 429,841
695,183 695,183
135,533 118,620 10,493 264,646
157,942 4414 162,356
1,695,651 510,349 963,304 3,169,304
2019 12 31
1
1 5 5
187,064 265,518 604,214 1,056,796
339,829 339,829
646,134 646,134
104,848 102,713 8,668 216,229
148,334 2,706 151,040
1,426,209 370,937 612,882 2,410,028
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VaR
)
2020
59 88 164 52
6 28 165 213 28
62 75 120 9
VaR 87 232 362 87
)
2019
75 89 116 57
) 90 120 287 56
9 15 25 5
VaR 115 146 201 92
VaR
VaR

LPR
LPR
LPR LPR
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2020 12 31
( ( (
) ) )

2,365,609 54,151 1,296 16,219 2,437,275
363,507 50,938 2,393 17,257 434,185
293,880 185,248 38,894 28,926 546,948
56,666 1,084 45 4,142 61,937
816,206 816,206

14,076,068 351,117 52,231 73017 14,552,433
552,067 11,165 6,856 12,981 583,060

5,617,868 58,301 4271 3,780 5,684,220

1,309,570 206,292 2,518 36,990 1,555,370
84,200 10,622 3,415 3,325 101,562

25,535,731 928,918 111,919 196,637 26,773,205
(735,900) (1,261) (737,161)

(1,336,474) (26,379) (20,775) (10,888)  (1,394,516)
(136,469) (200,492) (32,327) (21,372) (390,660)
(27,817) (27,817)
(4,367) (60,268) (257) (390) (65,282)
(83,009) (18,995) (7,192) (109,195)

(19,873,361) (430,007) (33,570) (35963)  (20,372,901)

(1,065,150) (216,330) (26,198) (64,167)  (1,371,845)

(310,910) (32,108) (2,399) (5,049) (350,466)
(23,573,457) (984,579) (115,526) (146,281)  (24,819,843)

1,962,274 (55,661) (3,607) 50,356 1,953,362

138,397 34,139 19,124 (30,638) 161,022

2,893,041 236,335 7,914 32,014 3,169,304
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( ) 2019 12 31
(
) ) )
2,634,765 53,709 1,041 10,380 2,699,895
168,817 44,574 4,605 17,746 235,742
292,023 163,495 43,836 23,779 523,183
10,628 13,473 194 649 24,944
708,551 708,551
12,348,860 348,051 51,769 71,084 12,819,764
777,121 10,887 10,441 2,912 801,361
4,870,459 61,071 7,982 7,229 4,946,741
1,426,703 211,441 3,439 33,245 1,674,828
70,179 7,601 1,336 1,742 80,858
23,308,106 914,302 124,693 168,766 24,515,867
(608,086) (450) (608,536)
(1,429,626) (35,573) (16,058) (22,652)  (1,503,909)
(48,504) (205,326) (52,490) (19,043) (325,363)
(26,729) (3,505) (30,234)
(17,558) (11,054) (159) 777) (29,548)
(14,315) (31,638) (7,244) (53,197)
(18,432,646) (357,021) (36,907) (22,581) (18,849,155
(797,166) (244,866) (25,539) (40,641)  (1,108,212)
(242,709) (8,318) (1,360) (2,892) (255,279)
(21,617,339) (897,301) (132,513) (116,280)  (22,763,433)
1,690,767 17,001 (7,820) 52,486 1,752,434
126,517 22,665 (6,186) (42,246) 100,750
2,141,071 230,196 5,450 33,311 2,410,028
5%

( ) 2020 12 31 2019 12 31
5% (2.433) (462) (938) (298)
5% 2433 462 938 208

291/497



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

OooooOodd
PBOC
2015 12 24 PBOC
2019 8 16 PBOC
LPR
LPR
) 200 12 31
1 3 1
1 3 12 5 5
2,158,126 3,204 12,653 263,202 2,437,275
99,175 57,083 256,632 13,037 8,258 434,185
210,779 156,519 149,070 28,830 1,750 545,948
61,937 61,937
755,068 33,616 22,967 4555 816,206
4,117,253 2,171,094 721,297 619,431 489,087 %321 14,552,433
40,569 68,013 142,140 100,054 93,128 139,165 583,069
63,386 119,236 463,453 2,617,463 2,310,470 110,212 5,684,220
78,608 83,737 343,781 648,946 380,632 19,666 1,555,370
101,562 101,562
7,522,964 2,692,592 8,511,993 4,027,761 3273267 744,628 26,773,205
(55,900) (43,676) (629,737 (803) (7,045) (737,161)
(1,009,086) (123822 (33,266) (213122 (15,220) (1,394,516)
(187,801) (109,893) (90,775) (1,199) (992) (390,660)
(9.532) (100) (230 (17,955) (27,817)
(65.282) (65.282)
(84,777) (6,914 (16,966) (512 (26) (109,195)
(12,399,566) (1,216,463) (2:875,560) (3555,434) (12,129) (313,749) (20,372,901)
(137,270) (373.181) (844,048) (63,081) (344,953) (9312 (1,371,845)
(350,466) (350,466)
(13,883,932) (1,873,949) (4,090,452) (3833,182) (358,281) (780,047) (24,819,843)
(6:360,968) 818,643 4,421,541 184,579 2,914,986 (35,419) 1,953,362
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( ) 2019 12 31
1 3 1
1 12 5 5
2,403,893 5,799 14,476 275,727 2,699,895
112,905 20,406 88,805 13,626 235,742
209,697 154,261 134,853 21,083 3,289 523,183
24,944 24,944
681,875 22,294 774 3,608 708,551
5,502,472 1,574,291 5,114,958 343,985 252,466 31,592 12,819,764
42,784 152,133 255,866 113,428 105,131 132,019 801,361
75,653 140,993 452,172 2,532,585 1,650,204 95,134 4,946,741
87,962 142,570 400,393 723,583 299,052 21,268 1,674,828
80,858 80,858
9,117,241 2,212,747 6,462,297 3,734,664 2,306,853 682,065 24,515,867
(14,200) (33) (586,915) (455) (6,933) (608,536)
(987,313) (226,516) (193,695) (91,472) (260) (4,653) (1,503,909)
(128,699) (114,216) (73,762) (3,361) (3,689) (1,636) (325,363)
(6,684) (3,505) (20,045) (30,234)
(29,548) (29,548)
(22,680) (18,554) (11,631) (332 (53,197)
(11,854,959) (1,298,677) (2,596,724) (2,804,783) (12,502) (281,510) (18,849,155)
(84,224) (212,941) (478,509) (20,551) (303,405) (8,582) (1,108,212)
(255,279) (255,279)
(13,098,759) (1,870,937) (3,944,741) (2,920,622) (319,856) (608,518) (22,763,433)
(3,981,518) 341,810 2,517,556 814,042 1,986,997 73,547 1,752,434
100 12
( ) 2020 12 3 2019 12 31
+100 (37,556) (67,942) (25,867) (42,579)
-100 37,556 67,941 25,867 42,579
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2012 CBIRC

Tierl

8%

2014 4 CBIRC

2017

2020 12 31

Tierl
Tierl

Tierl
Tierl
Tierl
Tierl
Tierl
Tier2

CBIRC

CBIRC

CBIRC

Tierl

Tierl

2.5%
Tierl
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5% 6%

1%
CBIRC
( )
CBIRC
2020 2019
12 31 12 31

11.04% 11.24%
12.92% 12.53%
16.59% 16.13%
1,884,392 1,748,467
(9,020) (7,883)
1,875,372 1,740,584
319,884 199,894
2,195,256 1,940,478
622,668 557,833
2,817,924 2,498,311

16,989,668 15,485,352
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()
(1
Tierl Tierl Tierl
Tierl
2 Tierl ( )
( Tierl )
3 Tierl ( )
Tierl
4 Tierl ( Tierl
)
5 Tier2 Tier2 ( )
( Tier2 )
6
46
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
46.1

296/497



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

2020 12 31 2019 12 31
46.2
3
1
2 1
3
46.3
(
MOF
)
( ) 2020 12 31
1 2 3
MOF 5273439 5,333,755 27,772 5151535 154,448
439,621 441,775 28,749 413,026
( ) 2019 12 31
1 2 3
MOF 4544892 4,627,432 33506 4,403,618 190,308

356,902 365,299 23,643 341,656
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2020 12 31

1 2 3
58,187 58,187
1,009 1,009
2,741 2,741
61,937 61,937
577,997 577,997
52 52
578,049 578,049
1,257 181,268 182,525
21,959 21,959
3912 1,032 4,944
14,323 209 14,532
132,530 1,478 134,008
1,842 23,561 71,998 97,401
2,998 6,936 18,897 28,831
8,750 55,116 63,866
24,493 3,442 27,935
7,068 7,068
33,082 447,104 102,883 583,069
114,780 1,417,718 1,532,498
531 18,410 18,941
1,222 2,709 3,931
116,002 1,418,249 21,119 1,555,370
149,084 2,505,339 124,002 2,778,425
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2020 12 31
1 2 3

(13,725) (13,725)
(9,540) (9,540)
(4,222) (230) (4,452)
(200) (100)
(4,222) (13,825) (9,770) (27,817)
(57,756) (57,756)
(4,357) (4,357)
(3,169) (3,169)
(65,282) (65,282)
(268,551) (73,118) (341,669)

(4,222) (347,658) (82,889) (434,768)
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2019 12 31
1 2 3
24,128 24,128
340 340
476 476
24,944 24,944
540,387 540,387
540,387 540,387
2,190 199,269 201,459
29,132 29,132
2,354 2,354
7,100 236 7,336
93,298 4,194 97,492
2,108 22,194 70,881 95,183
2,227 5,351 15,799 23,377
12,419 199,231 211,650
28,207 28,207
99,174 5,010 104,184
987 987
28,398 676,092 96,871 801,361
200,203 1,452,949 1,653,152
18,594 18,594
1,107 1,975 3,082
201,310 1,452,949 20,569 1,674,828

229,708 2,694,372 117,440 3,041,520

300/497



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

Ogoooood
) 2019 12 31
1 2 3

(14,147) (14,147)
(6,681) (6,681)
(3,505) (3,505)
(5,901) (5,901)
(5,901) (17,652) (6,681) (30,234)
(20,382) (20,382)
(1,676) (1,676)
(7,490) (7,490)
(29,548) (29,548)
(146,474) (306,294) (452,768)
(5,901) (193,674) (312,975) (512,550)

2

3

3
3
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
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( 2020
2020 1 1 96,871 20,569 (6,681) (306,294)
62,943 6,875 (230)
(185,640) (1,155,477)
/ (57,086) (6,406) 183,361 1,395,128
I(
155 108 (580) (6.475)
27
2020 12 31 102,883 21,119 (9,770) (73,118)
I(
899 (100)

( 2019
2019 1 1 65,029 33 15,568 (9,949) (33)  (255,766)

116,620 8,183
(103,160) (1,453,314)
/ (87,063) (33) (3,503) 106,543 33 1,410,824

I(

2,285 (115) (8,038)

321
2019 12 31 96,371 20,569 (6,681) (306,294)
I 1,004 89 %)
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471.

471

12021 1 27

22021 3 30

21,040

39,217

2020 12
64,782

2020 12 31

31

2021 3 11
2020 12 31
( 36)
( 37)
2019 12 31
10)
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12 31

2020 2019
2,436,779 2,699,397
413,567 210,400
87,357 30,063
634,055 611,187
61,937 24,944
812,797 701,304
14,489,992 12,765,561
396,298 608,494
5,651,053 4,915,498
1,439,296 1,579,790
19 41,544 41,543
210 208
119,862 131,462
139,588 141,692
132,489 120,072
143,978 124,823
27,000,802 24,706,438
737,048 608,488
1,413,174 1,514,804
344,907 284,187
23,365 24,333
65,254 29,496
104,440 49,360
20,371,534 18,847,324
1,326,408 1,081,040
427,892 332,021
24,814,022 22,771,053
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12 31

2020 2019
32 349,983 349,983
33 319,875 199,886
79,809 79,899
239,976 119,987
34 173,357 173,357
35 25,784 29,549
36 195,591 174,551
37 309,642 275,790
812,626 730,309
(78) 1,960
2,186,780 1,935,385
27,000,802 24,706,438

2021 3 30
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49 ( )
( )
2019 12 31 349983 199,886 173357 29,549 174551 275790 730,309 1960 1,935385
_ _ _ _ _ _ 210401 _ 210401
_ _ _ (3765 _ _ _ (2038 (5803
_ _ _ (3,765 _ _ 210401 (2038) 204,598
33 _ 119,989 _ _ _ _ _ _ 119989
36 _ _ _ _ 21040 — (21,040 _ _
37 _ _ _ _ _ 33852 (33852 _ _
_ _ _ _ _ _ (63662 _ (63,662)
10
10 - - - - - - (9,530) _ (9,530)
2020 12 31 349983 319,875 173357 25784 195501 309,642 812,626 (78) 2,186,780
( )
2018 12 31 349983 79,899 173357 18890 153928 238215 647,737 1,370 1,663,379
_ _ _ _ _ _ 206,232 _ 206232
_ _ _ 10659 _ _ _ 590 11,249
_ _ _ 10659 _ _ 206,232 500 217,481
33 _ 119,987 _ _ _ _ _ _ 110987
36 _ _ _ _ 20,623 _  (20623) _ _
37 _ _ _ _ _ 37575  (37,575) _ _
_ _ _ _ _ _ (60862 _ (60,862)
10
_ _ _ _ _ _ (4,600) _ (4,600)
10

2019 12 31 349,983 199,886 173,357 29,549 174551 275,790 730,309 1960 1,935,385
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Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31 Decembser 2020
imourts in mllices of Benminbd, eriess olthenwiees stated)

MNates Year ended 31 Decembser

L 2020 2019
Interest income 1 530,932 873,140
Interest experse 1 (385,853) (372,270
Mat interast incomae 1 545,079 500870
Fee and commission income 2 91,166 83,316
Fee and commission éxpanse 2 {16,621} {15,389)
Met fee and commission Income 2 74,545 72.927
Met trading gain 3 16,405 19,067
Met {lossigan on financial investments 4 (7.312) 5.793
Mel gain an derecognition of financial assets measured at amortized cost 1 -
Other operaling income 5 30,614 30,693
Operating Income 659,332 520,350
Operating experses 6 IZ!E.B!?] (224 096)
Credit impairment losses B [164.659) (138,605)
Imparimient losses an athed atisls {204) (118)
Operating prefit 264,532 266,531
Share of result of assoclates and joont ventures 20 518 45
Prafit before tax 265,050 266,576
Income 1ax expanse 9 (48.650) (53,652)
Profit for the year 216,400 212,924
Attributable to:
Equity holdars of the Bank 215,925 212,008
Non-controlling interests 475 826
216,400 212,924
Earnings per thare atirbutable to the ordinary equity holders
af the Bank {(expressed In RMB yuan per shara)
— Basic and diluted 11 .59 0.5%

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,

188 (HrmEenn
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the yoar ended 31 Decemiber J000
tAmounts inmillions of Rerorirks, unless othoreise stated)

Year ended 31 Decamber

2020 2019
Prefit far the year 216,400 212,924
Other comprehensive income!
Iterms that may be reclassifisd subsaquently 1o peofit or loss:
Fair value changes on financeal assets at farr value through other
comprahensive Income {8,855) 9,239
Loss allowance an financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensve Income 3,754 5.637
Incame tax Impact Tor fair value changes and loss allowance on
financial assets ab fair vabue through olher compretensivie incorme 1,440 (4,206}
Farelgn currency translation differences {2,591} T#E
Subtotal (6,252) 11,416
Iterms that will pot be reclassified subsequently 1o profit of loss:
Fair value changes on other equily investments cesignated at fair value
theough other cemprahensive income {114} 383
Imconme tax impact for fair value changes on other eguity iInvestments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive iIncome 29 {98}
Subtotal {85 285
Other comprohentivg neame, met of tax {6,337) 11,701
Tolal comprehemsve income far the year 210,063 224 625
Total compranensve income attributable 1o
Equity holders of the Bank 209,637 223,536
Mesn-controlling Interests 426 1,089
210,063 234,625

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consalidated financial statements,

308/497
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2020
fdrourts sn miflices of Benminba, wriess olthenwise stated)

e As at 31 December
1 2020 2019
Assets
Carsh and balances with central banks 12 2,437,275 2,699,895
Depesits with banks and other financial institutions 13 434,185 235,742
Precious metals B7.357 30,063
Placements with and loans 1o banks and other financial instiutions. 14 546,948 523,183
Derivative financial assets 15 61,937 14,944
Financial assets held under resale agreements 16 £16,206 708,551
Loans and advances (o customers 17 14,552,433 12.819.764
Financial investments 18
Financial assets at fair value through peofit or loss 583.069 801,361
Debt instrument investments at amortized cost 5,684,220 4,946,741
Other debt instrument and other equity Investments
at fair value through other comprehensive income 1,555,370 1,674,828
Investment in associates and [pint ventures {1} B.BES B.672
Property and equipment 21 151,154 152.484
Goodwill 1.381 1,381
Deferred tax assets 22 133,355 120,952
Other assets 23 151.292 130,930
Total assets 27,205,047 24,877,491
Liabilities
Borrowings from central banks 24 737,161 508,536
Deposits from banks and other financial institutsons 25 1,394,516 1,503,900
Flacements from banks and ather financial institutions 26 390,660 325,363
Financial Habilities at Tair value through profit or loss 27 27.817 30,234
Derivative financial liahilities 15 65,282 29,548
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreemants 28 109,195 53,147
Due to customers. 29 20,372,901 18,840,155
Deht securities issued 30 1,371,845 1,108,212
Deferred tax Habilities 22 334 520
Other liabilities 31 524,590 414,956
Total liabilitios 24,994,301 22,913,630
190 @neann
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

A5 o 31 December X000
{Amownss immillions of Renmenhi, unless otheraie siated)

Motes As at 31 December
I 2020 2019
Equity
Crdinary shares 32 349,983 349,983
Cthar gguity Instrwments a3 219,875 199,886
Preference shares 79, 809 79,209
Perpetual bonds 239,976 119,987
Capital reserve 34 173,556 173,556
Invesiment revaluation resenve 35 25,987 29,084
Surplus reserve 36 196,071 174,910
General reserve EF) 311,449 217,016
Retained earnings EZ8, 240 1M
__Foraign cumrency translation reserve 1372} 2,219
Equity attnbutable 1o equity holders of the Bank 2,204,789 1,948,355
Nan-controlling intorests 5,957 5.506
_Tatal equity 2,210,746 1,953,861
Total equity and liabilities 27,205,047 24,877,491

The accompanying notes foem an integral part of these consahdated financial statoments

Appraved and authonzed for ssee by the Board of Directors on 30 Masch 2021

kel

Chairman Vice Chairman
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 Decembser 2020
throurts in mflices of Benminbd, wrless olthenwise stated)
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The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial stalements,
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the yoar ended 31 December S0
tAmounts inmilions of Rerorirks, unless othoreise stated)

Year ended 31 Decamber

2020 2018
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Prefit before tax 265,050 266,576
Adjustmats for
Amortization of intangible assets and other assets 2,147 1.934
Depreciation of propedty, equipment and right-of-use assels 17,404 16,777
Credit Impairment losses 164,699 138,605
Irpairment kosses on other assets 204 118
Intarast income arsing from insestmant securities (238,995) (232,571}
interest expense on debt securities issued 35,745 31,375
fievaluation gain on firancial instruments at fair value through prodit or loss (2,968) (93,641}
Met gain on investment securities {750) (494}
Share of result of associates and joint ventures {518) (45}
et gain on disposal of property, eguipment and other assats {1,003) (1,217}
et foreign exchange gainfloss) 26,972 {8,135)
267,588 203,282
Met chamge in ocperating assets and operating liabdites:
Met {increase)’decrease in balances with central banks, deposts wath banks and
ather financlal institutions {330,552) 173,726
Het decreasedincrease] in placements with and ioans to banks and
other financial institutions 25,377 (42,279}
Wet (increaseidecrease in financial assets hetd under resale agreements {49,415} 15,474
Met incraase in loans and advances to customers [1.832,315) (1.,442,873)
Net increase in barrowings from central banks 128,514 a9 a7
Net increasaf{decrease) in placements from banks and
ather financial institutions 65,941 (98)
Met increase in due to customers and deposits from banks and
other financial instiubons 1,375,364 1,854,777
Decreasedincreasa) m other operating assets 4,748 (148,837}
IncreasafiDecrease) in other operating liabilitses 253,209 (250,688)
Cash from operations 2,859 412,071
Income Lax paid (63,795) [53,675)
NET CASH [OUTFLOW)/INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (60,936) 358,396

Annial Bepsn 2020 193
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
fdurairts m midlioes of Benminhs, wnless oibenaise stated)

Notas Year ended 31 Decamber

'l 2020 2019
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash recewed from disposaliredemption of investment securites 1,987,387 1,731,574
Cash rectwved from interest incoma arising from imastment securites 228,563 223,024
Cash recenved from disposal of property, eguipment and ather assets 8,350 1,178
Cash paid for purchase af imestment securities (2.669.040) (#.1649,824)
Increase in investment in associates and foint ventures {1.676) [2.657)
Cash paid for purchase of property, equipment and other assets {22,844) {14,110)
MET CASH USED IN IMVESTING ACTIVITIES {469,260) (230,805)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Contribution from issues of other equity instruments 120,000 120,000
Cash payments for transaction cost of other aguity instruments issued (11} {13}
Cash recesved from debt securities issued 1.731,39% 1,465.652
Repaymants of debt securities issued (1.468,391) (1,141,046}
Cash payments for interest on dobt securities issued {35,050) {28.441)
Cash payments for transaction cost of debi securities issued (B} {63}
Cash payments for principal portion and interest portion of
lease liability {4,968) (4,687}
Capital contribution fram non-controlling interests 25 —
Dividends paid to ordinary shareholders {63,662) {60,862)
Dividends paid to ather equity instruments holders (9.530) {4600}
NET CASH FROM FINARCING ACTIVITIES 269,803 345,940
MET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (260,3593) 473,531
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS AT 1 JANUARY 1,454,581 978,441
EFFECT OF EXCHAMGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS {19,035) 2.605
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 38 1,175,153 1,454,581
MET CASH FLOWWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES INCLUDE:
Interast recejved 655,726 L@2. 5232
Interest paid (315,177} (318,125}

The accompanying notes form an imegral part of these consalidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2320
tAmounts in millons of Rerminds, unless othenaise siated)

GEMNERAL INFORMATION

Agricultural Bank of China Limited (the “Bank“} is the successor entity to the Agricultural Bank of China
(the “Predecessor Entity ) which was 3 wholly state-owned commercial bank approved for setup by the People's
Bamk of China {the "PECC*} and founded on 23 February 1979 in the People's Republic of China {the "PRC").
on 15 January 2009, the Bank was established after the completion of the financial restruciunng of the
Predecessods Entity, The Bank's establishment was authorized by the PEOC, The Bank was listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limeted on 15 July 2010 and 16 July 2010, respectively.

Thie Bank operates under financial senaces certificate Moo BOOD2H1 11000001 issuad by the China Banking
and Imsurance Regulatory Commission (the “CRIRC ™), and business license Mo, 911100001000054748 issued
by Beijing Administration of industry and Commerce, The reqistered office of the Bank 15 located af No. 69
lianguomen kel Avenue, Dongcheng District, Beijing, the PRC.

The principal activities af the Bank and its subsidsaries (collectively, the "Group”) include Renminbi {*RMBE”) and
forelgn cumency deposits, loans, clearing and settlerment services, assets cusiodian services, fund management,
financa! leasing services, insurance services and other services as approved by relevant regulators, and the
provision af refated senaces by its overseas establishments as appeoved by the respective local regulators.

The head office and gomestic branches of the Bank and its subsidiaries operaling in the Mainland China are
referred to as the “Domestic Operations®. Branches and subsidiaries registered and operating outside of the
Mainland China are referred to as the *“Owerseas Operations”

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1 Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance

The comnsalidated financial statements have been prepared n accordance with Imemational Financial
Reporting Standards {"IFRS:"), as msuved by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB").
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include appbcable disclosures required by the Rubes
Governing the Listing af Securifies on the Stock Exchange of Hong Eong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap.622) for this financial year and the comparative period.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial imstruments which are meatured at fair value, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below. Historical cost is generally based an the fair value of consideration given in exchange for assets and
that &s received {or in some circumstances the amount expected to be paid) with respect to Eabilities.

The preparation of financlal statements in conformity with IFRSs requires the use of cartain critical
accounting estimates. It ako reguires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the

Group's accounting pobicies. The areas imvalving a higher degree of judament or complexity, of areas whare
assumptans and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial staterments are disclosed in Note [,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decemnber 2020
Lamourids in miliors of Renminba, urless othenwise stated)

Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
1 Basic of preparation {(Continued)

1.1 Other amendments to the accounting standards effective in 2020 relevant to and
adopted by the Group

The following amendments have been acopted by the Group for the first time dusing the financial
year ended 31 December 2020

{1y  Amendments to 145 1 The Definition of Materal
and [AS B

{2y Amendments to IFRS 3 The Definition of & Business

{3}  Amendments to IFRS 9,  Interest rate benchmark reform
1A% 39 and IFRS 7

{4} Amendment 1o [FRE 16  Cowvid-19-Related Rent Concessions

(1) Amendments to A5 T and IAS 8 The Definition of Material

The |ASE issued amendments to the definition of materal in 1A% 1 and 145 8. The amended
definition is: “Information is material if omatting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be
expected to influence deciskons that the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements, which provide financial information about a
specific reporting enfity.®

The amendment clarifies that the reference to obscuring information addresses sitwations in
which the effect is similar to omitting or misstating that information. it also states that an entity
assesses materiality in the context of the financial statements a5 a whole.

The amendmant also clarifies the meaning of “pamary wsers of general purposs financial
staternents’ to whom those financial statlements are directed, by defining them as ‘existing and
potential investors, lenders and other creditors’ that must rely on general purpose financial
staternents for much of the financial information they need, The adoption of the amendments
did not have a significant impact on the Growp®s consolidated financial statements

{2) Amendments to IFRS 3: The Definition of A Business

The 1ASE ssued amendments 1o the definition of a business In IFRS 3. To be considered a
business, an acquisition would have to include an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability 1o create outputs. The definition of the term 'outputs’ is
nareoweed 10 focus on goods and services provided 1o customers, generating investment income
and other income, and it excludes returns m the form of lower costs and other economic
benefits. The adopticn of the amendments did nat have a sgnificant impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statemants

{3) Amendments to IFRS 9 LAS 39 and IFRS 7: Interest rate benchmark reform

The 1ASE has issved amendments to IFRS 9, 1AS 39 and IFRS 7 that provide certain reliefs
in connection with Interest rate benchmark reform. The amendments apply to all hedging
relatonships that are drectly affected by interbank offerad rates (“IBOR") reform. The reliefs
felate 1o hedge accounting and have the effect that IBOR refarm should notl generally cause
hedoe accounting 10 terminate. However, any hedge ineffectiveness should continue to be
recorded in the income statement. The adopbion of the amendments ded not have a dgraficant
impact on the Group's comsolidated financlal statemanis

195 @ runany
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020
tAmoeants in millons of Rermink:, unless atheranse stated)

Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
1 Basic of preparation (Continued)

1.1 Other amendments to the accounting standards effective in 2020 relevant to and
adopted by the Group (Continued)

{4) Amendment to IFRS 16; Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

On 28 May 2020, the IASE issusd amendments to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
that provides an optional practical expedient for lessees from assessing whether a rent
concession relaled (o COVID-19 is a lease modification, Lessees can elect (o account for such
rent concessions in the same way as they would if they were not lease modifications, In many
cases, this will result in accounting for the concessian as variable lease pagments in the periodis)
in which the event or condition that tnggers the reduced payment occurs. The amendments are
mandatory for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020, earlier application
is permitted, The adoption of the amendments did not have a sgnificant impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

1.2 Standards and amendments relevant to the Group that are not yet effective and have
not been adopted before their effective dates in 2020

The Group has mot adopted the follewang new and amended standards that have been issued but are
nol yet effective.

Effective for
annaal pariods
. beginning an ar after
i1 Fhase 2 amendments 1o IFRS 9, Intenest rate benchmark (IBOR) reform | laniary 2021
[45 39, IFAS 7, RS 4 and IFRS 16

121 Amendments 1o 145 1 Classification of Lishilties as Cunrent or 1 January 2022

hon-current possibly defered o

1 laniary 2023

131 Amendments 1o IFRS 3 Referznce fo the Contephual Framework | langary 2022

() Amendments to 145 37 Cont of Fulfiling a Contrac 1 lanoary 2021

{5 Amendments io |AS 16 Proceeds before Intended Lse 1 langary 2021

{61 Amendments 1o [FRS 1, IFRS G, 1ASE Anrual Improvements 1 January 2021
IFRS 16 and LAS 41 2018-2020 cycle

M FRS17 Insueance Contracts | January 2023

{6 Amendments to 175 10 and |AS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between The amendmenls were

An brvestor and It Associabe or Joint Vendure originally intended 1o

be eHective for znnual

penads baginrirg an of

after 1 Jaruary 2016, The
efective date has now
been defored
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020
{amourts in millices of Renminbs, uniless otbenwvise slated)

Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
1 Basic of preparation (Continued)

1.2 Standards and amendments relevant fo the Group that are not yet effective and have
not been adopted before their effective dates in 2020 (Continued)

{1) Phase 2 amendments to IFRS 9, [AS 38 IFRS 7. IFRS 4 and IFRS 16: interest rate
benchmark (1B0OR)} refarm

The 1ASE nas issued amendments 1o IFRS 9, 1AS 39, IFRS 7V, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 that address
issues that anise during the reform of an interest rate benchmark, including the replacement of
one benchmark with an alterrative one. Given the pervasive nature of |BOR-basad contracts, the
reliefs could affect companies in all industries, The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 lanuary 2021, with early application permitted.

The Phase 2 amendments provide additional temporary reliefs from applying specfic 145 39
and IFRS 9 hedge accounting requirements 1o hedging relationships directly affected by IBOR
reform, including: 1. For instruments to which the amortised cost measurement applies, the
amendments require entities, as a practical expedient, to account for a change in the bass for
determuning the contraciual cash flows as a result of IBOR reform by updating the effective
interest rate using the guidance in paragraph BS.4.5 of IFRS 2, As a result, no immediate gain
or loss |s recognised, 2, Reguire an entity o prospectively cease 10 apply the Phase 1 reliefs 10
a non contractually specified risk companent at the earlier of when changes are made to the
non contraciually specified risk component, or when the kedging relationship is discontinued.
3. Additional temporary exceplions from applying specific hedge accounting requirement
4. Additional IFRS 7 disclosure requirements refated to [BOR refarm.

The Group anticipates that the adoption of the amendments will not have a significant impact
on the Group's consolidated financial statements,

{2) Amendments to IAS 1: Clasiification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

The IASE issued a narrow-scope amendment to IAS 1 to clarify that labilities are classified as
either current or nan-current, depending on the rights that exist at the end of the reporting
persod. The amendment requires the following

»  Lliabilities are classified as non-curent if the entity has a substantive rght to defer
sottienent for at least 12 months at the end of the reporting penod. The amandment no
langer refers to unconditional rights, since lcans ase rarely wnconditional (for exampla,
because the loan might contain covenants)

- The assessment determines whethar a right exists, but it does not consider whether the
entity will exercise the righl. 50 management's expectations do not affect classification.

. The right 10 defer only exists if the entily complies with any relevant conditions at the
reporting date. A liability is classified as current if a condition is breacked al or before the
reporting date and a waiver is obtained after the reporting date. A loan s classified as
non-current if a covenant is breached after the reporting date

» “Settlement” 5 dehined as the extingushment of a liabdity with cash, other economsc
resources OF an entity’s owrnl eguily instruments. There s a0 exception for convertible
mstruments thal might be conwerted into equity, bt only for those instruments where
the conversion option & dassfied as an equity instrument as a separate compaonent of a
compound financial instrument.

158 | @eurann
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020
tAmoeants in millons of Rermink:, unless atheranse stated)

Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
1 Basic of preparation (Continued)

1.2 Standards and amendments relevant to the Group that are not yet effective and have
nof been adopted before their effective dates in 2020 (Continued)

2) Amendments to IAS 1. Classification of Liabllities as Current ar Noen-current (Continuesd)

The amendment changes the guidance for the classification of labilities & current o
non-current. It could affect the classification of Kabilities, paricularly for entities that previously
consicered management's intentions to determing classification and for some Habilities that can
be converted into equity. All entities should reconsider thelr existing classification in the light of
the amendment and determine whether any changes afe required. In May 2020, the IASE issued
an Exposure Draft proposing to defer the effective date of the amendments to 1 January 2023,
The Group anticipates that the adoption of the amendments will have no mmpact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements

3} Amendments to IFRS 3: Reference to the Conceptual Framework

The IASE issued amendments to IFRS 3: Reference to the Conceptual Framework, The
amendments have updated IFRS 3, ‘Business combinations’, 10 refer to the 2018 Conceptual
Framaweek for Financial Reporting, in order to determine what constitutes an asset o a lability
In & business combination, In addition, the Board added a new exception in IFRS 3 for liabilities
and contingant liabilites. The Board has abo claried that the acquirer should not recognise
contingent assets, as defined in 145 37, at the acquisition date. The Group anticipates 1hat the
adoptian of the amendments will nol have a signifcam impact on the Group's corsalidated
financial statements.

4) Amendments to 1AS 37: Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

The |ASE issued amendments 1o 1AS 37: Cost of Fulliling a Contract. The amendments clarify
the meaning of 'costs 1o fulfil a contract’, they explain that the direct cost of fulfilling a contract
comprses: the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract and; an aflocation of other costs
that relate directly to fulfiling contracts. The amendments alsa clarify that, belore a separate
provision for an onerous contract is established, an entity recogrises any impairment lass that
has occurred on astets wsed in lullilfing the contract, rather than on assels dedcated Lo that
contract. The amendments could result in the recegnition of more onerous contract provisians,
because praviously some entities only included incremental costs in the costs 1o fulfil a contract.
The Group anticipates that the adoption of the amendments will not have a significant impact
on the Growp's comsaldated financial statemants

5} Amendments to 1AS 16; Proceeds before Intended Use

The 1ASE issued amendments 1o 1AS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use. The amendments
prohibit an entity from deducting from the cast of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds received from selling items produced while the entity is preparing the asset for
its intended use The amendment also clarifies that an entity is "testing whether the asset i
functioring properly’ when it assesses the technical and physical performance of the asset. The
financial performance of the asset s ot relevant to ths assessment. An asset might therefore
be capable of operating as intended by management and subject 1o depreciation before i1 has
achsved the level of operating performance sxpected by management. The amendment reguires
entities 1o ssparately declose the amounts of proceeds and costs relating to ilems produced
that are not an outpuat of the entity's ordinary activities. An entity should akso dischose the line
item in the statement of comprehensive income where the proceeds are included. The Group
anticipates that the adeption of the amendments will not have a significant impact en the
Group's consclidated firancal staterments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decernber 2020
{amounts in milkors of Reominbs, urless othenwise slated)

I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1  Basic of preparation (Continued)

1.2 Standards and amendments relevant to the Group that are not yet effective and have
not been adopted before their effective dates in 2020 (Continuesd)

200 @2erany

(&)

7

Annual improvements 2018-2020 cycle (IFRS 1, IFRS 9, IFRS 16 and 1AS 41}

Th IASE Bsued amendmenis 1o IFRS 1, IFRS 9, IFRS 16 and MAS 41 Annual improvernents
2018-2020 cycle, which include fees included in the 10% tast for derecognition of financial
liabalities, illustrative examples accompanying IFRS 16, “Leases’, subsidiary as a first-time adopter
and taxalion i fair value measurements. The Group anticipates that the adoption of the
amendments will not have a significant impact on the Growp's consalidated financial statements,

IFRS 17: Insurance Contracts

IFRS 17 was ssuwed in May 2017 & replacement for IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts, It requires a
current measurement model where estimates are re-measured each reporting period, Conftracts
are measured using the building blocks of; discounted probability-weighted cash flows, an
explicit nsk adjustment, and a contractual senvice margin {*C5M® ) representing the unearmed
prafit of the contract which |s recognized as revenue ower the coverage period

The standard allows a choice between recognizing changes in discount rates either in the
income statement or directly in other comprehensive income. The choice is likely to reflect how
Insurers accaunt for their financial aseets under IFRS 9

An optional, simpSfied premium allocation approach s permitted for the lability for the
remaining coverage for shori duration contracts, which are often written by non-fife insurers.

There is @ modification of the general measurement model called the "variable fee approach”
for certain contracts written by life msurers where policyholders share in the returns from
underlying items. When applying the variable fee approach the entity's share of the fair value
changes of the underlying rems is included in the contractual ssmvice margin. The results of
insurers using this medel are therefore likely to be less volatile than under the general model.

The mew fubes will alfect the financial staterments and kéy performance indicators of all entities
that msue insurance contracts or investment contracts with dscretionary participation features.

The IASH issued the amendments to IFRS 17: Insurance confracts on 25 June 2020, together
with an amendment to IFRS 4, 56 that eligible insurers can still apply IFRS 9 alongsice IFRS 17
This concluded the LASE's targeled amendments ta IFRS 17 which aimed to ease implementation
of the standard by reducing implementation costs and making it easier for entites to explain,
to investors and others, the results from applying IFRS 17. IFRS 17 should be applied to annual
repatling periads beginning on ar after 1 January 2023, wath earher application permitted, ard
the amendments should be appliad at the same time

The amendments to IFRS 17 atfact all companies that ssue insurance contracts in all |urisdsctions
that apply IFRS standargs, incuding entities outside the insurance industry that sswe such
contracts. The amendment: to IFRS 17 include: 1. Effectwve date. 2. Expected recavery of
insurance acquisition cash flows. 3. Contractual service margin attributable to invesimant
services. 4. Reinsurance contracts held — recovery of losses.

The Group has not completed its assessment of the impact on the Group's operating results ard
financial position of adopting IFRS 17,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decernber 10240
tAmounss in millions of RBerimenbi, unless otheramse stated)

Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
1 Basic of preparation (Continued)

1.2 Standards and amendmenis relevant to the Group that are not yet effective and have
not been adopted before their effective dates in 2020 (Continued)

8) Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets between An Investor
and Ity Assaciate or foint Venture

The amendments address an inconsistency betwean IFRS 10 and 1A5 28 in the sale and
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate of joint venture.

A full gain or loss is recognized when a transaction involves a business, A partial gain or loss is
recognized when a transaction involves assets that do nat constitute a busingss, even if those
assets ane in a subsidiary

Thie Group anticipates that the adoption of the amendments will not have a significant mpact
on the Group's consalidated financial statements

2 Consolidation
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries
a5 well as structured entities controdled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when the Group B
exposed o, or has rights to, variable retwrns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the entity,

Income and expense of subsidianies acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consoiidated
income statement from the date of acquisition or up to the date on which cantral ceases, respectively

Adjustments are made 1o the financial statements of subsidianes, where appropnate, to consstently reflect
the accounfting policies of the Group.

All imtra-group transactions, balances and unrealized gains on ransactions are elimonated. Unrealized lossas
are also eliminated unless the trafsaction piovides ewdence of an imparment of the transferred assel.

Non-controfling interests of consolidated subsidiaries are presented separatefy from the controliing party's
equity therein.

The carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the amount of those interests at initial recognition plus
the non-contralling interests’ share of subsequent changes i equity. Furiher, tolal comprehensive income
of a subsidiary i attributed, based on the proportion of their respective holdings, to the equity holders of
the Bank and 1o the non-contiolling interests, even if this results i the non-controlling inlerests having a
deficit balance

In the Bank's statement of financial position, its investments in subsidiaries are staled at cost, less
impairment bosses, if any.

Business combinations

Acguisitions of businesses are accounted fof using the acquisition method. The consideration transfesred
in a business combination s measured at fair walue, which 1s calculated as the sum of the acquisition date
fair value of the assets transferred by the Group, habilites mourred or assumed by the Group, and any
equity Interests issued by the Group. Acquisithon related costs are recognizee In the consolidated Income
staterment as incuired,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decernber 2020
{amounts in milkors of Reominbs, urless othenwise slated)

Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2  Consolidation (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

At the acguisition date, irrespective of mon-contralling interests, the identifable asseis acouired and
liabifities and contingent liabilities assumed are recognized at their fair values, except that defered tax
assets of liabilities, and asseds or labilites related to employes benefil amangements are recogrized and
measuied in accordance with 1A% 12 — Income Tases and 1AS 19 — Emplovee Benefits, respectivaly,

Goodwill 15 measured as the excess of the difference between (i) the consideraton transferred, the fair
value of any non-contralling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value aof the Group's previously held
equity interest in the acquires (if any) and fil the net fair value of the wentifiable assets acguired and the
Habilities and contingent lahilities incurred or assumed.

Mon-controlling Interests that represent ownership Interests in the acguiree, and entitle thelr holders to
a proportanate share of the entity's net assets i the event of hguidation are accounted for at either fair
value ar the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share n the recognized amounts of the acguiree’s
identifiable net assets. The choice of measuremeant bask s made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acguisition less the fair value of the Group's share of
the net ientifiable assets of acquired subsidianes and associates at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on
acquisitions of subsidianes & presented separately in the corsolicated statement of financal positian
Goodwill on acquisition of associates s included in investment in associates,

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units
{"CGU"} ar groups of CGUs that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the business combination,

A CGU B the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independant
of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets.

A CGU 1o which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the CGU, which is the
higher of fair value less costs 1o sell and value in use, is less than its camrang amount, the defict, reflecting
an impairment loss, is allocated first 1o reduce the carmying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU
and then to the other assets of the CGU on a pro-rata basis, based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the CGU. Any goodwill impairment loss & recognized directly in the consolidated income statement. An
impairment kass recognized for gaodwall is not reversed in subsequent periods

Investment in assodiate and joint venture

An associate 5 an entity aver which the Group has sigaificant influence and that & neilther a subsidsary
nor an interest in a jont venture. A joint wenture 15 an arrangement wheraby the Group and other parties
contractually agree 1o share controd of the arrangement theough a separate entity, and have rights 10 the
nel assets of the arrangement based on legal form, contract terms, and other facts and drcumstances.
Significant influence is the power to partcipate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
invesies but dees not constitute contral or joint control over those policy decisions, Joint contral is the
contractually agreed sharing of control over an aciivity, and exists only when the decisicns relating 1o the
aclivity require the unanimows consent of the Group and other parties sharing the control.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2 Consolidation (Continued)
Investment in associate and joint venture (Continued)

The post-acguisition profit or loss of an asociate or a joint venture i incorporated in the consaolidated
financial statements using the equity method of accounting. Under the eguity method, Investment in an
asseciate ar a joint wenture 5 initially recognized at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognize the Group's
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate of joint wenture, When the
Group’s share of loss of an associate or a |oint venture equals or exceeds its interest in that associate or
foint venture (which incluges any long-term inferests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s nel
invesiment in the associate or joint ventue), the Group discontinues recognizing its share of further loss,
Additional ks is recognized only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive cbligations
or made payments an behalf of that associate or joint venlure.

At the end of each reporting penod. the Group consigers whether there are circumstances that indicate the
possibality of impairment of the Group's investment in an associate of a (oint venture; when that i the case,
the entire carrying amount of the imvestment (including goodwall} is tested for impairment in accordance
with WAS 36 — Impairment of Assets, as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (the higher of
fair value less costs 1o sell and value in use) with its carrying amount, any impairment loss recognized forms
part af the carrying amount of the investment, Any reversal of an impairment loss is recognized, to the
extent that the recowverable amount of the investment subseguently increases.

When an entity in the Group transacts with the Group's associate or joint venture, profits and bossas
resulting from the tramsaction are recognized in the Group®s consolidated financial statements anly to the
extent of the interest in the associate or joint venture that are not related to the Group, Unrealized losses
are gliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred,

3 Interest income and expenses

Interest income and expenses of financial instruments are calculated using the effective intarest method
and included in the currert peofit and loss.

The Group uses the effective interest method to calculate the interest income and expenses of financial
assets and liabilities measured at amorfired cost, presented as “interest income™ and “interest expenses”
fespectively. For specific accounting pobcies, plaase refer to the Nole Il 8.4 subsequent measurement of
financial instruments.

4 Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income is recognized when the Group fulfills its performance obligation, either over
time of at & pain in time when a customer oblains cantrol of the senice.

For the perlormance obligations satisfied at a point in Ume, the Gioup recogmizes revenua whean cantrol
& passed to the customer at a certain point in time, including insurance agency fes, merchant acquiring
semvice fee, soltlement & clearing services and bond underwriting fee, etc. For the performance obbgations
satisfied over time, the Group recognizes revenue according to the progress toward satisfaction of the
obligation aver the bime, including comsultancy and advisary fee and custodial fee, etc
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
5 Foreign currency transactions

The functional currency of the Domestic Operations is BMB. The presentation currency of the Group and
the Bank is RMEB.

In preparing the financial statements of each Individual Group entity, transactions in cumencles other
than the functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respectve functional
currency (e, the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchange prevalling at the dates of the transactions, At the end of the reporting period, manetary lems
denominated in foreign currencies ane retranstated at the rates prevalling at that date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a
forgign currency are not retransiated,

Exchamge differences arsing on the settlement of monetary items, and on the retransiation of monetary
iterms, are recodgimzed in the comsolidated income statement in e period in which they ariss, except for the
follawaing:

(i} exchange differences arsing on a monetary item that forms part of the Bank's net investment in the
Querseas Operations;

(#} changes in the fair value of monetary assets denominated in foreign currency classified as financial
irvestments at fair value through comprehensive income are analyzed between translation differences
resulting from changes in the amortized cost of the monetary assats and other changes in the carmpng
amouni, Translation differences related 1o changss in the amortized cost are recognized in the
conscfidated income statement, and other changes in the carrying amount are recognized in other
comprehensive income,

Frchange differances ansing on the retramslation of non-monelasy items carried at fair value are included
in the comsolidated income statement for the period except for exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and kosses are recognized directly in other
comprehensive income, in which cases, the sxchange differences are also recognized directly in other
comprehensive income

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financal staterments, the assets and liabilites of the
Group’s Overseas Operations are wanslated into the presentation cumrency of the Group at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their income and expenses are trarsiated at
exchange rates at the date of the transactions, or a rate that approximates the exchange rates of the date
af the tramsaction Exchange differences arsing, if any, are recognized in other comprebensive incame
and accumulated in equity under the foreign cuwrrency transiation feserve and non-controlling interests, as
appropriate. The accumulated foreign currency translation reserve related to the Overseas Operations wall
be reclassified from equity to the consolidated income statement on disposal af all or part of the Overseas
Operations.

6 Taxation
Incame tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payabie and deferred tax.
Current tax
The tax currentlly payable |3 based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from prafit as
reported n the consoldated income statement because it excludes tems of ncome or expense that are
taxable or deductible in olher yaars and items that are never taxable or deductible, The Group’s liability far

current tax ks caloulated using tax rates thai have been enacted or substantively enacted by the and of the
reparting period,
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
6 Taxation (Continued)
Deferred fax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the comaolidated financial staterments and the comesponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences, Deferred tax
assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probablo
that taxable profits will be available against which these deductible temparary diffesences can be utilized,
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized for temporary difference related 1o goodwill or the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a tramsaction that
affects neither taxable profit nor accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and assoCiates, except where the Group is able 10 control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it & probabile that the temporary difference will not reverse i the foreseeable futuee,
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and
interesls are anly recognized to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilize the benefits of the tempaorary differences and they are expected fo reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 5 raviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced
to the extent that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foresesable fulure or it & no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be utibized

Deferred tax assets and habilities are measured at the tax rates that are expecied to apply in the period in
which the liabdity is settled or the asset realzed, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacied or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of defemed tax lisbilities and assets refiects the 1ax conseguences that waould follow from
the manmer in which the Group espects, a1 the end of the reporting perod, to recover or settle the carnying
amount of its assets and liabilites. Current and deferred tax is recognized in the consolidated income
statement, except when it relates to tems that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case the current and deferred tax is also recognized in other comprahensive income or
directly in equity, respectivaly.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legaly enforceable right 1o set off cument tax
assets against current tax liabilities, when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation autharity
and the Group infends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities an a net basis.

Value-added Taxes {“VATY)

Thie Group®s interest income, fee and commission income, trading gain on financial preducts and insurance
premium income are presented net of their respective VAT in the consalidated financial statements.

In accordance with “Circular regarding the Value-added Taxes Policies for Financial, Real Estate
Cevelopment and Edwcation Ancillary and Other Services” (Cai Shui [2016] Mo, 140) , the “Supplementary
Cireular regarding lssues concerning Value-added Taxes Policies for Assel Management Products™
{Cal Shul [2017] e 2) and the “Circular on the Relevant lssues concerning Value-added Tax Levied an
Assel Management Producks™ (Cai Shii [2017] Mo, 56), the Group shall pay VAT al 3% for lazable asset
management actwities undertaken after 1 fanuary 2018,
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
7 Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of censideration gaven and other relevant expenditure incurred by the Group
in exchange for services rendered by employess or for termination of the empioyment contracts. These
benefits include short-term employee benefits, post-employment benefits and early retirement benefits.

Short-term employee benefits

In the reporting perod in which an employes has rendered services, the Group recognizes the shaort-term
employes benafits payable for those services as a Fability with a corresponding increase in the expansas in
the consolidated income stalement or capetalization as cost of related assets, Short-term employee benefits
include salarigs, bonuses, allowance and subsidies, stalf weifare, medical insurance, employment injury
insurance, maternity insurance, housing funds as well as labor union fees and staff education expenses,

Post-employment benefits

The Group’s post-employment benefits are primanly the payments for basic pensions and unemploymant
insurance related to government mandated social welfare programs, as well as the annuity scheme
established. All these post-employment benefits are defined contribution plans, under which, the Group
makes fixed contributions injo a separate fund and will have no kegal ar constructive obligation to make
further comtributions if the fund does net hold sufficient assets to pay all emplayee benefits relating 10
employes services in the cusrent and pricr periods,

Contributions to the basic pensions and unemployment insurance plan are recognized in the consolidated
income statement for the period or capitalization as cost of related assets in which the related payment
obligation s incurred

The employees of the Bank's head office and domestic branches (°Domestic Institutions”) participate in
an annuity scheme establshed by the Bank (the “Annuity Scheme®) The Bank pays annuity cantributions
with reference 1o employess’ salaries, and such contributions are expensed in the consolidated income
statement or capitalized as cost of related assets when incurred, The Bank has no further obligation i the
Annuity Scheme does not have sufficient assets for the payment of any retirement benefits to employses
funded by the Annuity Scheme,

Early retirement benefits
Early retirement benefits have been paid to those employess who accept voluntary retirement belore the
normal retirement date, as approved by management. The related benefit payments are made frem the
date of early retirement to the narmal retiremant date
The accounting treatmert of the Group’s early retirement benefits is in accordance wath termination
benafits as determined in 1AS 19. The liabality & recognized for the early retirement benefit payments. from
the date of eaily retiremant ta the normal retirement date when the ¢ritena for recagnition as termination
benalit & met with a corfesponding charge in the consolidated income statlement. Differences arising
Troem changes in assumptions and estimates of the present value ol the liabilities are recognized in the
comsolidated income statement when incurred.

8 Financial instruments
8.1 Initial recognition, dassification and measurement of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial Habifities are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the
contractus provicons of the instrumant.

Regular way purchases and sales of inancial assets are recognized on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sall the asset.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
8 Financial instruments (Continued)
8.1 Initial recognition, classification and measurement of finandal instruments (Continved)

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset o financial lability at its fair value plus
of minws, in the case of a financial asset or financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss,
fransaction costs that are incremental and directly attributable to the acguisition or issue of the
financial assot or financial liability, Transaction costs of financial assets and financial liabilities carried
at fair value through profit or loss are expersed in profit or koss

1) Financial assets

Financial assets are classified in the following measurement categories bBased on the Group's
business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the assets;

fiy  Amortized cost [(*AC")
{ii)  Fair value through other compeehensive income (*PYOCIT) or
{iny  Fair value through profit or loss ("FYPL")

The business model reflects how the Group manages the assets in order to generate cash
flows. That is, whether the Group's objective = solely to collect the contractual cash flows from
the assets ar is to collect both the contractuzl cash flows and cash flows arssing from the zale
of assets. If neither of these s applicable {e.g. financial assets are held for trading purposes),
then the financial assets are classified as part of “cther® business model and measured at
FWPL. Factors considered by the Group in determining the business model for a group of assels
include past experence on how the cash flows for these asets were collected, how the asset's
performance is evaluated and repariad to key management personnel, how risks are assessed
and managed and how managers are compensated.

Whare the busimess model is fo hold assets to collect contractual cash flows or to coflect
contractual cash flows and sell, the Group assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash
flowss represent solelfy payments of principal and interest ("SPM°), In making this assessment,
the Group corsiders whelher the contractual cash fllows are consisten! with 3 basic lending
arrangement i.e, interest includes only consideration for the time value of money, credit risk,
other basic lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement.
‘Whare the contraciual terms infraduce exposure to risk or volatility that are incensistent wath
a basic lending arrangement, the related financial asset s classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are consicered in their entirety when determaning
whethar their cash flows are SPPI,

The classification reguirements lor debl instruments and equily instruments are described as
belonas:

Dbt Instruments
Debt nstruments are those mstruments thal mesl the defimison of & financial kability from
the issuer's perspective, such as loans, government and cofporate bonds. Classfication and

measurement of debt mstruments depend on the Group's business models for managing the
assat and the cash flow charactenstics of the asset.
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I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
g Financial instruments (Continued)
8.1 Initial recognition, classification and measurement of financial instruments (Confinued)
(1) Financlal assets (Continued)
Debt Instruments (Canfinued)

Based on these factors, the Group classifies its debt instruments inta one of the following three
MEASUIEMEnT CAtegories.

(i) AL Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent SPM, and that are not designated at FUPL, are measured at amortized cost.

iy FVOC! Ainancial assets that are held for colfection of contraciual cash flows and for selling
the assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent SPPI, and thatl are mot designated at
FYPL, are measured at FyQCL

(i) PyPL: Assets that do not meet the crileria for amortized cost or FVOCI are measured at
FWPL

The Group may also revocably designate financial assets at FWPL if doing sa significantly reduces
or eliminates a mismatch created by assets and Babilities being measured on different bases.

Equity fnstruments

Equity imstruments are instruments thal meel the definition of equity from the issuer's
perspective; that is, instruments that do not confain a contractual obligation to pay and that
evidence a residual mterast in the issuer's net assets. Examples of eqinfy instrumeants include
basic ardinary shares.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at FVPL, except where the Group's
management has elected, at initial recogmition, to rrevocably designate an equity investment at
Vol

{2) Financlal liabflities

The Grouwp’s financial liabikties are classified into financial lubilities a1 PYPL and other financial
liabdlities carried at amostized cost on inital recognition. Financial liabalities at FYPL & applied to
derwatives, financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated as such at initial
recognition.

The Group may, at initial recognition, frevacably designate & financial liability a8 measured at
fair value through profit or loss when doing so results in mare relevant informatan, because
gither:

iy it eimnates o« significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsstency that
would athanwisa arise; or

(i} a group of financial liabilites or financial assets and financial liabilities 5 managed and
its performance 5 evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance wilh a documented
risk management o investment strategy, and information about the Group is provided
internally on that basis to the entity’s kay management personnel

i) The financial kalalty contains one or more embedded denvatves which significantly modify
the cash flows othenwise required.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
8 Financial instruments (Continued)
8.1 Initial recognition, classification and measurement of finandal instruments (Continved)
(2} Financial lfabilities (Continued)

fingncal liabilities arising from the transfer of financial assets which did not qualify for
darecognition, wheraby a financial lability is recognized for the conzideration recoived for the
transfer. In subsequent periods, the Group recogniges any expenses incurred on the financial
liability

8.2 Reclassification of financial assets

When the Group changes the business model for managing its financial assets, it shall reclassify all
affected financial assets. and apply the reclassification prospectively from the reclassfication date. The
Graup does not restate any previously recogrized gains, losses (including impatrment gains or losses)
or interest, Reclassification date is the first day of the first reporting perniod followeng the change in
business model that results in the Group reclassifying financial assets.

8.3 Determination of fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received 1o sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measwement date under
current market conditions (i.e. an ext price) regardiess of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique

For financial instruments traded in active markets, the delermination of far values of financial assets
and financial liakilities is based on quoted marke! prices. This includes kisted equity securities and
quoted debt instruments on major exchanges

A financial instrument s regarded as quoted in an active market if quoled prices are readily and
regularly available from am exchange, industry group, pricing seevice or regulatory agency, and those
prices represent actual and regularly occurning market transactions on an arm's kength basis. If the
above criteria are nol met, the market is regarded as being inactive. Indications that a market is
inacive are when hete is a wide bid-offer spread or significant mcrease in the bid-olfer spread or
there are few recent transactions.

For financial instruments nol traded in active markets, fair value is determined using appropriate

valuation technicques. Vafuation techniques include the use of recent transactan prices, discounted

tash flowr analysis, option pricing models and others commonly used by market participants. Thase

valuation technigues include the use of ohservable and/or unobservable inputs.

8.4 Subsequent measurement of financial Instriments

Subsequent measurement ol financial instruments depends on the calegories:

1) Amaortized cost
The amortized cost ks the amount at which the financial asset or financial IIEIhIIl'l' 15 measured
al initial recognition: (i minus the princpal repayments, (i) plus or minus the cumulalive
amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amaunt
and the maturity amount; {iil} for financial assets, adjusted far any loss allowance

Interest income and inierest expenses from these financial assets |s included In " Interest Income®
and “interest experses” usng the effective interest rate method,

Annial Repan 2020 | 209

328/497



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decernber 2020
{amounts in milkors of Reominbs, urless othenwise slated)

Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

8 Financial instruments (Continued)

8.4 Subsequent measurement of financial instruments (Continued)

210 (HAmkane

1

2}

i3

Amortized cost (Conrinued)

The cffective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
or receipts through the expected life of the financial assel or financial Nability to the grods
carrying amount of a financial asset {l.e. its amortized cost before any impairment allowance)
or 1o the amortized cost of a financial labdity, The caloulation does not consider expected
credit losses ("ECL") and includes transaction costs, premiums or discounts and fees and points
paid or received that are integral to the effective interest rate. For purchased or onginated
cradit-impaired {("POCI") financial assets, the Group calculates the credit-adjusted effective
interest raie, which is calculated based on the amortized cost of the financial asset instead of its
gross carrying amount and incorporates the impact of expecied credit losses in estimated Tulure
cash flows,

Interest income is calculated by apptying the ettective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of financial assets and is included in *Interast income”, excapt for:

iy POCI financial assets, whose interest income is calculated, since imital recognition, by
applying the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to thelr amortized cost; and

(i} financial assets that are not POCI but have subsequently become credit-mpaired, whose
interest income s calculated by applying the effective inferest rate 1o their amortized cost
{Le. net of the expected credit loss provision). I, in a subtequent period, the financial aswets
mmprove their gqualities so that they are no longar credit-impaired and the improvement n
oedit guality & relaled objectively to a cerlan event ooourming afler the application of the
above-mentioned rules, then the irterest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to thair gross camying amount.

Fair value through other comprehensive incame
Debit instruments

Moverments in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses on the
instrument's amortized cost which are recognized in profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecogmifed, the cumulative gaim o loss previously recognized in GOl is reclassified from equity
to profit or boss, Interest income fram these financial assets is included i “interest income™
using the effective interest rate method

Equity instruments

The equity instrument investments that are not held for trading are designated as FYOCL When
this election Is wsed, fair value gains and losses are recognized In OC1 and are not subsequenily
reclassified to profit or loss, including on disposal. Divdends, when representing a return on
wuch investments, conlinue to ba recognized in prn-flt of less as irwvestment income when the
Group’s right to recelve payments is established.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Debt instruments

A gain of lois on a debd investment that is subsagquently measured a1 fair value through profit ar
lss and s not part of a bedging relationsbap s recognized m profit or loss and presented in the
prafit or boss staternent within *Met trading gain® in the period in which it ames, unless it arses
from debt instruments that were designated at fair value or which are not held far trading, in
wiich case they are presented separated in “Met gain on finangial investments”
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
8 Financial instruments [Continued)
8.4 Subsequent measurement of financial instruments (Cantinued)
(3} Financial assets at falr value through profit or foss (Continued
Equity instruments

Gains and losses on equity investments at FUPL are included in the “Net trading gain® in the
consofidated incame statemant,

4} Finarclal Nabilities at fair value through profit or less

Fimancial liabilities at FVPL are measured at fair value with all gains or losses recognized in the
profit or loss of the current perod, except for financial labilities designated as at fair value
theough profit or loss, where gains of losses on the financial Labilities are treated as follows:

1) changes in fair value of such financial liabilities due to changes n the Group's own credit
nsk are recognized in other comprehensye income; and

{i) other changes in fair value of such financial liabilities are recognized in profit or loss of
the curent period. If the accounting of changes in the credit risk of the financial liabilities
in accordance with {1} will create or enlarge accounting mismatches in profit or loss, the
Group recognizes all gains or losses on such financial labilities (including amounis ansing
from chamges in its own credi risk) in the profit or loss of the current period.

‘When the liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss s derecogrized, the
cumulative gamn of loss previously recogmized in ather comprehensive income Is reclassified from
enquity to retained samings.

8.5 Impairment of financial instruments
The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the ECL assocated with its debt instrument assets
carried at amartized cost and PV and exposures arsing from some koan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts,
ECL is the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of a default occurring as the
weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due 1o the Group in
accordance wath the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expacts to receive, which are all
cash shortfalls, discounted a1 the ariginal effectwe interest rate (of credit-adjusted effective interest
rate for POCI financial assels).
The Growp measures ECL of a financial instrument reflects:

{iy an unbizsed and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of
possible outcomes,

{iy  the time value of money, and
{im} reasonable and supportable information thal o available withoul undue cost o effoet at

the reporting date aboul past evenis, curreni conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions,
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8 Financial instruments (Continued)
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8.6
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Impairment of financial instruments (Confinued)

For financlal instrumenis whose impairment losses are measured using the ECL models, the Group
assesses whether thelr credit risk has inoreased significantly since their Initial recognition, and applies
a three-stage impairment modeal 1o calculate their impairment alowance and recognize thewr ECL, as
fllonns

— Stage I If the credit risk has not increased significantly since s initial recognition, the financial
asset n includad in stage |.

— Stage Il If the credit risk has increased significantly since its initial recognition but is ot yet
deemed to be credit-impaired, the financial instrumens is moved 1o Stage Il. The description of
howy the Group determines when a significant increase incredit risk has occumed is disciosed in
Nt 1V 44 1

—  Stage Wl If the financial instrument s credit-impaired, the financial instrument & them moved 1o
Stage lll. The definition of credit-impaired financial assets is disclosed in Note IV 441,

Financial instruments in 5tage | have thelr ECL measured at an amount equivalent to the ECL of the
financial asset for the next 12 months {* 12m ECL®), Financial instruments in Stage ||l or Stage il have
ftheir ECL maasured at an amount eguivalent to the ECL over the lifetime of the financial instruments
(*Lifetima ECL"). The description of inputs, assumplions and estimation techniques used in measuring
the ECL & disclosed in Note [V 44,1,

The Group applies the impairment requirements for the recognition and measurement of a loss
allowance for debl instrumenis that are measured at FYOCI The loss allowance Is recognized in
other comprehensive income and the impairment boss s recogrezed in profit of loss, and it shauld not
reduce the carying amaount af the financial asset in the statement of financial position

f the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial instrumant other than POCI at an
amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses in the previous reperting period, but determines at
the current reporting date that the credit risk on the fimancial mstruments has increased significantly
since initial recagnition & no longer met, the Group measures the loss allowance al an amount
equal to 12-month expected credit Iosses at the current reparting date and the amount of expected
credit bosses reversal is recognized in profit or boss. For POCI financial assets, at the reporting date,
the Group only recognizes the cumulative changes in lifetime expected credit losses sinca initial
recognitan.

Modification of loans

The Group somelimes renegotiales or otherwise modifies the contractual cash flows of loans 1o
customears. When this happens, the Group assesses whether the new terms are substantially differant
to the original terms.

i the terms are substantially different, the Group derecognizes the onginal finanoal asset and
recognizes a "new’ awsel at fair value and recalculates 3 new effective interest rate for the assel
The date of renegotiation is consequently comsidered to be the date of inftal recognition for
impairrment calculation purposes, mcuding for the purpose of determining whether a sgnificant
ircrease in credit risk has occurred. Howaver, the Group also assesses whether the new financial
asset recognized i deemed to be credil-impaired at initial secognition, especially in circumstances
where the renagatiation was driven by the deblor being wnable to make the orginally agreed
paymenits. Diffarences in the carmgng amount are also recognized in profit or less as a gain or loss on
derecognition,
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
& Financial instruments (Continued)
8.6 Moadification of leans (Continueal

It the terms are not substantizlly different. the renegotiation or modification does mot result in
derecognition, and the Group recalculates the gross camying amount based on the revised cash
flowss of the financial asset and recognizes a modification gain or loss in profit or loss. The new
gross carrying amount is recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the original effective
interast rate {or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for POCI financial assets).

8.7 Derecognition

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownedship of the asset 1o another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantiadly all the
risks and rewards of cwmesship and continues 1o control the tansfered asset, the Group continees 10
recognize the asset 1o the extent of its confinuing imvolvement and recognizes an asscciatea hizbifity. H
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group confinues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for
the proceeds received

On derecognition of a financial asset in s entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration recewed and receivable ang, where applicable, the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in othar comprehansve income and accumulated in
equity Is recognized in the consolidated income statement.

Financial Kabilities are derecognized when the related obligation s dscharged, is cancelled or
expires, The ditference between the camrying amount of the financial liabilly derecognized and the
cansigeration paid and payable B recognized in the consolidated income stalement

8.8 Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all af its labilities

A financial mstrument (s an equity instrument if, and only i, both conditions {i) and (i} below are met:

lit  The financial instrument includas no contractual abligation io delwver cash or another financial
assat to anather entity, or to exchange financial assets ar financial habilities with another entity
under conditions that are polentially unfavarable to the Group; and

{ip If the financial instrument will or may be settled in the Group’s own equity nstruments, 1t s a
nan-derivative instiument that includes no contractual obligations for the Group to deliver a
vanahble aumber of its own egquity mstruments. or a deriwative that will be settled anly by the
Group exchanging a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for 2 fixed number of its
oWn equity iInstruments.

Equity imstruments issuad by the Group are recorded al the fair value of proceeds received, net of
direct issuance expenses.

8.9 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
Darivalives are initially recognized at fair value at the date a derivative contract s enterad into and are

subsequently re-measured at their fair value at the end of the reparting penod. The resulting gain or
loss % recegnized i the consalidated incame statermnent
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
& Financial instruments (Continued)
8.9 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (Continued)

Certain denvatives are embedded in hybrid contracts. such as the conversion option in a convertible
bond. if the hybrid contract contains @ host that is a financial asset, then the Group assesses the
entire contract as described in the financial assets section above for classification and measuremsent
purposes, Otherwize, the embedded dervatives are treated as separate derivatives whon:

(i) Their economic characterstics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contract;
(i} A separate instrument with the same terms would meet the definition of a derivatve; and
{iii The hybrd contract 5 not measured at fair value through profit or loss,

These embedded derivatives ate separately accounted for at falr value, with changes in fair value
recognizad in the statement of profit or loss unless the Group chooses to designate the hybrid
contracts at fair value through profit or koss.

The Group documenis, at the inception of the hedge, the relationship between hedged items and
hedging instrements, 25 well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various
hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, baoth at hedge inception and on an
ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedgirg transactions are nighly effective in
ottsetting changes in fair values ar cash flows of hadged items.

{a) Fair value hedge

Fair value hedge is a hedge of the exposure to changes in fair value of a recognised asset or
liatvility or an unrecognised firm commitmeant, or an identified portion of such an assat, liability
o firm commitment, that is atiributable to a particular risk and could affect profit or lass,

The changes in fair value of hedging instruments that are designated and qualify as fair value
hedges are recorded in profit or loss, together with the changes in fair walue of the hedged tem
attnbutable to the hedged rsk. The net difference is recognised as ineffectiveness in the profit or
loss.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the adjustment 1o the carying
amaunt of a hedgec item for which the eflective interest method is used is amortised to profit
ar boss aver the period to maturity, If the hedged item is de-recognised, the unamartised carrying
value adjustment is recognised immediately in the profit or loss.

(b} Cash flow hedge

Cash flow hedge is a hedge of the exposure to vanability in cash flows that is attributable to a
particular risk associated with a recognesed asset o liability (such as all ar some future interest
paymerts on variable rate debt) ar a highly procbable forecast transaction that could uwltimately
affect the profit or loss.

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of hedging Instruments that are designated and
qualify as cash flow hedges s recognised in other comprebensive mcome and accumulated in
equity in the “other comprehensive incame”. The ineffective portion i recognised immedately
in the profit or loss.

Amounts atcumllated n other comprabensive income are reclassfied 1o the profit or loss in the
same periods when the hedged item alfects the profit or loes.

24 @runany
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
8 Financial instruments (Continued)
8.9 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (Continued]
(b) Cash flow hedge (Continued)

‘When a hedging instrument expires of is s5oid, or when a hedge no langer meets the criteria
for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain o loss existing In equity at that time remains in
equity and s recognised in the periods when the hadged item affects profit or loss, When a
forecast ransaction is no longer expected to occur (for example, the wecognised hedged asset is
disposed of), the cumulative gain oo loss previously 1ecognised in other comprehensive income is
immediately reclassified to the statement of prafit ar loss,

B.10 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and Nabilities are offset and the ned amount presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position when both of the following conditions are satisfied: (i) the Group has a legal
right to w2t off the recognized amounts and the legal right is currently enforceable; and (i) the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to malize the financial asset and setthe the financial liability
simultaneausly, The legally enforceable night must mot be contingent an future events and must be
enforceable in the normal cowrse of business and in the event of default, insolvency o bankruptcy of
the Group or the counterparty.

B.11 Repurchase agreements and agreements to resell

Financial assets trarsferred as collateral in connection with repurchase agreements, involving fixed
repurchase dates and prices, are not derecognized. They continue 1o be recorded as investments
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or less, debt instrument imestments at
amortired cost or other debt instrumant and other equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income as aporopriate, The correspanding liability is included in financial assets sold
under repurchase agreements. The items which are not derecognized are disclosed in Mote IV 42
Contingent Liabilities and Commitments — Collateral.

Consideration pad for financial assets held under agreements 1o resell are recorded as Finanoial assets
held under resale agreements, the ralated collateral accepled i+ nol recognized in the corsalidated
financial statements (Mote IV 42 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments — Collateral).

The difference between the purchase and sale price is recognized as interest expense or income in the
consolidated income statement over the term af the agreements using the effective interes: methad

9 Insurance contracts
Insurance contract classification
Insurance contracts are those contracts under which the Group has accepted significant insurance risk,
relative to an insured event or occurrence. The Group issues primarily life insurance cantracts, which
insure ewents assocated with mortality over a long duration, The Group also issues non-ife insurance
contracts, which cover shor-term casualty and health insurance risk. When necessary, the Group anfers

inlo rensurance contracts to transfer Insurance risks to the reinsurer. A significant insurance risk test Is
perfarmed at inception of the insurance contracts,
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
9  Insurance contracts (Continued)
Insurance contract dlassification (Confinued)

Some imsurance contracts cantain both an insurance component and a deposit compenent, The Group
unbundles those components, if the insurance component and the deposit component are separately
measurable, The unbundied msurance component & accounted for according to IFRS 4 — Insurance
Contracts and the unbundled depoasit component s accounted for as a financial liability under investmont
contract liabilities,

Insurance income recognition

Insurance premium income is recognised when the following conditions are met; the insurance contract is
issued and related insurance risk is underiaken by the Group, the related economic benefits are likely to
fiowe 1o the Group, ard the related income can be reliably measured.

Insurance contract liabifities

Insurance contract liabditses are measured based on a reasonable estimate of the amount of payments that
the Group will be required fo make to fulfil its obligatvons under the insurance contracts, which represents
the difference between expecied future cash outflows and inflows related to such contracts. A reasonable
estimate of expected future net cash flows is determined based on Information currently available as at the
end of the reporting period. The Group has consdered the impact of time value in the liabality calculation
for long-term life insurance.

The Group performes liability adequacy tests based on information currently available, as at the reporting
date. Addittonal insurance contract liabilities will be recorded if any deficiency exists.

10 Precious metals
Precious metals comprise gold, silver and other precious metals.

Precious metals that are not related to the Group's frading acivities are initially measured at acgussition
cost and subsequently measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Precious metals that are
related to the Group's trading activities are mnitially recognized at Tair valee, with changes in fair value
arising from re-measurement recognized directly i the consolidated income statement in the pericd in
which they arise.

11 Property and equipment

Property and equipment including bulidings held for use in the supply of senvices, or for admanistrative
purpose (other than construction in progress) are stated in the consolidated statement of fnancial pasition
at eost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumilaled impairment losses, if any. When the
casts attributable to the land use rights cannot be reliably measured and separated from that of the buikding
at incaptian, the costs are included in the cost of buildings and recarded in property and equipment.

Subsequent expenditure incurred for the property and equipment {other than construction in progresst 15
included in the cost of the properly and equipmant {other than construction in progress) If it i probable
that economic benefits assoclated with the asset will flow 10 the Group and the subsequent expenditure
can be measured, and the carrying amount of the replaced parl & derecognized. Other subsequent
axpenditure is recognized in the consolidated income statement in the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation B recogrized as a component ol operating expenses in the consolidated inComa statemsant
50 as io recognize the corsumpiion of the ecomomic value of property and equipment (other than
comsuction in progress), less their estimated residual values, over thesr estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated usefud lives, residual values and depreciation rates are reviewed at the
end of each reporting pericd
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
11 Property and equipment (Continued)

The useful byes, estimated residual value rates and annual depreciation rates of each class of property and
equipment are as follows:

Estimated Annual

residual depreciation

Classes Usaful lives walue rates rates
Buildings 5=50 years 2% 1.94% =19.40%
Electronic equipment, furniture and fixtures 3-11 yeors EL Y B.82%-32.33%
Motar wehicles 5-8 yoars % 12.13%-19.40%

Progerties in the course of construction for supply of servics or administrative purposes are carried at
£O51, a5 CONSLIUCHON in progress, less any impairment loss, Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property and equipment when completed and ready Tor intended use. Depreciaton
of thess assets, on the same basis & other property and equipment, commences when the assets are ready
for ther intended use,

An itern of property and eguipment & derecognized upon disposal of when no future economic benefits are
expected 1o adse from its contineed use, Ary gain o loss anising on the disposal o retirernent of an item
of property and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognized in other operating income of operating cxpenses in the consolidated
income statement. The accounting policies of impairment of property and eguipment are included in Note i
18 Impairment of Tangible and intangible Assets other than Goodwill,

12 Land use rights

Land use rights are classified in other assets and amortized over a straight-line basis over their authosized
useful lives

13 Foreclosed assets

The transferee’s (The Group) foreciosed assets of the type of financial assets are initially recognized ar fair
valug; Debt assats of the type of financial assets tramsferrad by the Grouwp are initially measured at fair
valus, Diebt assets other than the transferred financial assets are initially measumed at the fair value of the
waived creditars” nights and other costs such as taxes directly attributable to the asset,

When the creditor who pays off the debts with multiple assets or restructure debts in portfofio, the group
firstly recognize and measure transferred financial instrument as well as reorganization creditoes’ righis
under the standard disclosed in Note I 8. Than, distributing the net amount after the fair value of the
waived debt deducting the confirmed amount of the transferred fmancial assets and the restructuning
creditors’ rights, m accordance with the fair value ratio of various assats other than the transferred financial
assets, and on this basis, the cost of each asset is confirmed separately in accordance with the above
regulations.

The difference between the fair value and book value of the waived credifors’ rights is included in the
consalidated income statement in the penod.

14 Investment property
Investment property 5 property hald to earn rental income or for capital appreciaton, o both
Investment property is initally measured at its acquisition cost, Subsequent expendifure incurred for the
investment property is incleded in the cost of the investment property if it & probable that economic
benetits associated with the assat wall How ta the Group and the subsequent expenditure can be measured

rellably. Other subsequent expenditure 15 recogrized in the consofidated income statemant in the period in
which they ate incurred.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
14 Investment property (Continued)

Investrment properiies are measured wsing the cost model, Depreciation and amortization & recognized the
same way as property and equipment and land use rights

The accounting policies of impairment of vestment property are included in Mote 1| 18 Impaimment of
Tangible and intangible Assets other than Goodwill,

Whera an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the investment property is
increased 1o the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount had no impairment loss been recognized. A reversal of an
impairment foss is recognized in the consalidated income statement,

When an Iinvestment property is sold, transterred, retired or damaged, the Group recognizes the amount
of any proceeds on disposal, et of the carnying amount and related expenses, in the consalidated income
statement

15 Leasing

Lease s 2 contract or part of a confract that conveys the right to use an asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideratian

The Group as lessee

The Group recognized the rignt-of-use assels at the commencement date, and recognized the bease
liabilities at the present value of the outstanding lease payments. Lease payments include fixed payments,
the amounis expecied to be payable by the group if the group is reasonably certain to exarcises a purchase
option or a option to terminate the lease. Variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate are
recogniaed as an expense in profit or loss when incurred.

The Group's right-of-use assets mainly include rented howses and buildings. The right-of-use assets are
measured at costs, which include the amount of the initizl measurement of lease lisbilities, any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, any initial direct costs and less any lease incentives
received If the Group could reasonably determine the cwrnership of the leased asset when the lease
term expives, the nghl-of-use assets are depreciated over the aset's remaining useful life. Otherwise, the
right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of the asset's useful life and the lease ferm on
a straight-fine basis, When the recoverable costs of right-of-use assets are lowser than the carrying amount,
the value of right-of-use assets will be decreased down 1o the recoverable costs,

Short-term leases and leates of low-value assets are recognized on a straight-bne basis as an expense in
profit or loss. Short-term leases ase leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Leases of low value assets
are the underlying assets are of low value when new.

The Group as lessar

When the Group is the lessor in a finance lease, a finance lease receivable as an amount equal to the net
fease imvestment 5 recognized and the finance lease assel is derecognzed at the commencement date.
The finance lease raceivables are recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position as Loans and
advances 10 customers,

When the Group s the lessar in an operating lease, rental income fram operating leases & recognized as
other operating income in the consalidated income statement on a straight-hine basis over the term of the

related kease. The imitial disect costs are included in the carrying amoent of the underlying assets and 5
recognized as expenses over the lease term on the same basis as the lease income.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
16 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents are shori-term and highly liguld assets, which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, Cash and cash eguivalents include
cash and assets with ariginal matusity of three months or less under cash and balances with central banks,
deposits with banks and other fimancial instituticns, placements with and leans to banks amd other financial
institutions and financial assets held under resale agreements

17 Intangible assets

Imangible assels acquired separalely and with finite useful lives are cameed at cost less accumulated
amorlization and any accumulated impairment lois. Amortization for intangiole assets with finite wseful
lives is recognized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives which generally range from
5 to 20 years.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives a%¢ not amortized, BUt are subject to annual impainment
assessment

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the met dsposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the consolidated
income statement.

18 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amaunts of its tangible and intangible
assets 1o determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
It any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's fair value less
costs 1o sell and value in use.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated o be less than its carmying amount, the carrying amaount
af the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized in the corsolidated
income statement.

Where gn Impaimment loss subseguently reverses, the cariying amownt of the assel is increased 1o Lthe
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, 1o the extent that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount had no impairment loss been recognized. A reversal of an impairment boss is
recognized in the comsolidated income statement.

19 Dividend distribution
Dividend dstribution to the Bank's orcinary equity halders 15 recognized a: a hiabifity in the Group’s and
the Bank's financial statements in the parod m which the dwidands are appeoved by the ordinary aquity
hofders in the annual general meeting of the Bank.
As authonzed by the ordinary equity holders in the annual general meeting, the Board of Direclors has
the sole discretion to declare and distribute dividends an preferance shares. Prefersence share dividend
distnbubion is recognized ¢ a liabdity i the Group's and the Bank's financial datements in the pericd in
which the dividends are approved by the Board of Directors of the Bank.

20 Provisions

Prowsions are recegnized when the Group has 3 present obligation as a resull of a past event, and it ks
probable that the Group wall be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the cbligation.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
20 Provisions (Continued)

Pravisions are measured at the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present ebligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking imto account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. Where a provision is maasured using the cash fiows estimated to settie the present oblgation,
its carrying amount s the present value of those cash flows,

21 Fiduciary activities

The Group acts as a custodian, trustee and in other fiduciary capacities to safeguard assets for customers
in accordance with custody agreements between the Group and securities investment funds, social security
funds, insurance companies, tnest companies, gualified foreign institutional investars, annuity schemes
and other institutions and indeviduals, The Group receives fees in return for its services provided under the
cusiody agreemenis and does not have any interest in the economic risks and rewards related to assets
unger custody. Therefore, assets under custody are nol recognized in the Group's consclidated statement
af financial position

The Group conducts entrusted lending arrangements for its customers. Under the terms of entrusted loan
arrangements, the Group grants loans o borrowers, as an intermediary, according to the instructon of its
customers who are the lenders providing funds for the entrusted foans, The Group i5 responsible for the
arrangement and collection of the entrusted loams and receives a commission for the services rendered. As
the Group does nat assume the economic risks and rewards of the entrusted loans and the funding for the
correspording entrusted funds, they are not recognized as assets and leabilities of the Group.

22 Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments

A financial guaraniee contract is a contract that requires the issuer o make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due, in
accordance with the terms of a dabt irstrumant

Financial guarantees are initially recognized at fair value on the date the guarantee was gven, Subseguent
ta initial racogrition, the Group's Babilities under such guarantess are measured at the higher of the initial
amaount, less amortization of guarantee fees, and the ewpected credit loss prowvision required to settle
the guarantes. Any mcrease in the liability relating to guarantees is taken to the consolidated income
slalement

The impairment allowance of loan commitments pravided by the Group is measured using ECL models. The
Group has not provided any commitment to provide loans at a below-market interest rate, or that can be
settled met in cash or by delivering of issuing another financial instrument.

For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the loss allewance is recognized as a provision.
However, for contracts that inclede both a boan and an undrawn commitment and the Group cannot
saparalely idantify the expected cradit losses on the undrawn commitment component fram those on the
loan component, the expected credil losses on the undrawn commitment are retognized together with
the loss allowance for the foan. To the extent thal the combined expected credil losses exceed the grods
carrying amaunt of the loan, the expected credit losses are recognized as a provision.

23 Contingent liabilities
A contingent liabality i a possible obbgation thal arses from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the otcurrence or nen-cecurrence of one or mode uncertain future events nat whally wathin
the contral of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from past events that is not recognized

because It B not probable that an outfliow of economic resources will be reguired or the amount of
obligathon cannol be measured retiably.
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For the year ended 31 Decernber 10240
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
23 Contingent liabilities (Continued)

A contingent liabilty Is nol recognized, but disclosed, unbess the pessibility of an outlfiow of resources
embodying economic benafits is probable. The Growp’s contingent liabilities are disclosed im Note [V 42
Contingent Liabilities and Commitments.

A provsion is recegnized when it meets the criteria as set forth in Note I| 20 Provisions.,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are describad in Mote (|, management is required
1o make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the carmyng amounts of assets and labiities. The
estimates and related assumptions are based on historical experience and other relevant factors including
reasonable expectations for future events,

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in future periods as appropriate

The following are the critical judgments and key estimates management has made in the process of applying the
Group's accounting palicies thal have a significant risk of causing a material adjusiment 1o the carrying amounts
of zssets and liabilities within the next twelve months.

1  Measurement of the expected credit loss allowance

The measurement of the expected credit loss allowance for financial assets measured at amortized cost and
FYOCI and for exposures arising from some loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, is an area
that requires the use of complex models and significant assumptions abouwt future econamic conditians and
credit behavior {the likelinood of customers defaultng and the resulting kosses). Explanation of the inputs,
assumptions and estimation technigues used in measuring ECL is further detailed in Note IV 44.1 Credit
risk.

2 Classification of financial assets

The critical judgments the Group has made in determining the classfication of financial assets nclude
analysis of business models and characteristics of contractual cash flows.

The Group determines the business model faor managing financial assets at the level of financial asset
portiolia. The factors considered include how the asset's performance is evaluated and reported lo key
managemeant perscnnal, how risks are assessed and managed and how managers are compensated,

When astessing whether the contractual cash flow of financial assets is consstent with the basic lending
arrangement, the Group has the following main judgments: Whether the principal may b2 subject to
change in the duration or amount of money dee to prepayments during the duration; whether interasts
on'y included time walue of money, credit risk, other basik borrowing risks, and considerations for costs
and profits, For exampde, whether the amount paid in advance reflect only the outstanding principal and
inlafest on the outstanding peincipal, as sell as reasonable compensation for early lamunatan af the
contract.
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Il CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3 Fair value of financial instruments

The Group uses valuation techniques to estimate the fair value of financial instruments which are not
quoted in an active market. These valuation techrigquaes include the use of recent transaction prices of the
same ar similar instruments; discounted cash flow analyss and generally accepted pricing models, To the
extent practical. market obsarvable inputs and data, such a5 interest rate vield curves, foreign currency
rates and implied option volatilities, are used when estimating fa'r value through a valuation technigue,
Where market observable inputs are not available, they are estimated using assumptions that ane calibrated
a closaly as possible to market obsarvable data. However, areas such as the credit sk of the Group and
the counterparty, lguidity, walatilites and correlations requise management 1o make estimates. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the estimated fair value of financia® instruments

With respect to PRC government obligations related to large-scale policy directed financing transactons,
fair value 5 determined using the stated terms of the related instrument and with reference to terms
determined by the FRC gowernment in similar transactions engaged in or directed by the PRC government
in this regard, there are no ather relevant marke: prices or yields refiecting arm’s length transactions of a
comparzble size and lanos,

4 Taxes

There ane certain transactions and activities in the ordinary course of the Group's busingss for which the
ultimate tax effect is uncertain. The Group made cenain estimation and judgement for items of uncertainty
in the application of tax legislations, taking into account existing tax legislation and past practice of tax
authorities. Where the final tax outcome of these matiers is diffesent fram the amounts that were initially
astimated, based on managements assessment, such differences will affect the current incoma tax and
deferred income tax during the period in which such a determination is made,

5 Consolidation of structured entities

‘Where the Group acls as assel manager of or investor in structured entities, the Group makes significant
judgement on whether the Group contrals and should consolidate (these structured entities, When
performing this assessment, the Group assesses the Group's contractual nights and obligations in ight of
the transaction structures, and evaluates the Group's power over the structured entities, performs analysis
and tests on the variable returns from the structured entities, incleding but not mited to commission
income and @501 management fees earned a5 the asset manager, the retention of residual incame, and, if
any, the liquidity and other suppodt provided o the structured entities. The Group alio avesses whether
it acts as a prncipal or an agent through analysis of the scope of its decision-making authority aver the
structured entities, the remuneration to which it & entitled for asset management services, the Group's
exposure to vamability of returns from its ather interests in the structured entities, and the rights held by
other parties in the structured entities.

222 (pAmkann

341/497

EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
Oooooooa



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
Oooooooa

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020
tAmoeants in millons of Rermink:, unless atheranse stated)

Il CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

6 Derecognition of financial assets transferred

In its normal course of business, the Group transfers it5 financial assets through various types of
transactions including ragular way sales and transfers, securitization, financial assets sofd undar repurchase
agreements, secunties lending. The Group applies significant judgement in assessing whether it has
transferred these financial assets which gualify for a full or partial cerecognition,

Where the Group enters into structured transactions by which it transfers financial assets to struciured
entities, the Group analyzes whathor the substance of the relationship between the Group and thase
structured entities indicates that it controds these structured entities o defermine whethes the Group needs
to consolidate these structured entities. This will determine whether the following derecognition analysis
should be conducied at the consolidated level or at the entity level from which the financial assets are
transterred.

The Group analyzes the contractual rights and obligations in connection with such transters to determing
whether the derecognition criteria are met based on the following considerations:

. whether it has transferred the rights to recenve contractual cash flows from the financial assets ar the
transfer gualifies for the *pass through™ of those cash flows to independent third parties.

* the exten! 10 which the associated risxs and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are
transferred,. Significant judgment is applied in the Group’s estimation with regard to the cash flows
before and after the transfers and other factoes that affect the outcomes of Group's assessment on
the extent that risks and rewsards are fransferred

- where the Group has neither retained nor transfemred substantially all of the risks and rewards
associated with their ownership, the Group analyzes whether it has relinquished its controls over
these financizl assets by assessing whether the transieree has the practical ability to sell the asset in its
entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing
1o impase additional restrictions on the tramsfer, and if the Graup has contimuing involvement in these
transfemed financial assets, Where the Group has not retained control, it derecognizes these financial
assets and recognizes separately as assets or liabilities any nghts and obligations created or retained
in the trarsfer. Otherwise the Group cantinues to recognize these financal assets to the extent of its
continuing Ireobternent in the financial asset
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 NET INTEREST INCOME

Year ended 31 Dacember

2020 2019

Interest income
Loars and advances 10 customers 631,753 L79.464
Including: Corporate [odans and advances 342,697 326,409
Personal loans and advances 279,855 241,250
Discounted bils 9,201 11,805

Fimancial investments
Debt instrument investments at amortized cost 187,067 172,710
Other debt mstrument mvestments at fais value thiough

other comprehensive income 51,928 549,861
Balances with central banks 34271 35,024
Placernents with and loans 1o banks and athes financal instatutions 8,824 13,585
Financial assets held under resale agresments 9,984 8,947
Deposits with banks and oiher fimancial institutions 7.105 3.549
Subtotal 930,932 873,140

Interest axpense
D 10 CUSTOMErs (2B4,552) (279,737}
Depasits from banks and other financial institutions (37.588) (33,728)
Debt securities isswed {35,746} (31,375)
Borrowings from central banks (20,424) [16.164d)
Placements from banks and other financal institutions {6,114} (3,441}
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreemenis (1.429) (1,825}
Subtotal {385,853) (372,270
Mot interest Incoma 545,079 500870

o4 @usavy
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2 NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Year ended 31 Decomber

2020 2019
Fee and commission incame
Electronic banking services 26,169 25,209
Agency senices 21,043 19,801
Bank cards (i} 14,702 15,486
Consultancy and advaory services 11,174 10,109
Settlement and clearing services. 11,129 11,443
Custodian and other fiduciary services 4,435 3,899
Cradit commitmant 1,875 1,895
Oithers 639 474
Subtoial 91,166 88,316
Foa and commission axpnse
Bank cards {i¥ {10,760} B84’}
Electronic banking services (3,182} (3,992}
settlement and clearing sevicos {1,483} {1,720}
Qthers {1,195} 17E0)
Subtodal {16.621) {15,389}
Kel fee and cosmmission income 74,545 72,927

i I accordance with the requirements pursuant fo the Notice on “Sact implementation of Accounting Standards
far Enterprises and Effective Enhancement of 2020 Annua! Reports Compriafion” issued by the MOF, State-ovwned
dsselt Supenvion and Sdminctrabion Commistion af the State Comncl the CRIRC and the China Secinlaos
Beguiatory Commisuon (the “CSACTL the Grouwp rmecoqnised income and expenies froen flevant ol card

Oooooooa

buginoss a3 interest imcome, Tho comparative figuees wono adusted acoordingly.

3 NET TRADING GAIN

Year ended 31 Decamber

2020 2013

Mol gam on debl instruments held for trading 4,178 11,085
Net gain on precious metals i 4,784 4,304
Mot gaintioss) on forelgn exchange rate derivativas am {571)
Kt loss on interest rate dervatives (3.103) (1.421)
_Qihers 7,335 5,660
Total 16,405 19,067

il Net gain on precous metals conssts of ner gan on eciows metals and precous metal relsted derivative

prodincre
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4 NET (LOSS)/GAIN ON FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS
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O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
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Year ended 31 Decembser

2020 2019
Met {lossygain on debt instruments designated as at FWPL {92} 201
Met gair on other debt instruments measured at FVPL 4,120 5,073
Met loss en financial llabalities desighated as st PUPL iy (11,211} -
Met gain on debt instruments measured at FYOC 150 am
Met {lossigain on underlying assets and liabalites related 1o
prencipal guaranteed wealth management products
designated as at FyPL (748) 36
Others {71) 12
Total (7.312) 5,793

0 Nt o an fnancial Nabdines designated & ar FVPL condisrs of the amewnt pad upen the matunty of structured

deposits desgnated ar FVPL
5 OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Year ended 31 December

L2020 2019
Imsurance premum 26,151 22,938
Mel (lossygain on foreign exchange {95) 2,804
Gowernment grant TE4 824
Gain on disposal of property and equipment 1.172 1.017
Rental income a50 863
Others 1.652 2.247
Total 30,614 30,693

6 OPERATING EXPENSES

Year ended 31 Decamber

2020 2019
Staff costs () 123,345 124,267
General oparating and adminlitratove expenses {24 49,452 48246
Insurance benalits and claims 17,873 23,349
Depreciation and amortization 19,551 1B.711
Tax and surcharges 3 5.813 5.688
Qthers 3,863 3.835
Tatal 229,897 224,005
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
6 OPERATING EXPENSES (Continued)

1) Staff costs
Yoar ended 31 Decambar

2020 2018

Shart-term employes banelils
Salaries, bonuses, alowance and subsidies 80,854 79,255
Housing funds 8,933 8,524
Social insurance 4,713 5,450
Including: Medical insurance 4,398 4,902
Maternily insurance 205 407
Empleyment injury insusance 110 141
Labor umon fees and staff education expenses 3,613 3,534
Othars 10,595 10,044
Subtotal 108,708 106,807
Defined contribution benefits 14,632 17.399
Early retirement benefits 5 61
Tatal 123,345 124,267

(&) Included in general operating amd adminstrative expenses s auditor's remuneration ol
RMB146 milion for the year, consisting of KME137 million for financial staternents audit service and
RMES mllion for non-audit professional service. (2015 RMEB157 million Tor the year, consisting of
RMEYIE million for financial statements audit service and RMEZT million for non-audit professianal
service J.

(3) From 1 May 2016, the Group & sunject to valee-adoed Taxes on its income from credit business, fes
income an financial services, income Trom insurance business and trading of financial products at 69%.

Pursuant to the “Circular regarding Further Clarification of Relevant Policies Applicable 1o the
Financial Secior in the Comprehensive Implementation of the VAT Pilot Programs® (Cal Shui [2018]
Mo 46), the Bank elected o adopt a simplified methodology to cakulate value-added taxes at 3%
on inferest income derwved from loans granted 1o farming households, rusal enterposes and other
rural Institations by county-fevel sub-branches included in the Bank’s pilat programs of the Sannong
Finance Division, incleding those under the Bank's provincial branches in provinces, autonomous
regions, municipalities directly under the central government and mumicipalities with independant
budgetary status as wefl a5 those under the Xinjiang Production and Construction Corps Branch

City construction and mairtenance tax i caleulated at 1%, 5% or 7% of VAT for the Group's
Domaestic Cperations.

Education surcharge is calculated at 3%, while local education surcharge is caloulated at 2% of VAT
for the Group's Domestic Operations.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
7 BEMNEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

(1} Detans of the Dweclovs’, Supenisors’ and Senior Managemen!'s emourments ane as folowms (n thousands
of Rivigl:

Year ended 31 December 2020

Contribution Other

Baslc to retirement benefits

salaries and benefit  in kind
Item Fees  allowance schiemes (il Total

Executive Directors

Zhou Mubing m = 619 i 73 769
Zhanp Qingsong fia) - 819 71 LES T6%
Thang Xupuwang (i) - 557 74 T2 T3

Irdependent Kon-Expcutive Directors
Yaao Xing LAl
\Wang Xinmn 380
Huang Thenzhong 380
My LEUNG KO May Yies LU
Liu Shouying 360

SEEE3

Hon-Exgcutnge Caectons
Lizar Liirming
Li Qwyun
Li Ve
Wi lianglao
Zhu Haln i)

SUpRIVISOns
Wang kngdang
Hia Taih
Shao Liheng
Wu Gang
Li Wang
Zhang le
Liu Hongua
Fan liangang ()

 BEE2Bery,
 BeBBEEs

Semar Management
Ihan Dangsheng
Cul Yong
Xu Han i)
Li Thicheng
Han Guoqiang i}

1
sz
sESZE

Executive Direclor resigned
Ihang Keaiu {iin) - 511 i 13

g

Hon-Executrve Derectors resgned
Chien Jlanbo {x) — = = = =
¥u Jiandong (x} - - - - =

Supervisors resigned
Warg Xingchun (i) - - - = 5

Senior Management resigned
Zhou Wanfu [t - 244 i1 15 FEL

Total 2,540 5,663 747 538 9.588
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

i '[BCENEFﬂugd?Nn INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Qi

(1) Detads of the Directors’, Supenasars” and Servor Management’s emoluments are as follows fin thousands
of RMEE {Continued)

o

faiy

i}
[
]
fw}
i}
frat}
fux}
e}
i}
i}

[l

The

Zhouw Mubing coased o be Chavrman of the Board of Durectors and Esgoutive Director effective 7 January
2071,

Zhang Qingsong was olected Vice Chairman of the Board of Dimctors and Executive Director effective
14 January 2020

ZTharg Xuguang was alicted Emcutive Director affeciae 12 Octoboer 2020

Zhu Hailin was riecled Nor-Executive Durector effective 25 June 2020,

Fan hangiang was ehecled Superesar of the Shaobolders Representative effective 27 November 2020,
Xu Han was efected Evecutar Vioe President effecinee 17 October 28240

MHan Guogang wad olected Secrotary of the Board of Directors effective 3 November 2020,

Zhang Keqiu ceased fo be Doecutne Divector and Esscutive Vice Presdent effective 38 Novernber 2020,
Chen Jlignba ceazed to bi Nen-Evdcutive Directer effecthie 79 hine 2020,

Xu bandondg ceased to be Nor-Frscatoee Divector effective 18 ke 2020

Wang Xingchun comsod to be Supdrwsor mprosonting Sharcholder offectne 29 fne 2020,

Fhou Wanfy ceased to be Secretaoy of the Board of Dinectovs and the company secretary eifecine 24 March
2520,

her bensfirs in knd include the Aank's coninbutont to medical fund Housing fund and orther socal
Insuramoes, which e paabde fo labour and secunty authanties based on e lower of certain percentage
of the salares and alewance of the prescribed upper firmits as requined by the relewant requiations isswed by
the gowdrmment au thaovned

todal compensation packages for the above Executve Duirectors. Supervisors and  Seniar

Management for the year ended 31 December 2020 have nol yel been finalized in accordance with
regulations of the relevant authorities i the PRC at the date of this consolidated financial statements,
The final compensation will be disclosed i 2 separate announcement when determmed.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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7 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

(Continued)
{1} Detafls of the Dreclovs’, Supenvisors’ and Senior Managements emoluments ae as follows (in thousands
of RVEL (Continued)
Year enced 31 December 2019 (Rastated)
Contrition Other
Bauc  toretremert ber=fits
salanies anid benzft in lerd
fem Feps alowarce sohires ] Totad
Enseuire Deacioes
Ihind Mo B 93 &0 554
Ihing Keqrl ] 738 - a 515
Irchpandant NeeExecutiag Directors
Xag Xng i) e i~ - o0
Wang Kinun 357 - & ot 67
Huarg Ehenthong 357 - - - 367
M. LEUNG KD May Yee 1] 145 - : 145
Liu Showying: () 146 = - 146
Nor-Eaecutive Direcson
M liandong - - - - -
Chen Ranbo
Lian Lurming = = -
L Gy - - -
Li e il - = e = =
‘Wu Jangtao it - - - - N
Sopaniis
Wang Angdeng - il # & ]
‘Warg Xingcrun - . i s =
¥ia Tub ] < _ & 0
Shao Linong 50 = = 50
Wu Gang il 12 - - - 12
Liiang 0 - - - 240
Ihang lig 310 - N 5 30
L Hiznigia 00 o i . 00
Semior Management
Ihang Qingsang i) - s F| M 0
Zheng Kuguang fill) - &l 7 7 %
Zhan Dongsherg (i) - &n n 13 g1
Cui Yorg i} = 854 13 o B8
L fhicheng - 846 147 7 a1
Ihou Wanifu {i} - 1,045 143 77 1088
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

i {HEENEFnEd?"D INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Qntinu

(1) Detads of the Directors’, Supenasors’ and Senior Management’s emoluments ane as follows fin thousands
of A [Continued)

Year endad 31 Decemier 2019 (Fastated)

Contribulion Other
Bage  ioretiement benefty
salanios ancl beneit n kind
Bem Fees alowance schemes Lioym] Todal
Erecutre Duecter resigned
Werg We [xii} - B B4 T4 E37
Cu [wii] - 41 52 & 53
Hon-Executee Direclors resgred
Hu Xuohui ) - - - - =
W T v} m S : i m
Yuzn Tianfan () 152 - . - o1l
Suptrron negned
Liu Changn: {10l 4 - - - 4
Senior Management nesgned -
Gong Chao [xaiil - &1 9 n 4
Total 1,981 B335 B 758 13,553

& Zhang Kegu was elected Espcutive Director effective | Apnl 2018,

@) M Lewng Ko May Yoo was elected independent Mon-Executive Director affective 30 july 2015,
W L Shouwying was oleclod independant Non-Executive Director effectie 39 fuly 2019

o) L Wi was slected Mon-Executive Director offective 21 May 2019

fel W danglso was elected Non-Executive Director effective 29 July 2018,

feld  Wu Gang was slected Suparvisar of Employees Represeniative effective 9 October 2015

fwil)  Thang Qmgsong waz slectod Exvocutie Prosident offectrve 25 October 2019 and Vice Chairman of the Board
af Director: and Execulee Divector eflechive 14 Jaripary 2020,

Tl Zhang Xuguang was efeched Eveculse Vice President effective 23 Decomber 2018,

g} Zhan Dongsheng waes elected Execulive Vice Fresident effectne 79 Apnl 2219,

f  Cwr Yong was elected Executive Vioe President effective 10 Aay 20158

(] ghagawhnmmndr-ubp&scmwor:msmdulommmwmwmwwmszwﬁ

O} Wang Wed ceased fo be Drecutive Director and Cxeculive Vice Pretident affective 28 November 2018

o] Caf Dang wits efected to be Executivee Vice Presidient effectw 10 May 2019 andl Executive Directar effectins
28 fune 2015, coased ho be Execulive Dvvectior and Executive Vice Prescdent elffectve 14 October 2019,

bev) Hu Ksaohu coased to be Nor-Execulive Director effecines 9 Januwary 2018,

vl "g,'l-ém Tieprn and Franchs Yuen Tian-fan cessed to be Independent Non-Executive Director effective 30 Augus!
i)

bovil  Liu Chengor ceesed to be the Supervisor of Emplopees Aepresentative effectve 9 Golober 2019,
lewill Gong Chao ceased fo be Secrotary of the Party Duadne Committes effactive 2 January 2019,

(ewinl) Other bewefits in k' include the Bank's contnbubens to mediead fund, housing fund and arher social
insurances, which e payalie to laboor and secunity duthonlies based on the fower of certain percent,
af the zalaries and allswance or the prescrbed upper imits as equired bie the refevant regulations Mﬂ‘aﬁ
the government authorie.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7 {I::EHIIEFFTSd?HD INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ontinue

{2) Five individuals with the highest emaluments in the Group

(i) Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, none of them are Directors, Supervisors
or Senor Management whose emoluments are doclosed above. The emoluments of the five
Individuaks whose amaluments were the highest in the Group for the year ended 21 Decombir
2020 and 31 December 2019 ware as follows:

Year ended 31 Dacember

2020 2019
Basic salaries and allowance 15 13
Discretionary bonuses 12 14
Contrbution to retirement benelit schemes and ather 1 1
Total 8 28

(i} The number of these fve individuals whose emaluments fell within the following bands are as

fodlows:
Year ended 31 December

2020 2019
RMED 500,007 1o RMWBS, 000,000 yuan 3 ]
RMES.CO0,007 10 RMBES, 500,000 ywaan - 1
RIWIBS,500,001 1o RMBE, 000,000 yuean - -
RMB6,C00,001 1o AMBE, 500,000 yuan 1 1
AMEE, 500,001 to RMBT 000,000 vuan = =
RMET CO0.007 to RMET, 500,000 yuan - -
RMET, 500,001 10 RMBE, 000,000 visan 1 1

Foor thar yaars ended 21 Decernmber 2020 and 31 Docember 2019, no emolument was paid by the
Group 1o the five highest pald individuals as an inducement 1o join or upon [eining the Group or
% a compersation for boss of office. For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December
2019, rone of the five highest pald individuals walved any emolument

{3} Other benefits and interests of Directors and Supervisors pursuant to the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap.622).

Far the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, no amolument was paid by the
Group to any of the Directors and Supervisors as an inducement 1o join o upon jining the Group
or & a compensation for loss of office. Except for the Annuity Scheme and Pension Schems (Naote
Il ¥ Employee Benefits), there were no other retirerment benefits for Directors or Supervisors, or
consideration provided to third parties for making available Directors’ or Supervisors' services; and
none of the Directors or Supervisors waived any emolument, or had material interests, whether
directly or indirectly, in any material transactions, armangements or contracts in relation to the Group's
bausiness far the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019

The Group enters into credit transactions with the Directors, Supervisors or cerlain controlled body
corporates and connected entities of the Directors or Supervisors at arm's length in the ordinary
course of business. For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 and as at 31
December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the respective balances of loans and advances from the
Group to Directars, Supervisors or cerfain controlled body corporates and connected entities of the
Cirectars or Superdisars were not significant. The Group did not provide any guarantes or security
to the Directors, Supervisors or cerfain controlled body corporates and connected entities of the
Directors or Supervisces in respect of their boans, guasi-loans or credit transactons.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

8 CREDIT IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

Year ended 31 Decomber

2020 2019
Loans and advances ta customers 138,088 131,833
Financial imvestiments
Dabt instrumaent Investrments at amortized cost 6.796 m
Other debt Instruments investments at fair value through
ather comprehensive income 5,070 985
Pravision for guarantees and commitments 10,575 3,940
Placemants with and laans 1o banks and other financial institutions 1.41% in
Ceposits with banks and ather financial institutions B64 514
Financial assets hald under resale agreements 936 408
Qihers 51 543
Total 164,699 138,605

9 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Year ended 31 December

2020 2019

Curent moome tax
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax 58,220 62,674
— Hong Kong Prafits Tax 664 824
— Other jurisdictions {26) 215
Subtotal 58,858 63,713
Delerred tax (Naote IV 22) {10,208} | T0LDET)
Total 48,650 53,652

PRC Enterprise Income Tax i calculated at 25% of the estimated taxable prafit for bedh years, and zlso
includes supplementary PRC tax on Overseas Operations as determined in accordance with the relevant PRC
income tax rules and regulations. Pre-tax deduction tems of enterprise income tax are governed by the
relevant tax regulations in Mainland China. Taxation ansing in other junsdictions (including Hong Kong) is

calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant jursdictions

The tax charges for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2015 can be reconciled (o the

profit per the consolidated income statement as Tollows:

Year ended 31 Decamber

2020 015
Prafit before tax 265,050 266,576
Tax calcwlated a1 apphcable PRC statutory tax rate of 25% 66,263 66,644
Tax effect of incame not taxable for tay purpose i {36,294} {31,575}
Tax effect of costs, expenses and losses not
deductible for tax purpose 10,061 18,684
Tax effect of perpetual note Interest expense {1,300} -
Effect of different lax rates in olher jurisdictions (B} {101}
Income tax expense 48,650 53,652

1) Non-tacable mcome prrnanly inciudes infenesl meome fram PRC breasuy bonds and municpal government bonds
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
10 DIVIDENDS

Yoar ended 31 Decembser

2020 2019

Dividends on ordnary shares declared
Cash dividand related 1o 2019 1] 63,662 =
Cash dividand related ta 2018 12} - 60,562
63,662 60.862
Dividerids on preference shares declared and pasd (3} 4,328 4,600
Interest on perpeiual bonds declared and paid 4} 5.202 -

1 Distrbution of final dividend for 2018

A cagh dindend of RMBO 1819 per ordinary share related fo 2018, amounting to RMBEI, 662 milion in tofal
wad approved, affer the requined appvopnalons for the satutary surplus resecve and the geneval reserve for
J018 as getormined in accordance wath the relevant accowniing rules and finandial reguiations applicabde fo PRC
snferprises fihe “FRC GAAP") af the annual general mesting held on 29 June 2620,

The above dividind was recogried as ditfributon and distabiuted disttg the year ended 31 December 2020

(2)  Dristntuton of final dividend for 2008
A cash diwdend of RMED, 1 739 per ordwnary share related to 2018 amownting te RMEE0 862 milkon in total was
approved, after the required approgriations for the statutony sumpius resene and the general resene for 2018 a5
dietermined in srcordance with the PRC GAAR af the annual general meeting held on 30 May 2019,
The above dividend was recagnized as distribution and distrbuted during the year ended 31 December 2019,

(3 Danbution of dvidend on preference shanss for 2020
A cash dwdend a the divdend rate of 5.5% per amium elated to the secord tranche of preference shaves of
J0019 fo 2020 amounfing to RMEZ 200 milion in foral was approved at the Board of Directors” Meeling hald on
10 janwary 2020 and oistrbuted on 11 March 2020,
A cash dividend ar the diabend rate of 5.32% per annum relafad 1o the st tranche of preference shares of 2019
to 2020 amounting o AMBZ, 128 million in tafal was approved at the Board of Directors” Meeting held an 3 July
2000 and distributed on 5 November 2020
Dhstnbwtion aof dividend an preference thares for 2015
A cash diwdend af the diwdend rate of 5.5% por annum mlated fo the second tranche of preference shares of
2008 o 2009 amounting fo RMEZ, 200 ertlicy i fofal veas apprved af i Bodrd of Déechors” Meeting fehd n
11 danwary 2018 and distributed on 71 March 2078,
A cash dewidend ar the dindend rate of 6% per annum related to the first tranche of preference shares of 2018
to J0N3 amounding o RMEZL400 millian mn redal was approved at the Board of Directors’ Meeling heid on 30
August 2075 and distribated on § November 2019

&) Distritution of interest on porpetual bonds for 2020
Perpetual bomds Ksted i the stateenant of fnandal positon refer o wdeled ter 1 ooapital bonds. An interes? +f
the inferest rate of 439% per annurm related fo the fiest tranche of perpetual bonds amounting o RMES, 732
roilan in fotal was declared on 17 August 2020 and distibuled on 20 August 2020,

An interest at the intevest rate of 4.20% per annum related to the second tranche of parpetual bonds amounting
to AME L 470 million (n toral was declyred an 2 Soprember 2020 and distributed on 7 S{.-,uiﬂ'rﬂmr 2020,

{5 A fnal diidend of RMBO. 1E5T per ordinary share m respect of the year ended 31 December 2020 fatakng
RiaRG4, 782 millinn has been proposed by the dvecfors and 5 sawhject ta approval By the andanary sguity halder in
the anniual geneval meshing.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
11 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of baskc and diluted carnings per share is as fallows:

Yoar ended 31 Decambar

2020 2019
Earmings:
Prafit for the year attributalse 1o equity holders of the Bank 215,925 212,098
Less: profit for the yaar attributabde 10 other equitly instruments bolders
of the Bank 19,530} 14, 800)
Profit for the year attribuiable to ordinary equity holders
af the Bank 206,395 207,498
Kumber of shares:
Weighted average number of ardinary shares in osue (in mellions) 349,983 349,983
Bassc and diluled sarnings per shara (RMB yuan) 0.5% 0.59

For the years ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, the Bank issued non-cumulative
predesence shares, respactively, and the spacific terms are includad in Note 1V 33 Other aguity instruments.

For the year ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the Bank issued non-cumulative
undated tier 1 capital bonds, respectively, and the specific terms are included in Nate 1V 33 Other aquity
Instruments,

Foe the purpose of caleulating basic earnings per share, cash dividends ol AM24.328 miflion of non-
cumulative preference shares declared in respect of the year of 2020 and interests of RMES, 202 million of
non-cumulative undated tser 1 capital bonds in respect of 2019 were deducted from the profit for the year
attributable 1o equity holders of the Bank (2019: cash dividands of RMEA4,600 millien of non-cumulative
prafedence shares)

The conversion feature of preference shares & consederad to fall within contingently msueable ordinary
shares, The tnggering events of conversion did notl occur for the years ended 31 December 2020 and
31 Decemnber 2019, and therefore the comvarsion leature of preference shares has no dilutive effect an
earnings per share calcubation,

12 CASH AND BALAMCES WITH CENTRAL BANKS

As at 31 December

2020 2019
Canlh 76,281 92,928
Mandatory reserve deposits with central banks {n 2,126,330 2,018,692
Surplus reserve deposits with central banks 12} 40,494 393,607
Other depasits with central banks {3) 193,142 193,631
Subtotal 2,436,247 2,698,858
Accrued intarest 1,028 1.037
Tatal 2,437,275 2,609,205
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
12 CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANKS (Continued)

[

L

&

Resonve dopority with contral banks incfude mandslodny resene dopoicds and surpiud fesorne dopdifs

The Growp places mandatory resene deposis with the PROC and overseas regulatory bodies. These include RME
mspne depotits and fosign curmnty resesse depatits, According o the mequiremenis of “Notice on Reducing
Depasit Aeserve Ratrd for Fnancial instilutons asued by the Peapke’s Bank of China™Yirifa [2020] No. 1) AME
dopasd resenve mdvo for finencia! insfiluiions i5 reguced by 0 5% from & Janwary 2020

For Domesta Operations of the Bank which meet the requirsments of “Notice on Performance Appraisai Results
OF the Sannang Banking Operations of Agncultural Bank of China Limited for 2020 istued by the Peopke’s Bank of
Chwna” (Yinbanta [2020] Ne. 381 effective from 25 March 2020 ard “Notice o Performance Appraisal Results OF
the Sannong Sanking Operations in Hubel province of Agrcultural Bank of China Limited for 2000 osued by the
Pooplo’s Bank of China™{Yinbanda (J020] No. 58}, effective from & May 2020, RME mandatovy resonw deposits
with the PEOC are based on 9.0% of gualfied RME depaiits (3] December 2019 3.5%) For the remamng
Domestec Cperatons of the Bank, AME mandalony resenve depasits are based an [ 1, 0% of qualified RME deposits
(31 December 2079 11 5%), For the owres parficipating banks and clisanng banks with ebqible RS depaits,
AME miandaiidy reserve depoiils ane based on [1.0% of qudh'l"ﬁd FAIA deposits (31T Deceinber 2078 11, 5%)
Fansign curmoncy mandatory resene dopoatits are baged on 5% (3] Decomnber 2019 5% af gualified foregn
CLPCY Sepodits from cus omers

Swvplus resone ooposits mepresent depodits maintained with the FROC in addition o the mandatond oo
depasis and maindy lor the purpose ol elsaring

Cithir depadats with central banks prmastly represent fiseal dopauts and foregn xchange sk ressnee placed with
the FACC that ane nof availabie far wie (n the Growp's dady oponiions. Fiscal depasits ame non-inferedl boasing
fram gewermmant, and the inferest rade far foreign exchange fsk reserve &5 currently sef af rero, From 12 October
2020, the foreign ecchange mek resene e was adisibed from 20% to 0 accerding fo the natee of “The
O ini o Acfusl it Fanemgn Exchamge Aisk Reenas rale o 0 ssued by PAOC on 10 Ocilober 2020,

13 DEPOSITS WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As at 31 Docomber

2020 2019

Deposits with:
Domestic banks 391,366 185.505
Other demestic financal institutions 13,511 14,2092
Cwerseas banks 27,826 34,403
Sulstestal 432,703 234,690
Accrued inferast 3,387 2.118
Allowance for impairment kosses [1.905) (1.066)
Deposits with banks and ather finarcial nstitutions, net 434,185 235,742

As at 31 Decernbar 2020, the carrping amount of deposits with banks ang other financial instituteans which
have Dopn pledged as securlty was RMB1A, 098 mulion {31 Decernber 2019 RMB14,670 millon). Thess
deposils were mainly sacunty deposits pledged with cleanng bouse and exchanges.

238 @runani

355/497

EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
Oooooooa



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
Oooooooa

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020
tAmoeants in millons of Rermink:, unless atheranse stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
14 PLACEMENTS WITH AND LOANS TO BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As at 31 December

2020 2019
Placements vath and loans 1o
Domestic banks 148,136 162,772
Oither domestic fmancial institutians 219,887 252,498
Overseas banks and other financial nstiutions 179,927 106,047
Subtatal 547,950 521,317
Accrued infafest 1.750 3,189
Allowance for impairment losses (2,752) (1,423}
Macements with and koans 1o banks and other
financial institutions, net 546,948 523,183

15 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING

The Group primanly enters inte foreign exchange rate, inlersdt rate and pracious metal derivative cantracts
related 1o trading, asset and lability managemeant, and customer initiated transactions

The contractualinctional amounts and fair values of the derivative finanaal nstruments entered into by
the Group are sel out in the following tables. The contractualnotional amounts of dervatwe financial
instrurments prowvide a bass lor comparison with fair values of instruments recognized on the comalidated
statement of financial position but do rot necessanly indicate the amounts of future cash llows invalved or
the current fair walues of the instruments and, therefore, do not indicate the Group's exposure to credit or
market risks. The fair value of derivative instruments become favourable (assets) or unfavourable (liabilites)
as a resull of fluctuations in market interest rates, foreign exchange rates or precious metal prices
relative 1o their terms. The aggregated fair values of denvative fnancial assets and liabilites can fluctuate
segmaficantly.

Certain fimancial assets and financial habiities of the Group are subiect to enforceable master netting
arrangements or similar agreements, The agreement belween the Group and the counterparty generally
ablowes tor net settlerment of the refevant financial assets and hinancal liabilmies when both elect to settle
on a net basis. In the absence of such an edectson, financial assets and financial liabiktles will be settled
an 4 gross basis, However, each party to the master netling arrangements of similar agreements will haye
the option 1o setthe all such amounts an a net basis i the event of default of the other party. The Group
did not effset thess financial assets and financial llabilties on a net basis. As a1 21 Decembes 2020 and 31
Decamber 2019, the Group does not kald any other financial instruments, other than desvatwes, that are
subject to master netting arrangements or similar agreements,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
15 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Cantinued)

31 December 2020
Contractual/

nstismal Fair value
amount Bssets Liakilities
Exchange rate dovivates
Cutrency forwards and swaps, and
cross-currency interesl rate swaps 2,411,639 54,466 l!?.!ﬂ;
Cutrancy eptions 70,259 . (444
Subtotal 58,187 {57,756}
Interest rate derivalives
Imerest rafe swaps 352,044 1.009 {4,357)
Preciows metal contracts and others 155,555 2,71 {3.169)
Total dervative financial assets and liabilities 51,937 |65.282)

31 Decemnber 2019
Contractual’

notional Fair vatug
amount Assats Liakulities
Exchange rate dervatves
Cwrrency forwards and swaps, and
Cross-currency interest rate swaps 2,751,623 23,588 {19,835)
Cuwrrency options 108,691 Sa0 (547
Subtotal 24,128 {20,382)
Interest rate dervathves
Interest rate swaps 225,976 340 1.676)
Precious metal contracts and others 95,328 475 (7,450
Tolal denvative financial assets and liabilities 24,944 (49, 548)
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
15 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING {Continued)

Credit risk weighted amount for derwative transaction counierpartics represents the counterparty credit
risk associated with dervative transactions and is calculated in accordance wath the “Capetal Rules for
Commaercial Banks (Provisionall” issued by the CRIRC which was effective from 1 January 2013 and
“Measurerment Rule of Counterparty Delault Risk Weighted Asseis on Derivatves® issued by the CBIRC
which was effective from 1 January 2019.and is depengent on, among other factors, creditworthiness of
customers and maturity charactenstics of cach type of contract, As at 31 December 2020 and 31 Decembar
2014, the credit rek weighted amount for derivative transaction counterparty was measured under the
Internal Ratings — Based approach

As at 31 December

2020 2019
Counterparty credit default rsk-weighted assets 74,562 79,547
Credit value adjustment risk-weighted assets 11,505 10,938
Total B6,467 G0, 486

{1} Fair value hedges

The following designated fair value hedging instruments are included in the denvatve financial
Instruments disclosed above.

31 December 2020

HNotional Fair values
amount Assets Liabilities
Interasl rate swaps 63,256 18 (2,860}
30 Decernber 2014
Notional Fair values -
amaunt Assets Liatalities
Interest rale swaps 76,388 24 {1,195}

The Group uses interest rate swaps to hedge against changes arising from changes in interest rates in
fair value of loans and advances to customers, other debt instrument insesiments at fair value throuoh
other comprehensive income.,

The Group™s net (lossesigains on fair value hedages are as follow:

Year ended 31 December
2020

2018
Net (osses)gaing on
— hedging instrumants {1.996} [1,881)
— hiedged ilems 1.915 1.568

The gains and losses ansing from the inetfective portion of fair value hedges were immateral in 2020
and 2019,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
15 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Cantinuad)
{1) Fair value hedges (Confinued)

The foFowing table shows maturty details with notional amount of hedging instruments disciosed

abaove:
Fair value hedges
Betwoen  Between Between
Less than tand3 3and12 Tand5 Overs
1 month  menths manths years yEars Total
31 Decembser 2020 757 1,147 9,974 39,239 11,599 63,256
31 December 2019 358 2,834 7.480 50,927 14,789 76,388
The following table sets out the detalls of the hedged items covered by the Group's fair value hedging
strategies:
31 December 2020
Accumulated
amount of fair value Line items in the
Carrying amount of  adjustments on the statement of
hedged itams hedged items financial position
Assets  Liabilities Assets Lisbilites
Other debt instrumant
investments at fair
value through other
Bonds 63,801 - - = comprehensive income
Laans and advances to
Loans 4,595 - 167 - customers
Taotal 68,396 - 167 -
31 Decembar 2019
Accumulated
amaunt of falr value Line items in the
Carrying amaunt of adjustrments on the statement of
hedged items hedged iterns financial position
Assels  Lisbilibes Assets  Labilities
Other debt instrument
Inwestments at fair
value through other
Bonds rERSF - - = camprehansive income
Loans and advances 1o
_Loams 5.552 = (51} = CUstamers
Taotal 78,660 - 151} -

{2) Cash flow hedges

Thie Group uses infeest rate swaps 1o hedge against expoaures 1o cash flow variability primarily foom
irterest rate risks of debt securities msued, The maturities of hedging instruments and hedged items
are both within ome year

In 2020, the Group's nel gains lrom the cash flow hedge of RMEZ24 milban was receqgnized in other
comprehensive incame (2019: net losses of AMB23 millon) and the gains and losses arising from the
irel{ective portion of cash llow hedge were immaterial.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

16 FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD UNDER RESALE AGREEMENTS

As at 31 December

I I 2020 2019
.ﬁ.na-ﬁ'ze:l_bv :r:ﬂTalerai type:
Dbt securites 761,081 681,891
Bills 56,801 27,958
Subtotal 817,882 709,849
Acoruad inteiest BEG 308
Allowance for impairment losses (2.542) (1,606}
Financial assets held under resale agreements, nat 816,206 048,551

The collateral received in connection with financial asseis held under resale agreement is disclosed in Note

IV 42 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments — Caollateral.
17 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS
17.1 Analyzed by measurement basis

a5 at 31 December

2020 2019

Measured at amortized cost i 13,974,384 12,279,317
Measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income 12} 577,997 Ldg,3a7

Measured at fair value through profit or Loss 3 52 -

Tatal 14,552,433 12,819,764

M Meatwed at amortoed cost

fs at 31 Decemhber
7020

ERRE]
Corpavate foans and advances
Loars and adivances 8,339,235 7,381,532
Personal foans and advarices 6,218,837 5,406,831
Subtotal 14,558,072 12,788,363
Accried inferast 34,321 11,592
Allgwance for impairment losses (618,009) (540,578)
Carrying amaunt of loans and advances (o customers
mieasured at amartired cost 13,974,384 12279 317
@ Measwred at fair value though other comprehentive income
] D
2030 2019
Corporate loans and advnces
Loans and advances 188,522 118,997
_ Pispounted billy 383,475 ARVERO
Carrying amaunt of foans and advances fo
cushomers measured af fair valve through
ndhar rnmmhmm iBCome E?T,E? E4N IRT
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

17 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (Confinued)

17.1 Analyzed by measurement basis (Continued)
3 Measured ar for value through profit or loss

As al 31 Deceinber
2020 2019

Corpovate loans and acainwes

17.2 Analyzed by ECL assessment method

Year ended 31 December 2020

Stage | Stage Il Stage 1 (D)
12m ECL Lifetime ECL Total

Gross loans and advances measured

at amarized cost (acerued intenest

nat included) 13,995,576 335,383 237,113 14,558,072
Alboweance for impairment losses (397.768) (60,700} (159,547) [618.009)
Loans and advances 1o customers, net

{accrued interest not included) 13,597,808 264,683 77,572 13,940,063
Loans and advances measured at

fair value through other

comprehensive Income 577.972 15 - 577.997
Alloweance Tor impairment losses of

loans and advances to customers

measured at fair value throwgh

olher comprehensive income {13,195) (2} - {13,197}

‘ear ended 31 December 2019
Stage | Stage ll__ Stage Wil (i)
12m ECL Lifetime ECL Total

Groas losns and advandes measured

at amorized cost (accrued intenest

neot included) 12,280,857 320316 187,150 12,788,363
Allowance for impairment losses {351.550) (57.893) [131,335) (540.578)
Loans and advances to customens, net

incerued intesest not included) 11.828.307 262,623 55,855  12.247.785
Loars and advances measured al

fair value through other

COMErENansie income 540,068 299 20 540,387
Allowance for impairment losses of

loans and advances to custamers

measured at fair value through

other comprehensive income {12,495} (27} {15} {12,537)
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continuad)
17 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (Continued)
17.2 Analyzed by ECL assessment method [Confinued)
The expecied credit loss ("ECL”) for cosporate koans and advances in stage | and stage Il as well as
all personal kboans and advances, were measured in accordance with the risk pasameters modelling
method, The CCL for corporate |oans and advances in Stage Il wene cadculated using the discounted
cash fiow mothod. For details, see Note IV 44,1 Credit Risk

i Ar 31 Decemnber 2020, the Groug's exposure of credit-impaired Stace W foans and advances covened by
collateral and pindge of the Grovpe was AME4Z. 840 million (31 Decernber 2019, the expasure of impaired
Tnans and adwinces coverad by collateral and pledge of the Growp was BUR3N 745 millon)

17.3 Analyzed by movements in loss allowance
The movements of loss allowance is mainly affected by;

- Transfers between stages due to financial instruments experiencing significant increases (or
decreases) in credit risk or becoming credit-impaired,

- Allcwiance for new financial instruments recognized,

- Remeasurement includes the impact of changes in model assumplions, updates of model
parameters, changes in probability of default and loss given default; changes in ECL due to
trarcfer of fnancial assets between stages; changes in ECL due to urwinding of discount owver
time; changes in foreign exchange translatsons for assets denominated in faresgn currencies and
other movemen1s;

- The reversal of allowances caused by repayment, write-offs and financial assets transferred out.
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For the year ended 31 Decernber 2020
{amounts in milkors of Reominbs, urless othenwise slated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
17 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (Continued)
17.3 Analyzed by movements fn loss allewance (Continued)

The following table shows the impact of above factors on 1he zllowance for impairment losses:

Year ended 31 December 2020

Stage | Stage Il Stage 11l
Corparate loans and advances 12m ECL ) Lifetime ECL _ Total
1 Jarwsary 2020 245,600 53391 110,480 41347
TransTer:
Stage | to stage Il 9,141} 141 - -
Stage Il to stage B - {24,607) 24,807 -
Stage Il to stage | 3,555 {3.555) - -
Stage Il to stage Il - 2,875 {2,875) -
Originated or purchased financial
dssaly 58,077 - - 94,077
Remeasurement (4,839} 23,295 63,367 81,847
Repayment and transfer out [54,703) {6,645} {23,566) {84,914)
Write-offs - = {36,594) {36,544)
31 Degember 2020 282,540 53,699 135.634 471,882
Year ended 31 December 2020
Stage | Staga Il Staga Il
Personal loans and advances 12m ECL {ili) Lifetime ECL {iv) Total
1 Jarnsary 2020 114,445 4,318 10,870 139,644
Transfer:
Stage | to stage Il [2.535) 1,535 - -
Stage Il to stage il - {6,305) 6,305 -
Stage Il to stage | 755 (755) - -
Stage Il to stage i - 523 [523) -
Crriginated or purchased financial
assels 55463 - - 55,463
Remeasurament had 11,846 18.501 30,991
Repayment and transfer out {40,358} {5,170} {8,470 {53,998)
Write-offs - - [12.776) {12,776)
31 Dagember 2020 126,414 7.003 23,907 159,324
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continuad)
17 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (Continued)
17.3 Analyzed by movements in loss allowance (Continued)

The folowing table shows the impact of above factors on the allowance for mpairment losses

(Cantinued):
Year ended 31 December 2019
Stage | Stage Il S1age W

Compatate loars and advances 12m ECL v} Ufetime ECLIv) Tata
I January 2319 194,146 63,973 128,611 383,730
Transfer

Stage | 1o stage Il {6,261} 6,261 = =

Stage Il to stage N - {19,356} 19,356

Stage |l fo stage | 5,548 (5,948} -

Stage I to stage () - 3,390 (3.390)
Originaled or purchased financial

assels 72,673 - - 12,6113
Romeasurement 15,202 16,147 40,776 B2 15
Repayment and frarsfer out {39,198} {11,076} (35.664) (85,538)
Write-olfs - - (39.20%) (39,209
31 Deember 2018 248,600 53,391 110,460 413,471

Year ended 31 December 2019
fane | Stage N SHage i

Personal loans and sivances 12m ECL ive} Lifetame ECL (i) Tona
I January 2014 78,018 4491 20,373 102,882
Transfer

Stage | (o stage Il {1,530} 1,530 - -

Stage |l to stage M - {5 190} 5.190 =

Stage |l fo stage | a73 {473} = =

Staqe Il 10 stage | - 432 (482
Originated or purchased financial

assels 50,904 - - S0, B0a
Remeasurement 12,311 5128 13,406 30,846
Repayment and transfer out (26,231} (1, 7400 (5,428) (32,799
Write-oifs - - {12,169 (12185
31 Decomber 2019 114,445 4,319 20,870 135,644
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
{amounts in milkors of Renminks, urless oihenwize stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cantinued)
17 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (Continued)
17.3 Analyzed by movements fn loss allowance (Continued)

iy I ORI, rhe provition rate of the Group's comporade lowm and advances in Srage | rernained stabie. The
changes of the Group's fass allowance of corporate loans and advances in Stage | weve manly diven by a
et increase of neary 13% in the cormespanding gemss amaunf

I 2020, the changes of the Group’s foss aliowanoo of corparaht loans and advancds in Sfage | were mainfy
devir by & sl increase of the provigon rale f thie Group's compovate faans and savances m Shage
I, There was no sgnificant change i the grom amount of Stage [f corporate loans and advances as of
31 Degembaer 2020 compared fo 1 Januwany 2020,

In 2020, the changes of Group's lozs allwence of covporale Joans and advances in Stage Wl were
numﬂ,rdrm bjl bath the nel frantfer beheeen stages wiuch led 1 & ner incroase of neardy 28% in the
correiponding grogs amownl and the nel tantfer i from Stage ¥ and subseguent rémeawement, This
impact v partially netted off by the mpayment, transfer aut and weite-olfs of Stoge W corporale loans and
acvanced

fw} I 2020, the proviron rate of the Group's pevsonal laans and advances in Stage [ remaweed stable, The
changes of the Growp's foss alorance of personal icant and advances in Stage | wene maindy deven a ned
incredse of peady 15% in the cormespandng qrods amdunt.

vl I J020, the changes in loss afowance of e Group's peronal foans and advances m Stage 1 wene
mainly derven by both the nel ransler beahwesn Stages which fed (o a nef ncrease of nearly 24% in the
cormipanding gradt amaunt and the nel tranafer m fram Stage | and sithsegint mmeaiatement. This
impact was nefted off partally by the repayment of Stage N personal loans and advances

In 2070, e changes in o allowence of e Group's pevsonel foans and advances in Stage W wens
nukn’_..l vt by boath itee ped frarder belvesi St wilieh led 16 4 mef mcrease of nearly 2% v the
correiponding grods amount and the net trancfer i from Stage U and sebsequent remeasirement. This
impact was nefted aff partally by the repayrrent, transfer cul and write-offs of Stage /I personal loang and
advanced

el I 2009, the changes of the Growe's loss aliowance of corpovate foans and advances in Srage | were mainly
driven by bath a net increase of rearly 11% in the correspanding grods amount and am iMcreese in provison
A

il Im 2009, the prowiuion rate of the Goup's corparate loans and advances e Stage I romams stabie. The
changes of the Group's koss aloveance of corporale laans and advances i Slage If were manly drven by a
ret decreate of neardy 3% in the cormesponding gnass arnount.

In 2019, the changes of the Group’s corporate Joans and advances @ Srage 07 were malnly drtven by the
et fransfer in from Stage i and subsequent remediurement. Thi impact was netted off by the repayment,
transfer curt and wiite-offs of Srage I corporate loans and advances Thers was no significant chanpe
in the gross ameuant of Stage W corporate loans and advances as of 31 December 20019 compared o

! Jaruary 20019

fw) I 2019, the changes of the Growp's loss allowance of personad foans and advances wn Stage [ wene
mainly diiven by both 3 net increase of rdarly T6% in the correcponding gross amoun! and an increase in
prowision rafe

25 @renavy

365/497



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
Oooooooa

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020
tAmoeants in millons of Rermink:, unless atheranse stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continuad)
17 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (Continued)
17.3 Analyzed by movements in loss allowance (Continued)

(Wil In 20T8, the prowiion fate of the Groun's persanal Joans and advances in Sage § remained stalve, Thero
was no ggnificant change in the gross amownt of Stage § personal loans and advances a5 of 31 December
JO1S compared fo | Jonuay 2019 Transfer between stages led fo ned increase m the gross amount of
personal foans and advances in Stage [T this was mawnly drven by the et fransfer in from Stage | and
the framforred amount was approvmalely 1% of the beginring balance of Stage [ porsonal lcans and
actvances. The impact on the joks aliwances for the grost amounl increass dun fo tramsfee Botween
stages was partially netted off by the transfer fo Stage W and the repayment of Stage | personal lpans and
advances. The ransfemred amount fo Srags W was neardy 709 of the Stage I balances a5 of 1 lanuary 2019
Repayrment amounl of Stage [ personal foans and advaeoes was abour 209 of the Srage If balances as of T
drauary 2018

In 2019, the changes in loss allowance of the Group's personal loans and advances iy Srage I wene mainly
drivon by the net travisfor in fromm Stage I and i sl e . This smpact wees parfialy nodtod
aff by e repayment, rarsfer oul and waite-offs of Srage IV personal laans and advances. There was ho
sgnificant change in the gross amount of Stage I personal loans and advances as of 71 Decernber 2019
campared fo | Jwaary 20159

18 FINAMCIAL INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December

' 2020 2019
Fnancial assets at fair value theaugh profit of loss 18.1 583,069 801,361
Cebit instrument investmants at amortized cost 18.2 5,684,220 4,946,741
Othar dett instrument and other aquity investments
___at far value theough other comprehensive Incoms 18.3 1,555,370 1,674,828
Total 7,822,659 7.422,930

18.1 Financial assets al fafr value through profit or loss

As at 31 December

Finanoial assets held for trading iy 223,960 240,281
Other financial assets at fair value through

profit ar loss 2} 260,240 216,052
Financial aszets designated at fair value through

profit or loss {3} 98,869 345,028
Total 583,069 801,361
Analyzed as:

Listed in Hong Kong 4,613 3,695

Listed outside Hang Kong (i} 350,444 481,884

Unlisted 188,012 315782
Total 583,069 801,361

i} Debt securihies traded on the China Domestic inder-bank Bond Markef ame included in Slited outside Hong
Kong”
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
18 FINAMNCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued)
18.1 Financial assets at fair value through prafit or loss (Continued|]
(1) Financlal assets held for trading

As at 31 December

2020 2019

Debt securthies ssued Dy
Gowetnments 7.504 10,31
Public sectoer and quasi-governments 49,764 45,231
Fenancial institutions 79,743 102,650
Corporates 45,614 43,2407
Subrfotal 182,525 201,459
Precious metal cantracts 21,959 29,132
Equity 4,944 2.354
Fund 14,532 7.336
Total 223,960 240,281

{2) orher financial assets at falr value through profit or loss (i)

As at 31 December

2020 20159

Debt securtties issued by
Public sector and quasi-governmenits 25,372 19,434
Financial institutions 106,820 72,334
Corporates 1,816 5.724
Subtotal 134,008 97.452
Equity 97.401 95,183
Fund and others 28,831 23377
Total 260,240 216,052

il Orher financia! assets at fair value through profit or foss refler fo financiad asseds that do not guaidfy
for measurerment at AC or FVOC! and are nat held for trading, meluding bond [mestments, squily
interests, funds, fnsst plans and assef management prmdiscts of the Group

(3) Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss (i)
As at 31 December

- 2020 2019
Deb1 securnties issued by
Governmants 9,440 17.137
Public sector and quasi-governments 18,071 19,790
Financial institutions 32,456 147,389
Corporates 3,899 27.334
Subtotal E3,B66 211,650
Depasits with banks and other financal instutions = 28.207
Placements with and loans to banks and
other financial institutions 27,935 104,184
Others 7.068 587
Total 98,869 345,028

i) Financrd assets designated af fair value through profit or loss mainly include the financial asset
ivested by the wealth managerment products (WM™ with principad guarantesd by the Groun
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continuad)
18 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued)
18.2 Debt instrument investments at amortized cost

As at 31 Decamber

2020 2018

Dabt securities Baued by

Governments 3,545,856 2,755,256

Fublic sector and quasi-gaovemments 1,311,556 1.278,027

Financial institutions 204,310 302,220

Corporates 129,738 124,558

Sublatal of debl securities 5,191,460 4,460,061
Recenvable from the MOF i 290,891 250,89
Specud government bonds fin} 93,348 93,352
Othars {liik 14,413 16,791
Subtotal 5.590,112 4,861,095
Accrued inmterest 110,212 95,134
Allewance for impairment lossos {16,104} (9, 488)
Dbt Instrumant Investments at amortized cost, net 5,684,220 4,946,741
Amalyred as:

Listed in Hong Kong 19,630 17.851

Listed outside Hang Kong 114 5,304,520 4,567,976

Unlisted 359,670 360,914
Tatal 5,684,220 4,946, 141

i} The Group mecewsd a notice from the MMOF in January 2020, canfying that from | January 2000, the
inferest rafe of the wpaid payments wall be venfied yoar by year based on the rane of refurn of thr five-year
treazury bond of the provious year,

ful Spercial governrnent bond refers (o the son-trarsferabie borg maeed Lay e MOF i 1998 1 ther aggegaled
principal amount of RMES3.3 bilion fo the Prodecessor Entity for capital mplnohment. The bond wilt
mafwe i 2028 and boars intevest af a fived rate of 3.25% P anfiurm, Sramng froem ) December 2008

i Mher debd metruments clissfied ar rocovables ane pomary melated fo amvestment @ unconsobidated
Sructuned enures hekd hr rhe Groug (Nobe i 41 (2

() Debe secunbet traded an the Chirn Dameitic inted-bank Band Marke? am included in “Lated sulude Hang
Kang”
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{amounts in milkors of Reominbs, urless othenwise slated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

18 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued)

18.2 Debt instrument investments at amortized cost (Continued)!

(1) Analyzed by assessment method of ECL

Year endad 31 Dacembear 2020

Stage | Stage I
o 12m ECL Lifetime ECL Tatal
Gross debt instrument
investrments at amortized cost 5,697,187 2,064 1.073 5,700,324
Allewance for impairment losses {14,850) (190) {1,064) {16,104}
Dabl instrurment investmanis
at amoriized cost, nel 5,682,337 1,874 5 5,684,220
Year ended 31 Decernber 2019
Stage | Stacge Il Stacps Il
12m ECL Lifetime ECL Tatal
Gross delt instrument
Investments at amortized cost 4,053,832 1,196 1,201 4.956,2209
_Allewance for impairment losses 18,4044 (32} {1,047} [9,488)
Debt instrument investments
at amorlized cost,_net 4,945 423 1,164 154 4.946,741

Debt instrument investments at amodtized cost in stage 11 .and stage 11 mainly included financial
Institutions band, corporates bond and other debt Instruments investments,

{2)  Analyred by mavements ja loss allowance (1)

Year ended 31 Decembear 2020

Stage | Stage Il Stage Il
12m ECL Lifetime ECL Total
1 lanuary 2020 8,409 iz 1.047 9,488
Transfer;
Stage | transfer to stage |l {33) i3 - -
Oniginated or purchasaed financial
assels 4321 - - 4,321
Remeasurement 3,295 126 144 3,565
Maturities or transfer out {1,142) {1) - (1,143}
White-offs - - {127} {127}
31 December 2020 14,850 190 1,064 16,104
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For the year ended 31 Decernber 10240
tAmounss in millions of RBerimenbi, unless otheramse stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
18 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued)
18.2 Debt instrument investments at amortized cost (Confinuwed)

{2) Analyzed by movements in loss allowance (1] (Continued

Year ended 31 December 2019

Stage | Stage || Stage Il
12m ECL Lifetime ECL Total
1 lanuary 2019 6,691 236 2,260 9,187
Transter:
Stage | transfer 1o stage Il (29) 29 3¢ 2t
Stage | trancfer 1o stage NI (382) - 382
Onginated ar purchased financial
ASSELS 1,832 = = 1.832
femeasurement 1,534 3 4 1.541
Maturities ar transior out {1,237 236) {1,599} (2,072}
31 December 2019 8409 32 1,047 59,483

il Asaf 31 December 2000, the increases of the Groip's foss alfewance of debt ingfrumenl nedhmants
at amortized cost were mainly due fo the increase of debt insrument ivestments and the
memeasurement of femamed debt instrument investments s the year. The decreaies af the Group's
leas alowrnce of dedt strument nwesdments o arnovlized oost wee mainly due 0 malunities o

transfer out of debt instrument irmestmants.

18.3 Other debt instrument and other equity investments at fair valve through other

comprehansive income
Yoar ended 31 December 2020
Cumulative
amount of
change in fair
Amortized value that
cost of debt Is accruad
instruments/ to other Cumulative
cost of equity camprehensiva amount of
instruments Fair value income impairment
Debt instruments (13 1,537,987 1,551,438 13.452 (10,074)
Equity instrumaents 2] 1,784 39 1.147 N/a
Tatal 1,540,771 1,555,370 14,559 {10,074}
‘ear ended 31 December 2019
) D Cumulaive
amaunt of
change in fair
Amortized value that
cast of debt is accrued
INSLrUmens i ather Curmulative
cost of equity comprehensive amount of
Irstruments Fair valua ITCOTHE IFrpairrrent
Dabit instruments (1 1,650,974 1.671,745 20,172 16,897}
Equity instruments (2} 2,050 3082 1,032 Y
Total 1,653,024 1,674,828 21,804 16,897}
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

18

FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued)

EDINETOOOO
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18.3 Other debt instrument and other equity investments at fair value through other

comprehensive income (Continued)
(1) Debt instruments

{a) Analyzed by moasurement basis

Ag at 31 Decambar

2020 2019

Dbt socuritios rmsued by

Gavernments 702,202 744,035

Pubkic sectar and quas-govem ments 242,345 247,527

Financal institutions 453,176 478172

Corporatas 119,079 165,470

Subtatal 1,516,802 1.635.004
Others 18,902 1B.556
subtotal of debt instruments 1,535,704 1,653,560
Accrued interest 15,735 18,186
Tatal 1,551,439 1,671,746
Analyzed a5

Listed in Hong Kong 102,413 107,477

Listed outside Hong Kong 1,399,150 1,499,316

Uniisted 49,876 64,953
Total 1,551,439 1,671,746

) Ouhers pamarly inchade bvestments in enconsohicated shuciured eatities bald by the Group
Norte [ AR such as tat investmant plans and deht imvestment plans
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1} Debt instruments (Continued)
) Analyzed by assessment method of ECL

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
18 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued)

18.3 Other debt instrument and other equity investments at fair valve through other
comprehensive income (Continued)

¥oar anded 31 Decombor 2020
Stage | Stage Il Stage IIl
12m ECL Lifatima ECL Tatal
Citer debt instruments at
Fair value through other
compeehengive income 1,545,343 B, 00 [ 1,561,438
Allowanda for impairent e {9.536) (437 {108) [10.074)
Year ended 31 December 2015
Stage | Slage ¥ Stage I
1 ECL Lifelima ECL Tota
Otiher deb? instruments at
[air value through other
romprehersve income 1,671,525 - 21 1,671,748
Allgwanco for impaiment laises (B.ET4) (23 16.897)

Other debt imstruments a1 fair value threugh other comprehensive income in stage I
and stage Il manly included financial institutions bond corporates bond and financial

instituticns bond

372/497

Annial Repan 2020 253



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
Oooooooa

Notes to the Consclidated Financial Statements
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
18 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued)

18.3 Other debt instrument and other equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income (Continued)

1) Debt Instruments (Confinued)

fcl  Analyzed by movements in foss alfowance (i)

Yoar anded 31 Dacembar 2020

Stage | Stage Il Stage Il|
12m ECL Lifetima ECL Tatal
1 aruary 2020 6074 - | 6597
Transfer;
stage | tramsfer 1o stage |l [211) m - -
Cuigirated or purchased
linzricial assets 4,085 - - 4,055
Rerneawurement 1.029 in 40 1,340
Matunities or transfer out (L1} = (1] [2.218)
31 Decembar A020 9,536 431 106 10,074
Year ended 31 December 2019
Stage | Stage il Sage il
12m ECL Lifetime ECL Tatal
1 Jarary 2018 5120 Ls2 55 6,317
Transler
stape || transler to stage | 16 (246} - -
Drigirated ar purchased
finangial assets 1,129 - - 2115
Agrmacrement 186 - 3 9
Malunties or fransfer out [1.1E7] {526} |55} {1,768
31 December 2019 6874 - pE| b.297

i Asar 3T Docember 2020, the increases of the Group’s logi allowwance af ather dohi insfrument
mrsimenis o far value through odher comprefiensve mcome were mandy doe fo the
menease of debt nstrument vestments and the rereasirement of remaimed debl instrument
mvesimints tn the yedr. The decroases of the Group's joss alloveance of ather debt instrument
mvesirents ad e value throwgh other comprehening infarme wane mamiy' doe o matuntes oF
transfer oul of debt fnafrumean? fnvestmenis

{2) Equity instruments

As at 31 December

2020 2019
Other financial mstitutions 381 2,878
Other enterprises 120 204
Total 3,931 3,082
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
19 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES AND STRUCTURED ENTITIES
(1) Investment in subsidiaries
The following are the principal subséidiaries of the Group as at 31 December 2020:

Pestentags of Parcantage of
Datw of Pae ol ity wing

Ineotperatiznl  incoeparation] Rthesiped! nbstast rights Prindipal
i of wntity sublihmanl  tbiibmant  paidia apitl (%) %] activitin
[ Agroutursl Frane Vhomrhe 1388 Moog harg ML MEDSBLTHINOO 1] W00 Irestreni hodng
(o, e
B itemmaonal Hokbngs U0 Movernber 2005 Blong Koo PR IED, 111392450 10000 R0 irvsstment heidng
Lmtied
B Francel Lewrg Depurber 110 Shenghal MRD RS SD0000000 10300 W00 Francdl biseg
o, 1M
gt Rark of Chira () 5 Wovernber 1071 Lersken,  USLYIDRAOGG0L 100,00 ] kg
Liritnd Usitied Kydor
BELLA Fud Mangemen! Tiklpch J00E  Stunghal PR WS, TSE0000) L) SLET  Ford marugertan
o, 1M
52 eogen Bl Bank 12 % D08 noerMongolu,  RMEIREOG0 o] Hin kg
Limited Lisblty Cormpuy L
M Hbe Fachan Raalback [ 12 hogen 1008 el PRD RMEGRLDOGH0 S0 6 Bakrg
Limitad Liskty C oy
M b Rl Bk it Liiity Bz J0d dcho, B AME.400000 s 10 kg
Comany
T hesal Rl Bk Limind 36 Match 2070 Shaarn, R MBI ] 5100 kg
Lty Compury
H57 Dwilang Yonplasg R ame 1 dprl 02 Dhejarg BT BT 1000000 ] §100 fankrg
Limited Lty Comepiry
M N oo el Bk ) FLLE i Fupan, PR N1 S0000.000 5100 5100 Bantrg
Limited Lty Commpuy
K ke brsrnge (o LK il 19 Decenber 2005 Beiing, PRI RMEDSE30V64T5 LE ] SLI0 Ufiinurascr
Agric st Back of (e 26 Howerber HI1L Luwmbosrg,  EUFINL000000 10800 Ko Bykeag
fLumerioor Limied {mmbous
Agrie st ark of Chg TiDecerber 14 MWeooow, Ruma  RUET SSEN3E T 1028 %o By
(Whosaow) Lirated
BT Frarcial kit bt 1 Auagest BT Sesing MR RETE 000,000,000 10800 RO00 Diblo-oquty s
o, lnd. e T VRS
dricstund Bark of China Wealth 1 Juy B26 Hsding PR RUAE12,000,000,000 10850 bt} Weath
Wagerent (o 4 Uaragenert

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and 31 Docember 2019, there were no charges in the
proportion of equity Interast or voting rights the Group held In its subsidiaries.

i Twa of the three diractors an the board of ARC Hubar Hanchisan Rural Rank Limited Liablity Company were
appointed by the Bank. The Bank concluded that it has effective control over and bas included this entity fn
its consalidation soope
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{Amounits in milicns of Benminks, unless otherwize sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
19 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES AND STRUCTURED ENTITIES (Continued)
{1} Investment in subsidiaries (Confinuedl

mp On 24 May 2020, ABC Xamen Torng'an Rural Bank Limited [ability Company incroased pavd-in capital of
RIABED milon from retained eamings, the proporfion of eguity inforest and voding rights the Groun held
memained ar 51%

W} Om 31 Docomber 2012, the Bank scguired 51% of the issued shame capitad of Jahe Life lnswance Ca, Lid
and meoamed it a3 ABC Lfe Insurance Co., [id (TABC Léfe insurance”). The Group mcogined goodvall of
READI 381 million a3 a resulr of this acquisition. Duning the pear ended 3 Decernber 2016, the Growp and
ether invesions condnbuted additional capatal folaling RMBITET millan fo ABC Life fnmrance, comprising
regustived capitad of MBS0 T mifon and capi reserve of FMBZ 844 mition, After the capital injection. the
propartion of equity interest and waling nghts the Growp held in ABC Life nsurance remained at 51%.

The Fank fedts the impareent of goodwd! annvally, When performung the fmparment fest, the Bank
coempares the comrng amoual of the asset: fncluding goodvwall and the walue of the memers and
acqursitmng afted decerchion of amortiFabon) vath the mcaverablle amount The seoest of carrpng amoownl
over fecoverabie arnound 15 recognised & profl or lass of (he |.=.1'1-Et"|-rl|:||:|-r'|:||:\l

The recoverabie amount of the asseds & based o adiusted nef asiels, value of ieforce business, valve of

one pear of new business, new business multipler, and ather data approved by the management of ABC
Life nswrance. The sctvanal valuation method s applied and the ek discount rale, metumm on insestment,
valuation distount rane, and ather aiurmplions adopted o foecas! cosh Mows mdpechively reffecr the
specific nuki assocsated with them.

A5 a1 31 December 2020 and 31 Decevnber 2019, ther wat no obfectae svidence noted for any gooddl
impairment, and fo imparment fais was recogniod

{2} Structured entities
The Group also consolidated structured entities as disclosed im Note IV 41 Structured Entities,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continuad)
20 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
{1] Investment in associates

Data ol Paceof Porcantaga ol Percontage of
arma of wriity esubishmenl  itablishment pakn capital L1} %] ity
Sl el i (] 005 Bramade, Corgn  XAFS3 340,800,000 M S0 B
Garhen Yarhhrallo b W OB gl D AMEL 11054000 qm 1000 Eguty iswstrunt
ruasieni Erlapre [P iveamar
ratagement ad
mvetmend idmay
Befice
B Gl e Ingine (] g B PR AMBE33, 200000 1581 W boe Seaite
Trebsitry il Fund el Kinbe
Coitr LP i relited
ey s
s Hoogprwang b ey (8 bl B, PR ARG RS, 500,000 pLE NW hoe et
Jurtonatds fund Ivectest PRSI M
Maragemesi (mlp | od ilsted
ey e
Mgt e Dbt nbauty (6l 00 B RO RMBE 000,000,000 15 161 Loty et
Spacll sty Ivestant
Cone LP

[ Un 25 May 20715 the Sno-Congodese Hank of Afca (L3 Bangue Sino-Longolase pour FAfngue, hereinafier
feferred toas B5CA Bank), erfablished by the Bank and ofher mvestors with authonzed capits denominahed
in Central African CFA framc (“XAF7), was granted the required banking license by the local reguianony
authonty. The Bank holds 50% equely interest and voting nghts in B5CA.Bank, and has the right o
parhicipate i the financiad and operational decisons of BSCA Bank, but does not constifute control or joins
contral over thase dacimans

) On 27 Decomber 2020, the Bank's wholl-owned asbsidiary, ABC Finandial Assets Imostmend Co,, Lid,
mvested in Shenzhen Yuanzfufishal Mo 6 Investment enferprise P wiich was established in 2075 The
Group has the rght to patticipate v the fnanclal and operational decsions of these enterprises bul the
nght does nat have contred or joint contral over those decisions

wy  The Bank's wholl-owned wbsichary, ABC Francial Assets investment Co., Lid. and other invesfors ivested
in the above mentioned enferprises. The Growp has the nght fo particioste in the financal and oparational
decrrions of these anferprises but the right does not kave contnod or joint conirod over those decisions
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For the year ended 31 Decernber 2020
{Amounts in milions of Renminks, unless othenwise stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
20 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
{2) Investment in joint ventures

Brate of Place od Percnage of  Pereerage of

incomparation)  incorpocation! Buthorized  equiy inierest  voting Fights Privcipal

Naove-of enity etablshnen!  estabishnent :yhrw ] %] actiiitiz

Tonea Jeguin RO Ste-aned Wi g, BC B0 € 0 (1] TS Fquty meiment

Erterrse Masd Qwnershp Reform Dot Egatty anc

Furef [P rekited upporng

SV

ABT Garbu {Habed Debi-le-Fuity ik Hobe, B RMES00, 000000 T nyn Mo Securibes

imsmand fund 1P 0y rstmied

it and aten

Hvsry e

S (amreg) mvestent P MIE Thejarg FEC  RMETIN00C000 il 00 histial ivesment

ABC Now S0k Boad] [Raring) imstmnt 0 Thegarg PEC  RMET 500000000 £ SO0 s rvement

Find (P & equity

RRLITET

Srenchen Pracping Suia baiment Wi Gegdoeg, FEC INGA0 000000 5100 00 hisria rvesment

Cirtr P nd rveimert

sy

Thaiing New fowwr Ford LF 00 Thegarg, ML RVEDH00000.000 kL] 5000 sl mvesment

ind equty

Fryement

(henga (huasneng Lisyum Energy Pl Sheen, FEC  RWED530,00C,000 3016 5 Morpublcy haced

Byt st Fuund 1P Bty investmgty

and el ey

SENVES

et Mogola Menguingrhak IS e Memgok,  RVELM00,000000 ] WM oty Ivestrent,

Eewsiopment Fund Invssimest L VETET

Cerdler |F anagerenl ac

imstrmeat peiy

whE

Yiwu Ermgegng Fower Eousy - Thejarg PR RMEH00,000000 il 000 bty mestnent,

mestran Fund Fasnenb e A= ety whap

firsted Partnershipt e uppering

Shanghs Guohua (R8Gs Fouty 0% Shanghal WO RMET,500,000,000 BE S0 bty vestnent,

It Fond, Lid Detr-Eyely g

TFLted gportng

e

Mooyt T {auing) Bty WS Zheang ML RMRL00OC000 000 000 ietdmentand

Imrrn b L et

) ) FaegETETt

asarprto infrtnaciune Egily b3 Tanje, FBC RV, 500000000 nmw WM Coulty bvesimend

Imeesiimen{ (Tiangin] Furd LP and imvesment

$hazan songying franiisi boiding e Shaanm, 0 FRME1,000.00C,000 5100 5000 It estnent,

equty inwestmest fund ity iwesiment
partnanhig [P

Sheschins M Hangm Shoses WiE Gangioeg, FEC  RMETE01,000,000 L B Voo

meestment Barnensbip L bsiness

Sharghii Jasizysahe iquty 6 Stongh FEC RME5000,000,000 L] 00 edatial st

Imestment Fnd 1P Ay Pwesiment

o mvniterd

torrtiaton
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cantinued)
20 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
{2) Investment in joint ventures (Continued)

The whaolly-owmed subsidiary of the Bank, ABC Financial Assets Investment Co, Ltd, and
other investors established the above-mentioned partnership, According to the partnership
agreements, matters considered at the Meeting of Partners or investment decision-making
committes shall be approved by the unanimous consent of all the partners or all the committes
members, The Bank constitutes joint control over the financial and operational decisions of these
limited partnerships with the other investors.

21 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Electronic
squipmant,
furniture and Motor Construction
- Bulldings  fixtures vehicles  In progress Total
Coml
1 January 2020 192,465 67,116 13,364 4,321 278,266
Additions 4,918 T.060 1,518 5484 18,5981
Tramsfars 533 1.289 123 [2,445) -
Disposals (13.522) 19.347) {385) (11} [23,265)
31 December 2020 185,794 66,118 14,721 7348 213982
Accumulated depreciation
1 lanuary 2020 (73,609) [48.465) (3.393) - (125,467}
Charge 1o the year (6,762) {6,015) {634) - {13.411)
Diposals 7,895 8,198 309 - 16,402
31 Decemnber 2020 (72,476 (46,282 (2.718) = (122.476)
Allowance for impairmant losoes
1 January 2020 (265) {16} - (34) [315)
frpairrment koss - - {49) - {49)
Dispasals E| 7 2 - 12
31 Dacember 2020 [262) 4) A [34) (352}
Carryng value
31 December 2020 113,056 19,827 10,956 7.315 151,154
1 January 2020 119,551 18,635 9,971 A, 287 152,484
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
21 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Efectronic
equigment,
fumiture ard Motor  Construction

Buildings foctures wehitles in progress Tatal
Cont
1 January 2019 186,443 65,804 11,097 7,986 2,330
Additons 3,825 6,712 1818 2,060 15425
Tranifen 5,097 1% 1 {5,324} -
Disposals 11,900} 15,6260 {562} (407} {8,483
31 December 2019 193,465 672,116 13,364 43 278,266
Accumidates deprocation
1 lanuary 3019 {67,584} (47, 735) (3,258) - (118,577
Charge for the yaars 16613 599 (545) - RERTE
Disposals 588 5,189 410 - 6,187
31 December 2019 {73,609} (48,4651 [3.393) = (125,467
Allowance for empairment losses
1 lanuary 2019 (N {2n i1 (B {301}
Impainment loss - - - {26} (26)
Disposals i § 1 - 12
31 December 2019 {265} [16) - 34) (315)
Camying value
31 Cecember 2010 116,581 18,635 4971 4,287 152 484
1 January 2019 118,588 18,048 7,838 7.978 152,452

According 10 the relevant laws and regulations, subsequent 1o the Bank's Lranslormatson inlo a poinl slock
company, the legal title of properties previously held by the Predecessor Entity are to be transferred to the
Bank_ As at 371 Decembeor 2020, the regetration transfer process of these transforred properties and othor
certain properties have not been completed. Management believes that the incomplete regisiration transfer
process does nat affect the nghts of the Bank as the legal sweccessor to those assets,

22 DEFERRED TAXATION

For the puipose of peesontation in the consolidated staterment of finandial position, ceramn deferred tax
assets and liabilites have been offset when there is a legally enforceable night 1o offset current tax assels
against current tax liakilities and when the deferred income taxes relate 10 the same fiscal authonty, The
follawing is the analysls of the deferred tax balances:

As at 31 December

. 2020 2013
Deferrad tax astets 133,355 120,952
Deferrad tax abilities (334} (5200
et 133,021 120,432
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
22 DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

n

12

The fallowsng are the movements and major deferred tax assets and liabdites recognized

Fale vl
Alowen for Barrued Exly charges af
imgaimett  btungad  ribremant finaecial
lesisas st et bensfili  Frowisan  mstuments (thers Tatd
11 Decombe 2073 10,40 EALH Fi 1540 (1382 1% 1841
Craditfchangsl o e cor schted
ingame siatanent Tau 1251 [145) 185 [k b m ]
(et to cther compreherve moome - - - - 13 - 138
11 Deemtes 2110 1344 AT il kT {I.11E) AH EERH
Farvale
Aomancs ke Arimed Fark ehanges of
impamen: but wnpad hERETEN finargal
] sttt peed benaity Powsot  mithumers Oty Tetal
_31 December 218 103435 886 b &4n ] M L
Ceadifchare) b2 e roesldiid
wiame T 1] o e LIEy (1540 4 i+ ]
Coird 1o other compratemv Pvase - - - - e - Qe
31 Decamben 213 11,140 ELLE 53 1540 {1380 % 10431

Deferred income 1ax assetsflliabibities) and related temporary differences, before offsetting qualifying
amounts, are attnbutable to the following items:

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

Deductibie ctible
{taxable) Deferred {taxable) Deferred
temporary tax assets/ temparary tax assets’
difference (liabilities) difference (labilities)
Deferred tax assels
Allowsance tor impairment losses A87.775 121,944 456,559 T4, 140
Faif value ehanges of financial
instruments 58,107 14,527 23,426 5,856
Accrued but unpasd staff cost 41,705 10,426 36,700 9,175
Prowision 42,100 10,525 30,558 7,640
Early retirement banefits 1,551 3BE 2133 533
Othgrs 1.827 456 1.019 255
Subtolal 633,065 158,266 530,395 137,599
Daferred tax liabilities
Fair value changes of financial
instrurments {100,987) (25,245) 68,835} {17,158}
Others - - (35} (2
Subtoial (100,581) (25,245) {68,670} {17.167)
Nt 532,084 133,021 481,735 120,432

380/497

Annual Bepun 2020 | 261

Oooooooa



EDINETOOOO

O0O00000000000(Ee24593)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020
{amounts in milkors of Renminks, urless oihenwize stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
23 OTHER ASSETS

As at 31 December

2020 FIRE]
Accounts receivable and temporary payments [i}] §7.619 77.028
Land use rights 2} 19,340 19,5869
Reght-of-use assets [E+] 10,196 10,805
Intangibie assels 4,154 3.22%
Interest receivable 3,070 3.183
Imvestrment properties 1,529 2,730
Long-term deferred expenses 2,233 1,792
Value-added tax receivable 1,192 1.173
Foreclosed assets AL taq
Premuurms receivable and reinsurance assets B35 504
Others 9,588 9.%43
Total 151,252 130,930

)]

2)

&)

Avcourid recevables and lemporary papmends, which include recenabls from settfement scoownts and Sguiglition
sceount, amount recewvaldes from the MOF, other receivables, ele.

For account recenables ansing from revenue recegmeed m acoorcance with FRS 15 the entity messues the ke
aowance at amount equal to lifetime ECL wsing a smplified approach. At 31 Decernber 2020, the principals of
thiese accownt recaivabiles was RMBSET millon (31 Decernbar 2019 RMBT, 554 million), and the loss alfowanse af
ampurnt equad o ifetime ECL was RMB4 12 milion (3] December 2015 RMBASS milign),

For other account recevaldes the entity measwres FCL wsing relatively smple BCL models, by wivch the Group
prepades & prewdion maliy imcorporatbing current condiion and future Forecast fo measure foss allowances. Af
31 Decernber 2020, the gross amodmt of these accown! ecenabies was AMB25 869 milion (37 Decernber 201 9
AMETE 994 milifon), and the loss alfowanes was RMEZ 422 millan (37 December 2019 RIME2 661 malian)

According to refevant lnwe and regulations, subsequent fo the Bank's transfarmalion info a joint stock company,
tandd wse nghts previousty held by the Predecessor Entily ang fo be iremsfored fo the Bank. A5 af 31 December
2020, the registratron transfer process of certaw dand wse mghts has not bean completed. Management beheves
thant tha incormyrete regittration rantfer process oomes not affect the nghts af the Bank as the fegal wacessar fo
these ke wse raphts.

As at 31 Dacamber 2020, the rght-ofuse assets recognized by the Group madnly inchode operation buldngs,
and ame mainly wsed for daily business The deprecistion expense for the year ended 2! December 2020 was
amouniing fo RME3 953 millon (for the pear ended 37 Decamber 2019; RAEZ, 700 milion) and the aoowmilated
depreciation wmounting o RMBZ, 361 milion (31 December 2019 AME3, 700 million)

24 BORROWINGS FROM CENTRAL BANKS

As at 31 Decermber 2020, borrowings from central banks mainly included Medium-term Lending Facihities
from PROC amounting to RMEST4.A00 million (21 December 2019; RMESSE,500 miflion),

25 DEPOSITS FROM BANKS AND OTHER FINAMCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As at 31 December

2020 019

Deposits from:
Domestic banks 114,603 100,894
Cther domestac financial institutions 1,229,313 1.339.628
Overseas banks 1,006 3,242
Other overseas financial institutions 42,691 55,438
Subtotal 1,368,703 1.499.202
Accrued intorest 5813 4,707
Total 1,394,516 1,503,509
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
26 PLACEMENTS FROM BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As at 31 December

2020 2019

Placamants fram:
Damestle banks and ather financial institutions 2223717 148,603
Overseas banks and other finangial imstitutions 167,291 175,124
Subtotal 380,668 323,727
Accrued interest 992 1,636
Total 290,660 325,363

27 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LO55

As at 31 December

2020 2019
Financial babilities held for trading
Precious metal contracls 13,725 14,147
Subtotal 13,725 14,147
Financial Kabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss
Flacements from banks and other financial
institutians by principal guaranteed wealth managament (A1} 6,540 5,681
Owerseas debt securities - 3,505
Liakilities of the controfled structured entities 4,452 L.901
Others 100 -
_Subtotal 14,092 16,087
Total 2T.817 30,234

(1) The Group designates placements from banks and other fnancial insmiurions by principal guaranieed wealth
rmanagement &y financal labiites at falr valve through gralit or faz

Far the currsnt and prioe pear, thans were no sgrificant changes in the fair valie of the Groig's fnancial habdities
desgrated af far value throwgh profil or lags antrbutable to the changes in the Groun's own credin réek.

28 FINAMCIAL ASSETS SOLD UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

As at 31 December

2020 2015

Analyzed by type of collateral;
Debt securities 107,844 50,885
Bills 1,325 1,870
Subtotal 109,169 52,865
Accrued imtarest 26 332
Total 108,155 53,197

The collateral pledged under repurchase agreement s disclosad in Nole IV 42 Contingent Liabilitees and
Commitments — Coltateral
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

29 DUE TO CUSTOMERS
As at 21 December

2020 2019
Demand deposis
Cofporate customers 5,236,566 4,973,481
Individua’ customers 5,872,736 5.689.617
Time deposits
Corparate customers 2477, 710 2.306.667
Indnadiual custamers 6,062,167 5,223,143
Pledged deposits [4}] 299,962 250,847
Oiers 158,231 174,318
Subtotal 20,107,372 18,618,173
Accrued mterest 265,529 230,982
Total 20,372,901 18,849,155

(1) Analyred by sctvity 1o which pledged depodits ste related to:

As at 31 December

2020 019
Guarantes and beters of guaraniee 73,606 68,694
Trada finance 100,822 75.808
Bank acceplance 48,718 45,904
Lotters of crodit 29,309 17,571
Dthers 27,507 28,870
Total 199,962 250,847

(2} As at 31 December 2020, the Group reclassified the principal-guarantesd WhAPs that were originally
disclosed In Mate IV 27 “Financial Liabilities at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss® to the item of
“Due to Customers®, relevanl comparative amounts have been reclassified. The measurement
of these prncipal-guaranteed WMPs s unchanged and ai fsir value through profit or loss. As at
31 Decenber 2020 and 31 Decemnber 2019, the difference between the fair value of the principal-
guarantesd WHPs and the structured deposits designated at fair value through profit or loss ssued
by the Group and the contractual amount payable to the holders of these products upon maturity
was nol material. As at 31 December 2020, due to customers measured at amortized cost of the
Group amounted to RMB20,031,232 million (31 December 2019 AMB18,396, 387 million), dus to
customers measured at fair value throvgh profit or loss of the Group amounted 1o RMB341,669
millicn {31 December 201% RMBAS2, 768 million).

30 DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED

As at 31 December

2020 2013
Bonds issued i) 430,703 348,686
Certificates of depost issued 12 252,569 268,500
Other debt securities ssued {3h 679,261 A832 345
Subtotal 1,362,533 1,099,630
Arcrued Infafast 9.312 B.58Z
Total 1.371.845 1,106,212

264 @amseny

383/497



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
Oooooooa

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020
tAmoeants in millons of Rermink:, unless atheranse stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
30 DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED (Continued)

As at 31 Decemnber 2020 and 31 December 2019, there was no default related to any debt secunities issued
by the Group,

{1} Bonds issued
As at 31 December

2020 2019

2.75% USD fixad rate Green Bonds

matunng in October 2020 (i - 3,484
5.30% subordinated fxed rate bonds

matusng i hune 2026 (11 50,000 50,000
A 99% subordinated fwed rate bonds

matusing in December 2027 {Hiiy 50,000 50,000
4.45% Tier-two capital fixed rate oonds

maturing in October 2027 fivk 40,000 40.000
4.45% Tier-two capital fived rate bonds

matusing in April 2028 (v 40,000 40,000
4. 28% Tier-two capital fixed rate bonds

maturing in March 2029 ik 50,000 50,000
4,30% Tier-two capital fixed rate bonds

maturing in April 2029 [viip 40,000 40,000
3.10% Tier-two capital fixed rate bonds

matusing in April 2030 {wiln} 40,000 -
4.53% Tier-two capital fixed rate oonds

maturing in March 2034 {1k 10,000 10,000
4.63% Tier-two capital fined rate bonds

rmatusing in April 2034 {x) 20,000 20,000
Madium term notes issued {1} a41,643 31,163
1.99% fixed rate financial bond

matuning in April 2023 {wih 20,000 -
3 6E% CNY fumd rate Groan Bonds

matunng in lune 2022 (it} 2,720 3,000
3.90% fixed rate financial band

matuning in Movember 2023 (wiv') 1,650 =
3,30% fixed rate financial bond

matuning in Seplember 2022 ] 3,870 2,890
2.68% fixed rate financial bond

rratunng in karch 2023 () 4,000 -
4 70% fixed rate capital replenishment bond

maluring in August 2021 {xum) 2,410 3,000
2.40% fived rate financial bond

maturng in Seplember 2024 Lami) 2,000 1,880
£.73% fixed rate financial bond

maturing in March 2025 {ix) &,000 -
3.80% fixed rate financial bond

matusnng in June 2025 [ 500 -
5.55% fined rate capital replenishment bond

maturing in March 2028 ey 3,500 3,500
3.60% fixed rate capital replenishment bond

maturing in kMarch 2030 {3} 1,500 -
Total nominal value 430,793 348,921
Less: Unamaoriized Bsuance cost and discounts (o0} {235}
Total 430,703 348,686
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cantinued)
30 DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED (Continueach)
{1} Bonds issued (Continused);

Fursuant to the approval by relevant regulatory autharities, the bonds issued by the Group are set out
as below,

i} The USD green bonds issued in October 201§ have a tenor of § years matured in Octobar 2020,

il The subordinated fored rate bond's tsued in Jung 201 ) have a fenor of 15 yoars, with & fived coupon rate of
5.30%, payable annually. The Bank has an option fo redeem all of the bands af face vake on 6 e 2071
I thay Bank oied ot ewerciie bhes option, the covpan rate of the bongs would remain o 5.30% per annum
from 7 Jurne 202 cdands

) The sbordinated foed rale bonds ruwed m December 2012 have @ tenor of 15 years, with a fied covpan
rate of 400%, payable annally. The Bank hai an option to redeom 4l of the bonds ot face value on
18 Decoamber 2022, If the Bank did not exercise thiz optron, the coupan rate of the bands wowld remaim ai
4.99% per annwm from 20 December 2022 ormwards,

) The Thor-two copital bonds isued in Ocrober 2017 have a fenor of 10 years, with o fined coupon rate
of 4.45% payable annvally. The Bank has an aption to redeem parf or alf of the bands at face value on
16 Detaber 2027 o spocified medemption conditions ot shpulated i the offedng documents weme maf,
subpect to regukanay approval i the Bank did not exercse this oplon, the coupon rate ol the bonds woeld
revmain ol 4.45% por annwn from 17 October 2022 oawards. These Tier-hwo capital bonds have the write-
dewr feature of & Tev-hvo capital instrument and' they are qualified a3 Tiev-two Capital Instruments in
accorgance with the CARC réguiremsnts.

ful  The Trerdwo canifal bands o in Apei 2018 have a tenar of 10 peary, with 4 fixed coupon mane of 4.45%
papabile annually. The Bank has an oplon fo redsém part or all of the bonds af face valve on 26 Apnf 2023
if specified redermption conditiant at stipulated i the offerng docurments were met, nibject fo reguldbeny
appreval i the Bank ofd nor exercise thi option, the coupon rate of the bomnds would remain af 4.45%
per anmum from 27 Apadl 2023 orveards. These Tier-toa eagétal bonds have the wrte-down featune af 8
Tier-twa capulal instrument and they are gualifed a3 Tier-hwo Caputal insrwments an accardance with the
CAMC reguurermes

fwl  The Ter-wo capital bonds Sved in March 2019 have a tenor of 10 pears with a fired coupen e of
4 28% payable annually. The Bank has an option lo redesm pard of all of the bands al face value on
18 March 2024 # specified redemption conditions as stipulated in the offering documents were rmaf,
subyect to requiatory approval If the Bank ald nat exsrcse this opton, the cougan rafe of the bonds
would remain af £.28% per annum from 19 March 2024 amvands. These Tier-fuo capital bands have the
wiiha-dowm feature of a Ter-two capital instrument and they are qualfied as Tier-twa Capital lnstrumeants in
accordance wilh the CBIRC reguirsimanls

fwld  The Ferhwo capifal bonds soved i Aprd 2019 have a tenor of 10 peary with a fied cowpon rate of 4.30F%
payable annually. The Bank has an oplion fo redeermn part or all of the bonds ot face valve on 10 Apnd 2024
if specified redermptron condiffons a3 stinwlated fn the offenng documents ware et subfct fo regalatony
approval If the Bank did not ewertise this opton, the cowpon rate of the bonds wowid remain af 4.30% per
annum frem 11 Aped 2024 onwards, Thess Tier-twe capital bonds have the write-down feanve of a
Tier-two capiral instrumant and they are qualified a5 Tier-two Caputal instrwments in accardance with the
CRIRC requirerments

fwit] The Ther-hwn capital bands iccied w Apel 2000 have a tenar af 10 pearg with a fixed cowpan rate of 3. 1096
payabile annvally. The Bank fhas an option (o redeem part or a¥ of the bonds af face value on § May 2025
if specified redernpiron congifions as stiowlated i the offenng documents were met, subect fo regulstoy
approval. If the Bank did not exertise this opdion. the cowpon rate of the bands would remain at 3, 10%. per
annum from 6 May 2025 cowards. These Thar-two capital bonas have the write-cown feature of a Teer-two
capital (nstrument and they are gualified as Tier-two Capital Instruments in acoordance wath the CHIRC
requiremeants,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020
tAmounts in millons of Renminks, unless atheraise staled)

IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
30 DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED (Continued)
{1} Bonds issued (Continued):

i) The Ther-two cagitad bonds isseed in March 20189 have a tenor of 15 years, with a fived coupan rafe of
4.52% payable annually, The Bank has an option o redeem part or all of the bonds at face value on
18 March 2029 #f specified redemplion conditions as stipuleted & the afferng documents weme met,
subyect lo egulatory approval If the Bank o nol exevcoe thiz option, the coupon cade of the bonds
would romain af 4.53% per annum from 19 March 2009 onwards. These Tier-fwo capitad bands have the
wrlg-down feadure of a Ther-bwe cagital instrument and they ane quakifed 44 Ter-hoo Capvlal insfrurmants i
actordance with the CERC mguirsments

fef  The Tiernwo capital boncs isved in Aprid 2019 have 3 tenar of |5 years, with a foed coupan rate of 4 63%
payabie annually, The Bank has an oplon to redesm part or all &f the bords af face value an 10 Apri 2025
i s'poc.lﬁw:l' mdemplion condifaons as simuladed w the uffnn'rlg documents were med, sutyect (o regelaiory
approval, i the Bank did not exercise this option, the coupon rate of [he bonds wolld remain ar 4.63% per
annum frovm 11 Apnl 2029 onwards These Tier-two copdal bonds havwe the wiie-down featere of a
Trerhwd capifal siframent and thoy are qeialifed ar Trvahien Camutal Initrumentt a0 aorardiics wath the
CEIRC requirerrents.

i} The medium ferm mates TNGT) wene isswed By the Ovessas Opevalions of the Group and ane measured
at armovhired cosl. The detadi of medium ferm nofes Mived were a3

Az at 1 Decamber 2020

Outstanding

Maturity dates ranging from Cowpon rates (%) balance

Finogd rate HED MING Octaber 2022 1.00 4, 708

Fixed rafe LIS MTN: June 2021 to October 2025 1.00-3.88 16.871

Floating rate USD MTHS September 2021 to 3 months Libors68 18,564
November 2023 te 5hps

Total 42,643

As af 31 December 2019

Cuistanding

Maturity dates ranging from  Coupan rafes (el balance

Fixad rate HED MTN: Auvgust 2020 2 18-252 470

Fixed rate LSO MTNg September 2020 fo 2 50-3 .88 5069

September 2021

Floating rafe USD MTHS February 2020 fo 3 months Libor+ 68 21,60
Nevember 2023 o 85bps

Tatal 3l 163

(i} The foeed rate Financal bonds issued by ABC in Aprid 2020 hive a tenor of 3 pears, with a fored colpan rafe
of 1,95%, payabie annualy,

el The Mmbmm‘:ksmdby ABC Financial Leasing Co,, Lid. in Jne 2019 hiwe a tenar of 3 poars, with a
fwed coupan rafe 5.60%, payable annualy

Gl The Feed rate Firancial bonds iswed by ASC Financial Leasing Co, Lid, i Novernber 2020 have a fenor of
3 ywars, with a fived goupon rate of 3,90%, pagabile annuolly,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020
{amounts in milkors of Renminks, urless oihenwize stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
30 DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED (Continued)

{1} Bonds issued (Continused);

(el Thar fixed rafe Fnanc! borgs issued by ABC Finencil Assets investment o, LoD in Seprember 2079 bave a
tenor of 3 years, with a fied coupon rate of 3 30%, payabie annually,

ot} The faed rate Froancial bonds msued by ARC Frnancia! Asseds Imestment Co, Lid, i March 2028 have a
tenor of 3 years, with a fived coupon rate of 2.68%, payable annuaily,

fwww] The fived rate Bronciad bonds issued by ABC Intermational kaddings Limited i Awgust 2018 have a tenor of
3 years, wath a fived coupan rate of 4 70%, payable annualy

ovii) The ficed rate Fmancial bands mswod by ABC Financial Assots Investment Co, Lid in Soptembor 2019 have 2
fenor of & pears, with a feed roupon e of 3.480%, papable annuatly,

fwrx}l The fixed rate Francil bonds sswed by ABC Financal Assets vestrment Co. Ltd m March 2020 have a
tenor of § years, with a fied coupon rate of 2. 75%, papabie annually,

el The faed rate Financiad bonds fsued by ABCT fmwstment Sughow Corporation Limdted in June 2028 have a
tevior of 5 years, with @ fived coupan rme of 380%, papabie sy,

funi}  Ther fiveed rate Capitad epiencchrment didit sioed by ABC Lite an March 2B haww a tenor af 1D years, with 4
fixed coupon rahe of 5.55%, papable armually, ABC Life insurance has an ogdion o redieem o of e bonds
at face valve on 4 Mavch 2023 If ABC Life Irsurance do not exevcite this opton, the coupon rate of the
Bbonmas would e to B 55% por anmum fram 5 March 2023 amsards

el The fived rafe Capital replenmhenent debit Ssved by ABC Life in March 3020 have 8 tenor of 10 years, with &
fined coupon rame of 3 60%, payable amually, ABC Life injuramoe has an aption fo redeem all of the bands
at face value on 25 March 2025 If ARC Life tnausance do not exercise this option, the coupon rate of the
Bends would neredwe bo 460% per annum fram 26 March 2025 anwards

{2}  As at 31 December 2020, the carificates of deposit were issued by the Owerseas Operations of the
Group and were measured at amartized cost, The terms of the certificates of deposit ranged {rom
one month to seven years, with interest rates ranging from -0.02% to 3.66% per annum (As at
31 December 2019, the terms of the certificates ot deposit ranged from one manth to seven years,
with inlerest rates ranging fram -0.23% 1o 3.66%).

{3} Other debt securities Bsued by the Group

il Asat 31 December 2020, the commercial papars were issued hy the Overseas Operations of the
Group and were measured af amortized cast. The terms of the commercial papers ranged from
three months to one year, wath interest rates ranging from 0.00% fo 2 14% per annum (As at
31 December 2019, the terms of the commercial papers ranged from three months 1o one year,
with énferes! rates ranging from -0.22% fo 2 85%),

i} Az at 31 December 2020, the interbank cerlificate of deposit were Bssued by the Bank's Head
Offce. The term of the interbank certificate of deposit ranged from one month fo ane pear, with
interest rafes ranging from 1. 58% fo 3.35% por ammum (As at 31 December 2018, the term
of the interbank certificate of deposit ranged from cne month io one year, with intarest rates
ranging fram 2 7% ta 3.24%)
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
31 OTHER LIABILITIES

As at 31 December

2020 2018
Cleaning and settlerment 168,852 105,682
Insurance llabilities 89,651 73,588
Staff costs payable {1 368N 50,471
Income takes payable 54,240 59,286
Prewision {2y 42,100 30,558
VAT and ather takes payable 10,235 8,541
Leasa liabilitios 9,824 10,280
Suspense accounts 5,168 4,579
Amount payable 1o the MOF m 561
Others B6,E98 71,410
Total 524,590 414,956

{1) Staff costs payable

As at 31 December

2020 2018
Shert-term employes benefits i 47,380 43,130
Defined contribution benafits (ir) T.BED 5.208
Early retirement banefits ik 1,551 2,133
Total 56,811 50471
i} Shart-term employee benefits
2020
1 Jamuary Ineraase Decraasas 31 Dacambar
Salanes, bonuses,

Slhowvande and subsidies (4} 31,289 £1,087 (77,368) 35.010
Housing funds fa} B4 B.833 15,005) 108
Social insurance mcluding: fal 332 4,713 {4,660) 385
— Medical insurance n 4,398 (4,342) 367
— Maternity insurance 13 205 {2049) 9
= Employment mjury insurance 8 110 {109) 9

Laber union fees and statf
education expenses 7,049 3613 {2,623) 8,039
Others 4,176 10612 (11,050) 3.838
Total 43.130 108,958 {104,708} 47,380
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020
{Amounits in miliors of Renminks, uriess otheowize stased)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cantinued)
31 OTHER LIABILITIES (Continued)
{1) Staff costs payable (Contirued)

270 @Amrenn

{i} Shori-term employee benefits (Continued)

2018
1 January Increase Decrease 31 December
Salanes, bonuses,
allowance and subsidies (a} 19,493 789,255 {77,465} 31,189
Housing funds (&t 186 BSH (8,528} 184
Sodial imsurance mcluding: {a} 255 5450 (5,373} iz
— Medical insurance 235 4902 (4,826) n
— Maternity mswranca 13 407 407} 13
=— Ernipiyrnent imury insurance 7 141 a0y -]
Labor union fees and saff
educaton expenses 6,206 3534 12,691) 7.049
Others 3,552 10,044 (5,3200 4,176
Tatal 39,698 106,807 {103,375} 43,130

fa}  Salanes, bonuses, allowance and subsides, housing funds and socal inserance are tmely distnbuted

ang pavd i accordance with refevant (ks and regedations and the Group's paiicy.

(1) Defined cantribution benefits

= ._mlu ——

1 lanuary Increase Decrease 31 December

Basic pensans 451 8110 (7,943 619
Unesnplaymant msurance En 249 (243) a0
Annulty Scheme 4,722 6,367 {2.868) 7,21
Tatal 5.208 14,726 {12,054} 7,880

2013

1 lanuary Inerease Decrease 31 Decamber

Basic pensons 518 10825 (no.aan 452
Unermphayrment maurance £ 349 348} i4
Anruity Scheme 2,155 6,215 {3858 4732
Tatal 2,704 17,300 14,895} 5,108

The defined contribution benefits are timely distributed and paid in accordance with relevant

lawes and regulations and the Growp's policy.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decernber 10240
tAmounss in millions of RBerimenbi, unless otheramse stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
31 OTHER LIABILITIES (Continued)
(1) Staff costs payable (Continued)
(ili} Eariy retirement benefits

2020
1 lanuary Increase Decrease 31 December
Early retirement benelits 2,133 5 {587} 1.551
2019
S 1 January Wcrease  Decease 31 December
Early retirement benalits 2.BE3 B 811} 2.133

The principal assumptions wsed for the purpose of the actuanial valuatians wede as Tollows:

As at 31 December

2020 2019

Discount rata 2.90% 2.80%

Annual average medical expense growth rate 8.00% B.00%

Annual subsidies growth rate 8.00% B.00%
Normal retirement age

— Male =11} G0

— Famala 55 55

Assumplions regarding future mortality experience are based on the China Life Insurance
Martality Table {published historcal statictics in China).

Any difference anung from the actual result or changes in assumptions may affect the amount
of expensa recognized in the consolidated income statement.

{2) Provision
As at 31 December
_2020 2019

Loan commitments and financial

guarantee contracts (i 35756 25,213
Litigation proviskan 5,560 4,490
Others T84 B55
Total 42,100 30,558

Annua Repen 20720 271

390/497
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
{Amounits in miliors of Renminks, uriess otheowize stased)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

31 OTHER LIABILITIES (Continued)
{2) Prowisian (Continued)

272 | rueawy

i

Analyzed by movements in loss allowance for foan commitments and financial guarantee

contracts

Year ended 31 December 2020

Stage| _ Stagell _Stage il
12m ECL Lifetime ECL Total
1 January 2020 22,836 2,032 345 25,213
Transter
stage | transfer to stage Il (682) 682 - -
stage Il trarsfer 1o stage il - (348) 348 -
stage Bl transfer o stage | 3 {3) - -
Increass (al 18,613 - - 168,613
Remeasurement 720 [ 401 1.127
Decrease (a {8,134) (7o8) (355) {3,197}
31 Decamber 2020 33,356 1.661 738 35,756
Year ended 31 December 2019
Stage | Stage NI Stage B
12m ECL Lifetime ECL Tatal
1 Jlanuary 2019 17,797 2,006 720 20,523
Transher:
stage | transfer to stage |l (1,072 1,072 - -
stage Il transfer o stage Il = (319} ERL]
stage Il transfer 1o stage | 13 (13) - =
Increats i 14,751 - - 14,751
Femeasurement 116) 76 26 {166
Decraase fal (8,537) (638) (720 [9.895)
31 Decomber 2019 22,836 2,032 345 25,213

fa)  The impact of loz sllowance drven by new loan commitments and financial guaranive confracts
ugred 1 2020 and 2018 u decksed ax “Incease” The mpact of fos alowaence drwen by
withdravaly, edvances or espiration of fpan commidments and foanos! guaraniee confrects n
2020 and 2019 are duclosed a5 “Decrease™ The changes of loss allowance for loan commitments
ang financial guarantes conbracts ane mamly drven by the net mcmsese i the eapoiure of foan
cormmutments and Gnancial guaranfes confracts.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
tAmoeants in millons of Rermink:, unless atheranse stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
32 ORDINARY SHARES

3 Decembar 2020

Humhber
of shares Hominal
{rmillioms) walue
Damestic listed A shares par valus
RMEB1.00 per share 319,244 319,244
Overseas Iisted H shares, par valua
REABT.00 per share 30,739 30,739
Total 349,983 349,983

31 December 2019

Mumber
of shares MNaminal
{rmillions) value
Domestic listed A shares, par value
RME1.00 per share 319,244 319,244
Overseas |isted H shares, par value
RME1.00 per share 30,739 30,738
Total 345,983 349,983

(1) A shares mefer to the orgénary shares listed in the Mainlnd China. They are offered and traded in RME. H shares
refar fo the ordinary shares Bsied in Hong Kong 5AR Their par value &5 denominated in RME when they were
initially offered and are currentiy traded in HKD.

{2 As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2018, the Bank's A Shanes and H Shares were not sulyiect to lock-up
restriction, except for the 25 19 bilkon ordbinary shares isued through a private placement i June 2015
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{Amounits in miliors of Renminks, uriess otheowize stased)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
33 OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

hsued b
numbar nominal
Financial bradpice  of sharms il
instruments in issued Dividderd rate fMBywn}  fmilions)  [milions)  Matwritydate  Comversions
Pretepace sares % jper anvum for e firt S yean i) &0 0000 Nemamydaw  Nocomemon
— st trarche™ et uangz, and regiced gy during the yar
§ yean s stated below
Pre'erence e 53% per amwm for the fest 5 pean e} a0 Q000  Momstudydade  Hooomeme
— zacord anche” At wuancz, and egiced ety during fhe yeat
5 yearns @ ytated below

Forpetial  Uncedter  &39% per anom for the fret 5 yaans ] B50 BS000 Mo matuy date HA
b | capdal e nuance, and et vy S e

ond & sted below

nlig

—fint

trenche®

Uncated tier  420% per annum “or 15 frst 5 yeans o £ 5000 Mo matuty date A

| capitdl e muan, and reset every 5 yean

bonds o vaied beiow

nxie

—se(mrd

trenche®

Undsted fir 3 48% per anam “or 2o frst § ymars 1] ] ESD00 Mo maluty date HA

1 cagital e muance, and et eveny S yean

beond i vited below

nXeD

— it

Irsche™

Unclated i & 50% per annum ‘o The frsl § pan 1] =0 J/O0 Mo malusy date A

1 capital At Buiancs, and reel ey S yean

bond i viated below

n X

— sacnrd

Inwche™
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{1} The Bank was authorized to fssue 800 million preference shares of RMBI0Q each,
pursuant to the approval by its ordinary equity holders and relevant reguiatory

authorities.

The first tranche of 400 million preference shares was issued at par in November 2014, The cammying
amount, net of direct issuance expenses, was AMB29,944 million as at 31 December 2020. The first
tranche of preference shares bears a dividend rate of 6% per annum; dividends are ron-cumulative
and where payable, are paid annually, Tor the first five years from issuznce. The dividend rate will be
re-priced every five years thereafter with reference to the fve-year PRC treasury bonds yield plus a
fixed premivm of 2,.29%. The first fve-year dividend period expired on 1 November 2019, Durning the
second dividend period beginning from % Movember 2019, the base rate and fixed premium = 3.03%
and 2. 29%, respectively, and the cowpon rale 5 5 32%. The doidend = paid annually

1| prasany
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
33 OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

{1} The Bank was authorized to issue 800 million preference shares of RMB10O each,
pursuant to the approval by its ordinary equity holders and refevant reguiatory
authorities. (Cantinued)

The second tranche of 400 million preference shares was issued at par in March 2015, The carnang
amount, net of direct issuanco cxponses, was AMEBI0 955 milion as at 31 Decembor 2020,
The second tranche of preference shares bears a daidend rate of 5,5% per annum; drvidends are
non-cumulative and where payable, are paid annually, for the first five years from issuance, The
divdend rate will be re-priced every five years thereafter wath reference fo the fve-year PRC treasury
bonds yield plus a fized premivm of 2.24%, The first five-year dividend period expired from & March
2020. During the second dividend persod beginning from 11 March 2020, the base rate and fixed
premium is 2.60% and 2.24%, respectvely, and the coupon rate is 4 B4%. The dividend is paid
annually.

There were no changes in the carrying amounts of the preference shares since issuance.

A5 authorized by the ordinary equity holders in the annual general meeting, the Board of Directors
has 1he sole discretion to declare and distribuie dividends on preference shares, The Bank shall not
distribute any dividends to its ordinary equity holders before it declares such dividends to preference
shareholders for the relevant period. The distribution of preference shares dividend is at the Bank's
discretion and is non-cumulative. Preference shareholders are not entitled to participate in the
distrbution of retained profits except for the dividends stated above.

The Bank has a redemption opton when specified conditions as stipulated in the offering documents
are met, subject to regulatory approval, whereas preference shareholders have no right 1o request the
Bank to redeem the preference shares.

Upon liquidation, the claims of preference shareho'ders have priority over ordinary equity holders an
the residual assets of the Bank, but are subordinated to those of depasitors, general creditors, Tier-
two Capital Instruments holders or any other subordinated debt haolders wath equivalent rights.

Upon aoccurrence of the tnggenng events as stipulated in paragraph 2{3) of the Guidance of the China
Banking Regulatary Commission on Commercial Banks” Innovation an Capital Instruments (CBRC No.
56 |2012)) and subject to regulatony approval, the first tranche of preference shares and the second
tranche of preference shares shall be mandatorily converted into ordimary A shares of the Bank at
the conversion price agreed, partially or entirely. The initial conversion price of the preference shares
msued by the Bank was EMB2? 43 per share In June 2018, the Bank has issued 25 19 billion ordinary
& shares to spacific investors. The conversion price of the preference shares will be adjusted where
certain events occur including bonus issues, nghts tssue, capitalization of reserves and new ssuances
of ordinary shares, subjoect to terms and formulas provided i the offering docurments, to maintain
the relative interests between preference shareholders and ordinary equaty helders. Upon completion
of the private placement of ordinary shares by the Bank, the mandatory conversion price of the first
tranche of preference shares and the secand tranche of preference shares issued by the Bank will be
adjusted from RMB2 43 per share 1o RMB2 46 per share.

These preference shares are classified a5 equity Instruments, and presented as equily in the
consolidated statement of financlal posivon, and are gualiied as Additional Tier-one Capital
brastrumenits in accordance wilh the CEIRC reguiramenis.

The carrying amount, net of direct issuance expenses, was RMB?9,899 million as at 31 December
2020 (31 December 2019: RMBT9,399 mallion).
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
33 OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENTS (Cantinued)

(2] With the authorization of the annual general meeting and the approval from mguk!ﬂ;’y
autherities, the Bank was permitted to issue undated additional tier 1 ital bon
{“Perpeival bonds” or the “Bonds®) of an amount no more than RMBT120 bi im 2018,

The Eank issued undated additional tier 1 capital bonds (first tranche) with the amount of
RMESS billion in the national interbank bond market on 16 August 2019, and the issuance was
completed on 20 August 2019. The denomination of the Bonds is RME100 each. The Bonds
don’t have any step-up mechanism or any other incentive to redeem. The distnbution rate of
the Bonds will be adjusted at defined intervals and determined by a benchmark rate plus a fived

read, with a distribution rate adjustment period every 5 years, and the annual coupon rate for
the first five years is 4.39%,

The Bank issued uncated additional tier 1 capital bonds {second tranche) with the amount of
RME3S billion in the national interbank bond market on 3 September 2019, and the issuance
was completed on 5 September 2019 The denomination of the Bonds 15 BMBI10D each, The
Bonds don't have any step-up mechanism or any other incentive (o redeem, The distribution rate
of the Bonds will be adjusted at defined intervals and determined by a benchmark rate plus a
fined spread, with a distribution rate adjustment period every 5 years, and the annual coupon
rate for the first five years is 4. 20%.

With the authorization of the annual general meeting and the aporoval from reguiatory
authorities, the Bank was granted to issue undated additional tier 1 capital bonds (" Perpetual
bonds™ or the "Bonds”) of an amount no maore than RMB120 billion in 2020,

The Bank issued undated additional tier 1 capital bonds {first tranche) with the amount of
RMESS bill:lon in the national interbank bond market on & May 2020, and the issuance was
compieted on 12 May 2020. The dengmination of the Bonds is RME 100 each. The Bonds don't
have any step-up mechanism or any other incenthve to redeem. The distribution rate of the Bonds
will be adjusted at defined intervals and determined by a benchmark rate plus a fixed spread,
with a distribution rate adjustment period every 5 years, and the annual coupan rate for the first
five years s 3 48%

The Bank ssued undated additional tier 1 capital bonds (second tranche) with the amount of
RAMEB3S billion in the national interbank bond market on 20 Awgust 2020, and the issuance was
completed on 24 August 2020. The denomination of the Bonds is AMBI100 each. The Bonds don't
hawe any step-up mechanism or any other incentve (o redeem, The distribution rate of the Bonds
will be adjusted at defined intervak and determined by a benchmark rate phus a fixed spread, with
a distribution rate adjustment penod every 5 years, and the annual coupen rate for the first five years
15 4.50%.

The duration of the Perpetual bonds is the same as the continuing operation of the Bank. Subject 1o
the satsfaction of the redemption coanditions and having obtaired the prior approval of the CRIRC,
the Bank may redeem the Bonds in whole or in part on each distnbution payment date from the fifth
anniversary since the ssuance date of the Bands. Upon the occurrence of a trigger event fof write-
downs, with the approval of the CBIRC and without the need for the consent of the holders of the
Bands, the Bank has the nght to write down all or part of the aggregate amount of the Bands then
issued and outstanding. The claims of the holders of the Bands wall be subordinated to the claims of
depositors, general creditors and subordinated indebtedness that ranks senior to the Bonds; and shall
rank i priority to all classes of shares held by shareholders and will rank pan passu with the claims
in respect of any other additional tier 1 capital instrurments of the Bank that rank pan passu with the
Bonds

The distributions on the Perpetual bonds are nan-cumulative. The Bank shall have the right
to cancel distributions on the Bonds in whole or in part and any such cancelation shall not
constitite an event of default. The Bank may at its diserstion use the procesds from the
cancelled distnbution to meel othar uhiigalmns as they fall due, But the Bank shall not make
any distribution 1o ordinary shareholders until its decision to resume the distnibution payments in
whiole to the holders of the Bonds,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
33 OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

2] With the authorization of the annual general meeting and the a-ppmva! from regm
authorities, the Bank was permitted fo issue undated additional tier 1
{“Perpetual bonds” or the “Bonds™) of an amaunt ne mare than RME120 Fn 2&‘19
(Continued)

The net proceeds from the ssuance of the Perpetual bonds alter deducting offering related expenses
were used 1o replenish the Bank's additional tier 1 capital,

The carmying ameunt, net of direct issuance expenses, was RMBZ39,976 milkon as at 31 December
2020 (31 December 2019; RMB 119,987 million),

34 CAPITAL RESERVE

Tha capital reserve rapreconts the premium related to ordinary shares isued by the Bank in 2010 and
private placement of ordinary shares to the specific shareholders in 2018, Share premium was recorded in
the capital reserve after deducting dinect issue expenses, which conssted primarily of undeswriting fees and
professional fees.

35 INVESTMENT REVALUATION RESERVE

2020
Gross carrying
amount Tax effect Net effect
31 December 2079 39,875 {10,131} 29,684
Faar value changes on debt instruments at fai
value through ather comprehensive ncome:
— Amount of gains recognized direcily in other
comprenensive income (4,238) 1,188 (3.050)
== Amount remaved from other comprehensive
incoms and recognized In profit or loss {750) 188 [562)
Fair value changes cn equity instruments at fair
value through cther comprenensve imoome:
— Amount of gains frecognized ditecily in other
comprenensive income (114) 2% (85}
31 December 2020 34,773 (8,786) 25,987
2019
Gross carrying
B amaunt Tan effiect Mizt effect
31 December 2018 24,996 10,004} 18,9592
Fair value changes on debt instruments at fair
value through ather comprohansive Income;
— Amouni of gains recognized direcily in ather
COMpENENsive Income 14,921 14,1946 10,725
— Amount removed from other comprehensive
incoma and recognized in profit or loss {425} 107 (318}
Fair value changes on equity instruments at fair
value through ether comprehensive income:;
— Amount of gains recognized ditecily in other
comprehensive income 383 (98} 285
31 December 2018 30,875 {10,191} 29,684
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
36 SURPLUS RESERVE

Under PRC Law, the Bank is roguired to transfer 10% of its net profit defermined under the PRC GAAP
to a non-distnbutable statutory surplus reserve. Appropriation to the statutory surplus resenye may cease
when the balance of this reserve has reached 50% of share capital. Pursuant to the resclution of the
Board of Directors” Meeting held on 30 March 2021, an appropriateon of 10% of the profit for the current
year, determined under the generally accepted accounting principles of the PRC, to the statutory surplus
resarve, in the amount of RMB21,040 million (2019 AMB20.6232 million} was approved. In additeon,
certain subsidianies and overseas branches also appropriated surplus reserves in accordance with local
requirements.

Subject 1o the appraoval of the ordinary equity ho'ders, the siatutory surplus reserves can be used for
replanishing accumulated losses or increasing the Bamk's ordinary share capital. The statutory surplus
reserves amount wsed to increase the ordinary share capital is limited to a level where the balance of the
statutory surplus reserves after such capitalization is not kess than 25% of the ordinary share capital

37 GENERAL RESERVE

Pursuant to Cagin [2012] No. 20 *Requirements on impairment Allowance for Fimancial Institutions® (the
"Reguirement ") ssued by the MOF, effective on 1 July 2012, in addition to impairmens: allowance, the
Bank establishes a general reserve within ordinary equity holders” equity through the approariation of profit
to address unidentified potential impairment risks. The general reserve should nat be less than 1.5% of the
aggregate amount of rsk assets as defined by the Requirement. The general reserve includes regulatory
resarve appropriated by the Bank's overseas branches pursuant 1o lacal regulatary requirements

Pursuant 1o relevant PRC reguiatory requirements, some damestic subsidianes of the Bank are required to
appropriate certain amounts of their net profit as general reserves.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group transferred RMEB34433 million (2009
RMB3IT,B26 million) to the General Reserve pursuant to the regulatory requiremenis in the PRC ard
overseas jurisdictions. Of this amount, RMB34,211 million (2019: RMB37,626 million] related 1o the
appropriation proposed for the year ended 31 December 2019 which was approved in the annual general
meeting held on 22 June 2020

On 30 March 2021, the Board of Direclors' meeling approved a proposal of appropriation of
RMB35,217 million to general reserve. Such appropnation wall be recognized in the Group's consolidated
financial statements after approval by ordinary equity halders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
38 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the consolidated siatement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include the
following balances with an original maturity of three months or less:

As at 31 December

2020 2019
Cash 716,281 92928
Balance with central banks 51,802 401,632
Ceposits with banks and other financial institutions 76,904 105,571
Flacements wath and laans to banks and
other financial irstitutions 207,568 150,495
Financial assets held under resale agreements 762,598 703,955
Total 1,175,153 1,454,581

39 OPERATING SEGMENTS

Operating segments are identified on the basis of intemal management rapoets with respect to the
components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the Board and relevant management commiltees,
which constitute the chiel aperating decsion makers, for the purposes ol allecating resources 1o segments
and assessing their performance. The Group's chiel operating decision makers review three different sets
of financial information based on (1) geographical locations, (i) busiress activities and (i} County Area and
Ursan Areas banking business.

The measurement af seqmenl assels and labibties, as well as segmentl fevenue, expense and results i
based on the Group's accounting polices. There s mo difference betwesn the accounting policies used
in the preparatson of the consofidated financial statements and those used in preparing the operating
sagment information.

Transaclons befween segments are conducled under normal commercial terms and conditions. Internal
charges and transfer pricing are determined with reference 1o market rates and have been reflected in the
perfarmance af each segment,

Sagmenl mavenue, results, assets and liabilities include ilams dirsctly attributable 1o a segment as wall as
thote that can be allocated on a reasonable basis

Geographical operating segments
Thie details of the gecgraphical operating segments are as follows:

Head Office

Yangize River Delta: Shanghad, langsu, Zhejlang, Moingbo

Perarl River Defta: Guangdong, Shenzhen, Fujan, Xiamen

Eohal Rim: Badjing, Tianpn, Hebel, Shancong, Qingdao

Central China: Shanal, Hubed, Henan, Human, Jiangsi, Halnan, Anhul

Western Ching: Chengang, Skchuan, Guirhou, Yunnan, Shaarss, Gansa, Qinghal,
Mingxia, Xinjiang (including Xinpang Production and Constructon Corps
Branch), Tibet, Inner Mongolia, Guangxl

KNestheastarn China: Liaoming, Helonggang, lln, Dalan

Owerseas and Others! Subsidharies and ovarseas branches
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

39 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)
Geographical operating segments (Confinued)
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{Amounts in milions of Renimanbi, unless atherame stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
39 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)
Geographical operating segments (Confinued)
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
39 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Business operating segmenis
The details of the business operating segments are as foliows:
Corporate banking
The corporate banking segment provides financial products and services to corporations, government
agencies and financial institutions. The range of products and services inCludes corporate loans and
advances, lrade finance, deposit products, corporate weallh management services and other types of
corporate 1ﬂ'I.E'|'I'I"|E'ﬂLir)' SEMICES;
Personal banking
The personal banking segment provides financial products and services 1o incividual customers. The
range of products and services includes personmal loans, deposit products, card business, personal wealth
management services and other types of personal intermediary sesvices.
Treasury operations
The Group's treasury operations conduct money market and repurchase transactions, debt instruments
invesiments, precious metal transactions and derwative transactions for its own accounts or on behalf of
customers
Others
hers comprise components af the Group that are not attributable to any of the abowe segments, along

with certain assats, liabilities, income aor expensas of the Head OMice that could not be allocated on a
reasonable basis.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continuad)
39 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)
Business operating segments (Continued)

Corporate Persanal Troasury Consclidated
banking banking  eperations Others tolal
For the year ended 31 December 2020
Extarnal mitgnest income 354,332 118,127 290,119 5,753 920,931
External imerist exponis {120,318} {194, 501) (= ¥ H] {3,024} {385 853)
Irger-segmant interest fexperselincome (12,647} 168,642 ﬂ!i,!ﬁ‘ﬁ:l - -
Ne interest income 121310 153,671 56,302 3.729 545075
Fea and comenissian income 55435 33,774 456 1,060 91,168
Fed and commission expenie {10.044) (6,490 (5) {82} (16,621}
Mt 1pe amd coemessans income 45, 3%2 26, T4 (1] 1878 T4 545
Kt trading gain - - 8,920 7485 16,405
N (lessfgam on {inarcial invesirments F,.IBC-“ 4, 1a0) 1,450 M2 (7,313}
M gain o1 demecagnition of financkl assets
maeasuined al amorized codt - - 1 - 1
Othar apetating imcoms 1,375 131 25 27,893 ADETL
Cperabng ingome 160,853 717,603 AT 43,697 659,331
Cperating expenses (11.055) {101,665) {24,700) (32.473) (129.897)
Credit impaiment losies [ARFAFE] (37,359 {13.706) {1,512} {164,699)
Impanmient losses en cther awsets [158) L = {52} {204}
Operating piakit 71,520 138,579 38,773 9,660 264,532
Share ol results of dsdaeates and jorl ventuis - - - 518 518
Frofit before ta 17.520 138,579 35,773 10,178 265,050
Ircarme tan expens |48,650)
Profit for the year 116,400
Deprecaton and amorhzation included
n aperaling expers 4,397 11,209 1,544 a1 19,551
CapHal expandiune 4076 12,708 a4 1.847 22711
At 31 December 2020
Segrment assets 8518358 6,372,0M 11,586,282 454,978 17,071,692
Irchiding: mmstment in associabich and
__joint ventutes = =1 i _BBes 8,865
Unalioganed atoety 133,355
Tertal assets 37,205,047
Segenent halil dies (85900691} (12,526,172]  (3.129.836) (292,928} {24,938,627)
UnaBocased iablines [54,674)
Todal liabilties (14,994,301)
Lodan commiments and fmancial
gusiariee conract &H&.Eﬂ 1-.515.!5? - - 3,168 304
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
39 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)
Business operating segments (Conbinued)

Corporite Persoral Treasury Consciicated
banking banking operEtions Others tatal
Faor the year ended 31 December 2019
External intenest income 0,663 241 427 285,030 6,020 B73.140
Enternal intenest enpese [113,527) {187,247} {6,658} {2,798) {372,270)
Inter-segrnent iflefest (pxpinielbniome (3.2 159,577 (156,306} - -
Mt inderest income 213,865 213,757 60,006 iz 500,670
Fee and commsian mcoms 52,007 13415 152 1,752 B3 316
Fee and commission expere {7,638 (7,695 [*1] (L] (15,389
Ned foe ard commission incoms 45,353 25,720 150 1,608 72,937
Net rading gain . - 11,570 1487 19,067
Met ganflodt] on Binancial imvestments 424 {445y 4458 1,376 5,793
Crtbrir opserateng eiome 1,465 1,547 1,918 24,763 30,603
Cperating income 7,113 240,579 Ta,102 38,556 629,350
Cperating orponses (74,4231 97,3100 {24,752} @r5m (224,006)
Crodit imparmment e (86,174} {49,695 (1,407 {1,315 (V38 BO5)
_Impamment losses on other assets 11311 53 b 136) e
Dperating piofit 110,385 93,623 52,859 Gald 266,531
Share of resulls of associates and joand weniures - - = a5 45
Prah belone Lax 110,385 93,621 52,859 9,669 266,576
Incoms tay experne |53,652)
Prafit for the year 10220
Deprecation and amorization included
i aperating Bepenie 4340 10,641 3381 69 18,711
Capital oxpondiue 1,884 5,383 1.937 1637 16,847
At 31 December 2019
Segmient aset 1710390 5,506, B66 10,771,524 417459 14756539
Inchiding: Irestment i assoriates and
Jaint ventutes - - - BGT2 G672
Usloscatiod adsti 120,952
Total adsets 24 877 491
Segrnent liabilties (8,021,215 (01,885,863 (2707432} (2403100 (22.863,E24)
Unaslocated halslitios |50, E06)
Total lishildies 112,823,630
Loan commitments and financal
gusEMes contracty 1,565,535 B 493 - - 2,410,028
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cantinued)
39 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)
County Area and Urban Area segments

The Group's operating segments organized by County Area and Urbanm Area banking business are sl ol as
follows:

County Area banking business

The Group's County Area banking busingss provides a broad range of financd products and sernces to
customers in designated County Area, through its operating branches in the counties or county-level cities
throughout the PRC. The products and services mainly comprise loans, deposits, bank cards, and other
types af intermediary services

Urban Area banking business

The Group's Urban Area banking business comprises 2ll banking activities outmde of the County Area
banking business, overseas branches and subsidiaries.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
39 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)
County Area and Urban Area segments (Confinued)

banking banking Consalidated
business business  Eliminations total
For the year ended 31 December 2020
Extemal inlerest incoms 130,67 00,241 - 930,932
External interest mxpense (121,062} (64,751) - {385,853)
Irutes-segiment intenst incomalenpenie) 122,135 {122,135) - -
Nt infesest incomse 131,764 313,315 - 545,079
Fee and commession imcome 25,7141 424 - 91,166
Foe and commeEsion enpense (6,435} (10,182) - {16,621)
Met fee and commission income 29.303 45142 = 74,545
Net trzding gain 21 16,184 - 16,405
Het (ssligain on financal invesiments (4,007} 2311) - 1.212)
Met gain on oerecognition of financlal assets
meatured 4t amortized cost - 1 - 1
Other operating mncome 4,507 26,107 - 30,614
Opaialing Intoime 261,794 397,538 - 659,312
Operating expenses (51,401} {138 456) = {229,257
Credit impairment basses (52,276) {112,423) - {164,5549)
impairment lesses on other ssets (27 (177 - (204)
Operating profit 118,090 146,442 ~ 264,532
Share of results of associstes and joint veniures - 518 - 518
Profit before 1as 116,090 146,960 = 265,050
Incame 1ax cxporse {48,550)
Profit for the year 216,400
Depreciation and amortzation incleded
i opeTating erpenses 1.567 11,964 - 19,551
Capital expendiwre 6,590 15732 = 23,712
At 31 Decembar 2020
Segment asels 9,638,372 17,570,020 (136,700} 37,071,652
Including: Irvestment n aseociates and joint wWenures - 8,885 - 4,855
Unallocated assets 133,355
Tatal assets 27,206,047
_Sagment labdifies [8.942.453) (16,133,874) 136,700  (24,939.627)
Linalicscated Eahilites (54,674)
Total liabiktes (24.994,301)
Loan commatments and fimancial guarantes contracts 70,680 2,158,624 - 3,160,304
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
39 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)
County Area and Urban Area segments (Continued)

Courty Area Urban Area

banking bankirg Comsolidated
business business.  Efiminations total
For the year ended 31 December 2019
External interest income 105,981 667,158 - 873,140
External interest expense (116,959} 1255,311) - 310
Iribir-segrnent intanest moamalongenie) 115,125 {115,125 - -
Met interest income 204,148 206,712 - 500,870
Fee and commision income EER (k) 4194 - 88,316
Fee and commission expente 16,155} (9.234) - {15,380
Mot fee and commssion Incomse 17867 45 060 - 72,927
Net fradng gain 631 18,435 - 19,067
Net (inssigain on financal inwestments (k1] L, ag - 5193
Other operating income 4,087 26,526 - 30.693
Dperatng ircome 236,739 3961 - 629,350
Operating experses (90, 654) (133 447) - [224,096)
Credit imipainment ksses 48,228) L] - 138,608
Impairment losses on other assets (5] 2 - (118)
Operating profit 97 168,760 - 266,531
Share of results of associates and point veniures - A5 - 45
Proifit before tax 97,1 168.805 - 266,576
Ircome fax enpense (53.653)
Profit for the year 212,904
Depseciatinn and amartization incladed
in Operaling sapenses 7533 11,178 - 18,111
Capital expendiure 4,790 12,057 = 165847
At 31 December 2019
Segment asals EE99.610 16,171,807 (114878) 24,756,538
_Including: fmvestment in associates and joint venfures - 6,672 - 6672
Unalioeated Fssels 120,952
Tatal assets 24877491
Segment labdties [B085,320) 014,893,380 114878 (12,863,324)
Unallocated lizbilities {59,806
Tatal liabilites (22,923,630)
Loan commitments 2nd Tinancial guarantee contracts 728,244 1,680, T84 — 2,410,028
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decernber 2020
{amounts in milkors of Reominbs, urless othenwise slated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
40 RELATED PARTY TRAMSACTIONS

{1) The Group and the MOF
&5 at 31 December 2020, the MOF directly owned 35.29% (31 December 2019 35.29%) of the
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ordinary shates of the Bank,
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The MOF is a Chinese government ministry, primanly resporsible for managing state fiscal rovenue
and expenditure, and establishing and enforcing taxation policies. It reports 1o the Chinese State

Coungil,

The Group had the following balances and transactions wath the BAOF in its ordinary course of

business under mormal commaercial terms:

31 Decambor 2020

Ratio to
similar
Balancte  transaclions
hssats

Treasury bonds and special government bond 754,663 9.65%
Recewvabhe Trom the MOF 316,656 4.05%

Liakslities
Amount payable to the MOF m 0.14%
Due to customers 8,385 0.04%
— rademption of reasury bonds on behalf of the MOF 4 -

2020

Ratio 1o
similar
Amount  transactions
IPtesest Income 20,376 2.76%
Interest expense {100} 0.03%
Fisg and COmmmsSsan moome 1.2594 1.42%
Het gain on financial investment 95 0.58%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020
tAmoeants in millons of Rermink:, unless atheranse stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continuad)
40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
{1} The Group and the MOF (Continued)

Ratio 1o
similar
Balance transactions
Assets
Treasury bonds and special government bord 643,568 B.BT%
Recesvable from the MOF 307,723 4.15%
Other accounts recaivable 1,004 0.77%
Liabilities
Amount payalble to the MOF 520 0.13%
Due to customers .07 0.04%
Other liabalities
— redempiion of freasury bonds on behalf of the MOF 4 -
— amount payable to the MOF 41 0.0 %
2019
Ratio o
similar
Amount Lransactions
Interast income 30,19% 3.40%
Interest expense {253} 0.07%
Fee and commission incame 1,552 1,76%
Netl gain on financial imvestment 162 0.85%

Interast rate ranges for transactions with the MOF during the year ara as follows:

Year ended 31 Decamber

2020 2018

] ¥

Treasury bonds and recewable from the MOF 0.00-5.00 0.13-9.00
Due 10 Customiers 0.00-2.81 0.00=3.41

The Group's redemnplion commitment for resury bonds underwiiting is dischosed in Note 1V 42
Contingent Liabiities and Commitments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decernber 2020
{amounts in milkors of Reominbs, urless othenwise slated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
{2) The Group and Huijin

Central Huijin Investment Ltd, ("Huijin™) & a wholly-cwned subsidiary of China Investmant
Corporation Limiled, which is incorporated In Belfing, PRC, Huljin was established 1o hold certain
equity interests in state-owned financial institutions as authonzed by the Chinese 5tate Council
and does not engage in other commercial actiities. Hujin oxercises its lagal rights and assumas
obligations related to the Bank on behalf of the PRC Gevernment

As at 31 December 2020, Huijin directly owned 40.03% (31 December 2019 40.03%) of the
ordinary shares of the Bank.

Transactions with Huifin
The Group hat the Tollewing balances and transactions with Hudlin in its ordinary course of business

These balances and trarsactions are priced based on market prices and conducted under normal
commercial terms.

31 Decambaer 2020

Ratio 10
similar
Balance  transaclions
Assels

Loans and advances 1o cusiomees 3,931 0.03%
Fimancial Investments 67,509 0.86%

Liabilities
D to customirs 5,447 0.03%

2020

Ratio to
similar
Amount transactions
Inddist Income 2,844 0.31%
Interest expense {148} 0.04%
Wet gaindloss) on finsnceal investment 29 0.18%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decernber 10240
tAmounss in millions of RBerimenbi, unless otheramse stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
{2) The Group and Huijin (Confinued)
Transactions with Huijin (Continued)

31 December 2019

Ratio to
similar
Balance transactions
Assets
Loans and advances 1o customers 22,024 0.17%
Financial Investments 68,455 0.92%
Liakllities
Du to CUstomens 1,862 0.01%
2019
Ratio to
similar
” Amount __ transactions
Interest income 2.314 0.27%
Interast expense (2700 0.07%
Nel gaindloss) on financial Investment 6% 0.34%

Interast rate ranges for transactions with Hulpn duning the year are as follows:

Year ended 31 December

2020 2018

) %

Leans and advances to customers 3.55-3.92 3.92=-4.35
Frnancial investments 2.15-5.1% 2.B4-5.15
Dug to custamers 1.73-2.25 1.38-2.25

Annua Bepen 20720 291
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decernber 2020
{amounts in milkors of Reominbs, urless othenwise slated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
{2) The Group and Huijin (Continued)

292 (DAamkann

Transactions with companies under Huifin
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Huijin has equity interests in certain other banks and financial institutions under the direction of the
Central Govornment, The Group entors anto transactions with these banks and financial institutions
in the ordinary course of business. These balances and transactions are pricad based on market
prices and conducted under normal commercial terms. Coresponding balances with these banks and

financial institutions were as Tollows.,

31 Pecember 2020

Ratio to
similar
Balance  transactions
ASLELS
Deposits with banks and other financial Institutions B9,726 20.57 %
Placements with and loans to banks and
othar financial institutions 100,125 18.31%
Derivative financial assets 17,137 2T.67T%
Fimnancial assets held under reszle agreements 27.349 3.35%
Loans and advances 1o customers 64,047 0.44 %
Fimancial investrments 731,655 89.35%
Liaksilities
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 92,890 B.B6%
Placements from banks and other fimancial institutions 147,049 37.64%
Derivatwe financial liabilities 11,259 17.25%
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements A8.444 Ad.36%
Due to customears ER P 0.02%
Equity
Other equity instruments 2,000 0.63%
Ofi-balance sheet items
Non-principal guaranteed wealth managemant
products issued by the Bank 3,000 0.15%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020
tAmoeants in millons of Rermink:, unless atheranse stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continuad)
40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
{2) The Group and Huijin (Confinued!

Transactions with companies under Huifin (Cantinusd)

31 Decembear 2019

Ratio to
similar
Balance transactions
Assals
Deposits with banks and other financial institutians 63637 26.99%
Placerments with and lsans to banks and
other financial instiutions 61,520 11.76%
Dainvatrie financial assets 4,360 17.48%
Financial assets held under resale agraomants 94,067 13.28%
Losans and advances to customers 53,117 0.41%
Financial investmenis 768,800 10.36%
Liabilities
Depasits from banks and other financial institutions 157,640 10,48%
Placements from banks and other financial institutions g4, 756 19.12%
Derrvative financial liabilities 5518 18.67%
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 1,309 246%
Due to customers 1,438 0.01%
Equity
Othet eguily instrumenis 2,000 1.00%
Off-balance sheet items
MNan-principal guaranteed weaallth management
products issued by the Bank 5,002 0.29%
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 Decernber 2020
{amounts in milkors of Reominbs, urless othenwise slated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
{3) MNational Council for Social Security Fund of the People’s Republic of China

On 25 September 2019, the Minstry of Finance transferred its 3.92% of the Bank's common stock
equity 1o the Natwonal Council for Social Security Fund of the People’s Republic of China (“55F") for
a gne-time transfer, As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the Bank’s shares held by 55F
accountad for £95% of the Bank®s total share capital. The dally business transactions betweon the
Group and the 55F are priced based on market prices and conducted on normal commaercial terms.
The Group had the following balances and transactons with the 35F;

31 Decamber 2020

Ratio 1o
similar
Balance  transactions
Asspls
Fimancial assets hield under resale agreements 33,966 4.76%
Liakilities
Due 1o custompns 51,827 0.25%
2020
Ratio to
similar
Amount  transactions
Interest Incomao 158 0.02%
Inferest expense {2,025) 0.53%
31 Decamber 2019
Ratio to
similar
Ella_l:l__c_a transactions
- Asspls '
Financial asots beld under resale agroemants 25,854 3.65%
Liaksilities
D by CUSTOMBTS 55,815 0.20%
2019
Ratio to
similar
Amount transactions
interest income 177 0.02%
InTerest expense (1,810} 0.49%

o4 @uzavy
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020
tAmoeants in millons of Rermink:, unless atheranse stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continuad)
40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
3] National Council for Social Security Fund of the Peaple’s Republic of China (Continued)

Interast rate ranges for transactions with S5F during the interim perod are as follows

Year ended 31 Decamber

2020 2012

k] o

Financial asseis held under resale agreements 0.63-3.35 0.87-5.0%
Due to customers 0.30-5.20 0.30-5 20

{4) The Group and other governmeant related entities

Dher than disclosed above, a significant portion of the Group's banking transactions are entered into
with government autharities, agencies, affilates and other State controlled entities. These tansacuions
are entered into under normal commercial terms and conditions and mainly include povision of
credit and guarantee, deposits, foreign exchange transactions, derivative ransactions, agency
sarvices, undarwriting and distribution of bonds issuad by governmant agencies. purchase, sales and
redemption of imestment securities issused by government agencies

Management considers that these tramsactions are activities conducted in the ordinary course of
business, and that the dealings of the Group have not been significantly or unduly affected by the
fact that the Group and those entities are government ralated, The Group has also established peicing
policies for products and services and such pncing polices do not depend on whether or not the
customers are government authorites, agencies, affiliates and other State controfled entities

{5 The Bank and its subsidiaries

The Bank had the following halances and transactions with its subsidiaries in ifs ordnary course of
business. These balances and tramsactions are priced based on market prices and conducted under
rarmal commercial terms,

31 Decamber 2020

Ratio to
similar
Balance  transactions
ASSEIS
Placerments with and loans to banks and
other financial institutions 87,643 16.02%
Financial assets held under resale agreemants 1,786 0.22%
Financial investments 6,230 0.08%
Other assets 24 0.02%
Liabilities
Deposits from banks and ather inancal institutions 18,657 1.34%
Due to customers 1,624 0.01%
_ther liabilties 753 0.14%
Off-balance sheat items
Letters of guarantee issued and guarantees 482 31.21%
Mon-principal guaranieed wealth management
products ssued by tha Bank 33 0.0 %
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 Decernber 2020
{amounts in milkors of Reominbs, urless othenwise slated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS {Continued)

(5

296 (HAnrenn

The Bank and its subsidiaries (Continuved)

2020

Ratio 1o
similar
..... e Amount _ transactions
Interest incom 1,568 0.17%
Net gain en financial imvestmaents 107 0.65%
fee and commission income 1.807 1.98%
Other operating income 9 0.03%
Iterest expense {373} 0.10%
Fes and commission @xpense (209} 5.47%
Dparating expenss {197) 0.0%%
31 Decomber 2019
Ratio to
=imilar
Balanca transaclions
ASSELS
Placernents with and loans to banks and
other financial institutions 83,805 16.97%
Fimancial investments 2,709 0.04%
Dther assets 21 0.02%
Liaksilitios
Depaosits from Banks and other financial institutions 10,895 0.72%
Duse to customers 950 0.01%
Other liabdities 1,040 0.25%
DH-balance sheet items
Letters of quarantes issued and guarantees 12,557 5 B1%
2019
Hatio 1o
simmilar
Arfounl Trans@ECons
Interest income T892 0.0 %
Fee and commsson incame 1,506 1L.71%
Dther aperating Income 1 -
Inlanest expense (253} 0.07%
Fee and CoMIMSson expense {268) 1.74%
Diparating expense {143) 0.06%
As at 31 December
2020 2019
N % %o
Placerments with and loans to banks and
other financial institutions 0.04-4.10 0.53-3.60
Financial asets held under resale agrasmants 1.44-2.96 1.00-4.70
Fimancial investments 2.50-4.70 3.30-4.70
Loams and advances 1o customers NiA &G04, 60
Depasits from Banks and other financial insbitutions 0.00-4.13 0.01-2.10
Due 1o customers 0.30-3.15 0.30-3.85
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020
tAmounts in millons of Renminks, unless atheraise staled)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(6] The Group and its associates and joint venture

The Group had the fallowang balances ang transactions with 115 assoclates and joint venture In its
ordinary course of business, These balances and transactions are peiced based on market prices and
conducted undar normal commercial terms

2020

Ratio to

similar

Amount  transactions

Interest inCcome 1 -
2019

Ratio to

sirmilar

Amount transactions

InLerest income = =

Year ended 31 Decamber
2020 2018
S e

Placernanis with and leans to banks and
other fimancial institutions 2.00-2.44 -

{7 Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persont who have the authonty and respondibility 1o plan,
direct and contrgl the activitios of the Group, Key management personnel of the Group, their close
ralatives, and entities that are contralled, jointly controlled, or significantly influenced by either the
key management personnel of the Group or thelr close relatives, are considered as related parties
of the Group, The Grouwp enters into banking transactions with above related parties in the normal
course of business. As at 31 Decembser 2020, the balance of laans and advances 1o the above related
partics |5 AMBE.85 million {31 Decemnber 2019: RMBS,536.42 million)

The remuneration of Directors and other memibers of key management during the wears was as

fallennms:
Year ended 31 Decamber
2020 2019
Salaries, bonusas and staff wellara 5.99 13.55

according to the reégulations of the relevant authonties in the PRC, the key management perscnng’s
final emoduments for the year ended 31 December 2020 have not been finalzed, Management of the
Group believes that the difference botween the final emoluments and that disclosed abave wall not
have sigrificant impact on the consalidated financial statemants of the Group. The final compensation
will be declosed in a separate announcement when determined

The compensation of key managemant parsonndgl for the year anded 31 December 2019 was not
decided at the time when the Group’s 2019 comsolidated financal statements were released and
the amount of remuneration of Directors and other members af key management recognized in
the consalidated income statermant for the year of 2019 was RMB9.97 millian. Supplementary
announcement on final compensation of RMB1355 milllon was released by the Bank on
2B September 2020, The comparative figuras for the year of 2019 hawe been restated accordingly
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decernber 2020
{amounts in milkors of Reominbs, urless othenwise slated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
{8) Related natural persons transactions

The Group ssued loan and credit card busimess to related matural persons (3s defined in the
Administrative Measures on information Disclosure of Listed Companies issued by the CSRC), As at
31 December 2020, the balance of such loan amounted to RMB12.E7 million (31 December 2019
RAABT, L5 million)

Az 3t 31 December 2020, the Bank's balance of credit related transactions o the related natwral
persons, and entities that are controlled, jointly controlled, or significantly influenced by either the
key management personnel of the Group or their close relatives as defined in the Administration
of Connected Tramsactions beétween Commercial Banks and Their Insiders totalled RMEZ.06 billion
{31 December 2019 AMB13.07 billion), and did not hawe any non credit tramsaction balance
(31 December 2019 RMB1.41 billion),

{9) The Group and the Annuity Scheme

The Group had the following balances and transactions with the Annuity Scheme set up by the Bank
apart from the abligation for defined contribution ta the Annuity Scheme:

31 Decembor 2020

Ratio to

similar

Balance  transactions

Depeosits from Annuity Schame 4,336 0.02%
2020

Ratio 1o

similar

Amount  transactions

Interest expense {185} 0.05%

31 December 2019

Ratio to

samilar
TR Balance  transactions
Depasits from Annuity 5chame 3,196 0.02 %

2019

Ratio to

sirnilar

Amount transaclions

Inlerest expanse {157} 0.04 %

Irterast rate range for tramsactions with the Annuity Scheme during the yaar is a5 fallows:

Year ended 31 December

2020 2019
k) L]
Depaosits from Annuity Scheme 0.00-5.00 0.00-5.00

298 (DAmrenn
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020
tAmoeants in millons of Rermink:, unless atheranse stated)

IV MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
{10) Proportion of transactions with major related parties
Related party trarsactions with subsidiaries have been offset in the process of preparing consolidated
financial statements, When calculating the proportion of related party transactions, related party
fransactions do not include related party transactions with subsidianies,

Transaction Balance

As at 31 December 2020  As a1 31 Decernber 2009
Related Related
party party

transactions  Propertion  fransactions Proportion

Deposits from banks and other

financial institutions 89,726 20.67 % 63,637 26 90%,
Placements with and loans to banks

and other finamcial institutions 100,125 18.31% 61,520 11.76%
Dervative financial assets 17,137 27.67% 4,360 17T48%
Financial assets held under

resale agreements 61,315 7.51% 118,821 16.02%
Leans and advances to customers 67,998 0.47% 75,141 0.59%
Financial investments 1.870,528 23.91% 1,768,546 24 09%
Other asset - - 1,004 0.77%
Deposits from banks and other

financial imstitutions 92,890 6.66% 157,640 10.48%
Placements from banks and other

financial institutions 147,049 37.64% 94,756 29.12%
Darvative financial liabilities 11,259 17.25% 5518 18.67%
Financial assels sold under

rapurchase agreaments 48,444 A4.36% 1,309 2 46%
Diue 1o custamers 69,580 0.34% 66,887 0.35%
Other liakilities 715 0.14% 565 0.14%
Other equity mstrumants 2,000 0.63% 2,000 1.00%

Non-principal guaranteed wealth
management products issued by
the Bank 3.000 0.15% 5,002 0.29%

Transaction amount

2020 2019

Related Related

party party
transactions  Proportion  fransactions  Proporfion
Interest inccme 33,379 3.59% 22,686 3.74%
Interest expense {2.274) 0.59% (2,333 0.63%
Net gain on financial investment 124 0.76% 27 1.19%
Fee and comimission income 1,204 1.42% 1,552 1.76%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020
{fmourts in millices of Benminbs, unless othenwvize siased)

IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
41 STRUCTURED ENTITIES
(1) Consolidated structured entities
Principal guaranteed WMPs sponsored and managed by the Group

Princepal guaranteed WiMPs sponsored and managed by the Group represent products to which the
Group has guaranteed the investor's principal investment, regardiess of their actual poerformance
Investments made by these products and the corresponding labilities are measured at fair vaiue
through profit or boss, respectively

Other consolidated structured entities

Chher structured entities consolidated by the Group include certaim trust investment plams, asset
management plans, funds and securitization products ssued, managed andfor invested by the Group.
The Group controls these entities because the Group has power over, is exposed to, or has nghts to,
vanahble returns from its invalvement with these entites and has the abality to use its power over these
entities 1o affect the amount of the Group’s returns

As at 31 December 2020, the ftotal assets of these consolidated structured entities ‘were
AMB241,504 million (31 December 2019: RMBA64,477 millkon)

(2) Unconsolidated structured entities
Unconsolidated structured entities sponsored and managed by the Group

Unconsolidated structured entities sponsored and managed by the Group mainly include non-principal
guaranteed WhPs, which are not subject to any guarantee by the Group of the principal invested or
imterest to be paid The WMPs invest in a range of primarily fived-rate assets, most typically money
marketl mstruments, debl securities and loan assets, As the manager of these WhPs, the Group
invests, on behalf of the investors in these WHPs, the funds raised in the assets as described in the
investment plan related to each WP and receives fee and commission income.

A5 at 31 December 2020, the tolal assels inwvested by these WhiPs amounted to RMEBZ, 170,621
million (31 December 2019. AMB 1,960,701 million) and the oorresponding outstanding WhPs Bsued
by the Group amounted to RMB1.949,722 million {31 December 2019 RME1,727.350 milkon)
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's interest in these WAPs included net fee
and commission income of RMBS, 243 million (2019: RMB4, 971 million) and net intersst income of
632 milkon (2019 RMBS74 millian), which related to placements and repo transactions entered into
bw the Group with these WHP Vahicles.

The Group enters into placements and repo transactons al markel interest rates with these
WhIPs. The aswerage balance dumng 2020 and the outstanding balince a5 at 31 December
2020 of these transactions were AMBZ23.423 milion {weighted average oulstanding period of
625 daysh (2019 RMB15.810 milion and 529 days) and RMB143,545 million (31 Decamber
2019 RMB116,900 million), respectvely, The Group was under no obligation to enter into these
transactions, As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the outstanding balance of these
transactions was presented in placements with and loans to banks and ether financial institutions and
firancial assets held under resale agreements, which represented the Group's maximum exposure 10
ke WhAPs
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

41

42

STRUCTURED ENTITIES (Continued)
{2) Unconsolidated structured entities (Continued)
Uncansalidated structured entities sporsored and managed by the Group (Continued)

There were no confractual bquidity amangements, guarantéees or other commitments among or
betwoen the Group, WMPs o any thirg parties that could increase the lewal of the Group's rsk
from WhAPs desclosed abowe during the penod ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019,
The Group was not required fo absorb any losses incurred Dy WMPs. During the period ended
31 December 2020 and 2019, no loss was incurred by these WP relating to the Group's Interests in
these WhPs, and the WiiPs did not experience difficulty in financing their activities.

In addition, other unconsolidated strectured entities sponsored and managed by the Group included
funds, asset management plans and asset-backed securities. 4s at 31 December 2030, the total
assets of these products amounted 10 RMBA40, 726 million (21 December 2019; RMBATE, 330 million),
During the year ended 31 Decemmber 2020, the Group's interest in these products mainky included net
fee and commission income of 830 million (201%; RMETST millicn).

Other unconsalidated structured entities held by the Group

The Group invests in other unconselidated structured entities which are sponsored and managed
by other entities for irvestment return, and records trading gaims or losses and interest income
therefrom. These unconsolidated stfuctured enbities primanly include aseet managemsant plans,
funds, trust plans and asset-backed secunties. As at 31 December 2020, the related cammying amount
of investments and the maximum exposure by the Group to these other unconsolidated structured
entities was AWMEDS2, 193 million {31 December 2019; RMBET3,521 million), included under the financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, other debt instrument investments at fair value through
othet comprehensive income and debt instrument investments at amortired cost categares in the
consalidated statement of finarcial position, As at 31 December 2020. The information an the size of
total assets of these unconsolidated structured entities was not readily available in the public domain.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
Legal proceedings and others

The Bank and its subsidiaries are jnvolved as defendants in certain lawsuits arising from their normal
business cperations. As atl 31 December 2020, provisions of RMEBS,560 milllon were made by the Group
{31 December 2019 R84, 4%0 million) based on court judgments or advice of legal counsel, and included
in Mate IV 31 Other Liabilities. Management of the Group believes that the final result ol these lawsuits will
not have a material impact on the financial position or operations of the Group.

On 28 Ssplember 2016, the Bank and its Mew York Branch entered into a Cease and Desist Order with
the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System of the United States. On 4 Mavember 2016, the
Bank and i1s New York Branch entered inlo a Cansenl Grdes with New York State Departmeni of Financial
Services (the “Department™) and paid a civil monetary penalty to the Department accordingly. As at
31 December 2016, the above-mentioned cvil monetary penalty was paid and reflected in the consalidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cantinued)
43 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (Continued)
Legal proceedings and others (Confinued)

The Bank and its Mew York Branch are taking affirmative actions 10 respond 1o other requirements
under these two orders. As at the date of these financial statements, the Group is of the view that it is
mol practicable fo estimate whether there will be any further regulatory actions undertaken by the US
regulators s this will be dependent upon the regulatory conclusson after the Bank's and its Mew York
Branch’s actions towards the cther requirements under these two orders As such, the Group did not
accrue any further provision over this matter as at 31 December 2020.

Capital commitments
As at 31 December
2020 2019
Contracted but nat provided for 2,507 2,606

In addition, as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the Group did not have outstanding equity
imvastment commitments for its investee companies.

Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts

As at 31 Decomber

2020 2019
Loan cammitments
— With an ariginal maturity of less than 1 yoar 207,288 148,602
— ‘With an ariginal maturity of 1 year or above 1,409,950 907,194
Subiotal 1,617,278 1,056,796
Bank acceptances 429,841 330,829
Credit card commitments 695,183 646,134
Guarantee and letlers of guarantee 264,646 216,229
_Letters of credit 162,356 151.040
Total 3,169,304 2,410,028

Loan commitments amd financial guaraniee contracts represent credit cards and general credit Tacility bmits
granted 1o customers. These general credit faciliies may be drawn in the form of loans o theough the
isswance af lotters of crodit, guarantee and lotters of guarantee of bank acceplances,

Credit risk welghted amount for credit commitments

Credit risk weighted amount for credit commitments represents the counterparty credit sk assoc.ated
with credit commatments and is calculated in accordamce with the "Capital Rules for Commercial Banks
{Provisional)® Issued by the CBIRC which was effective 1 January 20012 and is dependent on, ameng other
factors, the creditworthiness of counterparties and maturity charactenstics of each type of contract. As
al 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, credit rok weiohled amount Tor cedit commitments was
measured under the Internal Ratings — Based approach,

As at 31 December
2020 7019
Credit risk weighted amount or credit cammitments 1,240,078 1,063,652
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
42 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (Continued)
Collateral
Assets pledged

At the end of each reporting period, the carrying amounts of assels pledged as collateral under repurchase
agreaments are as follows:

Az at 21 Decambar

2020 2019
Deht saurities 114,573 55 738
Bills 1,327 1,978
Total 115,900 57.716

As al 31 December 2020, the financial assets sold under repurchase agreements by the Group (disclosed
in Note B 28] as at 31 December 2020 amounted to RMBI0S,195 million (31 December 2019:
RMBS2 197 millkon). Repurchase agreaments are primanly due within 1 years from the affective dates ol
these agreements,

Financial assels sold under repurchase agreements included certain transactions under which, fitle of the
pledged securities has been transferred to counterparties. These transactions have been disclosed in Mote [V
43 Transfarred Financial Assats.

In addition, debt securities and deposits with banks and other financial mstitutons pledged in accordance
with iegulatlory requirements of & collatesal lor déervative transactons and borrowings from central banks
elc. by the Group as at 31 December 2020 amounted to RMEN,026.931 milkon in total (31 December
2019: AMBEGZ, 190 million).

Collateral accepted

The Group recerved debt securities and bills as collateral in connection with the securities lending
tranzactions and the purchase of astets under resale agreements (Mote IV 16 Financial Assets Held
Under Resale Agreemenis). The Group did not hold any callateral thal can be rescld of re-pledged as at
31 Decernbet 2020 and 31 December 2019,

Redemption commitment for treasury bonds

The Group is entrusted by the MOF 1o undenyrite certain treasury bonds. The imvestors af these treasiry
bonds have a right to redeem the bonds at par at any time prior 10 maturity and the Group Is committed
to hanor such redemploon reguests. The redempiion price 15 caloulated as the par value of the bond plus
payable interest in sccordance with the terms of the related corly redermplon airangement.

As at 31 December 2020, the rominal value of treasury bonds the Group was abligated 1o redeem prior to
matutity was RMBG7,622 milion (31 December 2019: RMBYS.795 million). The ariginal maturities of thess
bonds vary frem 3 to 5 years. Management of the Group expects the amount of redemption belore the
maturity gates of these bonds will not be material,

The MOF will not provide furding 1or the early redemption of these bonds on 4 back-1o-hack basis, bur will
sotthe thie pringipal and Interest upon matunty,

Commitment on security underwriting

As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the Group did not have unfulfilled commitment in
respect of securites underwriting business
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
43 TRANSFERRED FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group enters into transactions im the normal course of business whereby it transfers recognized
financial assets to third parties or to structured entities, In some cases these transters may give rse to full
or partial derecognition of the financial assets concerned. In other cases where the transferred assats Go
nod gualify for derecognition as the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of these assets, the
Group continued to recognize the transferred assets.

Securitization transactions

The Group entérs into securitization transactions by which it transfers lpans o structured entities which
issue asset-backed securities (o investors, The Group assessed, among other factors, whether or not to
derecognize the fransferred assets by evaluating the extent to which it retains the risks and rewards of
the assets and whether it has relinquished its confrol over these assets based on the criteria as deiailed n
Mote il 8.7 and hote Il 6,

As at 31 December 2020, the total amount of unexpired asset-backed securities included accumulative
loans transferred by the Group before impairment allowance was RMESS, 291 million (31 December 2019
RMBEY, 016 million). RMB14,130 million of this balance (31 December 2019 RMEB11 855 million) was @n
respect of non-performing loans and the Group concluded that these loans transferred were qualified for
full derecognition, The remaining batance of RMBSS5,161 million (31 Decernber 2019 RAMESS, 161 million)
was in respect of performing boans and the Group concluded that it had continuing invalvement o
these assets. As at 31 December 2020, the Group continued to recognize assets of RMEE, 564 millicn
{31 December 2019 AMBG6,923 million) under ‘oans and advances 1o customers. The Group aleo
recognized other assets and other liabilities of the same amount arising from such continuing involvement.

Transfer of non-performing loans

During the year anded 31 December 2020, the Group trarsferred non-performing loans through dsposal
to third parties or sswing asset-back securities, with gross loan balance of RMB27,837 million (20019
RMB32,414 million), The Group carried out an assessment based on the critena as detailed in Note I 87
and Mote ll 6 and concluded that these transferred assets qualified for full derecognition.

Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements

The Group did not derecognize financial assets transferred as collateral in connection with repurchase
agreements. As at 31 December 2020, of these collateral pledged disclosed in Mote IV 42 Contingant
Liabilities and Commitments — Caollaterzl, AMB4,050 million {31 December 2019: ARMB2,955 millian)
representad debt securnities whereby legal title has been transferred 1o counterparties.

Securities lending transactions

For dabl secufites lent to counterparties under secunties lending agresments, the counlerparties are
aliowed fo sell or repledge these securities in the absence of default by the Group, but have an obligation
to relurn the securities at the maturity of the contract. The Group hat determined thal it retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of these securities and therefore has not derecognized them, As at
31 December 2020, the carrying amount of debt secunties lent to counterpartios was BMB17,150 millicn
{31 Dacember 2019: RMB12, 368 million).
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Overview

The Group's primary risk management objective is to maintain sk within acceptable parameters to meeat
the reguirements of regulators, depositors and other stakeholders, as well as 1o maximize returm for
investors within an acceptable level of risk.

The Group has designed risk management policies, which address, amang other thangs, the establishment
of risk limits and controls to wentify, analyze, monitor and report risks. Redevant and timely information
used to conduct these risk management activities i provided through information systerms mainiained
by the Group and is imtended to address the Group's information needs in thes area. The Group regulary
reviews its risk management policies and systems to address changes in markets, products and emerging
best practices.

The most significant types of sk o which the Group is exposed are credit risk, market rsk angd lguidity
risk, Market nsk Includes foreign exchange rate risk, interest rate risk and other price risk

Risk management framework

The Board of Directors is responsible for establishing the overall risk appetite of the Group and reviewing
and approving its risk management objectives and strategies,

Within this framewark, the Group's senior management has averall respansibility for managing all aspects
af risk, including mplementing risk management strategies, initiatves and credit policies and appraving
internal rules, measures and procedures related to risk management, The Risk Management Department of
the Group implements procedures for managing the significant risks to which the Group is exposed,

44.1 Credit risk
Credit risk management

Credit risk represents the potential boss that may anse from a customer or counterparty’s failue to
meet its obligations when due Credit nsk can also arise from operational fadures that result in an
unauthorized of Inapprophiale sdvance, commilment orf investment. The Group's major credit nisks
arse from loans and advances, treasury operations and off-balance sheet related credit risk exposures,

The Group's credit risk maragement and governance strscture comprise the Board of Directors and
s Risk Management Committee, S%enior Management and its Risk Management Committee, Cradit
Approval Commitlee and Assel Disposal Cormnmittee, & well as the Risk Management Department,
Credit Management Departrment, Credit Approval Depariment and related front-office customer
departments, The Group's credit risk management function operates under a centralized managemaont
and authenzaton under 3 range of specified hmits.

The Group performs slandardized credil management procedures, including credit due diligance
and proposal submission, credit underwrniting review, loan disbursement, post-lending monitoring
and ran-performing loan management. The Group enhances its credit nisk management by strictly
complying with its cradit managemen! procedures: strengthening customer investigation, cradit
rating, lending approval and pest-lending monitoring measures, enhancng risk mitgatsan effect of
loans through collatesal, accelerating disposal process of non-performing loans and continuously

upgrading i1s cradit management sysiem.
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.1 Credit risk {Confinwed)
Credit risk management (Continued)

The Group writes off financial assets, inwhole or in part, when i has exhausted all practical recovery
efforts and has concluded thore is no reasonablo expoctation of recovary. Indecators that there is
no reasonadle expectation of recovery include ceasing enforcement activity and where the Group's
recovery method & foreclosing on collateral and the value of the collateral s such that there s no
reasonable egpeciation of recovering in full,

The Group may write-off finamcial assets that are still subject to enforcement activity. The
outstanding contractual amounts of such assets written off during year ended 31 December 2020
was RMBA9, 375 million (Dunng the year ended 31 December 2019; RMBS1,398 million), The Group
still seeks to recover amounts it is legally cwned in full, but which have been written off due 1o no
reasonable expectation of full recovery

Dunng the reporting period, the Group continued 1o improve the comprehensive risk management
system to ensure effective risk management, The Group strengthened credit risk management in key
areas and assat quality control, Considering COVID-19 prevention and collection and disposal of non-
performing loans, the group accelerated the disposal of nen-performing loans o ensure the stability
of assels guality,

Apart from the credit risk exposures on credit-related assets, the credit rsk arising fram treasury
operation business is managed by selecting counterparties with acceptable credit quality, balancing
credit risk and return, referencing fo both internal and external credit rating information where
available and applying appropriate limits subject to different level of management authority, and
timely reviewsng and adjusting those limits in credit system. In addition, the Group ako provide
loan commitments and financial guarantes senvices to customers which may réquire the Group to
make payments on behalf of customers upon their fallure to perform under the terms of the related
contract. Risks ansing from boan commitmants and financial guarantzes are similar to those associated
with |oans and advances. These transactions are, therefore, subject 1o the same risk managemsant
palicies and procedures

Measurement of ECL

The Group applies the ECL model to calculate loss allowances for its debt finandial mstruments
measured al amortized cost and FVOCL as well as loan commitments and financial guarantee
coniracts.

Methods applied by the Growp in assessing the expected credit losses of its financal assets inchude
sk parameters model and the discounted cash flew [*DCF") model. Retail eredit assets and Stage |

and Stage |l whalesale credit assets are assessed using risk paramaters, while Stage Il wholesale credit
assets are subject 1o the discounted cash flowr method,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.1 Credit rigk (Continued)
Measurement of ECL (Canfimued]

The Group assesses ECL in light of forward-tooking information and uses complex models and
assurmptions in cakculating the cupocted crodin fosses. These micdels and assumptions relate to the
future macroeconomic conditions and the barrowars” credtworthingss (e.g., the lkelihcod of default
by customers @nd the corresponding losses), In assessing the expected credit rsks in accordance with
acoounting standards, the Group uses the judgmeents, assumptions and estimates where appropriate,
including;

— Segmentation of portfobo shaning similar credit risk charactenstics for the purposes of measwring
ECL

—  Parameters for measuning ECL

—  Cniterea for significant increase in credst risk and default definition

—  Definition of credit-mpaired financial asset

—  Forward-looking miormation

—  Estimation of future cash fiows for Stage |l whaolesale credit assets

Segmentation of portfolio shanng similar credit risk charactenstics for the purposes of measunng ECL

Far measurement of ECL, segmentation of portfolo o based on simitar credit risk characteristiics. The
Group classified cliemts into whaolesale clients and retail clients based on the nature of debtoss, In
performing the portfolio segmentation of whaolesale credit assets, the Group considers the type of
porrower, industry, boan wsage, and security type. When performing the portiolio segmentation for
retail credit assets, the Group considers loan product type and security 1ype 1o ensure the relshility of
its credit risk segmentation.

Farameters for measuring ECL

According to whether thee s a significant increase in credit risk and whether a financial assat has
become credit-impaired, the Group recagnizes an impairment allowance based on the expected credit
lags for the next 12 months of the entire lifetime of the financial asset. The relevant parameters of
ECL measuremeant include probability of default (PD), loss given default (LGD) and exposwre at default
[EAD), The Group establishes its PD models, LGD models and EAD models based on the internal rating
based systemn & currently used for its risk management purpase, in accordance with the requirements
of IFRS 9, in light of quantitative analyzes af histarcal statistics (such as counterparty ratings,
guarantee methods and collateral types. repayment methods, el ) and forward-lcoking information,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.1 Credit risk {Confinwed)
Measurement of ECL (Continued)
Parameters for measuring ECL (Continued)
The parameters are dafined as follows

—  PD represenis the licelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial obligation, either ocver the
next 12 manths (*12m PD"), or over the remaining lifetime (" Lifetime PD") of the obligation;

— EAD i based on the amounts the Group expects to be owed al the time ot default, ower the
next 12 months (7 12m EADT) or over the remaining Efetime (“Lifetime EAD "),

— LGD represents the Group's expectation of the extent of loss on defaulted expasure. |t varies
depanding on the type of counterparty, method of recourse and priority, and the availabality of
collateral or other credit support, LGD is expressed as a percentage loss per unit of exposure at
the time of default.

Criteria for significant increase in credit sisk (“SKCR%) and default definition

The Group assesses whether or nat the credit risk ot the relavant financial instruments has increased
significantly since the Initial recognition at each balance sheet date. For the purpose of staging
assessment of its financal assets, the Group thoroughly corsiders vanous reasonable and supportable
information that may reflect whether or not there has been a significant change in their credit nsk,
including farward-fooking information. Key factors considered include regulatory and operating
environments, internal and external credit ratings, solvency, wabikty a5 a goéng cancern, terms of
loan contracts, repayment behaviors, among others. Basad on the single financial instrument or the
combination of financial instruments with similar characteristics of credit risk, the Group compares the
risk of default of financial instruments on the balance sheet date with that on the intial recogrition
date in order to figure awt the changes of default risk in the expected lifetime of financial instruments.
The definition of default refers to the failure to pay the debt as agreed in the cantract, or other
wiblatiars af the debl contract and have a signilicant impact on the normal debl repayment,

The Group sets quantitative and qualitative criteria to determine whether or not the credit risk of a
firancial Instrument has increased significantly since ts initia! recognition. The criteria include changes
In the borrower’s PO, changes in its credit risk classification and other factors. In particular, when
the credit risk classification changes from Nosmal upon imitial recognition to Special Mention, there
has been SICR, When the borrower's PD nises to a certain level, there has been a significant increase
in credit nsk. Criteria to determing ssgnificant increase in credit risk vaned based on the onginal PD
upon initial recognition.  the borower's anginal PD s relatively low (Tar exarmple, lower than 3%),
there has been a significant increase in credit risk when the credit grade falls at least 6 notches. If the
criteria to determine significant increase in credit risk moves up or dowmn by one notch, the impact on
the allowance of expected credit loss on 31 December 2020 is less than 5%, According o IFRS 9, a
backstop s applied and the financial instrument considered to have experienced a significant increase
imeradit msk if the borrower i more than 30 days past due on its confractual payments.

The Group assumes that the cradit risk on a financial instrument has nol increased sigaificantly smce
initial recognition if the financial instrument & determined to have low credit nsk at the reporting

date. The Group recognizes a financial instrument as having low credit risk of its internal rating is
consistent with the globally accepled definition for low credit risk.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.1 Credit risk (Continued)
Measurement of ECL (Continued)}
Definition of credit-impalred financial assef

The criteria adopted by the Group 1o determine whether a credit impairment occurs under IFRS 9 is
consistent with the internal credit risk management abjectives for relevant financial instruments, in
additsan 1o consideration of quantitative and qualitative indicators. In assessing whether a borrower
has become credit-impaired, the Group mainly considers the following factors:

—  Significant linancial difficulty of the issuer or the borower,

— A hreach of contract, such as a default or past due svent in relation to interest or prncipal
payment;

— The lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating fo the borrower's
financial difficulty, having granted to the bosrower a concession that the lender would not
otherwise consider;

= |t i§ becoming probable that the bomrower will enler bankruplcy of other financial
regrganisation;

= The dsappearance of an active marker for that financial asset because of financal difficulties;

—  The purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects the incurred
credit insses;

—  The borrower is overdue for more than 90 days in any principal, advances, interest or investment
in bonds due to the Group

The credit impairmant of a financial asset may be caused by the combined effect of multiple events
rather than any single discrete event.

Forward-fooking infarmation

The assessment of whether or not thers has been a significant increase in credit risk and the
cadcufation of ECL both mvalve forward-fooking information. Through the analysis of historical data,
thie Group identifes the macre-economic intdicators that affect the ceedit risk and ECL of vanous
portfolio, Macro-economic indicators include Gross Domestic Product (GDP), Consumer Price Index
(CPIy and Industrial Added Value, eic.

The impact of these economic indicators on the POs and the LGDs varies from one portfolio o
another, The Group comprehensively considers internal and external data, espert forecasts and
statistical analysis 1o determine the correfation between these economic indicators and the PDs
and LGOs. The Group assesses and forecasts these economic indicators at least on an annual basis,
calculates the best estimates for the future, and regularky reviews and assesses results.

I 2020, the farecast value of 2021 GDP growth rate under each scenaro is as follows: 8.80% undar
base scenario, 11.12% under upside scenario, and 6,48% under dowrside scenario,

Based on statistical analysis and expert judgements, the Group determines the weightings of multiple
scenarios and the codresponding macro-ecanomic forecast wnder each scenaria. The weighting of
base scenario is greater than the aggregated weightings of the rest scenarios, The Group uses the
weighted 12-month ECL (Stage I} or weighted Efetime ECL (Stage |l and Stage M) to measure relevant
impairment allowances. These weighted credit losses are calculated by multiplying the expected credit
s under each scenarsa by the assigned scenario weighting
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.1 Credit risk (Continued)
Measurement of ECL (Confinued)
Farward-looking informalion (Continued)

& sensitivity analysis is performed on key economic indicators, econamic scenaros and weightings
assigned wsed in forward-looking measurement. When the assigned weightings of upside scenario
and dowrside scenano change by 10% and the forecast of key economic indicators change
accorgingly, the impact on the allowance of expecied credit loss is less than 5%,

Vihen evaluating forward-looking indormaton of ECL models n 2020, the Group comprehensivdy
considered the impact of COVID-19 on the macro economic and banking industry, and the influence
of government policies,

Estimanion of future cash fiows for Stage W wholesale credit assels

The Group measures the ECL for stage Il wholesale credit assets using DCF method, Under DCF
mathod, the loss allowance 5 calculated based on the estimation of future cash flows. At each
measurement date, the Group projects the future cash inflows of relevant assets under different
scenarios 1o estimate the probabllity wesghted cash flow of each futsre perod. The cash flows ane
dscounted and aggregated to get the present valus of the assets” future cash flows,

Maximum exposure o credit risk before taking into account any collateral held or other
credit enhancements

The masrmum exposure (o credit sk represents the credit nsk exposure 10 the Group ot the end of
each reporting period, without taking into account any coflateral held or other credit enhancements.
The exposure to credit risk at the end of each reporiing peried pemarily anses from credit and
treasury operations; as well as off-balance sheet items such as loan commitments, credil card
commilments, bank acceplances, guarantee and letters of guarantes and letters of credit, as credit
risks arsing from these items are similar 1o those associated with loans and recenabhes.

A summary of he maximum exgosure 1o oredit risk 15 as follows

As at 31 December

2020 2019
Balances with central banks 2,360,994 2,606,967
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 434,185 235,742
Placernens with and loans to banks and
other financial institutions 546,948 523,183
Derivative financial assets 61,937 74,5944
Finarcial assals beld under resale agreements 816,206 708,551
Loans and advances to customers {i} 14,552,433 12,819,764
Financial investmenis
Finanial assets at fair value throwgh profit or loss 469,308 BU3.758
Debt instrument invesiments al amortized cost [y 5,684,220 4,946,741
Other debt instrument investments at fair value
through other comprehensiva inoome (i} 1,551,439 1.671,746
Other financial asseis 101,562 E0.858
Subtotal 26,579,232 14,312,254
Lean commitments and finangial guarantes contracts (v} 3,133,548 2,384,815
Tatal 29,712,780 26,697,069
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.1 Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before taking into account any collateral held or aother
credit enhancements [Continued)

(il Maximum axposure to credit rsk for loans and advances diclosed in credit nst lovels

The Group classified the credit risk levels of financlal assets measured by ECL into ~Low ™ (credit
risk im good condition), "Medium®(increased credit rsk), and *High®(credit nsk in severe
condition), based on the quality of assets. The credit risk level is used for the purpose of the
group's internal credit risk management. “Low" refers to assets with good credit quality.
There is no sufficient reason to doubt that the assets are not expected 1o fulfill its contractual
obligation to repay or if there is any other behaviors breaching the debt contracts that would
significantly impact the repayment of debl according to contract terms, " Medium® refers to
a35ets facing obvious negative factors impacting its repayment capacity, but not yet have non-
repayment behaviors. “High” refers to mon-repayment according to the debt contract tesms, or
other behaviors breaching the debt contracts or having significant impact on the repayment of
debt according to contract terms.

Corparate loans and advances As at 31 December 2020
Stage Il B
Stage | Stage Il Total

12m ECL  Lifetime ECL

Cradit risk grade

Low 439,076 21,073 8,460,149
Bedium - 158,188 258,288
High - 198,795 198,795
Gross cariying amount BA35,076 478,156 8,017,232
Allowance for impairment loss {269,354) (189,331) (458,685)
Het amount 8,169,722 288,825 8,458,547
Personal Loans and advances A< ot 31 December 2020
Stage Il &
Stage | Stage Il Total

12m ECL  Lifetime ECL

Credit risk grade

Lo 5,134,472 - 6,124,472

Mredium - 46,047 46,047

High - 38,318 38,318
Gross carrying amourd 6,134,472 84,365 6,218,837
Allowance for impairment |oss {128,414) {30,910) (159,324)
Mot amount 6,006,058 53,455 6,059,513
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For the year ended 31 December 2000
{Amounts in milions of Renminki, urkess olhensise stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cantinued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.1 Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum expasure To credit risk before taking into account any collateral held or other
credit emhancements (Continued)

il Maxirmum cxposure to crodit risk for loans and advances disclosed in credit risk levels

{Continued)
Corporate loans and advances As at 31 Decernber 2019
Stage Il &
Stage | Stage Nl Tatal

1ZmECL  Lifetime ECL

Cradit rek grade

Leow 7,483,007 22,214 7,505,221
Mo iuam - 461,208 261,208
High = 155,490 155,450
Gross carmying amount 1,483,007 438,912 7,821,919
Allowance for impairment loss {237,105} {163,829) (400, 934)
Het amount 1,245,902 275,083 7,520,985
Personal Loans and advances A5 a1 31 Decemnber 2019
Stage Il &
Stage | Stage I Total

13m ECL Lifetime ECL

Credit rsk grade

Loy 5,337,918 - 5337.918
Wil - 37193 37.193
High - 31,720 31,720
Grnss carmying amount LREENR-AE:] 68,913 5406831
Allowance for impairment loss {114,445} {25,199) 1139, 644)
Net amount 5,223,473 43,714 5,467,187

The above infarmation on the maximuem exposure to credit rsk of loans and advances 1o
custamers does not include comrespanding accured interests or inans and advances 19 customers
measured at fair value through profit or loss,

E LAl LA L
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
tAmoeants in millons of Rermink:, unless atheranse stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuad)
44.1 Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum expasure to credit risk before taking Into account any collateral held or ather
credit enhancemnents [Continued)

(i} Maximum sxpesure to credit rick for debt instrument imvesiments at amortized cost disclosed in

cradit risk levels
As at 31 Decembar 2020
Stage Il &
Stage | Stage Il Total
12m ECL  Lifetime ECL
Credit rsk grade
Low 5,697,187 - 5,697,187
Medium - 1.064 2,064
High - 1.073 1,073
Gross carrying amount 5,697,187 3,137 5. 700,324
Aliowance for impairment loss {14,850) {1.254) {16,104}
Net amount 5,682,337 1,883 5,684,220

&% a1 31 Decamber 2019
Stage Il &
Stage | Stage I Total
12m ECL Lifatime ECL

Credit risk grade

Linwy 4,953 B3F = 4953832

heedium = 1,196 1,196

High - 1,201 1,20
Gross carmying amount 4,953,832 2,397 4,956,129
Allowance for impairment loss (8,408) 11,07% (9,488)
Net amaunt 4,545,423 1,318 4,946,741
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For the year ended 31 December 2000
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cantinued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.1 Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum expasure To credit risk before taking into account any collateral held or other
credit emhancements (Continued)

i}y Maximum exposure to credit risk for other dabt instrument investmaents at fair value through
other comprehensive income disclosed in credit risk levals

Az at 31 December 2020
Stage Il &
Stage | Stage il Taotal
12m ECL  Lifetime ECL

Cradit rek grade

Lo 1,545,343 - 1,545,343
Mo i - 6,030 6,020
High - 66 B6
Gross canmying amount 1,545,343 6,096 1,551,439

As at 31 December 2019

Stage 1| &
Stage | Stage i Total
12m ECL Lifetime ECL

Credit risk grade
Lo 1,671,525 - 1,671,525
Medium - - -
High - 221 2
GiGss CAITYIRG Brmount 1,671,525 221 1,671,746

{iv)  Mamimum exposure (o credit sk for loan comimdtments and financial gualanies coniretts
i5 balance after estimated contingent labilities. Majority of lcan commitments and financial
Quarantos contiacs | in Stage | with credit risk grade as “Low”,

W) Asat 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, in s depaosits with banks and other financial
institutions, placements with and loans to banks and other finzncial institutions, and financial

assels held under resale agreements, the Group had insignificant balances with “Medum™ or
“High” cradit risk grade and classified a3 51age Il or Stage |l assets, and no default had oocusred.

3a @renany
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
tAmoeants in millons of Rermink:, unless atheranse stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuad)
44.1 Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum expasure to credit risk before taking Into account any collateral held or ather
credit enhancemnents [Continued)

(i} The Group has implemented spacific polcies and crodit enhancomont practices 1o mitigate credit
fisk exposure 1o an acceptable level, The most typical practice is obtaining guarantes deposits,
«collateral and guarantees. The amount and type of acceptable collateral are determined theough
the assessment af credit risk of bomowers or counterparties, The Group implements guidelines
on the acceptability of specific classes of collateral and evaluation parameters.

The main types of collateral obiained are as follows:

—  Mortgage loans o retal customers are generally collateralized by mortgages over
residential properties;

—  DOther personal lending and corporate boans and advances are primanly collateralized by
charges over land and propertes or other assets of the borrowers; and

—  Financial assets held under resale agreements transactions are primarily coflateralized by
debt securities and bills.

The Group monitors the market value of collateral periodically and requests for additional
collateral in accoedance with the underlying agreement when necessary,
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
{fmourts in millices of Benminbs, unless othenwvize siased)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.1 Credit risk (Continued)

31 urewy

Loans and advances to custamers (i)

The following fables set out the concentration of nsk for loans and advances o customers by

geographical area and industry

i

The composition of loans and advances 1o customers by geographecal area (s analyzed as

follows;
A3 ot 31 Decembar
2020 019
Amount % of total Amount % of total
Corporate loans and advances
Head Office 350,679 3.9 318,970 4.0
Yangtza River Dalta 1,996,025 224 1,710,643 216
Pearl Rver Delta 1,139,535 12.8 960,384 12.1
Bohai Rim 1,302,504 14.6 1,198,828 15.2
Central China 1,302,925 146 1,125021 14.2
Westerm China 1,088,255 234 1,836,512 2348
MNartheastern China 344,039 3.9 316,802 4.0
Overseas and Othars 393,322 4.4 404,758 5.1
Subtotal 8,017,284 1w00.0 7921914 160.0
Parsonal koans and advances
Head Office 50 - 55 -
‘Yangtze River Dalta 1,484,067 23.59 1,286,246 2348
Pearl Rivar Della 1,231,142 21.4 1,175,768 217
Bahai Rim |27 4.7 BO2,153 148
Central China 997,845 16.0 B57,033 16.0
Western China 1,265,565 204 1,083958 200
Martheastern China 207.89% 3.3 186,464 34
Chversaas and Othars 20,094 0.3 15,154 03
Sulbtotal 6,218,837 100.0 5406831 100.0
Gross loams and advances
1o customars 15,136,121 13,328,750

(il
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Notes to the Consclidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020
tAmoeants in millons of Rermink:, unless atheranse stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.1 Credit rigk (Continued)
Loans and advances to customers (i) (Continued)

(2} The composition of loans and advances 1o customers by industry is analyzed as follows:

—_— As al 31 December

2020 2019
Amount % of total Amaunt % of tolal

Corporate loans and advances
Transportation, logistcs and

postal services 1.915.19 21.5 1,689,787 213
banufacturing 1,450,816 16.3 1,291,327 16.3
Leasing and commercial services 1,261,700 14 1,047 843 13.2
Prodisction and supply of power,

heat, gas and water 976,377 1.0 800,036 1.4
Real estate 796,017 8.9 704,973 gg
Water, environment and public

utilities managemeant 621,772 1.0 17448 6.5
Retail and wholesale 465,831 53 386,064 49
Finance 556,342 6.2 B23,570 748
Construction 111,858 1.5 233,961 29
Mining 206,502 2.3 212,201 27
Others 437,878 4.9 314,708 4.0
Subtotal B.917.284 100,00 7.021.919 100.0

Persanal loans and advances
Ressdential mertgage 4,662,632 75.0 4,163,293 7.0
Personal business 380,205 &1 264,980 4.9
Parsonal consumplion 196,859 32 181,234 3.3
Credit cards 542,563 8.7 aT4. 205 B3
Others 436478 1.0 323118 6.0
Subtotal 6,218,837 1000 5,406,831 100.0

Gross loans and advances
10 CUSLOmErs 15,136,121 13,328,750
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For the year ended 31 December 2000
tamounts i mellsors of Renminbi, urdess cihenwize stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.1 Credit risk (Continued)

318 (Drmeany

Loans and advances to custamers (i) (Continuad)

(3) The composition of koans and advances to customers by contractual maturity and security type is

analyzed as follows:

11 December 2020

Less than Ttas Over 5
1 year yenars years Tatal
Unsecured boans 1,537,763 958,928 1,679,137 4,175,828
Guataniesd loans 619,91 418,989 540,554 1,689,444
Loans secured by collateral 1,062,045 521.244 5395327 6,978,676
Fledged loans 623,848 101,553 1,566,832 2,292,233
Tatal 3,843,557 2,010,714 9,281,850 15,136,121
B 31 Decomber 2019
Less than 1tos Over 5
1 year WESMS Years Total
Unsecured hoans 1,273,415 765,757 1,403,329 3442501
Guarantead loans 6392 480 430,558 733,377 1,856,415
Laans secured by collateral 861,640 418,293 4,618,803 5808736
Fledged loans B57. 142 102,480 1,370,476 2,131,098
Total 384,677 1,717,088 B126,985 13,328,750
(d)  Past due koans (i}
31 December 2020
Up ta 31-90  91-360 361 days Over
30 days days days 1o 3 years 3 years Total
Unsecured loans 5678 4,645 12,114 2,675 3,526 2B,638
Guaranteed loans 10,136 2,890 11.336 0,287 2,020 35,660
Loans secured by
collateral 32,138 20,145 33540 26,513 6,636 118,972
Fledged loans 2.042 554 3.803 5,274 481 12,154
Total 49,954 28,234 60,793 43,749 12,663 195,433
31 December 2019
Up to 31-00 91-26Q0 261 days Chor
30 days days days to 3years 3 ywars Tatal
Unsecured foans 5.326 3416 1.957 4,206 1.287 22192
Guaranteed loans 13,441 3,554 13259 10899 3090 44243
Loans securad by
collateral 28,893 14,514 25747 25885 B.396 103,415
Fedged lnans 1,733 241 2,687 6,817 1,665 13,143
Tatal 49,493 21,725  A96%0 A7 BT 14,438 182993

il When sither ioan principal or inderest ix past due By one day in any penod, the whobe foan i classiied

as p.a:rduﬂiluqn
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020
tAmoeants in millons of Rermink:, unless atheranse stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.1 Credit rigk (Continued)
Loans and advances to customers (i) (Continued)
15}  Credit quality of loans and advances 1o CUSIOMErs

A5 at 31 Decamber 2020 and 31 December 2019, the credit quality of loans and advances to
customers by stages is disclosed in Note IV 17,

(8} Modification of contractual cash flows

A modification or re-negotiation of a contract between the Group and a countaiparty may result
in a change to the contraciual cash fiows without resulting in the derecagnition of the financial
assets, Such restructuring aciivities include extended payment 180m aranQements, epayment
schedule modifications and changes to the interest settlement method. The risk of default of
tuch assets after modification is assessed at the reporting date and compared with the risk under
the onginal terms at initial recognition, when the modification is not substantial and so does
net result in derecognition of the origingl asset, The gross carmying amaunt of the financial asset
is recalculated and the related gain or loss is recogrized in profit and loss, The gross carrying
amount of the financial asset is determined based on the present value of the renegaotiated or
modified contractual cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original efective interest rate.

The Group monifors the subseguent perfarmance of modified assets. The Group may determine
that the credit risk has significantly improved after modified, o that the assets are moved from
Stage 3 or Stage 2 to Stage 1, and the impairment allowance is measured at an amount equa’ to
the 12-month ECL instead of the lifetime ECL.

In ardar 1o collect loans as much as possible, the Group may renegotiate the terms of the
contract with borrowers because of deterioration in their financial position, or of the inability to
meet their onginal repayment schedule. Such contract medifications include roll over of loan,
extens:on of non-payment pericd or repayment period. Based on the management's judgment
of the borrowers’ repayment possibility, the Group has formulated specific reschaduled loan
policy and practice, and réviewed the pobcy continuously. Im most cases. medium and long-
term loans are considered to reschedule. Rescheduled loans should be reviewed after at least
6 months of obtervation and reach the corresponding stage classification criteria. Concessions
are given by the Group that would nat clherwise be granted to these borrowers for economic
or fegal reasons relating to their financial difficulties. Rescheduled loans and advances of
the Group as al 31 December 2020 amounted to RMBT1.466 million (31 December 2019:
RMBST, 266 million),

During the pernod ended 31 Decernber 2020, as a result of debt-for-equity swaps, the Gioup
recognized ordinary shares upon renegotation of RMBY,649 million (duning the period ended
31 December 2019: RMB2,123 million}. The boss assotiated with these debl-for equily swaps
was not significant.

17} Assets foraclosed wnder credit enhancement arrangemeant

Such foreclosed assets are disclosed in Note IV 18,142 Other financial assets at far value
theough profit or loss and Mote IV 23 ther assets.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.1 Credit risk (Continued)

320 (HAmEenn

Debt instruments

Credit quality of debt instruments

i

(2

Analysis of the expected cradit boss stages of debt instrumant investments at amartized cost and
other delst instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income were dsclosed in Note
V182 and 18.3, respecively,

Debt instruments analyzed by credit rating

The Group adopts a credit rating approach to manage the credit nisk of the debt securities
portfolio held. The carrying amounts of debt instruments investments at amortized cost and
other debt instrument imvestments at fair value through other comprehensive income analyzed
by their credit rating as at the end of the reporting penicd are as follows;

As at 31 Dacombor 2020

Credit grade Lo Medium High Total
Dbt sacurnties ssued by
— GovEmmants 4,2BB,607 - - 4,788,607
— Public sector and
QUISI-GOVErnments 1,590,893 - - 1,500,893
— Financial instituticns 658,132 2,580 - 660,762
— Corporates (i FLT PRy 4,796 (2 252,579
Special government bond 94,125 - - 94,125
feceivable from the MOF 316,656 - - 316,656
Othars 31,500 528 9 32,037
Total 7,227,680 7.904 75 7,235,658

As at 31 Decemnber 2019

Credit grade low  Medum High Total
Debt securities issued by
— Goemments 3,540,555 - - 3,540,555
— Fubfic sector and
guasi-governments 1,562,706 - - 1,562,706
— Financial institutions 784, 479 - - 784 479
— Corporates {m) 204,375 - 2 204 596
Special government bond o4,027 - - 94,127
Receivable fram the MOF 307,723 - - Jor,r23
DOihers 32,583 1,164 154 34,301
Total 65,616,248 1,164 375 6,618,487
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decernber 10240
tAmounss in millions of RBerimenbi, unless otheramse stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.1 Credit risk (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)
Credit qua'ity of debl instruments (Continued)
(2)  Debt instruments analyzed by credit rating (Continued)
(i} The ratings as a1 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 were intemal ratings obtained
from the Group, financial assets at fair value through profit ar loss was not included in the
credit grade table 25 at 31 December 2020 and 31 Decemnber 2019,
(i) As at 31 December 2020, the ratings of super short-term commerciad papers of the

Group amounted to RMB341 miflion (31 December 2019 RMB15,834 milllson) included in
coporate bonds above are based on issuer rating for this credit risk analysis

44.2 Liguidity risk

Liquidety risk s the risk that funds will not be available to meet labilities as they fall due. This may
arise from cash flows or maturity mismatches of assets and liabilities

The Growp's Assets and Liabdities Management Departmant manages its liquidity risk through:

— Optimizing asset and liability structure;

—  Maintaining stability of deposit base,

—  Making projections of fufure cash flows, and evaluating the appropriate liquid asset position,
—  Maintaining an effcient internal funds transfer machansm within the Group; and

—  Performing stress testing on a regular basis
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.2 Liguidity risk {Continued)

322 (Emrenn

Analysls of the remaining contractual maturity of financlal assets and fimancial Nabilities

The tables below summarize the maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities by

femaining contractual matunities basad on the camying amount at the end of sach repartng period:

11 Devember 10
On  Lem thes 1= kn =5 e
Fast duw Beraend Tmanh moatks manth yran Syman  Undated Total
Cash o] e with ceniral bk - N3 11555 an LT - -  LIVLESS AN
Pepirats with baoks ardl
oiter frarcal rabtaton BT 1148 AT Maam wa? - - AW
Parcemerry with ared kurs 10 basks
el oiher Frarcs imditubors, " - WA AR 1N k] 1300 - s
Dertvats firuncisl e - = bRl el um L3 n = [iK5
Frnancisl s hald under
TRl pjtesnant L] = AR FEELH FER - - = EHE
Roars and chamoes 1o nustomer ol - HaEM BsE d00asa LBMA TNNAE - S5
Francl amts f Far ol
through profit of less ] 4% Lkl s 13 101774 100,63 Lk 583068
el stement ivsiirenty
ot mirtiged el H B4 WD W DTSR RN BEMIN
Onbar cobt et ard o sty
wpiranty i Far sk teough
ther oo przhenee income - wman wam o N mm BoER LR
e fnarvid et L i S0 LU .
Totd fnancial sty PRBAD MR LETRAM  LMESEY  AAITRM GAGRER IGMADRGY  RAIOEM  MOTLEE
Borrowings brom et bask O BLEER WS g a & - Py
Fepirits brom baoky ]
cehier frurcial insutution = [T 4B (TS (ESN e & = 1356
Pacements 'rom banks and
orbyer Bl insitution Sk L 1 - T 1 - [
Francal abdvet o e sk
Phrmagh it o lems (L7 - L] e = 4 e
emiatues franciyl bt - . [Bng g (A A (0] = [
ol ety 3o wrder
ks Egneme) - F 14,756, Ay e [L1F] T - 18
[k ko Dt = [EELSIE  (SS450%) (1256439 (L8SSAN} {LETLSON (M) - (i)
ey meruntes s - - ning  Geas eI UmE (S0 - [insaE
O Sl Lt [s141n (1563 A @ fnasd ok [R50 (3554680
Tatd dranciol labdtes - [1RI0753%) (10950660 (191105 (LITLEEY HMONLBES) (0657 [BJEH) [24518,043)
A postion MM [1RA0LEM DS (EITAEN:  MAASE  LAs  9TOAM  R4ILXE 188338
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
tAmounts in millons of Renminks, unless atheraise staled)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuad)
44,2 Ligquidity risk (Continued)

Analysis of the remaining contractual maturity of financial assets and financial Nabilities
{Contimued)

The tables below summarize the maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities by
rémaining contractual maturities based on the carrying amount at the end of sach reparting period;
[Continued)

11 Decenber 7019
o lmEwn 1= 14} [E1 [+
Reide  dwun]  Teon eoets  mosh wan S Unieed Toeal

ieh and bances weh el banin = LEREH LRPa BN HAM = - MEFE 1808
Degets mith it and

aehwr francal mstutios - W B XM 1M 1,15 - - M
Tacemmty with ardl boam 1o barlty

and cther fruncas istiubon. 1 - MTHD T 1A 1w 129 - EE
Dorvvating Financial amets - . 10 4508 71 m 7] HE
Teartial anet hod e

el agreemris 181 - @I nm m - - - A
e and eckemnors b stz 18573 - EEHR M AT SN BITLe - 1nEEE
Tmancial ot af far ke

Srough it o s - 11 00 EeRE] LL AR 64 55T 104 18 (FERL] 101 188 B 61
Dietat ivitromant imwnimart

il wroriied tnl - - 5T 8 ESTE 47100 1AM LETLG - RHESTL
Deteer chebd bt i e ey

et af B ke heoh

otter sorprrhere oo - - ET 5T ] £ 5E5 R T S Y0 1ETLEM
Dt Funcaa ety 1 e 1371 1448 L o i 1% mER
*atal frarcial ety HOE BT LSETH LIEED A0SO SIS BATREN  2IEST M558
Boromngn from eertra aels - 1] L 52 o & ] - - B8 S8
Depoits from barks ard

e fedteall bt = (e EET RLIE  QESE  En 1 348 [571]] - 1150080
Pacementy om birks and

other francial imtdiom - - I M PR Wy - OB
Trancia Rubsbites; il dar ok

Sroaphprht of ke - [ERE 1] L 141 - 35 - - auh 130,53
Dl e Bl labltes - - 1361 [ (62,1941 |, 795 1] - (39 548
il svieny s undes

repurchise agimemests - - @ED  (EEM) i - - -
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

44.2 Liguidity risk {Continued)

324 @iusenn

Analysls of the undiscounted contractual cash fows

Assets avallable to meet obligations related 10 the Group's labilities and outstanding credit
commitmants primanly incluede cash and balances with contral banks, deposits with banks and other
financial imstiutions, placements with and loans to banks and other financial institutions, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, and financial assats held under resale agreements. In the
normal course of business, the majority of custiomer deposits repayable on demand or on maturity
are expected o be retained. in addition, the Group is able to sell the other debt instrument and other
equity invastments at fair value through other comprehensive income to repay matured habilities, if

MeCessary.

Thi tables below present the undiscounted cash flows of non-dervvative financial assets and financial
liabilities by remaining contractual maturities at the end of each reporting period:
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44,2 Ligquidity risk (Continued)
Analysis of the undiscounted contractual cash Mows (Continued)

The tables belowr present the undiscounted cash flows of non-derivative financial assets and financial
liabikties by remaining contractual maturities at the end of each reporting peried: (Continued)

11 December 114
I lewmfan 12 31 (5] Cor

Peite  demand  Dmer mosi moesh wan Span Ldesd Tetd
Won-dertvatove frascyl maeh
{ach ard Ralances with Dol s - a5 LA L1 5] WA - = LIBLHE 1696
Dueprrity with i i
e Frecal britubions - Lk M sl e 1158 - - e
Facersemty with arel bnars. % basiny
nd other Srurcal rstbutions ] - MANS  IEAG DR an L4&! - EmEn
Frraeci e huekd g
el T 1Em - R hAETE] -] - . - es
Lo e achvarcs to pustomery BES - BN TOEE ISR AN 0EME - BEILAR
Frarcl wmats ot Far ke
hrooghpeiit orlom - 100 EL RN L7 SO 1 L SO 7 T R 11 R 1 {1
[kt iiramen; vt
t wroined odd - TN WM R4 W UmTE = BMSIED
(e e ratrumaet and pther sty
et Bk heuh
offer omprehersia noome - - LB A dim e Inin L
Ot il aves - mpM UM s o om % e mam

Tolal nordersate brincial aushy arn BLI I7ITIEL 1MEMI  ATERTET OR300S0 0SS 2300013 33001

Hon-dersatns fnascal lablnin
Borrangs; from certral barks - (£ R L] M (o] - - |
Diepositsy From barit o]

o francal imvbiutom - GOdEE . ELTMY  QBIE (B4 @ frn] « 05
Pacements hon barks and

o Francul mitutiom - - TR MIEE IR 5.5 A ]
Frarcal lablites of tae vab

Svough peofit o = (i ) - 1,548 - - BHL I
Teancial sty 3cid onder

ot agraernesty - - @Ry mnn omEn - . 8
Dam o cutomers = [LIAN0  ETME NS SR QIEHE (15 = (19,104, 2500
Db et s - - ELIMY (EEOER  BMEIT  [ER0W  OELiOn < 00830
Dthen Finaagiel abiliins - N#EED 066 ang 138 EEA (325) T EsRsn
Tt rervdesiav frarcal labilites - (EMEM [ET50 NAVEN) WIAT OIBME  dFihen A ERIVE
N posticn STH (LEATE  EEH  BONS  EIRIND  AEA ILESH MU RIOIE

Annual Repun 2020 325

4441497



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
Oooooooa

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.2 Liguidity risk {Continued)
Derivative cash flows
Denvatives seftied on a net basis

The fables below present the undiscounted contractual cash flows of the Group's net derivative
positions based on their remaining contractual maturities:

31 December 1020

Less than 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over
Imenth  months  months years  5years Total
Derivatives on 4 nat Basis 18] {1201 (39) (2203  [1.078)  (3,398)
31 December 2019
Less than 1-3 312 1-5 Over
1 anonth mgnihs moniths YEErs 5 years Total
Derivatives on a nat basis - (%) £l {852} {427) {1,275)

Derivatives settied on & gross basis

The tables below present the undiscounted contractual cash flows of the Group's gross doenvative
positions based on thelr remaining contractual maturities:

31 December 2020

Less than 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over
imanth  months  months yoars 5 yoars Tatal
Desivates satthed on a gross bass
— Cash Inflew 20178 530,154 1,540,225 51,085 - 2550,642
— Cazh outflow {527,974) (526.854) (1545117}  (50,038) - [2,650,883)
Total 1,204 3,300 [4.892) 147 - (241)
31 December 2019
L5 than 1-3 317 =5 Dver
1 mesnth maaths manths years 5 years Tols
Detvatnes sotthed on 3 gross bass
— Cash infiow 505415 449576 1845384 53,790 43 2862157
— Cash gutflow {512,826) [453,343) (1.845114p (34,222} (54) (2,865,550
Total (3.411) (3.815) 4,370 1432y {14) {3.402)
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuad)
44,2 Ligquidity risk (Continued)
Off-balance sheet ffems
The off-balance sheet items primarily incluge loan commitments, bank acceptances, credit card
commitmaents, guarantess and lettors of guarantes and tettors of credit. The tabhes beiow summarize

the amounts of credit commitments by remaining maturity, Financial guarantees are also inclueded
below at national amounts and based on the earfiest contractual maturity date

31 Decembar 2020

Less than 1-5 Over
1 year years 5 years Total
Lesdr commitmants 277,152 387,215 952,811 1.617.278
Bank acceplances 429,841 - - 429,841
Credit card commitments 695,183 - - 695,183
Guarantee and leiters of guaraniee 135,533 118,620 10,493 264,646
Letters of credit 157,942 4,414 - 162,356
Total 1,695,651 510,349 963,304 3,169,304

31 December 2019

Less tham 1-5 Ower
1 year Years 5 years Total
Loan commitments 187.064 265,518 604, 214 1,056,798
Bank acceptances 339,829 - - 339,829
Credit card commitments Bdb, 134 - - Bdb, 134
Guarantee znd letiers of guarantes 104, 848 102,713 B.6E8 216,229
Letiers of credit 148,334 2,706 - 151,040
Total 1,426,209 370,937 612,862 2,410,028

44.3 Market risk

Market risk represents the potential less arising from chamges in markel rates of interest and
foreign exchange, as well as commodity and equity prices. Markes risk arises from both the Group's
proprielasy positions and customer driven tramsactions, in both cases related 1o on- and off-balance
sheet activities

The Group is primanly exposed o Interest rate risk through s lending, fixed-income and funding
acthities. Interest rate risk is inherent in many of the Group's businesses and this situation is comman
amang large banks. it fundamentally anses through mismatches between (the maturity and Te-peacing
dates of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities,

Foreign exchange rate risk is the potential loss related to changes in foreign exchange rates atfecting
the transiation of foreign currency dencminated monetary assets and liabdities. The risk of loss resulis
from movements i foreign currency exchange rates,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44,3 Market risk (Continued)

326 @iurewy

The Grougp is also exposed to commodity risk, primarily related 1o gold and other precious metals, The
risk of loss results from movements in commodity price. The Group manages the nsk related 1o goid
price together with foreign exchange rate risk.

The Group has determined that the levels of market risk related 1o changes in equity prices and
COMmmOocily prices other than gold, with respect to the related exposures in its trading and investment
partfoluos, are immalenal,

Segregation of Trading Book and Banking Book

To enhance the effectiveness of market risk management, as well as the accuracy of determning
the kevels of regulatory capital required related 1o market risk, the Group segregates all financial
imstruments and commodities, both on-and off-balance sheet, into either the trading book or banking
book. The trading book is comprised of financial instruments and commeodity positions held for
trading, including all derivatives instruments. Any other financial instruments are included in the

banking book
Market Risk Management for Trading Book

The Group marages market nsk in the trading book through methodologies that include Value at
Risk {VaR), monitoring and management of established limits, sensitivity analysis, duration analyss,
exposure analysis and stress testing,

The Group has formudated policies, which are subject to review annually or as circumstances
otherwise dictatle, to manage markel nsk Further, in this regard, the Group's market risk
management s locused on movements in domestic and global financial markets, as well as the
composition of the frading book and management’s trading strategres, within approved limits.
bdoreover, the Group has implemented more specific polices for financial instruments, closely
monitaring the exposure to specific issuers and counterparties, as well as the tenor of individual
pasitions and trading strategies. The foundaton of the Group's imit and nsk monitonng system is
based on VaR, which s used conssiently o manitor all classes of finandial instruaments in the rading
book.

The Bank has adopied an historical simulation method, with a confidence level of 99% based on
halding period of 1 day and histoncal data for 250 days to calculate the VaR of the trading book,
which includes the Head Office, domestic branches and overseas branches. Based on the differences
between domestic and averseas markets, the Bank selected applicable parameters far model and nsk
factoes in order to reflect the actual market risk levels. The Bank verified the accuracy and reliability
of market nsk measurements through data analyss, parallel modeling and back-testing of the market
risk measuremenis.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.3 Market risk (Continued)
Market Risk Management for Trading Book (Continusall
WaR Analysis for the Trading Book

Bank
2020
At the end
of the year Average  Maximum flini mum
Interest rate nsk 59 88 164 52
Exchange rate risk (1 8 165 212 28
Commodity risk &2 75 130 9
Overall Vak By 232 362 87
Bank
2019
At The end
of the year Average M assmwirr Misirriim
Interest rate nisk 75 89 116 57
Exchange rate risk (1 G0 120 287 BE
Commodity risk 9 15 25 5
Overall VaR 1% 146 91 a2

The Bank calculates VaR for its trading beok (excluding RME foreign currency setthement coniracts
with customess under relevant regulations) The Bank conducts stress testing for its trading book
guarterly. The specific areas subject 1o thes testing include the major areas of exposure, such as bonds,
interast rate denvatives, foreign exchange dervatives and precious metal. The stress testing wses a
range of scenarios, to assess the potential impact on profit and loss

{1} VaR related 1o gold is recognized as a component of foreign exchange rate risk
Market Risk Management for Banking Book
The Group manages markel rsk related to the banking book by consistently applyng technigues

across the Group that include axposure limit management, stress (esting, scenario analysis and gap
analysis.
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.3 Market risk (Continued)
Market Risk Management for Banking Book (Continued)
Interest Rate Risk Management

Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the adverse changes in Interest rate levels and maturity
structures will cause the bank’s ook value to suffer lpsses. The Bank's book imberest rate risk maindy
comes from the mismatch of matwrity o0 repricing periods of interest-sensitive assets and Labilities
in the Bank's book and the inconsistent changes in the benchmark interest rate on which assets and
kabilities are based.

Since the People’s Bank of China‘s LPR reform, the Bank has implemented relevant policies in
atcordance with requlatory requirements, promated business system transformation, modified system
loan contracts, improved internal and external interest rate pricing mechanisms, strengthened staff
training for branches, comprehensively promoted LPR applications, and basically realized the entire
system. The entire process of loan pricing applies LPR pricing. Afler the People’s Bank of China
reforms LPR, the connection betwesn the benchmark interest rate on loans and the market interest
rate will be closer, and the frequency and amplitude of volatility wall increase relatively, To this end,
the Bank strengthened the monitoring and prejudgment of the external interest rate enviranment,
adjusted imternal and external pricing strategies in a timely manner, optimezed the asset and liability
product structure and matunty structune, actively played the role of interast rate option products, and
proactively adjusted the risk structure to reduce the ecomomic value and owverall impact of interest
rate changes. The adverse impact of earnings. During the reporting period, the Bank's interest rate
risk level was generally stable, and all quoda indicators were confrolled within the scope of regulatory
requirements and management objectives,

Fareign Exchange Rate Risk Management

Foreign exchange rate risk relates to the mamatch of foreign currency denominated monetary assets
and liabalities, and the potential loss related to changes in loreign exchange rates, which largely arises
through opsrational activities

The Group performs monitoring and sensitivity analysis of foreign exchange rate risk exposure,
manages the mismatch of foreign currency denominated assets and Eabilities 10 effectively manage
foreign exchange rate risk exposure within acceptable limits,

Market Risk Exposure Limit Management

Parket rsk exposure himits are classified as either directive limits or indicative limits, based on the
charactlenistics of the underlying instrumants or transactions, including exposure mit monitarng,
enforcement of stop-loss limits, VaR limits, and stress testing limits

The Group is committed fo contnuous improvement of its market risk exposure imit managemsant.
The Group establishes exposure hmits reflecting its risk appetite and continuously refines the

calegorization of markel rek exposure limils. Furthes, it regulasly monitors, reports, refines, and
implerments improvements 1o the market risk exposure limit process.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.3 Market risk (Confinued)
Foreign exchange rate risk
The Growp primanly conducts it business activities in RWB, with certain transactions denominated

i UED, HED and, to a lesser potent, other currencies. The composition of all financial assets and
liabilties at the end of vach reporting period anatyzed by currency is as follows:

31 December 2020
i Othar
uso HED  urrencles
{RMa (RME (RME
AMB  equivalent] equivalenl) equivalent) Total
Cash and balances with rentral hanes 2,305,600 54,151 1.2% 16,219 2437275
Deporats with banks and
ather finencial institubons 363,597 50,538 1,393 17.257 434,185
Placements with and loans 1o bani
anl ather firancial instituticns 193,880 185,248 38,854 18,926 546,943
Dervative Fnancial assets 56,566 1,084 45 4,142 61,937
Financial assets held
umider resale agreements 816,206 B - - B16,206
Loard aad Jehiances 4o CUstomans 14,075,068 ELIR L 5ran 73017 14552433
Financial assets a¢ tar vl through
profit o loss 552,067 11,165 B.856 12,981 583,069
Deb? instrument investments at
amarized oM 5,617,368 10 an 3780 5,684,220
Crthar debit instnament ang othid equity
irwestments a1 faif value through
ather comprehensive income 1,308,570 206,292 1,518 36,950 1,555,370
Other financial assets 24,200 10,632 3415 1,318 101,562
Total firanca asses 15,535,731 928,918 .88 196,637 26,773,205
Bowrawings From central banks (735,900) - - {1,261} {137,161)
Deporats from banks and
alher fimandal institutions {1,335,474) 126.370) {20,775} (10,8881 (1,394,516}
Placements from banks and
athier fireacial institutions (136,460)  (200.092) {(3z31M (21.372)  (390.660)
Firanicial Kahiities at fzr value throogh
profit o loss 27.81n - - - (27,817}
Derrrative francial liabilties (4.367) {B0.268) (257} (390} (65.282)
Firatial assits sotd
unger repurchase sgreements {B3,000) {18,995) - {7,191} {109,185}
Due to customers (19,872, 361) (430,007} (33,570} (35.963) (20,372,901}
Debt securifies issusd (1,065, 150) (216,330} {26.198) (64,167} (1,371,845)
Other financial kab lives (310,310) 132,108) (2.3%9) 15,045} (350.466)
Total firancial |abilties (23,572,457)  (9E4.579)  (115508)  (146.281) (24,819,843}
Het on-baance shoel position 1,962,174 {55,661) {3,607) 50,356 1,953,362
Net notional amound al derratives 138,397 34,139 19,124 (30,638} 161,021
Loan commitments and finanoal
gurantes contracls 2,893,041 136,335 7,014 L0114 3,165,304
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44,3 Market risk (Continued)
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Forelgn exchange rate risk (Continued)

The Group primarily conducts its business activities in RMEB, with certain fransactions denomirated
in USD, HKD and, to a lesser oxtent, othor currancles. The composition of all financial assots and

lsabllities at the end of each reporting period analyzed by currency is as follows: (Continued)

i1 Degepnber JO18
Quher
usp HED CLIFENCHS
(Rhi8 {RiE {AME
REMEB equialent] eguwialenl)  equivalent) Tatsl
Cash and balances with central banks 2634, 165 LR 1041 10,380 2 b
Dieposits with banks and
ather financial institution: 168,817 44574 4605 17,746 235742
Placements with and loans 1o barks and
atihir financial institutions 252,023 163 455 LER:- 23,718 513,183
Darivative finandial assets 10,628 13473 1684 649 08
Finarcial assets heid
under resale T08,551 - - - TOB.S51
Lesariy anel acvances bo SUs10mS 12 348 860 48,051 51,764 71,084 12219764
Finargial assats at far value through
profit of foss N 10,887 10,441 2812 01,361
Dbt instrument smiesiments ai
amortized cost 4,870,453 61,07 71,582 T239 4546740
Other debt instrument and olher gty
inestments ai fai value thiough
other comprehensive income 1.435,703 211441 1433 33,245 1,674,828
Cther fnancal amets 70,179 7601 1,336 1,742 B0.B58
Total financial assets 13,308,106 914,302 124,683 168,766 24,515,567
Bomowings from central banks 608,080} = -+ (450 {608,536)
Dieposits from barks and
ather financial ingtiution 11,429, 626) (35.573) (16,058] (226820 (1,503,905
Pacements from banks and
ot financial instifution: 148,504) (205,326} (52,490 119,043 (325,263}
Finarcial libdities at fair value through
prafit or loss {26,719) (3.505) =+ = =0,234)
Derivative firaneial labibtios {17,558} (11.054) [155) (] 129, 548)
Finarcial assels sold
under repurchase agreements 114,315} (31,634) ~ {7,244) {33,197
Dua 1o customers {18,432, 64} [357.,021) {36,907 (22,581 [18,840.155)
Dabt sacunties issued (797, 166} (244 865) (25,539 (&0,647) (71, 10H212)
Other financal Babilities (242,709} [B318 11,3600 12,892 {255,279)
Tatal financlal liabities [21,617,339) (B57.301] 1132,5V3) (116,2800 (22,763,433
Hat or-balancs shoet pesition 1.650,767 17,001 {7,820 SLABE 1752434
et nodional amount of dervatives 126,517 13,665 1B, 188) (42,245 100,750
Loan commitments and fimancial
guaran bee conlracls 2,141,071 230,156 5450 33N 2410028
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.3 Market risk (Continued)
Foreign exchange rate risk (Confinued)
The table below indicates the potential effect on profit before tax and other comprehensive Income
ansang from a 5% appreciation of depreciation of RME spot and forward foregn oxchange rates

against a basket of all ather curréncies on the nat positions of forgign currency monetary assets and
liabikties and derivative instruments in the consolidated statement of financial position,

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Other (hes
Profit comprehensive Profit  comprehensive
RME before tax income belore tax incame
2% apprecialion (2,433) (452) 936 (298]
5% degeecation 2,433 LT e ] Fa) ]

The effect on peofit before tax amd othwr comprehensiar income s caloulated based on the
assumption that the Group's foreign currency sensitive sxposures and foreign currency dervative
instraments ret position at the end of each reporting pericd remain unchanged. The Group mitigates
its formgn exchange rate sisk through active management of its forelgn currency exposwures and
the appropnate wie of denvative mstruments, based on management expectation of future foreign
currancy exchange rate movements, Such analysis does net take into account the correlation effect of
changes in different foreign currencies, mor any further actions that could be taken by management to
mitigate the effect of foreign exchange ditferences. Therefore, the sensitivity analysis above may differ
from actual results ocourring through changes in foreign exchange rates

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from the mismatches between contraciual maturities or
re-pricing dates of interast-generating assets and interest-bearing liabilities, as well as the inconsistent
variations in the berchmark interest rate on which the assets and liabllities are based. The Group's
interast-generating assets and interest-bearing labilities are primarity denominated in AME. The PEOC
stipulated the banchmark intaeest rate for AMB depasits. The deposit intesest rate flaating ceiling was
remaved by the PBOC with effect Trom 24 December 201% for commercial banks. Since 16 August
2019, the PBOC established RMB Loan Prime Rate to replace RMB benchmark interest rates for loan
as a pricing benchmark of new lean wheneby financial institutions are in a position to price their loans
based on credit risk, commercial and market factors,

The Group manages its interest rate risk by:

—  Strengthen the pre-judgment of the situation and analyze the macroaconomic factors that may
atfect the LPR interest rate, the benchmark deposit interest rate and the market interest rate;

— Strengthen strategy transmission and optimize the repricing term structure of inlerest-eaming
assets and interest-bearing hahbilities;

—  Implement limit management to control the impact of interest rate changes an the economic
value and overall incame of bank books within the Emits.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44,3 Market risk (Continued)
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Interest rate risk (Continued)
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The tables below summarze the contractual matunty or re-pricing date, whichever is earlier, of the
Group's financial assets and labidties at tho end of sach roparting poriod.

31 December 2030
Nar-
Lest thaa 1Mad ERT O H 511 Ower [LE
1 manty mths mantis yRin 5 years [s=ating Totwl

Lo il bakences with oential bunks 1,156,128 1 12553 - - Lt R i
Deporsits with kanks and

otheet firsingial nettulon 075 m 1653 nr - iH LR
Fracerenty with and loam to banks

nd ciher hrancial irviitotons o 156,519 148,570 e - 1,750 S5 5E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020
tAmounts in millons of Renminks, unless atheraise staled)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.3 Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continusd)

The tables below summarze the contractual matunty or re-pricing date, whichever 15 earlier, of the
Group's financial assets and liabdities at the end of cach reporting pariod. (Continued)

31 Decesmber 2170
Hon-
L thar 1103 i} 1185 Over inesest
I mongh  months marthy (L & yean bearing Tl

LCash aned beabances with cential banis 1403893 5199 14476 - - 51 1695
Deposits with banks and

aithet Firancial instistions 115 A0 Bt - - 13,62 FE N
Pacements with and knars 10 baniy

and other {inanclal irilon Wa89T 188 134853 21,083 - 1R 513,183
Dermitren fndncial mset - . - - - 5 14538
Tancial avie's heid

ufilsT me apeeTenly AT 113 T4 - - 36508 08 551
Lok and afsancey b cutinmen 3E02AT] RN 5104%E 143,985 151 466 ELR T AL
Fnancil asies 12 L vilu thitugh

proft or ks LA T A E I55556 [EEY ] L RE] LENE KL%
Debil irstrument mvestrmesty 28

amnertied cont ThEET  nenom ST 1SA1GES 1RO BRI 4 METH
e ol itinument and cther squiy

vitmont ot 1 valus theough

alhét compretensve mtome L] 143,510 &00,393 1358 el My N GTaEE
Oney fnancial asets B854 8058
Total Snandal amets ST QM GEEZDGT  17MGM 2306153 EAL0ES M 51557
Bormowings from cimtral bants (14,2004 33 GEEIRR (455} . WEEE IRESE
Duporit from berks and

olhet Fruncil imttubors N S (5aEER 191,472 (6m (1813 (A N e 1]
Pacements from hanks and otfey

firgercial vlifusines (125605 el (TR {3361} (3,685 (LE%l  (DLEY
Financal Rabebiies af fair vakee frough

okt of loss 5584} . 3,505 = = (i R o
Dernvitren leurcinl abeltses - - - - - [ri T P L5
Fnancial ety wod

Lner FEpuIhiae areemanty (168N  [IE55) {11,831) - - [33) 153,197)
Due to oestomen. (TLESAS5R (120867 Q56700 (AR (2500 QBLSI0) (18848158
Debil serunities iued B2 QRO (AFI0E 2355 (A0AA0W LN =
Crter francial Rabsbiies - - - - - LS6ETN) (BRI
Total fnanod abikbes 3088750 1AT003T TN F0AY  D19ASE  DDESY) (11763433
ignes AHE Gl (1981518 #1810 151755 SL08  1988597 71547 T4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020
{fmourts in millices of Benminbs, unless othenwvize siased)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44,3 Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The followang table ilustrates the potential pre-tax impact, of & parallel upward or dowrward shift
of 100 basis points in rolevant interest rate curves on the Group's net Interest Income and other
comprehensivg income for the next twelve months from the reparting date, based on the Group's
positons of interest-gamning assets and interest-bearing liabalities at the end of each reporting persod,
This analysis assumes that interest rates of all maturities move by the same amount, and does not
reflect the potential impact of unparalleled yield curve movements.

The sensitevity analysis on net interest income is based on reasonably possible changes in interest rates
with the assumption that the structure of financial assets and fingncial Babilities held at the penod end
remaing unchanged, and does not take changes in customer behavion, basis risk or any prepayment
optians on debt securites into consideration.

The sensitiity analysis on other comprehensive income reflacts only the effect of changes in fair value
of thase financial instruments classified as ather debt instrument and other eguity investments at fair
value through other comprehensive held, whose fair value changes are recorded as an element of
other comprehensive income.

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Hat Other Met Other
interest  comprehensive inesest  comprehensive
Income Income Income ncome
+100 basis points {37.556) (67,94 1) 125.857) 42579
- 100 basis points 17556 67,541 25,867 42518

The assumptions do not reflect actions that might be taken under the Group's capital and interest rate
risk management policy o mitigate changes to the Group's interest rate risk. Therefore the above
analysis may dffer from the actual situation.

In addition, the presentaton of interast rate sensitivity above 5 for illustration purposes only, showing
the potential impact on net interesl income and other comprehensive income of the Group under
different parallel yield curve movements, relative to their position at period-end, excluding the
derivatve positions.

4.4 Country Risk

336 (HrmEenn

Country risk represenis the risk due to changes and incidents occurred in the economy, politics and
society of 2 specific country or region, which results in the borrowers or debtors in that country or
region incapable of or unwilling to pay their debts owed to the Bank or otherwise leads 1o business
lossas or other lossas 1o the Bank in that country ar region,

According to the regulatory requirements of CBIRC, the Group managed country risk through tools
and approaches such as country risk rating, limit approval, exposure analysis and stress testing. In
the meanwhile, we fully considered the impact of country risk on asset quality, acourately identified,
reasonably aszessed and perudently estimated the asset loss that may be caused by country risk
Corresponding provisions were also made for country risk impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020
tAmoeants in millons of Rermink:, unless atheranse stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continuad)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuad)
44.5 Insurance risk

The Group engages in its insurance business primarily in Maintand China. Insurance risk reders
to the fnancial impact resulting from the wnespected occurrence of insuned events, These risks
are actvely managed by the Group through effective sales management, underwriting control,
rainsurance management and claim managemant. Through effective sales management, the msk of
mis-salling could be reduced and the accuracy of information used for underwriting is improved,
Throwgh underwriting control, risk of adverse selection could be reduced and morecver differential
pricing policy based on the fevel of each kind of risk could be wiilzed. Through reinswance, the
Group's insurance capacity could be enhanced and targeted risks could be mitigated. Effective claims
management is designed 1o ensure that insurance payments are controlled according to established
critevia,

Uncertainty in the estimation of future benefit payments and premium receipts for long-term life
Insurance contracts arses from the unpredictability of long-term changes in overall levels of maortality,

The Group conducts experience analysis of mortality rate and surrendes rate, in order 1o improve its
risk assessment and as a basis for reasonable estimates.

45 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Group's capital management objectives are as follows:
— maintain an adequate capital base to support the development of its business;
— support the Group's financial stability and profitable growth,

— allacate capital through an efficient and risk based approach 1o optimize risk-adjusted refurn to
shareholders; and

— safeguard the long-term sustainability of the Group's franchise so that it can continue to provide
sufficient sharehoider returns and benefits for other stakeholders.

The “Capital Rubes for Commercial Banks (Prowsionall” issued by the CBIAC in 2012 includes, amorg other
things, requirements for minimum capital, capstal conservation buffer, additional capital surcharge for
systemically important banks, countercyclical buffer and PFillar Il capital as fofows:

—  mmimwum requlatory requeremnents for Commaon Equity Tier-one Capital Adequacy Rabo, Tier-ane
Capital Adequacy Ratio and Capital Adeguacy Rabio are 5%, 6% and 8%, respectively,

— capial conservation buffer requires additional 2.5% of Commen Equity Tier-one Capital Adequacy
Ratio;

— additonal capital surcharge for systemically impoetanl banks requires additional 1% ol Comman
Equity Tier-one Capital Adequacy Ratio,

— should the regulators requine countercyclical buffer under particular circumstances or regulators
imposa additional Pilar || capital requirements for specific banks, these requirements shall be met
within the specified time [Emits.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
45 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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In Apeil 2014, the CBIRC officially approved the Group to adopt advanced capstal management approach.
Within the scope of the approval, the Internal Ratings-Based approach is adopted to Credit Risk-weighted
Assets for both retail and nan-retail risk exposures, and the Standardized approach for both Operational
Risk-weighted Assets and Market Risk-weighied Assets. The CBIRC will determine the parallel run pericd
for the Group, which should last for at least theee years. During the paraliel run penod, the Group shou'd
calculate its Capital Adeguacy Ratios undor the advanced approach and the non-sdvanced approach, and
should conform o the capital floor requirements as stipulated in the *Capita! Rules for Commaercial Banks
(Frovisional)”.

In January 2017, the CRIRC has officially approved the Group to adopt the Intemal Models approach to
measure its Market Risk-weighted Assets for qualified risk exposures

Capital adequacy and the wtilization of reguiatory capetal are closely monitored by the Group's
management in accordance with the guidelines developed by the Basel Committee and relavant regulatons
promulgated by the CBIRC Required information related to capital levels and utilization s filed guarterdy
with the CHIRC.

The Group’s capital adequacy ratio calculated in accordance with the " Capital Rules for Commercial Banks
(Prowvishanal)”™ issued by the CRIRC as at the end of the reporting penicd is as follows:

31 December 31 Decembaer

2020 2018
Common Equity Tier-one Capital Adeguacy Ratio {1} 11.04% 11.24%
Tier-one Capital Adequacy Ratio [4}] 12.92% 12.53%
Capital Adeguacy Ratio {1} 16.59% 16.13%
Common Equity Tier-one Capital 2) 1,884,392 1,748,467
Deductible tems from Commen Equity
Tinr-one Capital {3} {9.020) (7.883)
Met Commaen Equity Tier-aone Capital 1875372 1,740,584
Additional Tier-one Capital (4} 319.BE4 199,894
Niet Tier-one Capatal 2,195,256 1,940,478
Tier-two Capital {5} 623,668 557,833
Mot Capital 1,817,924 2,458,311
Risk-weighted Assets (=¥} 16,989,668 15,485,352

Pursuant to the “Capital Rules for Commercal Banks (Provisional}®:

(1} The scope of consolidation related to the calculabion of the Group's Capital Adequacy Ratios includes
Domestic  Institutions, Owerseas Imstitutions and affiiated financial subsidiaries specified in the
Regulation.

The Common Equity Tier-one Capital Adequacy Ratio is ca'culated as Net Commaon Equity Tier-one
Capital dnided by Risk-weighted Assets. The Tier-one Capital Adequacy Ratio s calculated as Net
Tier-ome Capital dwided by Risk-weighted Assets, The Capital Adeguacy Ratio s calculated as Net
Capital divided by Risk-weighted Assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
45 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)

{2) The Group's Common Equity Tier-cne Capital includes: ordinary share capital, capital reserve (subject
to regulatory Hmitations), investment revaluation reserve, surplus reserve, general reserve, retained
garnings, non-controlling interests (to the extent permitted in the Common Equity Tier-one Capital
under the Requiation), and the foreign currency translation reserve,

13 The Group's Deductible tems from Common Equity Tier-one Capital inchude: other intangible assets
lexcluding land-use rights), and Common Equity Tier-one Capital investments made n financial
institutions over which the Group has control but are outside the regulatory consolidation scope for
the Capital Adequacy Ratios calculation.

{4y The Group's Addiional Tier-one Capital includes: prelerence shares issued and non-contralling
interests (1o the extent permitted m the Additional Tier-one Capital definition under the Aegulation),

(5} The Group's Tier-two Capital includes: Tier-two capital instruments and related premium (1o the
extenl aBowed under the Regulation), excessive allowance foe loan losses, and minanty nierests
(t2 the extent permitted in the Tier-two Capital definition under the Regulationl.

{6} Hisk-weighted Assets include Credit Risk-weighted #Assels, Markel Risk-weighted Assets and
Oparational Risk-weighled Assels

46 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The majority of the Group's assets and liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial postion are
financial assets and financial labilites. Fair value measurement of non-financial assets and non-financial
liahdities do nat have a material impact an the Group's financial position and operations, taken as a whale.

The Group does nat have amy financial assets or financial liabilities subject to non-recurring fair value
maasurements for the years anded 31 Becember 2020 and 31 December 2018,

46.1 Valvation technigue, input and process
The fair value of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows:

— If traded in active markets, fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard
terms and condifions are determined with reference 1o guoted market hid prices and ask prices,
respectivety;

— It not traded in active markets, fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined by using valuation technigues. These valuation technigues include the use of recent
transaction prices of the same or simitar instruments, decounted cash flow analysis and generally
accoptod pricing modeds.

The Group has established am independent valuation process for financial assets and financial
liabikities. The Financial Accounting Departmant of head office establishas the valuation models for
financial assets and financial lizhilities of head oMfice and 18 branches in China and independantly
implements the valuation on a regular basis; and the Risk Management Department 15 responsible for
validating the valuation madel, the Gperations Dopartments records the accounting for these items,
Owerseas branches and sub-branches designate departments or personnel that are independent from
the frant trading office o perfonm valuation in accordance with the local regulatory requirements and
their own department settings,

The board of directors shall be responsible for establshing and improving the internal control system
related to the valuation of financial mstruments and approving valuation policies.

Far the year ended 31 December 20000 and 371 December 2019, there was no significant changes in
the valwation technigues or inputs used o delermine fair valug messuraments.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cantinued)
46 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
46.2 Fair value hierarchy

The Group classifies financial assets and financial liabilities into the foliowing three levels based on the
extent to which Inputs to valuation technigues used 1o measure fair value of the financial assets and
financial liabvilities are observable

Ll 10 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in an active
market for identical assets or labilities;

Lewel 2o fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Lewal 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, esther directly or indirectly; and

Lewel 30 fair value measurements are not based on observable market data,

46.3 Financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value on the consolidated
statement of financial position

The tables below summanze the camying amounts and fair values of those financial assets and
financial liabilities not measured in the corsalidated statement of financial position at their fair value,
Financial assets and financial liabilities for which the camying amounts approximate fair value, such as
balances with central banks, deposits with banks and other financial institutions, placements with and
loans to banks and other financial institutions, financial assets held undar resale agresments, boans
and advances to customers, receivable from the MOF, special government bond, borrowings from
central banks, deposits and placements from banks and other financial institutions, due 1o customers,
financial assets sold under repurchase agreements and certificates of deposit issued, ‘nterbank
certificate of deposits issued and commercial papers lssued are not included in the tzbles below

31 Dacomber 2020
Carrying
amaunt Fair value Lewel 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial 2ssats
[Diebl instrument nvesiments al
amortized cost (eacluding recenvatle
fram the MCF and spacial
government bond 5273439 5,333,755 21172 5,151,535 158,448
Financial labllities
Bonds ssued 435,621 441,775 18,7149 413,026 =
31 Decemper 2013
Carmying
s amount Falr valut Lirvel 1 Level T Lz 3
Financial assets
Debt instrumerd mestments a1
amartized cosf (eucludng recevable
from the MIOF and special
gavetnmant band) 4,544,851 4,627 432 33,506 4,403 618 190,308
Finapcial Rabilities
Bonds Bsued 356,902 365 ka0 23643 341656 -
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For the year ended 31 Decernber 10240
tAmounss in millions of RBerimenbi, unless otheramse stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
46 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continusd)

46.4 Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on the consolidated

statement of financial position

The tables below summarize the fair values of the financial assels and financial liabilities measured in
the consofidated staternent of financial position at thejr fair value

31 December 2020

Lavel 1 Lewel 2 Level 3 Total
" Dearivative financial assets
— Eachange rate derivatives - 58,187 - 58,187
— Interest rate derwatives - 1,008 - 1,008
= Procious metal contracis and others - .1 - .74
Suibslotal - 61,937 - 61,937
Leans and advances (o mustomens
— Discounted bils and fardfeiting - 577.597 - 577,587
— Nigatiation LT - 52 - 52
Subtotal - 578,049 - 578.049
Fimancial irvestment
Financal assets at {air value throwgh
profit o loss
— Held for trading
Bomd 1,257 181,268 - 182,525
Pracious metal confracts - 21,959 - 21,559
Epity 3,912 1,032 - 4,904
Fund 14,323 209 - 14,532
— Other financial assets at fair value
through prafit o loss
Honds - 132,530 1,478 134,008
i 1,842 23,561 71,998 87401
Fund and others 2,998 6.936 18,897 28.E31
— Firancial asets designated af tar value
through profit or loss
Debn secunles 8,750 35116 - 63,866
Placements with ang loans 1o banks
and ather financial sstituticns = 24,493 3,442 27,535
_Others. = = J.ock AR
Sulstotal 33,082 447,104 102,883 583,069
Other debt instruments and olher equiy
inestmerils at falr value through
other comprehensive income
Debt instrements
— Bonds 114,780 141718 - 1,532,458
— Othvers - 53 18,410 18,241
__Equity instruments 1,222 - 2,709 3931
Subtotal 116,002 1.418.245% 21,118 1,555.370
Total assats 149,084 2,505,339 124,002 2,778,425
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
46 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
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46.4 Financial assets and financial labilities measured at fair value on the consolidated
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statement of financial position (Continued)

The tables below summarize the fair values of the financial assets and financial labdlites measured in
the consolidated statement of financial position at their fair value (Continued)

31 Decomber 2020

Level 1 Lavel 2 Level 3 Total
Fnancial llaailmies at fair value through
prafit or loss
— Hald fo trafing
Financia lrabiditses reflated fo precous metals - {13,725) - {13,725}
— Financial liabilities desgnated at fair valug
1hraugh profit of loss
Placerents from banis and other finandal
mnstitiilions by pandpal guearaneed wealth
maragerrent - - (59,5400 {9,540)
Liabilies &f the controlied struscturad entities {4,222) - (230) (4.,452)
Oihers - {108 = (1068
Sutitetal {4,222) {13,825) {8,770} {27,817
Derivative financial habahtes
— Exchange rate dervatives - {57,758) - {57,755)
— Imerest rate derpaties - [4,357) = [4.357)
— Preious melal contracts - [3.169) - (3,169)
Subtotal = {65,282) = {65,282)
Dus 10 customerns
D 1o customers measured a1 fair value - {268.551) [73.118) 1341.669)
Total liabdites (4,222)  (347.658) (82,888}  (434.768)
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
46 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

46.4 Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on the consolidated
statement of financial position (Continued)

The tables bolow summarize the faer values of the financia!l assets and financial liabslities measured in

the consobdated statement of financial position at their fair value (Contineed)

31 December 2019

Level 1 Lewel 2 Level 3 Tola
Darvatlens financial aisets
- Exchange rate dervalnes 24,128 - 24,128
= |ritorest rate dermvatives - 340 - 340
— Prcicns metal contracts and others - 416 - 46
Subtotal - 24,844 - 24,044
Loans and advances 1o customans
— Discounted bals and forleiting - 540_3E7 - 540387
Subtotal - 540,387 - 540,367
Financial Imvestment
Fnandial assets at fair value through
profit o loss
— Held for trading
fonds 2,190 199,269 201,459
PFreclous metal contracts - 29,132 - 20132
Eqquity 2,354 - - 2,39
Fund 7,100 136 1.336
— Othor financial assets at fair value
through peofit or loss
Bonds - 093108 4,194 97,497
Equity 2,108 11,154 70,8481 95,183
Fund and others 1227 5,351 15,709 23,31
— Financial assets designated at fair value
thigugh prodit or lass
Deelst securities 12419 199,231 - 211,650
Dresposits with banks and other
financial institutsons - 28,207 - 28,207
Flacements with and knars to banks
and ather financial institutions - 99,174 500 104,184
Others - - 987 887
Subtotal 28,398 B76, 052 96,871 B01.361
Other deb irstfuments and othes aquity
inwestmeants at fair value through othes
comprehensive ncome
Debl instrsments
— Bonds 200,203 1,452,549 - 1,653,152
= {thers - - 18,594 18,584
Equity instruments 1,107 - 1,975 3,082
Sublotal 201,310 1,452 045 20,564 1,674,828
Tolal duals 229,708 2,684,372 117,440 3.041,520
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FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
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46.4 Financial assets and financial labilities measured at fair value on the consolidated

344 @meenn

statement of financial position (Continued)

The tables below summarize the fair values of the financial assets and financial labdlites measured in
the corsolidated statement of financial position at their fair value (Continued)

31 Drecember 2013

Loval 1 Lovel 2 Lovel 3 Total
Fnancal [abilities at far value throsgh
prafit of o
— Held for trading
Financial liabilities related 1o
precious metals 114,147 (14,147
— Financial labilities dessgnated at fair value
threugh peofit or boss
Placernents from banks and other finandial
instiutions. by poincipal guaranieed wealth
AN - - {6.B81] (6,681)
Overseas debt securities - {3,505) - {3,505)
Liabditoes of the structuned
subtject of comtrcl (5,201} - = 15.901)
Subtotal (5,901} {17.652) (6,681) (30,234)
Dervative financial habaites
— Exchange rale derhiatives - (20,382 - (20,382
— literest rate derbralroes - {1,676) - 1,676
Precicars matal contracts - {7,490 - (7,490
Subiotal - 129,548) - (29,548)
Due 10 CUsLamers
Due 1o customes neasured i lair value - (145.474) {306,294} 1452 768)
Tolal liabdites (5,901} [193,674) {312,975 1512, 550

Substantally all financial instruments classified wathin Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are debt
Investments, depasits with banks and other financial Institutions, currency forwards, currency swaps,
interast rate swaps, currency options, precious meta' contracts and structured deposit measured at
fair valug. Fair value of debl investments denominated in AMB i determined based upon the valuation
published by the China Central Depository & Clearing Co., Ltd. Fair value ol debi investments
denominated in foreign currencies s determined based upon the valuation results published by
Blocmberg, The fal value of dopesits with barks and other financal institutions, currency Torwards,
CUITency Swaps, Intarast rate swaps, currency optlons and structured deposit measured at falr value
are calculated by applying discounted cash fiow analysis or the Black Scholes Pricing Model. The fair
vabue of precious metal coniracis that are related io the Group's rading activities s determened with

reference 1o the relevant chservable markel parameters. All signifecant inputs are observable in the
market.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
46 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

46.4 Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on the consolidated
statement of financial position (Continued)

Level 3 financial assets of the Group mainly represented underlying assets invesied by principal-
guarantesd WhPs issued by the Group including placements with and loans 1o benks and other
financial Estitutions and credit assets The countarpartns of these placemants are primardy
non-bank financial institutions in Mainkand China, The credit assets are loans and adwances to
corporate customers in Mainland China. Level 2 financial habilities largely represented |abilties to the
ivestors of these products. As not all of the inputs needed to estimale the fair value of these assels
and liabilities are observable, the Group classified these investment products within Level 3 of the fair
value measurement hierarchy. The significant unobservabis imputs related to these assets and liabilities
are those parameter relating to credit sk, ligquidity and discount rate. Management has made
assumptions on unobservabie inputs based on observed indicators of impairment, sgnificant changes
i wield, extesnal credit ratings and comparabde credit spreads, but the fair value of these undeslying
assets and liabilitres could be different from those dischosed.

There was no significant transfer amongst the different levels of the fair value hierarchy dunng the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019

The reconciliation of Level 3 dassified financial assets and Fnandial liabilities presented at fair value on
the consobdated staternent of financial position s as followes:

2020
Other debt instrument Finantial
Finandal zssets and other equity liablities Due to
at fair value investmenits at fair at fair valuwe custemers
theoagh  valus through ather threugh mensured
profiies los comprehensive Incame profit or loss at fair value
1 Janwary 2020 9661 20,568 (6,681} {306,254]
Purchases 62,043 6,875 (230} -
s - - {185,640} {1,155,477)
Setlementsiisposals {57,086 {6.406) 183,381 1,395,128
Totd lossfgani recogreded in
— Profit or oss 155 108 (580} 16,475)
— (her compeehersve ncome - 2n - -
31 December 2020 102,583 119 {8,770} [73.118)
Change in urmalged kossfgan]
foe the perod included in
protit o ks for asdetsliskilities
hield at the end of the vear £99 - (100} -

Annial Repan 2020 | 345
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
46 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

46.4 Financial assets and financial liabilities measwred at fair value on the consolidated
statement of finandial position (Conlinwed)

8

Qtmer debi

msinumari o

athes equity
Financial irestmants Financial Due to
st At 2t far value iatilities Customers
faif wvalim through othee a0 1ol valie Defrathe  measised
through Derwative  comguehensive through  finencial at fair

profit of loss Finandial assets ncome  proft o lss liabilnies vilue

T Taniary 2015 &5, 000 i3 55 13,544 (35 (255,766
Purchases 195,620 - ERLE] - - -
e = = - {103,160 - (1453314
Seltiementsidispasals (87,063} 133 [3.503) 106,543 33 100824
Tatal lossAgan) recognized in

— Profit or Ioss 2,785 - - {115 - (B0

— (rher compeehensha income - - i - - -
31 December 2019 24,871 - 20,563 (6,681} - {306,294
Change In unreakzed hssAgain)

for the perod includsd in

profit o loss dor assetsfiabiites

feld at the end of the year 1,004 - - a9 - [l

in level 3 of the fair value hieraschy, total gains or losses included in profit or lods for the period are
prezanted in net (lossigain on financal investments (Note IV 4) of the consolidated income statement.

47 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
47.1 Profit appropriation
{1} Pursuant to the resolutions of the Board of Directors’ mesting on 27 January 2021, a cash
dividend at the dandend rate of 4 84% per annum related to the second tranche of prelarence
shares amounting 1o RME1,936 mifion n tolal was approved and the dividend was distributed
on 11 March 2021

(2) Pursuant to the meeting of the Board of Directors on 30 March 2027, the proposal for profit
appropelatbons of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set forth as follows:

) An appropriation of EiB2 1,040 million to the statutory surplus reserve (Note IV 36);

iy An appropriation of RMB39, 217 millien to the general reserve(Note IV 37)

{ii) A cash dividend of RMBO.1851 per ordinary share in respect of the year ended
31 December 2020 based on the number of ordinary shares issued a5 at 21 December
2020 totaling AMB 64,782 million (Mate IV 10L
As st 31 Decernber 2020, the statutory surplus reserve had been recognized as
apprapriation. The other twao items will be recognized in the Group’s inanoal staterments
after approval by ordinary equity holders in the forthcomirg Annul General Meeting,

48 Comparatives

Certain coemparative amournts have been reclassified 1o conform with the current year’s preseniation,

345 (Hrmeenn
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
48 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE BANK

MNotes
IV As at 31 December
2020 2019
Assets
Cash ard bakances with contral banks 2,436,779 2,609,397
Deposits with banks and other financial instiutons 413,567 210,400
Precious metals B7,357 30,063
Placements with and loans to banks and other
financial institutions 634,055 611,187
Dervatme financial asspis 61,937 74944
Fimancial assets held under resale agreements 812,797 701,304
Loans and advances 10 Cusiomers 14,489,992 12,765,561
Fimancial investments
Firancial assets at fair value through profit or koss 396, 298 &08 404
Debt instrument investments at amaorized cost 5,651,053 4,915,498
Other debt instrument and other equity mvestments
at fasr value through other comprehensive income 1,439,296 1,579,790
Imvestment in subsidiaries 19 41,544 41,523
Imwestments in associates and joint ventures 210 208
Controlied structured entities investments. 119,662 131,462
Property and equipment 139,588 141,692
Deferred tax assets 132, 48% 120,072
Othes assats 143,978 124,823
Total assets 27,000,802 24,706,438
Liabilities
Borrowings from central banks 737,048 G608 488
Depaosits from banks and other fimancial institutions 1413174 1,514,804
Placements from banks and other financial institutions 344,907 284,187
Financizl liahilties at fair valoe through profit or loss 23,365 24,333
Derivative financial liabilities 65,254 29 4986
Financizl assets sold under repurchase agreemenis 104,440 £9 360
Due to customers 20,371,534 18,847,324
Debt securites ssued 1,326,408 1,081,040
Other liabilities 427,892 332.021
Total liabilities 14,814,022 22,771,053

Annial Repan 2020 | 347
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
48 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE BANK (Continued)

Mates
IV As at 31 December
2020 2013
Equity
Oreknary sharas 32 349,983 345,983
Other equity Instruments 33 319,875 199,886
Preference shases 79,8599 79,899
Perpetual bonds 239,976 119,987
Capital resere £ 173,357 173,357
Investrent revaluation resene i5 25,784 Ju.549
surplus reserve 36 195,591 174,551
General reserve 37 309,642 273,790
Retained earnings 812,626 130,309
Forsign curancy trans/ation reserve (78) 1,960
Total equity 1,186,780 1.935.385
Total aquity and liahbilitles 27,000,802 24,706,438

Approved and authorzed for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 arch 2021

s 2

Chairman Vice Chairman

348 (Drureny
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49 STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY OF THE BANK

Foreign
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i ¥ Devembar 105 ETET T 1B [EE] HE 154551 PN T3 U0 a3
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Tetdl comprehurrive sroome
o the et - - - By - - MM D A
Cigeat eorivbuton from
ity holders 1] - - - - " - - iHEs
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2020 12 31
6.028
42
( )
2020 12 31
( )
1.
3
2020 2020 2020 2020
3 31 6 30 9 30 12 31
145.2% 141.7% 109.6% 116.3%
3
2019 2019 2019 2019
3 31 6 30 9 30 12 31
140.6% 123.2% 120.1% 125.6%
CBIRC ( )

GAAP
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2020 12 31
945515 115,422 198,148 1,259,085
(924,311)  (115269)  (145891) (1,185471)
() 1,172,479 43,880 68,332 1,284,601
( ) (1,115,324) (24,756) (96172)  (1.236,252)
(23,016) (2,798) (25,814)
55,343 19,277 21,619 96,239
6,212 6,125 3,103 15,440
2019 12 31
926,373 127,888 169,753 1,224,014
(886,247)  (132354)  (115503)  (1,134,104)
( ) 1,387,102 51,531 65594 1,504,227
( ) (1,278,984) (57,717)  (104,180)  (1,440,881)
(85,453) (3,660) (89,113)
62,791 (10,652) 12,004 (64,143)
6,262 9,136 3,088 18,486
3.
10%
( )
2020 12 31
113,364 32,576 238,427 384,367
; 28,559 10,627 161,943 201,129
33,806 26,701 63,320 123,827
321,131 98,147 296,938 716,216
591 101 692

468,892 157,424 598,786 1,225,102
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2019 12 31

3

3 6
6 12
12

3

3 6
6 12
12

2020 12 31 2019 12 31
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134,007 26,555 234,135 394,697
39,719 3,106 152,165 194,990
30,071 11,538 70,161 111,770

340,094 78,862 241,315 660,271

654 116 770

504,826 116,955 545,727 1,167,508

12 31
2020 2019
78,228 71,118
27,106 16,799
33,687 32,851
56,412 62,225
195,433 182,993
0.52% 0.53%
0.18% 0.12%
0.22% 0.25%
0.37% 0.47%
1.29% 1.37%
12 31
2020 2019
71,466 57,266
10,478 11,166
3
0.07% 0.08%
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2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
18.52 17.32 17.48 16.75 16.06
15.06 15.75 16.01 14.86 13.66
16.33 16.60 16.70 15.79 15.46
16.78 17.28 16.16 15.60 15.81
100
2020 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021
12 1 2 3 4 5
15.95 16.12 16.44 16.79 16.89 17.26
15.78 15.78 16.21 16.45 16.61 16.83
15.87 16.01 16.31 16.69 16.72 16.97
100
17.26 2021 5 31
100
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2013 1 1 2037 12 31
2.1
2014 1 1 2037 12 31
20.315 15.315 5 2038 1 1
20 15 5
2009
(b)
D
2009
20
2013 1 1 2037 12 31 20.315
2016 1 1 2016
2)
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8 17 44.1
2020 12 31
14,552.43
13,974.38
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618.01
13.20
2020 12 31
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2020 12 31
WMPs
2,170.62
440.73

488/497



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

IFRSs

ISAs

I1SAs

489/497



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

2021 3 30

490/497



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

I ndependent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of Agricultural Bank of China Limited
(Incorporated in the People's Republic of Chinawith limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Agricultural Bank of China Limited (the “Bank™) and its subsidiaries (the “Group™)
set out on pages 188 to 349, which comprise:

. the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020;

. the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

. the notesto the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs’) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAS’). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section
of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (“IESBA Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the

consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Key audit mattersidentified in our audit are summarized as follows:

. Measurement of expected credit losses for loans and advances to customers

. Consolidation of structured entities

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

Measurement of expected credit |osses for loans and advances
to customers

Refer to Note Il 8.5, Note Il 1, Note IV 8, Note IV 17 and
Note IV 44.1 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of Group’s
loans and advances to customers was RMB14,552.43 billion,
of which RMB13,974.38 billion were measured at amortized
cost and RMB578.00 hillion were measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income. A loss alowance of
RMB618.01 billion was recognized for loans and advances to
customers measured at amortized cost and a loss allowance of
RMB13.20 hillion was recognized for loans and advances to
customers measured a fair value through other
comprehensive income in the Group’s consolidated statement
of financial position. The credit impairment losses on loans
and advances to customers recognized in the Group's
consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
December 2020 amounted to RMB138.99 hillion.

The loss alowances for loans and advances to customers
represent the management’s best estimates at the balance
sheet date of expected credit losses under |International
Financial Reporting Standard 9: Financia Instruments
expected credit losses (“ECL”) models.

We obtained an understanding of the management’s internal
control and assessment process of the measurement of
expected credit losses for loans and advances to customers,
and assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and level of
other inherent risk factors.

We evaluated and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the interna controls relating to the
measurement of expected credit losses for loans and advances
to customers, primarily including:

(1) Interna controls over ECL models, including the
selection, approval and application of modelling
methodology; and ongoing monitoring and optimization
of the models;

(2) Review and approval of significant management
judgements and assumptions, including portfolio
segmentation, model selections, relevant parameters
estimation, determination of significant increase in
credit risk, identification of default and credit-impaired
assets and forward-looking measurement;

(3) Internal controls over the accuracy and completeness of
data used by the models;

(4) Interna controls relating to estimated future cash flows
and calculations of present values of such cash flows
for corporate loans and advances in stage I11;

(5) Internal controls over the information systems for ECL
measurement;

(6) Evaluation and approval of the measurement result of
expected credit losses for loans and advances to
customers.

492/497

oOoOooodn



Key Audit Matter

EDINETOOOO

O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

Measurement of expected credit |osses for loans and advances
to customers (Continued)

The Group assessed whether the credit risk of loans and
advances to customers had increased significantly since their
initial recognition, and applied a three-stage impairment
approach to calculate their ECL. For corporate loans and
advances classified into stages | and Il and for all personal
loans, management assessed ECL using the risk parameter
modelling approach that incorporated key parameters
(including probability of default, loss given default, exposure
at default, etc.). For corporate loans and advances in stage 11,
management assessed ECL by estimating the future cash
flows from the loans.

The substantive procedures we preformed, primarily
including:

According to the risk characteristics of assets, we evaluated
the segmentation of business operations. We assessed the
appropriateness of the modelling methodologies adopted for
ECL measurement by comparing with the industry practice.
We examined the ECL calculation engines on a sample basis,
to validate whether or not the ECL calculation engines reflect
the management’s modelling methodologies.

We examined the accuracy of datainputs for the ECL models,
and evauated the reasonableness of relevant parameters,
covering (i) examination of supporting information on a
sample basis, including contractual information, such as
maturity dates, and other financia and non-financial
information, such as the borrower's historical and reporting
date information, which have been agreed with the underlying
data used to generate probability of default and internal credit
ratings, and assessment of the reasonableness of probability of
default; (ii) assessment of the reasonableness of the loss given
default using historical data and benchmarking against
industry

practices; and (iii) examination of borrowing contracts and
assessment of the reasonableness of exposure at default and
discount rates. In addition, we performed back-testing on
probability of default, loss given default, and assessed the
impact of back-testing results on the models.
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How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

Measurement of expected credit |osses for loans and advances
to customers (Continued)

The measurement of ECL for loans and advances to
customers involves significant management judgments and
assumptions, primarily including:

(1) Segmentation of portfolio based on credit risk
characteristics, selection of appropriate models and
determination of relevant key parameters;

(2) Determination of whether or not there was a significant
increase in credit risk, default or credit-impaired;

(3) Inputs and assumptions used to estimate the impact of
forward looking information and multiple economic
scenarios,

(4) Estimation of future cash flows for corporate loans and
advances in stage 1.

The Group established internal controls for the measurement
of ECL.

The loss alowances for loans and advances to customers
involved significant amounts, and were subject to high degree
of estimation uncertainty. The inherent risk in relation to ECL
measurement was considered significant as the Group adopted
complex models, employed numerous parameters and data
inputs, and applied significant management judgments and
assumptions. In view of these reasons, we identified this as a
key audit matter.

We performed substantive testing over a sample of loans and
advances to customers, and considered financial and non-
financial information, relevant external evidence and other
factors of the borrowers, to assess the appropriateness of
management’s identification of significant increase in credit
risk, defaults and credit-impaired loans.

For forward-looking measurement, we reviewed management
's analysis of their selection of economic indicators, economic
scenarios and weightings assigned. We assessed the
reasonableness of the parameters and inputs used

in the forward looking and multiple economic scenarios
models. We performed sensitivity analysis of the economic
indicators, economic scenarios and weightings assigned.

For corporate loans and advances in stage 111, we examined,
on a sample basis, forecasted future cash flows prepared by
the Group based on financial information of borrowers and
guarantors, latest collateral valuations and other available
information together with discount rates in supporting the
computation of loss allowance.

Based on our procedures performed, in the context of the
inherent uncertainties associated with measurement of ECL
for loans and advances to customers, the models, relevant
parameters and data, significant judgement and assumptions
adopted by management and the measurement results were
considered acceptable.
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How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

Consolidation of Structured Entities

Refer to Note Il 2, Note |1l 5 and Note IV 41 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Structured entities primarily included Wealth Management
Products (“WMPS"), securitization products, funds, trust
investment plans and asset management plans issued,
managed and/or invested by the Group. As at 31 December
2020, total assets of the consolidated structured entities and
the carrying amount of unconsolidated structured entities
invested by the Group included in the consolidated statement
of financial position amounted to RMB241.50 billion and
RMB92.19 billion, respectively. In addition, as a 31
December 2020, total assets of non-principal guaranteed
WMPs, funds and asset management plans sponsored and
managed by the Group which were not consolidated and not
included in the consolidated statement of financial position
amounted to RMB2,170.62 billion and RMB440.73 billion,
respectively.

Management had determined whether the Group had control
of certain structured entities based on their assessment of the
Group's power over, its exposure to variable returns from its
involvement with, and its ability to use its power to affect the
amount of its returns from these structured entities

The significant judgement exercised by management in
assessing whether the Group had control of structured entities
and the amount of such structured entities resulted in this
matter being identified as a key audit matter.

We evaluated and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the Group's relevant controls over
consolidation assessment of structured entities, including
approval of transaction structure, review and approva of
contractual terms, variable return computations, and
consolidation assessment results.

We selected samples of structured entities and assessed the
Group’'s contractua rights and obligations in light of the
transaction structures, and evaluated the Group's power over
the structured entities. We performed independent analysis
and tests on the variable returns from the structured entities,
including but not limited to commission income and asset
management fees earned by the Group as the asset manager,
the retention of residual income, and, if any, the liquidity and
other support provided to the structured entities.

We also assessed whether the Group acted as a principal or an
agent, through analysis of the scope of the Group’s decision-
making authority over the sampled structured entities, the
remuneration to which the Group was entitled for asset
management services, the Group’s exposure to variability of
returns from its other interests in the structured entities, and
the rights held by other partiesin the structured entities.

Based on the procedures performed, we found management’s
consolidation judgment of these structured entities acceptable.
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Other Information

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility isto read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materialy inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give atrue and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financia statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilitiesfor the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individualy or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate

in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financia statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these mattersin our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
conseguences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Leung Kwok Wai, Jimmy.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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